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The Veefin
Fvolution: A Year
of Transformation

In the past 12 months, Veef- Key
in Solutions has undergone a

significant transformation that Achievements & o
has positioned the company Milestones W H

at the forefront of the global
financial technology ecosys-
tem. From being recognized
as the Global #1 SCF Platform,
Veefin has set its sights on an
even more ambitious future -
to become the World'’s Largest
Working Capital Ecosystem.

Global Expansion:

In FY 2024, Veefin accelerat-
ed its global growth, expand-
ing into multiple new regions
and reinforcing its position as
a dominant force in Supply
Chain Finance (SCF) and digi-
tal lending. In addition, we suc-
cessfully acquired four stra-
tegically aligned companies,
within India and outside, further
strengthening the ecosystem
we are building for the future.

This transformation is fuelled
by our relentless commitment
to Al-powered innovation,
strategic acquisitions, and
global expansion, with the goal
of providing a seamless, inter-
connected system that serves
businesses of all sizes - from
SMEs to large multinationals.

PSBEichange

Platform:

The PSBXchange platform,
now operational with top Pub-
lic Sector Banks such as State
Bank of India, UCO Bank and
Bank of Baroda, is a powerful
example of our ongoing growth
and innovation. This platform is
revolutionizing liquidity access
for SMEs in India and beyond,
bridging  critical  financing
gaps and unlocking substan-
tial growth potential. The first
transaction is set to take place
in the coming weeks, marking
an exciting milestone.

Al-Powered Innovation:

In line with our commitment to
transforming financial services,
Veefin has integrated Al into
its core offerings. The strate-
gic acquisitions of Walnut.Al
and Ezee.Al have positioned us
to harness the power of Gen-
erative Al within the lending
ecosystem, a capability many
of our competitors lack. This
integration is empowering
Veefin to lead the way in de-
livering smarter, more efficient
solutions that optimize working
capital management and en-
hance decision-making for our
partners.
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Impressive Growth:

Veefin’s annual recurring dis-
bursement on the platform
surpassed ~$35 billion this
year. This milestone highlights
the scalability and strength of
our solutions and underscores
the trust leading financial in-
stitutions place in our platform.
Our exceptional financial per-
formance validates the power
of our product offerings and
technological infrastructure.

As we continue our growth trajectory, our
focus remains unwavering: to empower SMEs,
optimize working capital, and expand our
global presence - all while leveraging Veefin’s
technology to drive efficiency & innovation

across industries.



Reimagining
Working Capital:

Building

Its Largest
Ecosystem

At Veefin,
we’re not just
building finan-
cial products
- we’re archi-
tecting the
world’s larg-
est working
capital eco-
system.

Our platform is designed to
seamlessly connect corpo-
rates, SMEs, fintechs, and fi-
nancial institutions, driving
frictionless credit access and
accelerating economic mo-
mentum. By embedding ad-
vanced technology deep into
the financial fabric of indus-
tries, we're transforming how
businesses unlock and deploy
working capital - at scale, and
without borders.
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The
Platform’s
Evolution

Veefin 4.0 is engineered as a
unified platform that brings
together Cash Management,
Trade Finance, and Sup-
ply Chain Finance on a sin-
gle, scalable chassis. Built on
ad microservices architecture,
it allows banks to seamless-
ly integrate any—or all—Veef-
in products into their existing
systems with minimal effort.
This convergence doesn't just
offer end-to-end workflows; it
enables institutions to embed
the entire transaction banking
suite through a single, unified
integration. Designed for scale
and flexibility, the platform en-
sures a seamless, frictionless
lending experience for every
stakeholder.

Creating a
Seamless
Ecosystem

At Veefin, our vision is to create
a truly interconnected ecosys-
tem that becomes the back-
bone of working capital for
businesses across the world.
This vision is already translat-
ing into measurable impact
across key stakeholders:
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For SMEs

We unlock faster access to work-
ing capital, enabling growth by
releasing much-needed liquidity.
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For Banks & Financial
Institutions:

Our Al-powered platform stream-
lines the entire lending lifecycle
- enabling access to credit, ex-
panding customer segments, and
reducing operational overheads.
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For Corporates:

We deliver intelligent solutions that
simplify payables, receivables,
and GST compliance, helping fi-
nance teams run leaner, smarter
operations.






Our Core Offerings
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Supply Chain Finance (SCF):
At the core of Veefin's offering,
our SCF platform empowers
businesses to unlock financing
against their trade receivables
and invoices. By providing seam-
less access to working capital,
we eliminate liquidity challenges,
enabling SMEs to focus on scaling
operations and pursuing growth
opportunities without the constant
strain of cash flow limitations
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Digital Lending:

Veefin's Loan Origination System
(LOS) and Collections Manage-
ment System (CMS), powered by
Ezee.Al, provide an all-encom-
passing solution for managing the
loan lifecycle. By automating every
step-from customer onboarding
and loan disbursement to collec-
tions - our platform enables finan-
cial institutions to rapidly scale
their digital lending operations,
ensuring efficiency and precision
throughout the process.
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Al-Infusedin

Financial Workflows:

By integrating Walnut.Al, Veefin
infuses Generative Al capabilities
into core financial operations,
enhancing everything from
automated financial spreading
to real-time insights. Serving as the
group’s dedicated Al consulting arm,
Walnut. Al empowers institutions
to seamlessly embedding Al into
essential workflows, resulting in
more informed decision making
& improved operational efficiency.
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Transaction Banking:

Veefin's transaction banking capabilities led by its subsidiary, GlobeTF,
strengthens its transaction banking capabilities, positioning itself as a
comprehensive provider in this essential space. From cash management
to trade finance, GlobeTF enables Veefin to deliver seamless, integrated
solutions. With the launch of Veefin 4.0, these services—cash management,
supply chain finance, and trade finance—will all be available on a single
chassis, streamlining operations for financial institutions. This makes Veefin
the go-to platform for all transaction banking needs, offering efficiency
and simplicity in one unified solution.

Fraud & Risk Solutions:

Veefin's unified Fraud & Risk API Suite, under Infini Systems, delivers a 360°
defence layer for financial institutions, combining identity verification,
fraud detection, credit risk assessment, and compliance checks into one
seamless platform. By integrating 20+ API categories - spanning KYC, KYB,
AML/PEP screening, court record searches, bank statement analysis, GST/
MCA validations, ITR verification, and alternate data insights - our solution
eliminates the complexity of managing multiple vendors. Advanced fea-
tures like video KYC, deepfake detection, biometric face-matching, dark
web monitoring, and social signal analysis work in real time to identify risks
before they escalate. This all-encompassing approach not only strengthens
compliance but also accelerates onboarding, reduces operational costs,
and safeguards every stage of the lending and transaction lifecycle.
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Automated AR/AP &
Compliance:

The acquisition of Regime Tax
Solutions has brought AR/AP au-
tomation and GST reconciliation
features to our platform through
TaxGenie and Paylnvoice. These
solutions help corporates reduce
manual processing, ensure tax
compliance, and streamline their
financial operations.
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L a n d S C a e Market The global working capital loan market was valued at USD 1.2 trillion
p in 2023 and is expected to grow at a 7.6% CAGR, reaching USD 2.5

Ove rview trillion by 2033. Similarly, the working capital loan market is project-
ed to grow from USD 1.38 trillion in 2023 to USD 3.32 trillion by 2032,
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Of WO r k I n g and Growth at a 10.25% CAGR. S&P 15600 companies reported a 40% increase in
trapped liquidity, totalling approximately $707 billion. Technological
Drivers shifts, such as the adoption of cloud-based solutions, Al, and ma-
chine learning for financial process automation and predictive ana-

o
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The rise in working capital

® ®
needs underscores the impor-
O p p O rt u n It I e s tance of effective strategies.
e Businesses are increasing-

ly turning to digital financial
The working capital market is

solutions to optimize liquidity,
expanding rapidly, driven by

enhance operational efficien-
cy, and improve financial re-
technological adoption, regu-

silience, with Al and ML playing
pivotal roles.
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In Indiq, the private credit mar-

latory reforms, and the grow- s ket saw 15-16% growth in 2024,
ing demand for digital finance - with future growth forecast-
solutions.

ed at 25-30%. India’s venture
debt market grew at a 58%
CAGR, reaching USD 1.23 billion
in 2024, up from USD 80 million
in 2018. India’s GDP is expected
to grow by 6.5% in fiscal 2024—
2025, driven by strong private
consumption and investments.

Veefinis R
strategically RO
positioned R

to capital-
ize on these
opportuni-
ties, both

in India and
globally




India Working
Capital Market
Dynamics

India’s working capital
landscape is evolving,
driven by growing MSME
demands and rapid digital
adoption. Indian corporates
are projected to require $70
billion to $100 billion annually
for growth, refinancing, and
payouts over the next two
years. MSMEs contribute 29%
to India’s GDP, accounting for
45.73% of exports in FY2024.

The working capital loan
market in India was valued at
$1.5 trillion in 2024, projected
to reach $2.8 trillion by 2033,
growing at a 7.5% CAGR. Key
loan segments include term
loans, lines of credit, invoice
financing, and factoring, with
NBFCs being the fastest-
growing segment. Private
sector banks hold the largest
share of credit outstanding, at
51%.

The MSME financing landscape
is rapidly evolving, with 12%
of India's 64 million MSMEs
achieving digital maturity.
Government schemes like
PM SVANidhi (micro-credit
loans for street vendors) and
CGTMSE (credit guarantees for
MSMEs) are helping improve
access to working capital.
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Key Growth
Drivers

Digital
Transformation:
Adoption of digital
tools like UPI

has enhanced
operational
efficiency and
growth for MSMEs

Government
Initiatives: Policies
to enhance digital
infrastructure and
financial literacy
are creating

a favourable
environment for
MSME growth and
working capital
access.
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Fintech Innovation:
Fintech startups
are revolutionizing
working capital
management with
Al-driven solutions

Veefin is well-positioned to
meet the growing demand
for working capital solutions,
with Al-driven products
and a global network of
partners and clients. Our
mission is to be at the
forefront of this market
transformation, providing
seamless solutions that
cater to the evolving needs
of businesses worldwide.



Chairman’s
Message

Raja Debnath

Chairperson, Veefin Group
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Dear Shareowners,

We opened the year with an external signal that matters: Veefin was
named Global Leader for the second straight year in the IBS Spectrum
Matrix.

Why start here? Because the IBS Spectrum Matrix is a trusted benchmark
for banks during vendor evaluations and RFPs. A repeat leadership
position tells customers three things: our product depth is real, execution
is consistent, and our roadmap aligns with where transaction banking
is headed. Recognition doesn't build businesses - but it lowers friction
in enterprise buying and shortens the distance from first meeting to
production.

Recognition is a lagging indicator; we focus on the compounding engine
that createsiit.

Our mission has evolved. We've
moved from wanting to be the
“Global #1 SCF platform” to
Building the World’s Largest
Working Capital Technology
Ecosystem

The difference is scope and ambition: from a single product
category to an orchestrated network - banks, enterprises,
channels, data providers, and decisioning—running on one
modern backbone.

Platform: One chassis, Three engines

We took the decisive step of revamping our supply
chain finance platform in record time. Within five years,
we replaced a strong but legacy system with Veefin
4.0, a modern, microservices-based stack. On this
foundation, we now offer Supply Chain Finance, Cash,
and Trade - all running on a single chassis.

This is more than a technical achievement. It positions
Veefin as arguably the only company in the world
offering all three modules on one unified platform.
For our clients, it means faster deployment, seamless
integration, and lower cost of ownership. For us, it means
every relationship in supply chain finance becomes an
entry point to extend into trade and cash - creating
long-term cross-sell opportunities, improving lifetime
value and unit economics

Our product company acquisitions (Ezee.Ai, Walnut.Al)
now work as one: Ezee’'s LOS anchors underwriting and
collections; Walnut automates CAM creation via our API
gateway and third-party rails. The benefit to clients is
not another module; it's a tighter system of intelligence
- cleaner onboarding, faster decisioning, lower total
cost of ownership.

This year, we successfully completed two more
opportunistic acquisitions - Nityo and White Rivers
Media through Veefin's service subsidiary, Infini
Systems. Notably, these acquisitions were executed
without Veefin having to make a direct investment
or face any dilution. The businesses are now being
consolidated into a single entity, in which Veefin will hold
an estimated 20% ownership stake. Over time, Veefin
expects to derive significant value from this structure,
ensuring that its shareholders gain their rightful share
of the benefits.

Moving on to the biggest jewel in the Veefin crown -
PSBXchange!

PSBXchange is moving from promise to scale. It is
going live with multiple Public Sector Banks and is
being adopted not only for sourcing but to run the
full technology stack - for programs originated on-
platform and off-platform. Early adopters include State
Bank of India, UCO Bank, Central Bank of India, Indian
Overseas Bank, and Bank of Baroda.

When banks run both their on-platform and off-
platform programs through Veefin, the value creation
multiplies: more data, better decisioning, and stronger
client stickiness. We expect PSB Xchange to be one of
the single biggest drivers of growth in the years ahead.

Financial performance

This year, Veefin delivered growth with discipline.
Consolidated revenue grew 215% year-on-year to
27,860 lakhs, EBITDA rose 142% to 2,615 lakhs, and
PAT increased 120% to 21,626 lakhs. These results were
achieved while we rebuilt our core stack and integrated
recent acquisitions. Importantly, as highlighted in our
investor presentation, the full financial impact of the
acquisitions will be visible in the coming year, creating
even greater operating leverage
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People

At Veefin, ownership is not rhetoric - it is structure.
We are one of the few companies in the world with a
100% ESOP policy, meaning every employee, from the
janitor to the highest executive, is a shareholder. This
model ensures that accountability is not layered; it is
universal. When everyone is an owner, speed and care
coexist: speed in execution, and care in safeguarding
long-term value.

Our teams continue to grow as we've nearly doubled
our team size from the previous year. We have
expanded across geographies, invested in engineering
leadership, and built a culture where innovation
is paired with responsibility. The proof is visible in
faster go-lives, cleaner integrations, and the trust we
are earning from institutions that operate in highly
regulated environments. Our Great Place to Work
certification for 3 years in a row stands as a testament
to our ever-evolving culture

Looking ahead

We are now executing against an ecosystem thesis.
First, scale PSB Xchange from a platform into a fabric
- a shared infrastructure where banks originate,
underwrite, and run working-capital programs with
less friction and more resilience. As more institutions
participate, the value amplifies: standardization of
onboarding, better data for decisioning, and lower
marginal cost of adding new programs.

Second, turn “one chassis, three engines” into everyday
leverage. The strategic advantage is not just featuring
breadth; it's the seamless attach - SCF to Cash to Trade
- completing the transaction banking suite without
duplicated integrations, data silos, or fragmented
controls. As clients expand on the same backbone,
we expect deeper stickiness and simpler expansions
across geographies and product lines.

Third, compound intelligence. With Ezee.Al's and Walnut.
Al embedded, decisioning becomes more explainable
and repeatable; CAMs can be generated with reliable
provenance; and our data layer grows more useful -
informing credit, risk, and portfolio actions with every
cycle. This is how software earns trust in regulated
environments: by being auditable, consistent, and
faster each time.

Finally, stay disciplined. We will keep prioritizing long-
life products over short-term projects; standardization
over one-off builds; and recurring value over episodic
services. The mission - to build the world’'s largest
working-capital ~ ecosystem  demands  patient
architecture and relentless simplification. When
distribution, data, and decisioning reinforce one
another, value compounds.
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Strength-
ening the
Product
Ecosystem

1. GlobeTF - Expanding
into Transaction Banking

Veefin's subsidiary, GlobeTF,
marked the beginning of a more
expansive journey. While Veefin
Solutions specialized in SCF
and digital lending, it lacked a
dedicated transaction banking
suite. GlobeTF, with its expertise
in trade and cash management
solutions, filled that gap,
enabling Veefin to offer end-
to-end financial services for
corporates and banks.

2. Walnut.Al - Powering
Al-Driven Insights

As financial institutions and
corporates  struggled  with
vast amounts of unstructured
data, the need for Al-powered
decision-making became
evident. The acquisition of
Walnut.Al in November 2024
provided Veefin with cutting-
edge Generative Al capabilities,
transforming complex data
into actionable insights for risk
assessment, credit scoring, and
predictive analytics.
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3. TaxGenie — Automating
AR/AP & GST Compliance

Before acquiring TaxGenie in
June 2024, Veefin lacked a
dedicated solution for accounts
receivable  (AR), accounts
payable  (AP), and  GST
reconciliation on its platform.
By integrating  TaxGenie's
automation expertise, Veefin
enhanced its offerings for
corporates, streamlining invoice
processing, compliance, and
financial workflows for greater
efficiency. This is one step prior
to these corporates entering
the banking ecosystem for loan
applications.

4. Ezee.Al - Optimizing
Loan Origination &
Collections

As financial institutions and
corporates  struggled  with
vast amounts of unstructured
data, the need for Al-powered
decision-making became
evident. The acquisition of
Walnut.Al in November 2024
provided Veefin with cutting-
edge Generative Al capabilities,
transforming complex data
into actionable insights for risk
assessment, credit scoring, and
predictive analytics.

"

5. Veefin Fraud & Risk
- Enhancing Security &
Compliance

Financial transactions,
especially in trade and supply
chainfinance,involve significant
risk. To mitigate this, Veefin
has developed its own Fraud
& Risk Management solution,
an API-driven suite designed
to reduce reliance on third-
party platforms. This not only
streamlines implementation
and integration but also
enhances security while
delivering a seamless, all-in-
one platform experience for
users.
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Building a
Financial In-
frastructure
Through
Platforms

6. E-Storifi (PSBXchange)
- Creating the World's
Largest SCF Ecosystem

One of Veefin's most ambitious
initiatives was the launch
of PSBXchange, a platform
that unites SMEs, banks, and
fintechs within a single digital
ecosystem. This innovation
democratizes access to finance,
ensuring liquidity for SMEs while
expanding banks’ borrower
base and unlocking new
lending opportunities that were
previously difficult to access
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The Future: A Unified
Digital Finance
Ecosystem

Each acquisition was and will be
strategically aligned with Veef-
in’s vision of building the world’s
most comprehensive working
capital technology platform. By
integrating transaction banking,
Al-driven insights, automated
finance workflows, fraud risk
management, marketplace and
trading, Veefin has created a
seamless financial infrastruc-
ture

Annual Report 2024-2025






Clutch
of Awards
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Veefin - Best Fit
for Lenders of all

sizes

We enableinstitutions worldwide
to transform and optimise their
working  capital  operations
through afully integrated, omni-
channel technology stack.
Designed for configurability and
scalability, our platform delivers
a comprehensive suite of
solutions that adapt seamlessly
to the unique needs of each
client, from large global banks
to niche financial players

Complete Working
Capital Solution

Leveraging deep  domain
expertise, we have productised
almost every critical aspect of
working capital management.
From day one, clients can gain
access to a ready-to-deploy,
end-to-end solution covering
the full lifecycle - enabling
immediate  value  creation
without lengthy custom builds

Domain Leadership
Across Lending and
Digital Banking

Recognised by IBS Intelligence
as the market leaders in
Supply Chain Finance platform
domain for two consecutive
years, Veefin also delivers a full
spectrum of working capital
products, from transaction
banking to digital lending to
collections. Our underwriting
solutions are trusted for their
innovation, precision, and
design excellence

Unmatched Speed of
Deployment

Where traditional enterprise
rollouts can take years, our out-
of-the-box platform can be live
in weeks, accelerating time-
to-value and giving institutions
a competitive advantage in
execution speed.
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Global Reach, Proven
Market Penetration

Our growing international
sales network, built through
strategic  alliances  across
industries and geographies,
ensures rapid market entry
and sustained expansion. This
reach, combined with strong
local partnerships, gives us a
decisive competitive edge.

Transparent,
Value-Aligned
Pricing

We break away from heavy
upfront licensing fees by
offering a SaaS-based revenue-
sharing model. This approach
lowers barriers to adoption,
aligns incentives, and fosters
long-term partnerships built on
shared success

Flexible, Compliance-
Ready Architecture

Designed for adaptability, our
platform can be deployed on
cloud, on-premises, or hybrid
models. It is fully configurable
to meet local regulatory
requirements, ensuring both
agility and compliance without
compromise.



Notice Of 5th
Annual General
Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE FIFTH (5TH) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF VEEFIN
SOLUTIONS LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS VEEFIN SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED) WILL BE HELD ON FRIDAY,
SEPTEMBER 26,2025 AT 03:00 P.M. THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING (VC) FACILITY OR OTHER AUDIO VISUAL
MEANS (OAVM) TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

Ordinary Business:

1. A. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, together with the report of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon

B. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, together with the Reports of Auditor thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Raja Debnath (DIN No. 07658567), Managing Director, who
retires by rotation in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

Special Business:

3. To appoint Secretarial Auditors of the Company:
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
2013, Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
and Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), other applicable laws/statutory provisions,
if any, as amended from time to time, M/s Maharshi Ganatra and Associates, a firm of the Company
Secretaries in Practice (C.P. No 14520) be and are hereby appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the
Company for term of five consecutive years commencing from financial year 2025-26 till financial year
2029-30."

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to fix
the annual remuneration plus applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses payable to them during
their tenure as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company, as determined by the Audit Committee in
consultation with the said Secretarial Auditors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/or the Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company be and are hereby authorized to take such steps and do all such acts, deeds, matters, and
things as may be considered necessary, proper, and expedient to give effect to this Resolution.

4. Approval of Material Related Party Transactions of Veefin Solutions
Limited (Company) with its Related parties

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulations 2(1) (zc), 23(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and other applicable
provisions, if any of the SEBI Listing Regulations as amended from time to time, Section 2(76), 188 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable Rules under Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 including any modifications, variations or re-enactments
thereof for the time being in force and as may be notified from time to time and subject to such other
consents, permissions, approvals as may be required in this behalf, and based on the recommendation/
approval of the Audit Committee and the Board of the Directors, consent of the Members of the Company
be and is hereby accorded to the Board of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Board’, which term
shall be deemed to include the Audit Committee or any other Committee constituted/empowered/to be
constituted by the Board from time to time to exercise its powers conferred by this Resolution) to enter
into Material Related Party Transaction(s)/ Contract(s)/Arrangement(s)/ Agreement(s) proposed to be
entered into (whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken together or a series of
transactions or otherwise (including any modifications, alterations or amendments thereto) in the ordinary
course of business and on arms’ length basis, between the Company and the entities being related party
of the Company as more specifically detailed out in Table forming part of item no. 4 of the explanatory
statement annexed to this notice, whether by way of continuation(s) or renewal(s) or extension(s) or
modification(s) of earlier transactions or as fresh and independent transaction(s) or notwithstanding the
fact that such transactions (including existing contracts [ arrangements /transactions) may exceed 10%
of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company in any financial year or such other threshold limits
as may be specified by the Act or SEBI Listing Regulations from time to time on such terms and conditions
as the Board/ Audit Committee, in its absolute discretion may deem fit, for a period not exceeding twelve
months, as per SEBI Circular dated SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDI/CIR/P[2022/47 dated April 08, 2022 and on such
terms and conditions as the Board of Directors of the Company (which term shall deem to include any
committee thereof or director(s) or official(s) of the Company for the time being authorized by the Board
to exercise the powers conferred on the Board by this Resolution) may deem fit, in compliance with any
requirements of applicable law.



Related Party Transaction to be entered into with related parties for FY 2025-2026 is as follows

Name of the Related Party Relationship

Nature of Transaction

Value of
Transaction

(Rs.in Crores)

Raja Debnath Promoter and Director | Availing of revolving loan facility (To take 50
revolving loan facility from Raja Debnath)

Gautam Udani Promoter and Director | Availing of revolving loan facility (To take 50
revolving loan facility from Gautam Udani)

Estorifi Solutions Limited Subsidiary Company | Availing and rendering of services 20
Availing and rendering of revolving loan 100
facility
To give Corporate guarantee 100

Infini Systems Limited Subsidiary Company | Availing and rendering of services 20
Availing and rendering of revolving loan 100
facility
To give Corporate guarantee 100

Templeton Solutions FZE Group Company Availing and rendering of services 20

GlobeTF Solutions Limited | Subsidiary Company | Availing and rendering of services 20
Availing and rendering of revolving loan 50
facility

Veefin Capital Private Subsidiary Company | Availing and rendering of services 20

Limited
Availing and rendering of revolving loan 50
facility

Chain Fintech Solutions Step-down Subsidiary | Availing and rendering of services 20

Limited (Group Company)

Nityo Tech Private Limited | Step-down Subsidiary | Availing and rendering of services 20

(Group Company)
Availing and rendering of revolving loan 50
facility

Regime Tax Solutions Pri- | Step-down Subsidiary | Availing and rendering of services 20

vate Limited (Group Company)

Availing and rendering of revolving loan 50
facility

Veefin Solutions Limited Subsidiary Company | Availing and rendering of services 20

Bangladesh

Veefin Solutions Limited Subsidiary Company | Availing and rendering of services 20

FZCO

Epikindifi Software and Step-down Subsidiary | Availing and rendering of services 20

Solutions Private Limited (Group Company)

Availing and rendering of revolving loan 20
facility

FE Ventures Private Limited | Step-down Subsidiary | Availing and rendering of services 50

(Group Company)
Availing and rendering of revolving loan 50
facility

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (which shall be deemed to include the
Audit Committee of the Company and any duly constituted / to be constituted Committee of Directors
thereof to exercise its powers including powers conferred under this resolution) or the Company Secretary
be and is hereby authorized to do and perform all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may deem
fit at its absolute discretion and to take all such steps as may be required in this connection including
finalizing and executing necessary documents, contract(s) / arrangement(s) / agreement(s) and other
ancillary documents as may be required; seeking necessary approvals to give effect to this resolution
from the authorities; settling all such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise
and to take all such decisions from powers herein conferred; and delegate all or any of the powers herein
conferred to any Director, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary or any other Officer / Authorised
Representative of the Company, without being required to seek further consent from the Members and
that the Members shall be deemed to have accorded their consent thereto expressly by the authority of
this resolution.”

5. Approval of Material Related Party Transactions between Infini Systems Limited (formerly known as
Infini Systems Private Limited), a subsidiary of the Company with its Related parties and the Related
parties of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulations 2(1) (zc), 23(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and other applicable
provisions, if any of the SEBI Listing Regulations as amended from time to time, Section 2(76),188 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable Rules under Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 including any modifications, variations or re-enactments
thereof for the time being in force and as may be notified from time to time and subject to such other
consents, permissions, approvals as may be required in this behalf, and based on the recommendation/
approval of the Audit Committee and the Board of the Directors, consent of the Members of the Company
be and is hereby accorded to enter into and/or continue the related party transaction(s) / contract(s)/
arrangement(s)/ agreement(s) (whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken
together or series of transactions or otherwise) between or for the benefit of Infini Systems Limited (formerly
known as Infini Systems Private Limited) and the related parties (in terms of Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations) in the ordinary course of business and on arms’ length basis, as more specifically
detailed out in Table forming part of item no. 5 of the explanatory statement annexed to this notice,
whether by way of continuation(s) or renewal(s) or extension(s) or modification(s) of earlier transactions
or as fresh and independent transaction(s) or notwithstanding the fact that such transactions (including
existing contracts / arrangements [transactions) may exceed 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of
the Company in any financial year or such other threshold limits as may be specified by the Act or SEBI
Listing Regulations from time to time on such terms and conditions as the Board/ Audit Committee, in its
absolute discretion may deem fit, for a period not exceeding twelve months, as per SEBI Circular dated
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD]/CIR7P/2022/47 dated April 08, 2022 and on such terms and conditions as the Board
of Directors of the Company (which term shall deem to include any committee thereof or director(s) or
official(s) of the Company for the time being authorized by the Board to exercise the powers conferred on
the Board by this Resolution) may deem fit, in compliance with any requirements of applicable law.



Related Party Transaction to be entered into with related parties for FY 2025-2026 is as follows:

Name of the Related Party | Relationship Nature of Transaction Value of Trans-
action (Rs. in
Crores)

Raja Debnath Promoter and Director | Availing of revolving loan facility (To take 50
revolving loan facility from Raja Debnath)

Gautam Udani Promoter and Director | Availing of revolving loan facility (To take 50
revolving loan facility from Gautam Udani)

Veefin Solutions Limited Holding Company Availing and rendering of services 50
Availing and rendering of revolving loan 100
facility
Availing of Corporate guarantee 100

Estorifi Solutions Limited Group Company Availing and rendering of services 20
Availing and rendering of revolving loan 20
facility

GlobeTF Solutions Limited | Group Company Availing and rendering of services 20
Availing and rendering of revolving loan 20
facility

Veefin Capital Private Group Company Availing and rendering of services 20

Limited
Availing and rendering of revolving loan 20
facility

Chain Fintech Solutions Subsidiary Company | Availing and rendering of services 10

Limited

Nityo Tech Private Limited | Subsidiary Company | Availing and rendering of services 20
Availing and rendering of revolving loan 20
facility

White Rivers Media Solu- Subsidiary Company | Availing and rendering of services 20

tions Private Limited
Availing and rendering of revolving loan 50
facility
Availing of Corporate guarantee 50
Investment in Equity Shares 100

FE Ventures Private Limited | Step-down Subsidiary | Availing and rendering of services 50

(Group Company)
Availing and rendering of revolving loan 50
facility

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (which shall be deemed to include the
Audit Committee of the Company and any duly constituted / to be constituted Committee of Directors
thereof to exercise its powers including powers conferred under this resolution) be and is hereby authorized
to do and perform all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may deem fit at its absolute discretion and
to take all such steps as may be required in this connection including finalizing and executing necessary
documents, contract(s) / arrangement(s) /| agreement(s) and other ancillary documents as may be
required; seeking necessary approvals to give effect to this resolution from the authorities; settling all
such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise and to take all such decisions from
powers herein conferred; and delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to any Director, Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary or any other Officer /| Authorised Representative of the Company,
without being required to seek further consent from the Members and that the Members shall be deemed
to have accorded their consent thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board of the respective subsidiaries in connection
with any matter referred to or contemplated in this resolution, be and is hereby approved, ratified and
confirmed in all respect.”

6. Approval of Material Related Party Transactions between Estorifi Solutions Limited (formerly known
as Estorifi Solutions Private Limited), a subsidiary of the Company with its Related parties and the
Related parties of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulations 2(1) (zc), 23(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and other applicable provisions, if
any of the SEBI Listing Regulations as amended from time to time, Section 2(76), 188 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable Rules under Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 including any modifications, variations or re-enactments thereof for the
time beinginforce and as may be notified from time to time and subject to such other consents, permissions,
approvals as may be required in this behalf, and based on the recommendation/approval of the Audit
Committee and the Board of the Directors, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to enter into and/or continue the related party transaction(s) / contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/
agreement(s) (whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken together or series of
transactions or otherwiseg between or for the benefit of Estorifi Solutions Limited (formerly known as
Estorifi Solutions Private Limited) and the related parties (in terms of Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations) in the ordinary course of business and on arms’ length basis, as more specifically detailed
out in Table forming part of item no. 6 of the explanatory statement annexed to this notice, whether by
way of continuation(s) or renewal(s) or extension(s) or modification(s) of earlier transactions or as fresh
and independent transaction(s) or notwithstanding the fact that such transactions (including existing
contracts [ arrangements /[transactions) may exceed 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the
Company in any financial year or such other threshold limits as may be specified by the Act or SEBI Listing
Regulations from time to time on such terms and conditions as the Board/ Audit Committee, in its absolute
discretion may deem fit, for a period not exceeding twelve months, as per SEBI Circular dated SEBI/HO/
CFD/CMDI/CIR/P[2022/47 dated April 08,2022 and on such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors
of the Company (which term shall deem to include any committee thereof or director(s) or official(s) of
the Company for the time being authorized by the Board to exercise the powers conferred on the Board by
this Resolution) may deem fit, in compliance with any requirements of applicable law.



Related Party Transaction to be entered into with related parties for FY 2025-2026 is as follows:

Name of the Related
Party

Relationship

Nature of Transaction

Value of
Transac-

tion (Rs. in
Crores)

ible Preference Shares (CCPS)

Raja Debnath Promoter and Di- Availing of revolving loan facility (To take 50

rector revolving loan facility from Raja Debnath)

Gautam Udani Promoter and Di- Availing of revolving loan facility (To take 50

rector revolving loan facility from Gautam Udani)

Veefin Solutions Limited [ Holding Company | Availing and rendering of services 50
Availing and rendering of revolving 100
loan facility
Availing of Corporate guarantee 100

Infini Systems Limited Group Company Availing and rendering of services 20
Availing and rendering of revolving 20
loan facility

GlobeTF Solutions Lim- [ Group Company Availing and rendering of services 20

ited
Availing and rendering of revolving 20
loan facility

Veefin Capital Private Group Company Availing and rendering of services 20

Limited
Availing and rendering of revolving 20
loan facility

Regime Tax Solutions Step-down Subsidiary | Availing and rendering of services 20

Private Limited (Group Company) » : :

Availing and rendering of revolving 50
loan facility

Epikindifi Software and Step-down Subsidiary | Availing and rendering of services 20

Solutions Private Limited | (Group Company) — ) )

Availing and rendering of revolving 50
loan facility
Investment in Compulsorily Convert- [ 50

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (which shall be deemed to include the
Audit Committee of the Company and any duly constituted / to be constituted Committee of Directors
thereof to exercise its powers including powers conferred under this resolution) be and is hereby authorized
to do and perform all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may deem fit at its absolute discretion and
to take all such steps as may be required in this connection including finalizing and executing necessary
documents, contract(s) / arrangement(s) /| agreement(s) and other ancillary documents as may be
required; seeking necessary approvals to give effect to this resolution from the authorities; settling all
such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise and to take all such decisions from
powers herein conferred; and delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to any Director, Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary or any other Officer [ Authorised Representative of the Company,
without being required to seek further consent from the Members and that the Members shall be deemed
to have accorded their consent thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board of the respective subsidiaries in connection
with any matter referred to or contemplated in this resolution, be and is hereby approved, ratified and
confirmed in all respect.”

7.Approval of Material Related Party Transactions between GlobeTF Solutions Limited (formerly known
as GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited), a subsidiary of the Company with its Related parties and the
Related parties of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulations 2(1) (zc), 23(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and other applicable provisions, if
any of the SEBI Listing Regulations as amended from time to time, Section 2(76), 188 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable Rules under Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 including any modifications, variations or re-enactments thereof for the
time beinginforce and as may be notified fromtime to time and subject to such other consents, permissions,
approvals as may be required in this behalf, and based on the recommendation/approval of the Audit
Committee and the Board of the Directors, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to enter into and/or continue the related party transaction(s) / contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/
agreement(s) (whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken together or series of
transactions or otherwise) between or for the benefit of GlobeTF Solutions Limited (formerly known as
GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited) and the related parties (in terms of Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations) in the ordinary course of business and on arms’ length basis, as more specifically detailed
out in Table forming part of item no. 7 of the explanatory statement annexed to this notice, whether by
way of continuation(s) or renewal(s) or extension(s) or modification(s) of earlier transactions or as fresh
and independent transaction(s) or notwithstanding the fact that such transactions (including existing
contracts [ arrangements /transactions) may exceed 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the
Company in any financial year or such other threshold limits as may be specified by the Act or SEBI Listing
Regulations from time to time on such terms and conditions as the Board/ Audit Committee, in its absolute
discretion may deem fit, for a period not exceeding twelve months, as per SEBI Circular dated SEBI/HO/
CFD/CMDI/CIR/P[2022/47 dated April 08,2022 and on such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors
of the Company (which term shall deem to include any committee thereof or director(s) or official(s) of
the Company for the time being authorized by the Board to exercise the powers conferred on the Board by
this Resolution) may deem fit, in compliance with any requirements of applicable law.



Related Party Transaction to be entered into with related parties for FY 2025-2026 is as follows:

Name of the Related Relationship Nature of Transaction Value of
Party Transac-
tion (Rs. in
Crores)
Raja Debnath Promoter and Di- Availing of revolving loan facility (To take 20
rector revolving loan facility from Raja Debnath)
Gautam Udani Promoter and Di- Availing of revolving loan facility (To take 20
rector revolving loan facility from Gautam Udani)
Veefin Solutions Limited | Holding Company [ Availing and rendering of services 20
Availing and rendering of revolving 20
loan facility
Infini Systems Limited Group Company Availing and rendering of services 20
Availing and rendering of revolving 20
loan facility
Veefin Capital Private Group Company Availing and rendering of services 20
Limited
Availing and rendering of revolving 20
loan facility

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (which shall be deemed to include the
Audit Committee of the Company and any duly constituted / to be constituted Committee of Directors
thereof to exercise its powers including powers conferred under this resolution) be and is hereby authorized
to do and perform all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may deem fit at its absolute discretion and
to take all such steps as may be required in this connection including finalizing and executing necessary
documents, contract(s) / arrangement(s) /| agreement(s) and other ancillary documents as may be
required; seeking necessary approvals to give effect to this resolution from the authorities; settling all
such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise and to take all such decisions from
powers herein conferred; and delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to any Director, Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary or any other Officer | Authorised Representative of the Company,
without being required to seek further consent from the Members and that the Members shall be deemed
to have accorded their consent thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board of the respective subsidiaries in connection
with any matter referred to or contemplated in this resolution, be and is hereby approved, ratified and
confirmed in all respect.”

8 Approval of Material Related Party Transactions between Veefin Capital Private Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company with its Related parties and the Related parties of the Company

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulations 2(1) (zc), 23(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and other applicable provisions, if
any of the SEBI Listing Regulations as amended from time to time, Section 2(76), 188 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable Rules under Companies (Meetings of

Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 including any modifications, variations or re-enactments thereof for the
time beinginforce and as may be notified from time to time and subject to such other consents, permissions,
approvals as may be required in this behalf, and based on the recommendation/approval of the Audit
Committee and the Board of the Directors, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to enter into and/or continue the related party transaction(s) / contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/
qgreement(s) (whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken together or series of
transactions or otherwise) between or for the benefit of Veefin Capital Private Limited and the related parties
(in terms of Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI Listing Regulations) in the ordinary course of business and on
arms’ length basis, as more specifically detailed out in Table forming part of item no. 8 of the explanatory
statement annexed to this notice, whether by way of continuation(s) or renewal(s) or extension(s) or
modification(s) of earlier transactions or as fresh and independent transaction(s) or notwithstanding the
fact that such transactions (including existing contracts / arrangements [transactions) may exceed 10%
of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company in any financial year or such other threshold limits
as may be specified by the Act or SEBI Listing Regulations from time to time on such terms and conditions
as the Board/ Audit Committee, in its absolute discretion may deem fit, for a period not exceeding twelve
months, as per SEBI Circular dated SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2022/47 dated April 08, 2022 and on such
terms and conditions as the Board of Directors of the Company (which term shall deem to include any
committee thereof or director(s) or official(s) of the Company for the time being authorized by the Board
to exercise the powers conferred on the Board by this Resolution) may deem fit, in compliance with any
requirements of applicable law.

Related Party Transaction to be entered into with related parties for FY 2025-2026 is as follows

Name of the Related Relationship Nature of Transaction Value of
Party Transac-
tion (Rs. in
Crores)
Raja Debnath Promoter and Di- Availing of revolving loan facility (To 20
rector take revolving loan facility from Raja
Debnath)
Veefin Solutions Limited | Holding Company [ Availing and rendering of services 20
Availing and rendering of revolving 50
loan facility
Infini Systems Limited Group Company Availing and rendering of services 20
Availing and rendering of revolving 20
loan facility
Estorifi Solutions Limited | Group Company Availing and rendering of services 20
Availing and rendering of revolving 20
loan facility
GlobeTF Solutions Lim- | Group Company Availing and rendering of services 20
ited Availing and rendering of revolving 20
loan facility




RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (which shall be deemed to include the
Audit Committee of the Company and any duly constituted [ to be constituted Committee of Directors
thereof to exercise its powers including powers conferred under this resolution) be and is hereby authorized
to do and perform all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may deem fit at its absolute discretion and
to take all such steps as may be required in this connection including finalizing and executing necessary
documents, contract(s) / arrangement(s) / agreement(s) and other ancillary documents as may be
required; seeking necessary approvals to give effect to this resolution from the authorities; settling all
such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise and to take all such decisions from
powers herein conferred; and delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to any Director, Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary or any other Officer /| Authorised Representative of the Company,
without being required to seek further consent from the Members and that the Members shall be deemed
to have accorded their consent thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board of the respective subsidiaries in connection
with any matter referred to or contemplated in this resolution, be and is hereby approved, ratified and
confirmed in all respect.”

9.Approval of Material Related Party Transactions between Nityo Tech Private Limited, a step-down
Subsidiary of the Company with its Related parties and the Related parties of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulations 2(1) (zc), 23(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and other applicable provisions, if
any of the SEBI Listing Regulations as amended from time to time, Section 2(76), 188 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable Rules under Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 including any modifications, variations or re-enactments thereof for the
time beinginforce and as may be notified from time to time and subject to such other consents, permissions,
approvals as may be required in this behalf, and based on the recommendation/approval of the Audit
Committee and the Board of the Directors, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to enter into and/or continue the related party transaction(s) / contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/
agreement(s) (whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken together or series of
transactions or otherwise) between or for the benefit of Nityo Tech Private Limited and the related parties
(in terms of Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI Listing Regulations) in the ordinary course of business and on
arms’ length basis, as more specifically detailed out in Table forming part of item no. 9 of the explanatory
statement annexed to this notice, whether by way of continuation(s) or renewal(s) or extension(s) or
maodification(s) of earlier transactions or as fresh and independent transaction(s) or notwithstanding the
fact that such transactions (including existing contracts / arrangements [transactions) may exceed 10%
of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company in any financial year or such other threshold limits
as may be specified by the Act or SEBI Listing Regulations from time to time on such terms and conditions
as the Board/ Audit Committee, in its absolute discretion may deem fit, for a period not exceeding twelve
months, as per SEBI Circular dated SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2022/47 dated April 08, 2022 and on such
terms and conditions as the Board of Directors of the Company (which term shall deem to include any
committee thereof or director(s) or official(s) of the Company for the time being authorized by the Board
to exercise the powers conferred on the Board by this Resolution) may deem fit, in compliance with any
requirements of applicable law.

Related Party Transaction to be entered into with related parties for FY 2025-2026 is as follows:

Name of the Related Relationship Nature of Transaction Value of
Party Transac-
tion (Rs. in
Crores)
Raja Debnath Promoter & Director | Availing of revolving loan facility (To take 20
revolving loan facility from Raja Debnath)
Gautam Udani Promoter & Director | Availing of revolving loan facility (To take 20
revolving loan facility from Gautam Udani)
Veefin Solutions Limited | Holding Company [ Availing and rendering of services 50
Availing and rendering of revolving 50
loan facility
Availing of Corporate guarantee 50
Infini Systems Limited Holding Company | Availing and rendering of services 20
Availing and rendering of revolving 20
loan facility
Bhavyansh Infotech Group Company Availing and rendering of services 20
Private Limited . - -
Availing and rendering of revolving 20
loan facility

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (which shall be deemed to include the
Audit Committee of the Company and any duly constituted / to be constituted Committee of Directors
thereof to exercise its powers including powers conferred under this resolution) be and is hereby authorized
to do and perform all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may deem fit at its absolute discretion and
to take all such steps as may be required in this connection including finalizing and executing necessary
documents, contract(s) / arrangement(s) /| agreement(s) and other ancillary documents as may be
required; seeking necessary approvals to give effect to this resolution from the authorities; settling all
such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise and to take all such decisions from
powers herein conferred; and delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to any Director, Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary or any other Officer [ Authorised Representative of the Company,
without being required to seek further consent from the Members and that the Members shall be deemed
to have accorded their consent thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board of the respective subsidiaries in connection
with any matter referred to or contemplated in this resolution, be and is hereby approved, ratified and
confirmed in all respect.”



10. Approval of Material Related Party Transactions between Regime Tax Solutions Private Limited, a
step- down subsidiary of the Company with its Related parties and the Related parties of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulations 2(1) (zc), 23(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and other applicable provisions, if
any of the SEBI Listing Regulations as amended from time to time, Section 2(76), 188 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable Rules under Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 including any modifications, variations or re-enactments thereof for the
time beinginforce and as may be notified from time to time and subject to such other consents, permissions,
approvals as may be required in this behalf, and based on the recommendation/approval of the Audit
Committee and the Board of the Directors, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to enter into and/or continue the related party transaction(s) / contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/
agreement(s) (whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken together or series of
transactions or otherwise) between or for the benefit of Regime Tax Solutions Private Limited and the
related parties (in terms of Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI Listing Regulations) in the ordinary course of
business and on arms’ length basis, as more specifically detailed out in Table forming part of item no.
10 of the explanatory statement annexed to this notice, whether by way of continuation(s) or renewal(s)
or extension(s) or modification(s) of earlier transactions or as fresh and independent transaction(s)
or notwithstanding the fact that such transactions (including existing contracts / arrangements /[
transactions) may exceed 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company in any financial year
or such other threshold limits as may be specified by the Act or SEBI Listing Regulations from time to time
on such terms and conditions as the Board/ Audit Committee, in its absolute discretion may deem fit,
for a period not exceeding twelve months, as per SEBI Circular dated SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P[2022/47
dated April 08, 2022 and on such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors of the Company (which
term shall deem to include any committee thereof or director(s) or official(s) of the Company for the time
being authorized by the Board to exercise the powers conferred on the Board by this Resolution) may
deem fit, in compliance with any requirements of applicable law.

Related Party Transaction to be entered into with related parties for FY 2025-2026 is as follows:

Name of the Related Relationship Nature of Transaction Value of
Party Transac-
tion (Rs. in
Crores)
Raja Debnath Nominee Director Availing of revolving loan facility (To take 20
revolving loan facility from Raja Debnath)
Gautam Udani Nominee Director Availing of revolving loan facility (To take 20
revolving loan facility from Gautam Udani)
Veefin Solutions Limited [ Holding Company | Availing and rendering of services 20
Availing and rendering of revolving 20
loan facility
Estorifi Solutions Limited | Holding Company [ Availing and rendering of services 20
Availing and rendering of revolving 20

loan facility

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (which shall be deemed to include the
Audit Committee of the Company and any duly constituted / to be constituted Committee of Directors
thereof to exercise its powers including powers conferred under this resolution) be and is hereby authorized
to do and perform all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may deem fit at its absolute discretion and
to take all such steps as may be required in this connection including finalizing and executing necessary
documents, contract(s) / arrangement(s) / agreement(s) and other ancillary documents as may be
required; seeking necessary approvals to give effect to this resolution from the authorities; settling all
such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise and to take all such decisions from
powers herein conferred; and delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to any Director, Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary or any other Officer | Authorised Representative of the Company,
without being required to seek further consent from the Members and that the Members shall be deemed
to have accorded their consent thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board of the respective subsidiaries in connection
with any matter referred to or contemplated in this resolution, be and is hereby approved, ratified and
confirmed in all respect.”

11. Approval of Material Related Party Transactions between Epikindifi Software and Solutions Private
Limited, a step-down subsidiary of the Company with its Related parties and the Related parties of the
Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulations 2(1) (zc), 23(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and other applicable
provisions, if any of the SEBI Listing Regulations as amended from time to time, Section 2(76),188 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable Rules under Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 including any modifications, variations or re-enactments
thereof for the time being in force and as may be notified from time to time and subject to such other
consents, permissions, approvals as may be required in this behalf, and based on the recommendation/
approval of the Audit Committee and the Board of the Directors, consent of the Members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to enter into and/or continue the related party transaction(s) /
contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/ agreement(s) (whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions
taken together or series of transactions or otherwise) between or for the benefit of Epikindifi Software
and Solutions Private Limited and the related parties (in terms of Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations) in the ordinary course of business and on arms’ length basis, as more specifically detailed
out in Table forming part of item no. 11 of the explanatory statement annexed to this notice, whether by
way of continuation(s) or renewal(s) or extension(s) or modification(s) of earlier transactions or as fresh
and independent transaction(s) or notwithstanding the fact that such transactions (including existing
contracts / arrangements [transactions) may exceed 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the
Company in any financial year or such other threshold limits as may be specified by the Act or SEBI Listing
Regulations from time to time on such terms and conditions as the Board/ Audit Committee, in its absolute
discretion may deem fit, for a period not exceeding twelve months, as per SEBI Circular dated SEBI/HO/
CFD/CMDI/CIR/P/2022/47 dated April 08,2022 and on such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors
of the Company (which term shall deem to include any committee thereof or director(s) or official(s) of
the Company for the time being authorized by the Board to exercise the powers conferred on the Board by
this Resolution) may deem fit, in compliance with any requirements of applicable law.



Related Party Transaction to be entered into with related parties for FY 2025-2026 is as follows:

Name of the Related Relationship Nature of Transaction Value of
Party Transac-
tion (Rs. in
Crores)
Rajendra Awasthi Director Availing of revolving loan facility (To 20
take revolving loan facility from Rajen-
dra Awasthi)
Sushmitshri Babu Director Availing of revolving loan facility (To 20
take revolving loan facility from Sush-
mitshri Babu)
Veefin Solutions Limited | Holding Company [ Availing and rendering of services 20
Availing and rendering of revolving 20
loan facility
Estorifi Solutions Limited | Holding Company [ Availing and rendering of services 20
Availing and rendering of revolving 20
loan facility

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (which shall be deemed to include the
Audit Committee of the Company and any duly constituted / to be constituted Committee of Directors
thereof to exercise its powers including powers conferred under this resolution) be and is hereby authorized
to do and perform all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may deem fit at its absolute discretion and
to take all such steps as may be required in this connection including finalizing and executing necessary
documents, contract(s) / arrangement(s) /| agreement(s) and other ancillary documents as may be
required; seeking necessary approvals to give effect to this resolution from the authorities; settling all
such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise and to take all such decisions from
powers herein conferred; and delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to any Director, Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary or any other Officer /| Authorised Representative of the Company,
without being required to seek further consent from the Members and that the Members shall be deemed
to have accorded their consent thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board of the respective subsidiaries in connection
with any matter referred to or contemplated in this resolution, be and is hereby approved, ratified and
confirmed in all respect.”

12. Approval of Material Related Party Transactions between FE Ventures Private Limited, a step-down
subsidiary of the Company with its Related parties and the Related parties of the Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulations 2(1) (zc), 23(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and other applicable provisions, if
any of the SEBI Listing Regulations as amended from time to time, Section 2(76), 188 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable Rules under Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 including any modifications, variations or re-enactments thereof for the
time being in force and as may be notified from time to time and subject to such other consents

permissions, approvals as may be required in this behalf, and based on the recommendation/approval of
the AuditCommittee andthe Board of the Directors,consent of the Members of the Company be andis hereby
accorded to enter into and/or continue the related party transaction(s) / contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/
agreement(s) (whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken together or series of
transactions or otherwise) between or for the benefit of FE Ventures Private Limited and the related parties
(in terms of Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI Listing Regulations) in the ordinary course of business and on
arms’ length basis, as more specifically detailed out in Table forming part of item no. 12 of the explanatory
statement annexed to this notice, whether by way of continuation(s) or renewal(s) or extension(s) or
modification(s) of earlier transactions or as fresh and independent transaction(s) or notwithstanding the
fact that such transactions (including existing contracts / arrangements [transactions) may exceed 10%
of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company in any financial year or such other threshold limits
as may be specified by the Act or SEBI Listing Regulations from time to time on such terms and conditions
as the Board/ Audit Committee, in its absolute discretion may deem fit, for a period not exceeding twelve
months, as per SEBI Circular dated SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDI/CIR/P/2022/47 dated April 08, 2022 and on such
terms and conditions as the Board of Directors of the Company (which term shall deem to include any
committee thereof or director(s) or official(s) of the Company for the time being authorized by the Board
to exercise the powers conferred on the Board by this Resolution) may deem fit, in compliance with any
requirements of applicable law

Related Party Transaction to be entered into with related parties for FY 2025-2026 is as follows:

Name of the Related Party Relationship Nature of Transaction Value of Trans-
action (Rs. in
Crores)
Shrenik Gandhi Promoter & Director Availing of revolving loan facility (To take 50
revolving loan facility from Shrenik Gandhi)
White Rivers Media Solu- Holding Company Availing and rendering of services 100
tions Private Limited " I A
Availing and rendering of revolving loan 50
facility
Veefin Solutions Limited Holding Company Availing and rendering of services 50
Availing and rendering of revolving loan 50
facility
Infini Systems Limited Holding Company Availing and rendering of services 50
Availing and rendering of revolving loan 50
facility

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (which shall be deemed to include the
Audit Committee of the Company and any duly constituted [ to be constituted Committee of Directors
thereof to exercise its powers including powers conferred under this resolution) be and is hereby authorized
to do and perform all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may deem fit at its absolute discretion and
to take all such steps as may be required in this connection including finalizing and executing necessary
documents, contract(s) / arrangement(s) /| agreement(s) and other ancillary documents as may be
required; seeking necessary approvals to give effect to this resolution from the authorities; settling all
such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise and to take all such decisions from
powers herein conferred; and delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to any Director, Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary or any other Officer [ Authorised Representative of the Company,
without being required to seek further consent from the Members and that the Members shall be deemed
to have accorded their consent thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.”



RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board of the respective subsidiaries in connection
with any matter referred to or contemplated in this resolution, be and is hereby approved, ratified and
confirmed in all respect.”

13. Approval of Material Related Party Transactions between White Rivers Media Solutions Private
Limited, a step-down subsidiary of the Company with its Related parties and the Related parties of the
Company.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulations 2(1) (zc), 23(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and other applicable provisions, if
any of the SEBI Listing Regulations as amended from time to time, Section 2(76), 188 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable Rules under Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 including any modifications, variations or re-enactments thereof for the
time beinginforce and as may be notified from time to time and subject to such other consents, permissions,
approvals as may be required in this behalf, and based on the recommendation/approval of the Audit
Committee and the Board of the Directors, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to enter into and/or continue the related party transaction(s) / contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/
ogreement(s) (whether by way of an individual transaction or transactions taken together or series of
transactions or otherwise) between or for the benefit of White Rivers Media Solutions Private Limited and
the related parties (in terms of Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the SEBI Listing Regulations) in the ordinary course
of business and on arms’ length basis, as more specifically detailed out in Table forming part of item no.
13 of the explanatory statement annexed to this notice, whether by way of continuation(s) or renewal(s)
or extension(s) or modification(s) of earlier transactions or as fresh and independent transaction(s)
or notwithstanding the fact that such transactions (including existing contracts / arrangements [
transactions) may exceed 10% of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company in any financial year
or such other threshold limits as may be specified by the Act or SEBI Listing Regulations from time to time
on such terms and conditions as the Board/ Audit Committee, in its absolute discretion may deem fit,
for a period not exceeding twelve months, as per SEBI Circular dated SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDI/CIR/P/2022/47
dated April 08, 2022 and on such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors of the Company (which
term shall deem to include any committee thereof or director(s) or official(s) of the Company for the time
being authorized by the Board to exercise the powers conferred on the Board by this Resolution) may
deem fit, in compliance with any requirements of applicable law.

Related Party Transaction to be entered into with related parties for FY 2025-2026 is as follows

Name of the Related Relationship Nature of Transaction Value of
Party Transac-
tion (Rs. in
Crores)
Shrenik Gandhi Promoter & Director | Availing of revolving loan facility (To 50
take revolving loan facility from Shre-
nik Gandhi)
Meetesh Kothari Promoter & Director | Availing of revolving loan facility 50
(To take revolving loan facility from
Meetesh Kothari)
Raja Debnath Director Availing of revolving loan facility (To 50
take revolving loan facility from Raja
Debnath)
Gautam Udani Director Availing of revolving loan facility (To 50
take revolving loan facility from Gau-
tam Udani)
FE Venture Private Lim- | Subsidiary Com- Availing and rendering of services 100
ited pany Availing and rendering of revolving 50
loan facility
Veefin Solutions Limited | Holding Company [ Availing and rendering of services 50
Availing and rendering of revolving 50
loan facility
Infini Systems Limited Holding Company | Availing and rendering of services 50
Availing and rendering of revolving 50
loan facility
Nityo Tech Private Lim- | Group Company Availing and rendering of services 50
ited
Availing and rendering of revolving 50
loan facility

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (which shall be deemed to include the
Audit Committee of the Company and any duly constituted [ to be constituted Committee of Directors
thereof to exercise its powers including powers conferred under this resolution) be and is hereby authorized
to do and perform all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may deem fit at its absolute discretion and
to take all such steps as may be required in this connection including finalizing and executing necessary
documents, contract(s) / arrangement(s) /| agreement(s) and other ancillary documents as may be
required; seeking necessary approvals to give effect to this resolution from the authorities; settling all
such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise and to take all such decisions from
powers herein conferred; and delegate all or any of the powers herein conferred to any Director, Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary or any other Officer [ Authorised Representative of the Company,
without being required to seek further consent from the Members and that the Members shall be deemed
to have accorded their consent thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution



RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board of the respective subsidiaries in connection
with any matter referred to or contemplated in this resolution, be and is hereby approved, ratified and
confirmed in all respect.”

14. Approval of Material Related Party Transactions of Veefin Solutions Limited (Company) with Infini
Systems Limited and Nityo Tech Private Limited Step-down Subsidiary (Group Company)

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 2, 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), (including any
statutory amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force, if any) and Policy on
materiality of related party transactions and on dealing with related party transactions, further to
approval of Audit Commitiee and Board of Directors, the consent of the Members of the Company be and
is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”), for entering into and / or carrying
out and / or continuing with existing contracts / arrangements/ transactions or modification(s) of earlier/
orrangements/ transactions or as fresh and independent transaction(s) or otherwise (whether individually
or series of transaction(s) taken together or otherwise), with following subsidiaries of the Company as per
the details set out below and in the explanatory statement annexed to this notice, notwithstanding the fact
that the aggregate value of all these transaction(s), may exceed the prescribed thresholds of materiality
as per provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations as applicable from time to time, provided, however, that
the said contract(s)/ arrangement(s) transaction(ss)shcll be carried out at an arm'’s length basis and in

the ordinary course of business of the Company for the transactions provided as under:

Name of the Relat- Relationship Nature of Transaction Value of Tenure
ed Party Transac-
tion (Rs. in
Crores)
Infini Systems Lim- | Subsidiary Corporate Guarantee against princi- | 21 5 year
ited Company pal amount of INR 21 Crores (Rupees from the
Twenty One Crore Only) and interest date of
theron raised by Infini Systems Limit- disburse-
ed against issue of unrated, unlisted, ment or
secured, redeemable, non-convert- such fur-
ible debentures. ther term
as may be
decided
Nityo Tech Private | Step-down Corporate Guarantee against princi- |9 5 year
Limited Subsidiary pal amount of INR 9 Crores (Rupees from the
(Group Com~ | Nine Crore Only) and interest theron date of
pany) raised by Nityo tech Private Limited disburse-
against issue of unrated, unlisted, se- ment or
cured, redeemable, non-convertible such fur-
debentures. ther term
as may be
decided

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby severally authorised to execute all such agreements,
documents, instruments and writings as deemed necessary, with power to alter and vary the terms and
conditions of such contracts/ qrrangements/ transactions, settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that
may arise in this regard.”

15. To consider and approve increase in the aggregate number of employee stock options and equity
shares reserved under ‘Veefin - Employee Stock Option Plan 2023":

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 62(1)(b), and all other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act 2013, read with Regulation 7 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share
Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (“SBEB Regulations”), and all other applicable
provisions, if any, the relevant provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association
of the Company and subject to such other approvals, permissions and sanctions as may be necessary
and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or imposed while granting such
approval(s), the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the amendment
made in ‘Veefin - Employee Stock Option Plan 2023’ (“ESOP 2023"/ “Scheme”), to increase the aggregate
number of employee stock options (“Options”) from 28,00,000 (Twenty-eight Lakhs) Options to 38,00,000
(Thirty-Eight Lakhs) Options by creating additional 10,00,000 (Ten Lakhs) Options, exercisable into not
exceeding 10,00,000 (Ten Lakhs) equity shares (“Shares”) of face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each
fully paid up, where one Option would convert into one equity share upon exercise, on such terms and in
such manner in accordance with the provisions of the applicable laws and the provisions of ESOP 2023.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the equity shares so issued and allotted as mentioned hereinbefore shall rank
pari passu with the existing equity shares of the Company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case of any corporate action(s) such as rights issues, bonus issues, merger
and sale of division or other re-organisation, split, change in capital structure of the Company, as applicable
from time, if any additional Options granted or equity shares are issued by the Company to the grantees
for the purpose of making a fair and reasonable adjustment to the Options granted earlier, the ceiling of
total number of Options and equity shares specified above shall be deemed to be increased to the extent
of such additional Options granted or equity shares issued.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in case the equity shares of the Company are either sub-divided or consolidated,
then the number of equity shares to be allotted and the price of acquisition payable by the grantees under
the Scheme shall automatically stand reduced or augmented, as the case may be, in the same proportion
as the face value per equity share shall bear to the revised face value of the equity shares of the Company
after such sub-division or consolidation, without affecting any other rights or obligations of the employees
who have been granted stock options under the Scheme and the ceiling in terms of number of shares
specified above shall be deemed to be adjusted accordingly.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company shall confirm to the accounting policies prescribed from time to
time under the SBEB Regulations and any other applicable laws and regulations to the extent relevant and
applicable to the Scheme.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”
which term shall be deemed to include any Committee, including the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee which the Board has constituted) be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, and
things, as it may, in its absolute discretion, and to settle all such questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever
which may arise and take all such steps and decisions to give effect to this resolution.”

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
For VEEFIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS VEEFIN SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)

URJA HARSH THAKKAR
COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Global One, 2nd Floor, Office ],
DATE: SEPTEMBER 01, 2025 CTS NO 252 252 1, OPP SBI,LBS MARG, KURLA(W), Mumbai,
PLACE: MUMBAI Maharashtrg, India, 400070



Notes

1. The Fifth Annual General
Meeting of the Company will be
held on Friday, September 26,
2025 at 03.00 p.m. (IST) through
Video Conferencing (VC)/Oth-
er Audio-Visual Means (OAVM)
in compliance with the appli-
cable provisions.

2. Pursuant to the General Cir-
cular No. 09/2024 dated Sep-
tember 19, 2024, issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) and circular issued by
SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/ HO/
CFD/ CFDPoD-2/ P/ CIR/ 2024/
133 dated October 3,2024 (“SEBI
Circular”) and other applicable
circulars and notifications is-
sued (including any statutory
modifications or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in
force and as amended from
time to time, companies are
allowed to hold AGM through
Video Conferencing (VC) or
other audio visual means
(OAVM), without the physi-
cal presence of members at a
common venue. In compliance
with the said Circulars, AGM
shall be conducted through VC
| OAVM.

3. Pursuant to the Circular No.
14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, is-
sued by the Ministry of Corpo-
rate Affairs, the facility to ap-
point proxy to attend and cast
vote for the members is not
available for this AGM. How-
ever, the Body Corporates are
entitled to appoint authorised
representatives to attend the
AGM through VC/OAVM and
participate there at and cast
their votes through e-voting.

4. The Members can join the
AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15
minutes before and after the
scheduled time of the com-
mencement of the Meeting by
following the procedure men-
tioned in the Notice. The facil-
ity of participation at the AGM
through VC/OAVM will be made
available for 1000 members on
first come first served basis. This
will not include large Share-
holders (Shareholders holding
2% or more shoreholding), Pro-
moters, Institutional Investors,
Directors, Key Managerial Per-
sonnel, the Chairpersons of the
Audit Committee, Nomination
and Remuneration Committee
and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee, Auditors etc. who
are allowed to attend the AGM
without restriction on account
of first come first served basis.

5. The attendance of the Mem-
bers attendingthe AGMthrough
VC/OAVM will be counted for
the purpose of reckoning the
quorum under Section 103 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

6. Pursuant to the provisions of
Section 108 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of
the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014
(as amended) the Secretarial
Standard on General Meetings
(sS-2) issued by the ICSI and
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Re-
quirements) Regulations 2015
(as amended), and the Circu-
lars issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs from time to
time the Company is provid-
ing facility of remote e-Voting
to its Members in respect of the
business to be transacted at
the AGM.

For this purpose, the Company
has entered into an agreement
with National Securities Depos-
itory Limited (NSDL) for facili-
tating voting through electron-
ic means, as the authorized
agency. The facility of casting
votes by a member using re-
mote e-Voting system as well
as e-voting on the date of the
AGM will be provided by NSDL

7. In line with the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA) Cir-
cular No. 17/2020 dated April
13, 2020, the Notice calling the
AGM has been uploaded on
the website of the Company at
https://www.veefincom/. The
Notice can also be accessed
from the websites of the Stock
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at
www.bseindia.com and the
AGM Notice is also available on
the website of NSDL (agency for
providing the Remote e-Voting
facility) ie. www.evoting.nsdl.
com.

8. In terms of Section 136 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’)
read with the rules made there-
under, Regulation 36 of the List-
ing Regulations and in terms of
circulars issued by MCA and
SEBI, the notice of 5th AGM
along with the annual report,
including financial statements,
boards’ report, etc. are being
sent only through electronic
mode to those Members whose
email addresses are registered
with the Company/ Deposito-
ries unless the Members have
requested for a physical copy
of the same. Members may
note that this Notice and An-
nual Report 2024-25 will also
be available on the Company’s
website www.veefin.com and
website of BSE Limited at www.
bsesme.com |/ www.bseindia.
com and on the website of
NSDL (agency for providing the
Remote e-Voting facility) i.e.
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

9. In compliance with Regu-
lation 36 of the Listing Regu-
lations, the Company is also
sending a written communica-
tion to Members, who have not
yet registered their email ad-
dresses, providing the web-link
of the exact path, where com-
plete details of Annual Report
for financial year 2024-25 will
be available

10.AGM has been convened
through VC/OAVM in compli-
ance with applicable provi-
sions of the Companies Act,
2013 read with MCA Circular is-
sued from time to time

1. Members seeking any in-
formation with regard to the
financial statements or any
matter to be placed at the
AGM, are requested to write
to the Company on or before
Friday, September 19, 2025 by
05:00 p.m. IST through e-mail
at investors@veefin.com to en-
able the Management to keep
full information ready on the
date of AGM.

12. The information regarding
the Director who is proposed
to be appointed/re-appoint-
ed, as required to be provided
under Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obliga-
tions and Disclosure Require-
ments) Regulations, 2015, and
Secretarial Standard on Gen-
eral Meetings issued, is an-
nexed hereto.

13. An explanatory statement
setting out details relating to
the businesses to be transact-
ed at the Annual General Meet-
ing pursuant to Section 102(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, is
annexed hereto.

14. The Securities and Exchange
Board of India (“SEBI”) has
mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number
(PAN) by every participant in
securities market. Members
holding shares in electronic
form are therefore requested to
submit the PAN to their Depos-
itory Participants with whom
they are maintaining their de-
mat accounts.

15. The Register of Directors
and Key Managerial Personnel
and their shareholding main-
tained under Section 170 of the
Act, the Register of Contracts
or Arrangements in which the
Directors are interested, main-
tained under Section 189 of the
Act, and the relevant docu-
ments referred to in the Notice
will be available, electronically,
for inspection by the Members
during the AGM. All documents
relevant referred to in the No-
tice of AGM and explanatory
statement will also be avail-
able electronically for inspec-
tion without any fee by the
Members from the date of cir-
culation of this Notice up to the
date of AGM. Members seeking
to inspect such documents can
send an e-mail to investors@
veefin.com.

16. The business set out in
the Notice will be transact-
ed through electronic voting
system and the Company is
providing facility for voting by
electronic means. Instructions
and other information relating
to e-voting are given in this No-
tice.

17. In case of joint holders, the
Member whose name appears
as the first holder in the order
of names as per the Register of
Members of the Company will
be entitled to vote during the
AGM.

18.The Annual Report along with
the Notice of AGM will be placed
on the Company’s website on
https://www.veefin.com/

19. As per the MCA Circular
20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020
and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/
CFD/CMD2/CIR/P[2022/62 dat-
ed May 13, 2022 and SEBI/HO/
CFD/PoD-2/P/ CIR/2023/4 dat-
ed January 5, 2023 (“SEBI Cir-
cular”) (collectively referred
to as “Circulars”), the Annu-
al Report will be sent through
electronic mode to only those
Members whose email id's
are registered with the Regis-
trar and Share Transfer Agent
of the Company | Depository
participant unless any Member
has requested for a physical
copy of the same. The Compa-
ny shall send a physical copy
of the Annual Report 2024-25
to those Members who request
the same at investors@veefin.
com mentioning their Folio No.
/ DP ID and Client ID.

20. The Board of Directors have
appointed Mr. Maharshi Gana-
tra, Proprietor, Maharshi Gana-
tra and Associates Practicing
Company Secretary (Mem No.-
F11332; COP No.: 14520), as the
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the re-
mote e-voting process as well
as e-voting during the AGM in
a fair and transparent manner.



21. The Scrutiniser will submit
his report to the Chairman or
to any other person authorised
by the Chairman after com-
pletion of scrutiny of the votes
cast through remote e-Voting
before/during the AGM, with-
in the time stipulated under
the applicable laws. The re-
sults declared along with the
Scrutiniser's report shall be
communicated to the Stock
Exchanges on which the Com-
pany’s shares are listed and
will also be displayed on the
Company's website at www.
veefin.com ; NSDL's website at
evoting@nsdl.co.in and Notice
Board at the Registered Office
of the Company.

22. Members are also request-
ed to intimate changes, if any,
pertaining to their name, post-
al address, email address, mo-
bile number, PAN, registration
of nomination, power of attor-
ney registration, bank man-
date details, etc. to their DPs
and to the Company’s Reg-
istrar & Share Transfer Agent,
Bigshare Services Private Limit-
ed at, Office No S6-2, 6th Floor,
Pinnacle Business Park, Next to
Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves
Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai -
400093.

23. To prevent fraudulent
transactions, Members are ad-
vised to exercise due diligence
and notify the Company of any
change in address or demise
of any Member as soon as pos-
sible. Members are also ad-
vised not to leave their demat
account(s) dormant for long.
Periodic statement of holdings
should be obtained from the
concerned DPs and holdings
should be verified from time to
time

24. Pursuant to the provisions of
Section 108 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of
the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014
(as amended) and Regulation
44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Reg-
ulations 2015 (as amended),
and the Circulars issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (as
may be notified from time to
time) the Company is provid-
ing facility of remote e-Voting
to its Members in respect of the
business to be transacted at
the AGM. For this purpose, the
Company has entered into an
agreement with National Secu-
rities Depository Limited (NSDL)
for facilitating voting through
electronic means, as the au-
thorized agency. The facility
of casting votes by a member
using remote e-Voting system
on the date of the AGM will be
provided by NSDL.

25. In line with the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circu-
lar No. 17/2020 dated 13th April,
2020, the Notice calling the
AGM has been uploaded on
the website of the Company at
https://www.veefincom/. The
Notice can also be accessed
from the website of the Na-
tional Stock Exchange of Indiq,
Limited at https://www.nsein-
dia. com/. The AGM Notice is
also available on the website
of NSDL (agency for providin

the Remote e-Voting facility
i.e, www.evoting.nsdl.com.

26. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR
MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOT-
ING AND JOINING GENERAL
MEETING ARE AS UNDER: -

The remote e-voting period
begins on Monday, September
22,2025 at 09:00 A.M. and ends
on Thursday, September 25,
2025 at 05:00 P.M. The remote
e-voting module shall be dis-
abled by NSDL for voting there-
after. The Members, whose
names appear in the Regis-
ter of Members | Beneficial
Owners as on the record date
(cut-off date) i.e. Friday, Sep-
tember 19, 2025 may cast their
vote electronically. The voting
right of shareholders shall be in
proportion to their share in the
paid-up equity share capital of
the Company as on the cut-off
date, being Friday, September
19, 2025.

How do | vote electronically
using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically
on NSDL e-Voting system con-
sists of “Two Steps” which are
mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

vidual shareholders holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facil-
ity provided by listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email
Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

rities in demat mode with NSDL

Individual Shareholders holding secu-

1. For OTP based login you can click on https://eservices.nsdl.com/Se-
cureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You will have to enter your 8-digit DP
ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the
OTP received on registered email id/mobile number and click on login. Af-
ter successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website
of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://
eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the
e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Log-
in” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter
your existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you
will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on
“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e.
NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting.

3. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is avail-
able at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Por-
tal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
4. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the fol-
lowing URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer
or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click
on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ sec-
tion. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your
sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication,
you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Vot-
ing page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL
and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting.




Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with
NSDL

5. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless
voting experience.

Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode with
CDSL

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi [ Easiest facility, can login through
their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach
e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to login Easi
[Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click
on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my
easi username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi [ Easiest user will be able to see the e-Vot-
ing option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per
the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the
user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links pro-
vided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the
user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available
at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System My-
easi Tab and then click on registration option.

4.Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Ac-
count. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting
option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders (holding
securities in demat mode) login
through their depository partici-
pants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Vot-
ing facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on
e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redi-
rected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who dre unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID

and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Share-
holders holding securities in
demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through
Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

B) Login Method for e-Voting
and joining virtual meeting for
shareholders other than Indi-
vidual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode and
shareholders holding securi-
ties in physical mode

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Vot-
ing website?

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical
securities in demat mode with NSDL | issue in login can contact NSDL
helpdesk by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 -
4886 7000

Individual Shareholders holding se- | Members facing any technical
curities in demat mode with CDSL issue in login can contact CDSL
helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or
contact at toll free no. 1800-21-0991

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing
the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Per-
sonal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on
the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’
section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS,
you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing
IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your
log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step
2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Your User ID is:

Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in | 8 Character DP ID followed by 8
demat account with NSDL. Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300***
and Client ID is 12****** then your
user ID is IN3QQ**#]2xksk,

b) For Members who hold shares in | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
demat account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is

[2FxxRELIREA XXX then your user ID is
]2**************

c) For Members holding shares in EVEN Number followed by Folio
Physical Form. Number registered with the com-
pany

For example if folio number is 001***
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is
101456001***




5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual share-

holders are given below:

a. If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user
your existing password to login and cast your vote.

b. If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will
need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicat-
ed to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need
to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to
change your password.

c. How to retrieve your ‘initial password'?

i. If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with
the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to
you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL
from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attach-
ment i.e. a.pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open
the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8
digits of client Ifor CDSL account or folio number for shares
held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’
and your ‘initial password'.

ii. If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps men-
tioned below in process for those shareholders whose
emuail ids are not registered.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial pass-
word” or have forgotten your password:

a. Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?’(If you are holding

shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option avail-
able on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b. Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in
physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c. If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two
options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.com men-
tioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN,
your name and your registered address etc.

d. Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based
login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Con-
ditions” by selecting on the check box.

Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will
open.

Step 2: Cast your vote elec-
tronically and join Gener-
al Meeting on NSDL e-Voting
system.

General Guidelines for share-
holders

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on
NSDL e-Voting system?

1.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the
companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose
voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote
during the remote e-Voting period and casting your vote during
the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click
on “VC/OAVM" link placed under “Join Meeting”.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or
dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish
to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when
prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be
displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by click-
ing on the print option on the confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be al-
lowed to modify your vote.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI
etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of
the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested
specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who
are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to maharshi@
maharshiganatra.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.
com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF,
NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution | Power of Attor-
ney [ Authority Letter etc. by clicking on “Upload Board Resolution
| Authority Letter” displayed under “e-Voting” tab in their login.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any
other person and take utmost care to keep your password con-
fidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such
an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/
Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available
on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Ques-
tions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual for
Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.
nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Ms.
Rimpa Bag at evoting@nsdl.com




Process for those sharehold-
ers whose email ids are not
registered with the deposito-
ries for procuring user id and
password and registration of
e mail ids for e-voting for the
resolutions set out in this no-
tice:

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEM-
BERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE
DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UN-
DER: -

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio
No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate
(front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email

to investors@veefin.com.

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID
(16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client mas-
ter or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attest-
ed scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned
copy of Aadhar Card) to investors@veefin.com. If you are an In-
dividual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are
requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e.
Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Indi-
vidual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evot-
ing@nsdl.com for procuring user id and password for e-voting
by providing above mentioned documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders
holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Deposi-
tory Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mo-
bile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in or-
der to access e-Voting facility

The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the
instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the
AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on
the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting
system in the AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eli-
gible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote
at the AGM.

The details of the person who may be contacted for any griev-
ances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the day of the
AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS
FOR ATTENDING THE AGM
THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS
UNDER:

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through
VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may ac-
cess by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL
e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “vC/
OAVM" placed under “Join meeting” menu against company
name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed un-
der Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be
displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the
User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID
and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote
e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last min-
ute rush.

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops
for better experience.

Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use In-
ternet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the
meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or
Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may
experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respec-
tive network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or
LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches

Shareholders who would like to express their views/have ques-
tions may send their questions in advance mentioning their
name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile
number at investors@veefin.com. The same will be replied by
the company suitably.

Members who would like to express their views/ask questions as
a speaker at the Meeting may pre-register themselves by send-
ing a request from their registered email address mentioning
their name, DP ID and Client ID/Folio number, PAN and mobile
number at investors@veefin.com from Monday, September 20,
2025 (9.00 a.m. IST) to Thursday, September 25, 2025 (5.00 p.m.
IST). Only those Members who have pre-registered themselves
as a speaker will be allowed to express their views/ask questions
during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the
number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the
AGM.




EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND [ OR REGULA-
TION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), and the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the following Ex-
planatory Statement sets out all material facts relating to the business mentioned under item No. 3 to
Item No. 15 of the accompanying Notice dated July 08, 2025.

Item No. 3

The Board at its meeting held on September 01, 2025, based on recommendation of the Audit Committee,
after evaluating and considering various factors such as industry experience, competency of the audit
team, efficiency in conduct of audit, independence, etc., has approved the appointment of M/s Maharshi
Ganatra and Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, a peer reviewed firm (C.P. No 14520) as Secre-
tarial Auditors of the Company for a term of five consecutive years commencing from FY 2025-26 till FY
2029-30, subject to approval of the Members.

The appointment of Secretarial Auditors shall be in terms of the amended Regulation 24A of the SEBI List-
ing Regulations vide SEBI Notification dated December 12, 2024 and provisions of Section 204 of the Act
and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Maharshi Ganatra & Associates is a Practising Company Secretaries Firm started by Maharshi Ganatra
in the year 2014. Maharshi Ganatra is currently a Fellow Member of ICSI (FCS) vide Membership Number
F11332 and Certificate of Practice Number 14520. The firm is specialised in the areas of Corporate Laws, Tax
Laws and Other Laws Advisory and have in depth knowledge and expertise in the providing Audits, Corpo-
rate Secretarial and Legal Services to Domestic and International Clients.

Maharshi Ganatra & Associates has confirmed that the firm is not disqualified and is eligible to be ap-
pointed as Secretarial Auditors in terms of Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The services to
be rendered by Maharshi Ganatra & Associates as Secretarial Auditors is within the purview of the said
regulation read with SEBI circular no. SEBI/ HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31, 2024.

In addition to the secretarial audit, Maharshi Ganatra & Associates shall provide such other services in the
nature of certifications and other professional work, as approved by the Board of Directors. The relevant
fees will be determined by the Board, as recommended by the Audit Committee in consultation with the
Secretarial Auditors.

Additional information about Secretarial Auditor pursuant to Regulation 36(5) of the Listing Regulations & Brief
Profile & Rationale is provided below:

Terms of Appointment In accordance with Section 204 of the Companies Act
2013, read with the rules framed thereunder, and Regu-
lation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”),
the Secretarial Auditor of the Company is being ap-
pointed for the period of 5 consecutive years from FY

2025-2026 till FY 2029-2030.

Proposed Audit fees payable to Auditor The Secretarial Audit fees payable to the Auditor shall
be Rs. 1,00,000 per annum, plus out-of-pocket expenses
and applicable taxes (excluding GST) as may be mutu-
ally agreed upon between the Board of Directors of the

Company and the Secretarial Auditors.

The Board of Directors is authorized to alter and vary
the terms and conditions of the appointment, including
the remuneration, in such manner and to such extent
as may be mutually agreed upon with the Secretarial
Auditor, from time to time.

Rationale for material change in the audit fees pro- Not Applicable.
posed to be paid the proposed secretarial auditor as
compared to the previous [ outgoing auditor

Basis of recommendation and Auditor Considering the industry experience, competency of the
credentials auditor, handling secretarial audits, technical expertise,
capacity and eligibility criteria prescribed under Listing
Regulations ability in providing services to the Com-
pany, independence, audit fees, etc., the audit com-
mittee at their meeting held on 28th August, 2025 and
the Board at their meeting held on 1st September, 2025,
have approved the appointment of M/s. Maharshi Ga-
natra and Associates, as the Secretarial Auditor of the
Company as mentioned above and have recommend-
ed their appointment for approval of the members of
the Company.

Maharshi Ganatra & Associates is a Practising Compa-
ny Secretaries, a peer reviewed firm started by Maharshi
Ganatra in the year 2014. Maharshi Ganatra is currently
a Fellow Member of ICSI (FCS) vide Membership Number
F11332 and Certificate of Practice Number 14520. The firm
is specialised in the areas of Corporate Laws, Tax Laws
and Other Laws Advisory and have in depth knowledge
and expertise in the providing Audits, Corporate Secre-
tarial and Legal Services to Domestic and International
Clients.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No. 3 of this Notice for approval of the
Members.

None of the Directors and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and/or their relatives are con-
cerned or interested, in the Resolution set out in Item No. 3 of this Notice.



Item No. 4

As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), transactions with related parties
which are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business, are exempted from the obliga-
tion of obtaining prior approval of members. However, as per the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the Se-
curities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”), such transactions, if material, requires the approval of members through a
resolution, notwithstanding the fact that the same are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course
of business. With effect from April 01, 2022, Regulation 23 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 mandates prior
approval of the members through ordinary resolution for all ‘Material Related Party Transactions. For this
purpose, a Related Party Transaction will be considered ‘material’ if the transaction(s) to be entered into
individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year exceeds 2 50 Crore or 10%
of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements of the
Company, whichever is lower.

However, as the value of such transactions is estimated to exceed the revised threshold limit of materi-
al related party transactions within the meaning of amended Regulation 23(1) of the Listing Regulations
w.e.f. April 01,2022 i.e., 10% of the annual consolidated turnover, approval of the Members of the Company
is therefore required for this item in terms of Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, by way of passing
an Ordinary Resolution, for approval of the aforesaid Material Related Party Transactions to be entered
into from the 5th AGM until the conclusion of the 6th AGM of the Company to be held in the Financial Year
2026-27.

The Company seeks approval from the Members to enter into contract(s) or arrangements(s) with the
related parties within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 2(1)(zb)
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) as mentioned in the below table:



In accordance with the prescribed SEBI circular, the requisite details to be placed before the Members are
set out in the table below:

Sr Particulars
\[e}

1 Name of the Raja Debnath -  Gautam Udani  Estorifi Solu- Infini Systems Templeton GlobeTF Solu- Veefin Capital Chain Fintech  Nityo Tech Regime Tax Veefin solu- Veefin Solu- Epikindifi FE Ven-
related party Promoter and - Promoter and tions Limited. Limited. - Sub-  Solutions FZE -  tions Limited Private Limit-  Solutions Private Lim- Solutions Pri-  tions Ltd - tions Limited  Software and  tures Private
and its rela- Director Director - Subsidiary sidiary Com- Group Com- - Subsidiary ed - Subsidi-  Limited- ited vate Limied-  Bangladesh-  FZCO-Subsid- Solutions Limied-Step-
tionship with Company pany pany Company ary Company  Step-down Step-down Step-down Subsidiary iary Co Private Lim- down Subsidi-
the listed entity Subsidiary Subsidiary Subsidiary Company ited- Group ary (Group
or its subsidi- (Group com-  (Group Com- (Group Com- Company Company)
ary, including pany) pany) pany)
nature of its
concern or in-
terest (financial
or otherwise);

2 Type, materi- Availing of Availing of Availing and Availing and Availing and Availing and Availingand  Availingand  Availingand  Availingand  Availingand  Availingand  Availingand  Availing and
al terms and revolving loan  revolvingloan  rendering of rendering of rendering of rendering of rendering of rendering of rendering of rendering of rendering of rendering of rendering of rendering of
particulars of facility (To take facility (Totake services; services; services services; services; services services; services; services services services; services;
the proposed revolving loan  revolving loan  Availing and Availing and Availing and Availing and Availingand  Availing and Availingand  Availing and
transaction; facility from facility from rendering of rendering of rendering of rendering of rendering of rendering of rendering of rendering of

Raja Debnath)  Gautam Udani) revolving loan  revolving loan revolving loan revolving loan revolving loan revolving loan revolving loan revolving loan
facility. facility , facility facility facility facility facility facility
To give Corpo-  To give Corpo-
rate guarantee rate guarantee

3 Tenure of the From 5th AGM From 5th AGM  From 5th AGM  From 5th AGM From 5th AGM From 5th AGM From 5th AGM From 5th AGM From 5th AGM From 5th AGM  From 5th AGM From 5th AGM From 5th AGM From 5th AGM
proposed to 6th AGM to 6th AGM to 6th AGM to 6th AGM to 6th AGM to 6th AGM to 6th AGM to 6th AGM to 6th AGM to 6th AGM to 6th AGM to 6th AGM to 6th AGM to 6th AGM
transaction
(particular
tenure shall be
specified);

4 Value of the Value of Value of Value of Value of Value of Value of Value of Value of Value of Value of Value of Value of Value of Value of
proposed Transaction Transaction Transaction Transaction Transaction for  Transaction Transaction Transaction Transaction Transaction Transaction Transaction Transaction Transaction
transaction; for Availing of for Availing of  for Availing & for Availing & Availing and for Availing & for Availing for Availing for Availing for Availing for Availing for Availing for Availing for Availing
(Rs.in Crores)  Revolving Loan Revolving Loan  Rendering of Rendering of rendering of Rendering of & Rendering & Rendering & Rendering & Rendering & Rendering & Rendering & Rendering & Rendering

Facility - 50 Cr  Facility - 50 Cr ~ Services - 20CR Services - 20CR Services - 20 Services - 20CR of Services - of Services - of Services - of Services - of Services - of Services - of Services - of Services -
Value of Value of CR Value of 20CR 20CR 20CR 20CR 20CR 20CR 20CR 50CR
Transaction Transaction Transaction Value of Value of Value of Value of Value of
for Availing & for Availing & for Availing & Transaction Transaction Transaction Transaction Transaction
Rendering of Rendering of Rendering of for Availing for Availing for Availing for Availing for Availing
Revolving Loan  Revolving Loan Revolving Loan & Rendering & Rendering & Rendering & Rendering & Rendering
facility - 100CR  facility - 100CR facility - 50CR of Revolving of Revolving of Revolving of Revolving of Revolving
Value of Trans-  Value of Trans- Loan facility- Loan facility - Loan facility - Loan facility - Loan facility -
action for To action for To 50CR 50CR 50CR 20CR 50CR
give Corporate give Corporate
Guarantee - Guarantee -
100CR 100CR

5 The percent- 64% 64% 127% 127% 25% 64% 64% 25% 64% 64% 25% 25% 25% 64%

age of the
listed entity’s

annual consoli-
dated turnover,
for the imme-
diately preced-
ing financial
year, that is
represented

by the value of
the proposed
transaction;




If the trans-
action relates
to any loans,
inter-corpo-
rate deposits,
advances or
investments
made or given
by the listed
entity or its
subsidiary

a) Details of
the source of
funds in con-
nection with
the proposed
transaction

b) where

any financial
indebtedness
is incurred

to make or
give loans,
inter corpo-
rate deposits,
advances or
investments

- nature of in-
debtedness;

- cost offunds;
and ¢ tenure
c) Applicable
terms, includ-
ing cove-
nants, tenure,
interest rate
and repay-
ment sched-
ule, whether
secured or
unsecured; if
secured, the
nature of secu
rity

d) The pur-
pose for which
the funds will
be utilized by
the ultimate
beneficiary of
such

funds pursu-
ant to the RPT

(a)owned
Funds

(b) Not appli-
cable

(c) Term of
Loan: As per
agreement

Tenure: Less
than 1year

Interest
Rate: Interest
Free

Repayment
schedule: On
Demand

Whether se-
cured or unse-
cured loans:
Unsecured

d) To fulfil

Working Capital.

Requirement

and for business

opera

(a)owned
Funds

(b) Not appli-
cable

(c) Term of
Loan: As per
agreement

Tenure: Less
than 1year

Interest
Rate:lnterest
Free

Repayment
schedule: On
Demand

Whether se-
cured or unse-
cured loans:
Unsecured

(d) To fulfil
Working Cap-
ital. Require-
ment and

for business
operations

(a)owned/
Borrowed
Funds

(b) Not appli-
cable

(c) Term of
Loan: As per
agreement

Tenure: Less
than 1year

Interest Rate:
Rate as on
date of dis-
bursement

Repayment
schedule: On
Demand

Whether
secured or un-
secured loans:
Unsecured

(d) To fulfil
Working Cap-
ital. Require-
ment and

for business
operations

(a)owned/
Borrowed
Funds

(b) Not appli-
cable

(c) Term of
Loan: As per
agreement

Tenure: Less
than 1year

Interest Rate:
Rate as on
date of dis-
bursement

Repayment
schedule: On
Demand

Whether
secured or un-
secured loans:
Unsecured

(d) To fulfil
Working Cap-
ital. Require-
ment and

for business
operations

(a)owned/
Borrowed
Funds

(b) Not appli-
cable

(c) Term of
Loan: As per
agreement

Tenure: Less
than 1year

Interest Rate:
Rate as on
date of dis-
bursement

Repayment
schedule: On
Demand

Whether
secured or un-
secured loans:
Unsecured

(d) To fulfil
Working Cap-
ital. Require-
ment and

for business
operations

(a)owned/ Bor-
rowed Funds

(b) Not applicable

(c) Term of Loan: As
per agreement

Tenure: Less than
1year

Interest Rate:
Rate as on date of
disbursement

Repayment sched-
ule: On Demand

Whether secured
or unsecured loans:
Unsecured

(d) To fulfil Working
Capital. Require-
ment and for busi-
ness operations

(a)owned/
Borrowed
Funds

(b) Not appli-
cable

(c) Term of
Loan: As per
agreement

Tenure: Less
than 1year

Interest Rate:
Rate as on
date of dis-
bursement

Repayment
schedule: On
Demand

Whether
secured or
unsecured
loans: Unse-
cured

(d) To fulfil
Working Cap-
ital. Require-
ment and

for business
operations

(a)owned/
Borrowed
Funds

(b) Not appli-
cable

(c) Term of
Loan: As per
agreement

Tenure: Less
than 1year

Interest Rate:
Rate as on
date of dis-
bursement

Repayment
schedule: On
Demand

Whether
secured or
unsecured
loans: Unse-
cured

(d) To fulfil
Working Cap-
ital. Require-
ment and

for business
operations

(a)owned/
Borrowed
Funds

(b) Not appli-
cable

(c) Term of
Loan: As per
agreement

Tenure: Less
than 1year

Interest Rate:
Rate as on
date of dis-
bursement

Repayment
schedule: On
Demand

Whether
secured or
unsecured
loans: Unse-
cured

(d) To fulfil
Working Cap-
ital. Require-
ment and

for business
operations

(a)owned/
Borrowed
Funds

(b) Not appli-
cable

(c) Term of
Loan: As per
agreement

Tenure: Less
than 1year

Interest Rate:
Rate as on
date of dis-
bursement

Repayment
schedule: On
Demand

Whether
secured or
unsecured
loans: Unse-
cured

(d) To fulfil
Working Cap-
ital. Require-
ment and

for business
operations

(a)owned/
Borrowed
Funds

(b) Not appli-
cable

(c) Term of
Loan: As per
agreement

Tenure: Less
than 1year

Interest Rate:
Rate as on
date of dis-
bursement

Repayment
schedule: On
Demand

Whether
secured or
unsecured
loans: Unse-
cured

(d) To fulfil
Working Cap-
ital. Require-
ment and

for business
operations

(a)owned/
Borrowed
Funds

(b) Not appli-
cable

(c) Term of
Loan: As per
agreement

Tenure: Less
than 1year

Interest Rate:
Rate as on
date of dis-
bursement

Repayment
schedule: On
Demand

Whether
secured or
unsecured
loans: Unse-
cured

(d) To fulfil
Working Cap-
ital. Require-
ment and

for business
operations

(a)owned/
Borrowed
Funds

(b) Not appli-
cable

(c) Term of
Loan: As per
agreement

Tenure: Less
than 1year

Interest Rate:
Rate as on
date of dis-
bursement

Repayment
schedule: On
Demand

Whether
secured or
unsecured
loans: Unse-
cured

(d) To fulfil
Working Cap-
ital. Require-
ment and

for business
operations

Sr Particulars
[\[e}

(a)owned/
Borrowed
Funds

(b) Not appli-
cable

(c) Term of
Loan: As per
agreement

Tenure: Less
than 1year

Interest Rate:
Rate as on
date of dis-
bursement

Repayment
schedule: On
Demand

Whether
secured or
unsecured
loans: Unse-
cured

(d) To fulfil
Working Cap-
ital. Require-
ment and

for business
operations




Sr Particulars
No
7 Justification For the pur- For the pur- For the For the For the For the purpose For the For the For the For the For the For the For the For the
astowhythe  pose of fulfill- pose of fulfil- purpose of purpose of purpose of of achieving the purpose of purpose of purpose of purpose of purpose of purpose of purpose of purpose of
RPTis in the ing Working ing Working achieving achieving achieving business objectives achieving achieving achieving achieving achieving achieving achieving achieving
interest of the  Capital Re- Capital Re- the business the business the business and continuity in the business  the business  the business  the business  the business  the business  the business  the business
listed entity quirement and quirement and objectives objectives objectives operations and to objectives objectives objectives objectives objectives objectives objectives objectives
for business for business and continu- and continu- and continu- smoothen business and continu-  and continu- and continu- and continu-  and continu-  and continu-  and continu-  and continu-
operations operations ity in opera- ity in opera- ity in opera- operations for both ity in opera- ity in opera- ity in opera- ity in opera- ity in opera- ity in opera- ity in opera- ity in opera-
tions and to tions and to tions and to the companies. tions and to tions and to tions and to tions and to tions and to tions and to tions and to tions and to
smoothen smoothen smoothen Purchase or sale of smoothen smoothen smoothen smoothen smoothen smoothen smoothen smoothen
business oper- business oper- business oper- goods and render- business business business business business business business business
ations for both  ations for both  ations for both  ing and / or avail- operations operations operations operations operations operations operations operations
the compa- the compa- the compa- ing of the Services for both the for both the for both the for both the for both the for both the for both the for both the
nies. Purchase nies. Purchase nies. Purchase for business for companies. companies. companies. companies. companies. companies. companies. companies.
or sale of or sale of or sale of both the compa- Purchase or Purchase or Purchase or Purchase or Purchase or Purchase or Purchase or Purchase or
goods and goods and goods and nies in ordinary sale of goods  sale of goods sale of goods sale of goods sale of goods  sale of goods sale of goods  sale of goods
renderingand renderingand rendering and  course of business. and render- and render- and render- and render- and render- and render- and render- and render-
[ or availing of [ or availing of [ or availing of ing and [ or ing and [ or ing and / or ing and [ or ing and [ or ing and / or ing and [ or ing and [ or
the Services the Services the Services availing of availing of availing of availing of availing of availing of availing of availing of
for business for business for business the Services the Services the Services the Services the Services the Services the Services the Services
for both the for both the for both the for business for business for business for business for business for business for business for business
companies companies companies for both the for both the for both the for both the for both the for both the for both the for both the
in ordinary in ordinary in ordinary companies companies companies companies companies companies companies companies
course of busi- course of busi- course of busi- in ordinary in ordinary in ordinary in ordinary in ordinary in ordinary in ordinary in ordinary
ness. ness. ness. course of course of course of course of course of course of course of course of
business. business. business. business. business. business. business. business.
8 Any valua- NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
tion or other
external report
relied upon by
the listed enti-
ty in relation to
the transac-
tions
9 Any other Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
information
that may be
relevant
10 The indicative  NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
base price
or current
contracted
price and the
formula for
variation in the
price, if any
1 Instrument for  Agreements Agreements Agreement&  Agreement&  Agreement &  Agreement & In- Agreement & Agreement& Agreement& Agreement&  Agreement &  Agreement &  Agreement &  Agreement &

Transaction

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

voice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Invoice

Nature of Concern or Interest of Directors:
None of Directors except Mr. Gautam Udani, Mr. Raja Debnath, Mr. Afzal Modak, Mr. Ajay Rajendran &

Ms. Payal Maisheri (Chief Financial Officer) are interested in the above resolution and thus will not vote on
this resolution. The Members may note that in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, no
Related Party shall vote to approve the Ordinary Resolution set forth at Item No.4 of the Notice, whether the
entity is a Related Party to the particular transaction or not



Item No.5

As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), transactions with related parties
which are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business, are exempted from the obliga-
tion of obtaining prior approval of members. However, as per the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the Se-
curities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”), such transactions, if material, requires the approval of members through a
resolution, notwithstanding the fact that the same are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course
of business. With effect from April 01, 2022, Regulation 23 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 mandates prior
approval of the members through ordinary resolution for all ‘Material Related Party Transactions. For this
purpose, a Related Party Transaction will be considered ‘material’ if the transaction(s) to be entered into
individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year exceeds g 50 Crore or 10%
of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements of the
Company, whichever is lower.

However, as the value of such transactions is estimated to exceed the revised threshold limit of materi-
al related party transactions within the meaning of amended Regulation 23(1) of the Listing Regulations
w.e.f. April 01,2022 i.e., 10% of the annual consolidated turnover, approval of the Members of the Company
is therefore required for this item in terms of Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, by way of passing
an Ordinary Resolution, for approval of the aforesaid Material Related Party Transactions to be entered
into from the 5th AGM until the conclusion of the 6th AGM of the Company to be held in the Financial Year
2026-27.

The Company seeks approval from the Members to enter into contract(s) or arrangements(s) with the
related parties within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 2(1)(zb)
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) as mentioned in the below table.



In accordance with the prescribed SEBI circular, the requisite details to be placed before the Members are
set out in the table below:

listed entity’s annual
consolidated turnover,
for the immediately
preceding financial
year, that is represent-
ed by the value of the
proposed transaction

Sr Particulars

No

1 Name of the related Raja Debnath - Pro- Gautam Udani - Pro- | Veefin Solutions Lim- Estorifi Systems Limit- GlobeTF Solutions Veefin Capital Chain Fintech Solu- | Nityo Tech Private White Rivers Media | FE Ventures
party and its relation- | moter and Director moter and Director ited - Holding Com- ed. - Group Company Limited- Group Private Limited- tions Limited- Sub- | Limited-Subsidi- Solutions Private Private Limit-
ship with the listed pany Company Group Company sidiary Company | ary Company Limited- Subsidiary | ed-Step-down
entity or its subsidiary, Company Subsidiary
including nature of its (Group Compa-
concern or interest (fi- )
nancial or otherwise); ny

2 Type, material terms Availing of revolving Availing of revolving Availing and rendering | Availing and rendering Availing and ren- Availing and ren- Availing and ren- Availing and ren- Availing and ren- Availing and ren-
and particulars of the | loan facility (To take loan facility (To take of services; Availing of services; dering of services; dering of services; dering of services; dering of services; dering of services; dering of services;
proposed transaction; | revolving loan facility | revolving loan facility | and rendering of re- Availing and render- Availing and ren- Availing and ren- Availing and ren- Availing and ren- Availing and ren-

from Raja Debnath) from Gautam Udani volving loan facility ing of revolving loan dering of revolving | dering of revolving dering of revolving | dering of revolving | dering of revolving
Availing of Corporate | facility loan facility loan facility loan facility. loan facility loan facility
guarantee Availing of Corpo-
rate guarantee
Investment in Equi-
ty shares

3 Tenure of the pro- From 5th AGM to 6th From 5th AGM to 6th From 5th AGM to 6th From 5th AGM to 6th From 5th AGM to From 5th AGM to From 5th AGM to From 5th AGM to From 5th AGM to From 5th AGM to
posed transaction AGM AGM AGM AGM 6th AGM 6th AGM 6th AGM 6th AGM 6th AGM 6th AGM
(particular tenure
shall be specified);

4 Value of the proposed | Value of Transaction Value of Transaction Value of Transaction Value of Transaction Value of Transac- Value of Transac- Value of Transac- Value of Transac- Value of Transac- Value of Transac-
transaction; (Rs. in for Availing of Revolv- | for Availing of Revolv- | for Availing & Render- | for Availing & Render- tion for Availing tion for Availing tion for Availing tion for Availing tion for Availing tion for Availing
Crores ing Loan Facility - 50 ing Loan Facility - 50 ing of Services - 50CR | ing of Services - 20CR & Rendering of & Rendering of & Rendering of & Rendering of & Rendering of & Rendering of

CR CR Value of Transaction Value of Transaction Services - 20CR Services - 20CR Services - 10CR Services - 20CR Services - 20CR Services - 50CR
for Availing & Render- | for Availing & Render- Value of Transac- | Value of Transac- Value of Transac- | Value of Transac- | Value of Transac-
ing of Revolving Loan | ing of Revolving Loan tion for Availing tion for Availing tion for Availing tion for Availing & tion for Availing &
facility - 100CR facility- 20CR & Rendering of & Rendering of & Rendering of Rendering of Re- Rendering of Re-
Value of Transaction Revolving Loan Revolving Loan Revolving Loan volving Loan facility | volving Loan facility
for Availing Corporate facility- 20CR facility- 20CR facility- 20CR - 50CR - 50CR
Guarantee - 100CR Value of Transac-

tion for Availing
Corporate Guaran-
tee - 50CR
Value of Transac-
tion for Investment
in Equity shares-
100CR
5 The percentage of the | 151% 151% 151% 303% 61% 61% 30% 61% 303% 151%




Sr
No

Particulars

If the transaction
relates to any loans,
inter-corporate de-
posits, advances or
investments made or
given by the listed en-
tity or its subsidiary:

a) Details of the
source of funds in
connection with the
proposed transaction

b) where any financial
indebtedness is in-
curred to make or give
loans, inter corporate
deposits, advances or
investments

- nature of indebted-
ness;

« cost of funds; and

« tenure

c) Applicable terms,
including covenants,
tenure, interest rate
and repayment
schedule, whether
secured or unsecured;
if secured, the nature
of security

d) The purpose for
which the funds will be
utilized by the ultimate
beneficiary of such
funds pursuant to the
RPT

(a) Owned Funds
(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan: As
per agreement
Tenure: Less

than 1 year

Interest

Rate: Interest Free
Repayment sched-
ule: On Demand
Whether secured or
unsecured loans: Un-
secured

(d) To fulfil Working
Capital Requirement
and for business op-
erations

(a) owned Funds
(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan: As
per agreement
Tenure: Less

than 1year

Interest

Rate: Interest Free
Repayment sched-
ule: On Demand
Whether secured or
unsecured loans: Un-
secured

(d) To fulfil Working
Capital Requirement
and for business op-
erations

(a) owned/ Borrowed
Funds

(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan: As
per agreement
Tenure: Less
than1year

Interest Rate:Rate

as on date of
disbursement
Repayment sched-
ule: On Demand
Whether secured or
unsecured loans: Un-
secured

(d) To fulfil Working
Capital Requirement
and for business op-
erations

I(a) Owned/ Borrowed
Funds

(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan: As
per agreement
Tenure: Less
than1year

Interest Rate:Rate

as on date of
disbursement
Repayment sched-
ule: On Demand
Whether secured or
unsecured loans: Un-
secured

(d) To fulfil Working
Capital Requirement
and for business op-
erations

(a) owned/ Bor-
rowed Funds

(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan:
As per agreement
Tenure: Less
than1year

Interest Rate:Rate
as on date of
disbursement
Repayment sched-
ule: On Demand
Whether secured
or unsecured loans:
Unsecured

(d) To fulfil
Working Capital
Requirement and
for business oper-
ations

(a) owned/ Bor-
rowed Funds

(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan:
As per agreement
Tenure: Less
than1year

Interest Rate:Rate
as on date of
disbursement
Repayment sched-
ule: On Demand
Whether secured
or unsecured loans:
Unsecured

(d) To fulfil
Working Capital
Requirement and
for business oper-
ations

(a) owned/ Bor-
rowed Funds

(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan:
As per agreement
Tenure: Less
than1year

Interest Rate:Rate
as on date of
disbursement
Repayment sched-
ule: On Demand
Whether secured
or unsecured loans:
Unsecured

(d) To fulfil
Working Capital
Requirement and
for business oper-
ations

(a) owned/ Bor-
rowed Funds

(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan:
As per agreement
Tenure: Less
than1year

Interest Rate:Rate
as on date of
disbursement
Repayment sched-
ule: On Demand
Whether secured
or unsecured loans:
Unsecured

(d) To fulfil
Working Capital
Requirement and
for business oper-
ations

(a) owned/ Bor-
rowed Funds

(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan:
As per agreement
Tenure: Less
than1year

Interest Rate:Rate
as on date of
disbursement
Repayment sched-
ule: On Demand
Whether secured
or unsecured loans:
Unsecured

(d) To fulfil
Working Capital
Requirement and
for business oper-
ations

(a) owned/ Bor-
rowed Funds

(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan:
As per agreement
Tenure: Less
than1year

Interest Rate:Rate
as on date of
disbursement
Repayment sched-
ule: On Demand
Whether secured
or unsecured loans:
Unsecured

(d) To fulfil
Working Capital
Requirement and
for business oper-
ations

Justification as to why
the RPT is in the inter-
est of the listed entity

For the purpose of
fulfilling Working
Capital Requirement
and for business op-
erations

For the purpose of
fulfilling Working
Capital Requirement
and for business op-
erations

For the purpose of
achieving the busi-
ness objectives and
continuity in opera-
tions and to smoothen
business operations
for both the compa-
nies. Purchase or sale
of goods and render-
ing and / or availing
of the Services for
business for both the
companies in ordinary
course of business.

For the purpose of
achieving the busi-
ness objectives and
continuity in opera-
tions and to smoothen
business operations
for both the compa-
nies. Purchase or sale
of goods and render-
ing and / or availing
of the Services for
business for both the
companies in ordinary
course of business.

For the purpose

of achieving the
business objectives
and continuity in
operations and to
smoothen busi-
ness operations for
both the com-
panies. Purchase
or sale of goods
and rendering

and / or availing

of the Services for
business for both
the companies in
ordinary course of
business.

For the purpose

of achieving the
business objectives
and continuity in
operations and to
smoothen busi-
ness operations for
both the com-
panies. Purchase
or sale of goods
and rendering

and / or availing
of the Services for
business for both
the companies in
ordinary course of
business.

For the purpose

of achieving the
business objectives
and continuity in
operations and to
smoothen busi-
ness operations for
both the com-
panies. Purchase
or sale of goods
and rendering

and / or availing
of the Services for
business for both
the companies in
ordinary course of
business.

For the purpose

of achieving the
business objectives
and continuity in
operations and to
smoothen busi-
ness operations for
both the com-
panies. Purchase
or sale of goods
and rendering

and / or availing
of the Services for
business for both
the companies in
ordinary course of
business.

For the purpose

of achieving the
business objectives
and continuity in
operations and to
smoothen busi-
ness operations for
both the com-
panies. Purchase
or sale of goods
and rendering

and / or availing
of the Services for
business for both
the companies in
ordinary course of
business.

For the purpose

of achieving the
business objectives
and continuity in
operations and to
smoothen busi-
ness operations for
both the com-
panies. Purchase
or sale of goods
and rendering

and / or availing
of the Services for
business for both
the companies in
ordinary course of
business.




Sr
No

Particulars

Any valuation or other
external report relied
upon by the listed
entity in relation to the
transactions

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable

Any other information
that may be relevant

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

The indicative base
price or current con-
tracted price and the
formula for variation in
the price, if any

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA NA NA NA NA NA

Instrument for Trans-
action

Agreement

Agreement

Agreement & invoice

Agreement & invoice

Agreement & in- Agreement & in- Agreement & in- Agreement & in- Agreement & in- Agreement & in-

voice voice voice voice voice voice

Nature of Concern or Interest of Directors:

None of Directors except Mr. Gautam Udani, Mr. Raja Debnath & Ms. Payal Maisheri (Chief Financial Officer)
are interested in the above resolution and thus will not vote on this resolution. The Members may note that
in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, no Related Party shall vote to approve the Ordi-
nary Resolution set forth at Item No.5 of the Notice, whether the entity is a Related Party to the particular
transaction or not.



ITEM NO 6

As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), transactions with related parties
which are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business, are exempted from the obliga-
tion of obtaining prior approval of members. However, as per the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the Se-
curities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”), such transactions, if material, requires the approval of members through a
resolution, notwithstanding the fact that the same are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course
of business. With effect from April 01, 2022, Regulation 23 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 mandates prior
approval of the members through ordinary resolution for all ‘Material Related Party Transactions. For this
purpose, a Related Party Transaction will be considered ‘material’ if the transaction(s) to be entered into
individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year exceeds g 50 Crore or 10%
of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements of the
Company, whichever is lower.

However, as the value of such transactions is estimated to exceed the revised threshold limit of materi-
al related party transactions within the meaning of amended Regulation 23(1) of the Listing Regulations
w.e.f. April 01, 2022 i.e., 10% of the annual consolidated turnover, approval of the Members of the Company
is therefore required for this item in terms of Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, by way of passing
an Ordinary Resolution, for approval of the aforesaid Material Related Party Transactions to be entered
into from the 5th AGM until the conclusion of the 6th AGM of the Company to be held in the Financial Year
2026-27.

The Company seeks approval from the Members to enter into contract(s) or arrangements(s) with the
related parties within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 2(1)(zb)
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) as mentioned in the below table.



In accordance with the prescribed SEBI circular, the requisite details to be placed before the Members are

set out in the table below:

Sr No. | Particulars

1 Name of the related Raja Debnath - | Gautam Udani Veefin Solutions Infini Systems GlobeTF Solutions Limit- Veefin Capital Private Lim- | Regime Tax Solutions Epikindifi Software and
party and its relation- Promoter and - Promoter and Limited-Holding Limited- Group ed-Group Company ited-Group Company Private Limited- Subsidiary | Solutions Private Limited-
ship with the listed Director Director Company Company Company Subsidiary Company
entity or its subsidiary,
including nature of its
concern or interest (fi-
nancial or otherwise);

2 Type, material terms Availing of Availing of revolv- | Availing and ren- Availing and ren- Availing and rendering of | Availing and rendering of [ Availing and rendering of | Availing and rendering of
and particulars of the revolving loan ing loan facility (To dering of services; [ dering of services; services; services; services; services;
proposed transaction; | facility take revolving loan | Availing and ren- Availing and ren- Availing and rendering of | Availing and rendering of [ Availing and rendering of | Availing and rendering

(To take revolv- | facility from Gau- | dering of revolving | dering of revolving revolving loan facility revolving loan facility revolving loan facility of revolving loan facility:
ing loan facility | tam Udani) loan facility Avail- | loan facility Investment in compluso-
from Raja Deb- ing of Corporate ry convertible preference
nath) guarantee shares (CCPS)

3 Tenure of the proposed From 5th AGM to From 5th AGM to 6th From 5th AGM to 6th From 5th AGM to 6th From 5th AGM to 6th AGM From 5th AGM to 6th AGM From 5th AGM to 6th AGM From 5th AGM to 6th AGM
transaction (particular | 6th AGM AGM AGM AGM
tenure shall be speci-
fied);

4 Value of the proposed | Value of Trans- | Value of Transac- | Value of Transac- | Value of Transac- Value of Transaction for Value of Transaction for Value of Transaction for Value of Transaction for
transaction; (Rs. in action for Avail- | tion for Availing tion for Availing & | tion for Availing & Availing & Rendering of Availing & Rendering of Availing & Rendering of Availing & Rendering of
Crores) ing of Revolving Loan | Rendering of Ser- Rendering of Ser- Services - 20CR Services - 20CR Services - 20CR Services - 20CR

of Revolving Facility - 50 CR vices - 50CR vices - 20CR Value of Transaction for Value of Transaction for Value of Transaction for Value of Transaction for
Loan Facility - Value of Transac- | Value of Transac- Availing & Rendering of Re- | Availing & Rendering of Re- | Availing & Rendering of Re- | Availing & Rendering of
50 CR tion for Availing tion for Availing volving Loan facility-20CR | volving Loan Facility-20CR | volving Loan Facility-50CR | Revolving Loan facility -
& Rendering of & Rendering of 50CRValue of Transaction
Revolving Loan Revolving Loan for Investment in Compul-
facility- 100CR facility- 20CR sorily Convertible Prefer-
Value of Transac- ence Shares (CCPS)- 50
tion for Availing CR
Corporate Guaran-
tee - 100CR

5 The percentage of the [ 905% 905% 1810% 362% 362% 362% 905% 905%
listed entity’s annual
consolidated turnover,
for the immediately
preceding financial
year, that is represent-
ed by the value of the
proposed transaction;




Sr No.

Particulars

If the transaction re-
lates to any loans, in-
ter-corporate deposits,
advances or invest-
ments made or given
by the listed entity or its
subsidiary:

a) Details of the source
of funds in connec-
tion with the proposed
transaction

b) where any financial
indebtedness is in-
curred to make or give
loans, inter corporate
deposits advances or
investments

« nature of indebted-
ness;

« cost of funds; and

- tenure

c) Applicable terms,
including covenants,
tenure, interest rate and
repayment schedule,
whether secured or un-
secured; if secured, the
nature of security

d) The purpose for
which the funds will be
utilized by the ultimate
beneficiary of such
funds pursuant to the
RPT

(a) Owned
Funds

(b) Not appli-
cable

(c) Term of
Loan: As per
agreement
Tenure: Less
than1year
Interest Rate:
Interest Free
Repayment
schedule:

On Demand
Whether se-
cured or un-
secured loans:
Unsecured

(d) To fulfil
Working Capital
Requirement
and for business
operations

(a) owned Funds
(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan:
As per agreement
Tenure: Less

than 1year

Interest Rate:
Interest Free
Repayment sched-
ule: On bemand
Whether secured
or unsecured
loans: Unsecured
(d) To fulfil Working
Capital Require-
ment and for busi-
ness operations

(a) owned/ Bor-
rowed Funds

(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan:
As per agreement
Tenure: Less

than 1year

Interest Rate:

Rate as on date

of disbursement
Repayment sched-
ule: On bemand
Whether secured
or unsecured
loans: Unsecured
(d) To fulfil Working
Capital Require-
ment and for busi-
ness operations

(a) owned/ Bor-
rowed Funds

(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan:
As per agreement
Tenure: Less

than 1year

Interest Rate:

Rate as on date

of disbursement
Repayment sched-
ule: On bemand
Whether secured
or unsecured
loans: Unsecured
(d) To fulfil Working
Capital Require-
ment and for busi-
ness operations

(a) owned/ Borrowed
Funds

(b) Not applicable

(c) Term of Loan: As per
agreement

Tenure: Less than 1 year
Interest Rate: Rate as on
date of disbursement
Repayment schedule: On
Demand

Whether secured or unse-
cured loans: Unsecured
(d) To fulfil Working Capital
Requirement and for busi-
ness operations

(o) owned/ Borrowed
Funds

(b) Not applicable

(c) Term of Loan: As per
agreement

Tenure: Less than 1 year
Interest Rate: Rate as on
date of disbursement
Repayment schedule: On
Demand

Whether secured or unse-
cured loans: Unsecured
(d) To fulfil Working Capital
Requirement and for busi-
ness operations

(a) owned/ Borrowed
Funds

(b) Not applicable

(c) Term of Loan: As per
agreement

Tenure: Less than 1 year
Interest Rate: Rate as on
date of disbursement
Repayment schedule: On
Demand

Whether secured or unse-
cured loans: Unsecured
(d) To fulfil Working Capital
Requirement and for busi-
ness operations

(o) owned/ Borrowed
Funds

(b) Not applicable

(c) Term of Loan: As per
agreement

Tenure: Less than 1 year
Interest Rate:Rate as on
date of disbursement
Repayment schedule: On
Demand

Whether secured or unse-
cured loans: Unsecured
(d) To fulfil Working Capital
Requirement and for busi-
ness operations

Justification as to why
the RPT is in the interest
of the listed entity

For the pur-
pose of fulfilling
Working

Capital Re-
quirement and
for business
operations

For the purpose of
fulfilling Working
Capital Require-
ment and for busi-
ness operations

For the purpose

of achieving the
business objectives
and continuity in
operations and to
smoothen busi-
ness operations for
both the compa-
nies. Purchase or
sale of goods and
rendering and / or
availing of the Ser-
vices for business
for both the com-
panies in ordinary
course of business.

For the purpose

of achieving the
business objectives
and continuity in
operations and to
smoothen busi-
ness operations for
both the compa-
nies. Purchase or
sale of goods and
rendering and / or
availing of the Ser-
vices for business
for both the com-
panies in ordinary
course of business.

For the purpose of achiev-
ing the business objectives
and continuity in oper-
ations and to smoothen
business operations for
both the companies. Pur-
chase or sale of goods and
rendering and / or availing
of the Services for business
for both the companies in
ordinary course of busi-
ness.

For the purpose of achiev-
ing the business objectives
and continuity in oper-
ations and to smoothen
business operations for
both the companies. Pur-
chase or sale of goods and
rendering and / or availing
of the Services for business
for both the companies in
ordinary course of busi-
ness.

For the purpose of achiev-
ing the business objectives
and continuity in oper-
ations and to smoothen
business operations for
both the companies. Pur-
chase or sale of goods and
rendering and / or availing
of the Services for business
for both the companies in
ordinary course of busi-
ness.

For the purpose of achiev-
ing the business objectives
and continuity in oper-
ations and to smoothen
business operations for
both the companies. Pur-
chase or sale of goods and
rendering and / or availing
of the Services for business
for both the companies in
ordinary course of busi-
ness.




Sr No.

Particulars

Any valuation or other
external report relied
upon by the listed entity
in relation to the trans-
actions

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

Any other information
that may be relevant

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil.

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

10

The indicative base
price or current con-
tracted price and the
formula for variation
in the price, if any

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

1

Instrument for Trans-
action

Agreement

Agreement

Agreement &
invoice

Agreement &
invoice

Agreement & invoice

Agreement & invoice

Agreement & invoice

Agreement & invoice

Nature of Concern or Interest of Directors:
None of Directors except Mr. Gautam Udani, Mr. Raja Debnath, Mr. Ajay Rajendra & Ms. Payal Maisheri

( Chief Financial Officer) are interested in the above resolution and thus will not vote on this resolution. The
Members may note that in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, no Related Party shall
vote to approve the Ordinary Resolution set forth at item No.6 of the Notice, whether the entity is a Related
Party to the particular transaction or not.




Item No.7

As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), transactions with related parties
which are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business, are exempted from the obliga-
tion of obtaining prior approval of members. However, as per the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the Se-
curities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”), such transactions, if material, requires the approval of members through a
resolution, notwithstanding the fact that the same are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course
of business. With effect from April 01, 2022, Regulation 23 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 mandates prior
approval of the members through ordinary resolution for all ‘Material Related Party Transactions. For this
purpose, a Related Party Transaction will be considered ‘material’ if the transaction(s) to be entered into
individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year exceeds g 50 Crore or 10%
of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements of the
Company, whichever is lower.

However, as the value of such transactions is estimated to exceed the revised threshold limit of materi-
al related party transactions within the meaning of amended Regulation 23(1) of the Listing Regulations
w.e.f. April 01,2022 i.e., 10% of the annual consolidated turnover, approval of the Members of the Company
is therefore required for this item in terms of Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, by way of passing
an Ordinary Resolution, for approval of the aforesaid Material Related Party Transactions to be entered
into from the 5th AGM until the conclusion of the 6th AGM of the Company to be held in the Financial Year
2026-27.

The Company seeks approval from the Members to enter into contract(s) or arrangements(s) with the
related parties within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 2(1)(zb)
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) as mentioned in the below table.



In accordance with the prescribed SEBI circular, the requisite details to be placed
before the Members are set out in the table below:

entity’s annual consolidated
turnover, for the immediately
preceding financial year, that
is represented by the value of
the proposed transaction;

Sr No. | Particulars
1 Name of the related party and its | Raja Debnath - Promoter and Gautam Udani - Promoter and Infini Systems Limited-Group Com- | Veefin Solutions Limited-Holding Veefin Capital Private Limited-Group
relationship with the listed entity | Director Director pany Company Company
or its subsidiary, including nature
of its concern or interest (financial
or otherwise);
2 Type, material terms and particu- | Availing of revolving loan facility | Availing of revolving loan facility Availing and rendering of services; Availing and rendering of services; Availing and rendering of services;
lars of the proposed transaction; | (To take revolving loan facility (To take revolving loan facility Availing and rendering of revolving | Availing and rendering of revolving | Availing and rendering of revolving
from Raja Debnath) from Gautam Udani) loan facility loan facility loan facility
3 Tenure of the proposed trans- | From 5th AGM to 6th AGM From 5th AGM to 6th AGM From 5th AGM to 6th AGM From 5th AGM to 6th AGM From 5th AGM to 6th AGM
action (particular tenure shall
be specified);
4 Value of the proposed trans- | Value of Transaction for Avail- [ Value of Transaction for Avail- Value of Transaction for Availing | Value of Transaction for Availing | Value of Transaction for Availing
action; (Rs. in Crores) ing of Revolving Loan Facility ing of Revolving Loan Facility & Rendering of Services - 20CR & Rendering of Services - 20CR & Rendering of Services - 20CR
-20CR -20CR Value of Transaction for Availing | Value of Transaction for Availing | Value of Transaction for Availing
& Rendering of Revolving Loan & Rendering of Revolving Loan & Rendering of Revolving Loan
facility- 20CR facility - 20CR facility - 20CR
5 The percentage of the listed 10000% 10000% 10000% 10000% 10000%




Sr No.

Particulars

6 If the transaction relates to any
loans, inter-corporate deposits,
advances or investments made
or given by the listed entity or its
subsidiary:
a) Details of the source of funds a) Owned Funds a) Owned Funds a) owned/ Borrowed Funds a) Owned/ Borrowed Funds a) Owned/ Borrowed Funds
in connection with the proposed | (b) Not applicable (b) Not applicable (b) Not applicable (b) Not applicable (b) Not applicable
transaction (c) Term of Loan: As per agree- (c) Term of Loan: As per agree- (c) Term of Loan: As per agreement | (c) Term of Loan: As per agreement | (c) Term of Loan: As per agreement
ment ment Tenure: Less than 1 year Tenure: Less than 1 year Tenure: Less than 1 year
b) where any financial indebted- | Tenure: Less than 1year Tenure: Less than 1 year Interest Rate: Rate as on date of Interest Rate: Rate as on date of Interest Rate: Rate as on
ness is incurred to make or give Interest Rate: Interest Free Interest Rate: Interest Free disbursement Repayment schedule: | disbursement Repayment schedule: | date of disbursement
loans, inter corporate deposits, Repayment schedule: On Demand | Repayment schedule: On Demand On Demand On Demand Repayment schedule: On Demand
advances or investments Whether secured or unsecured Whether secured or unsecured Whether secured or unsecured Whether secured or unsecured Whether secured or unsecured
« nature of indebtedness; loans: Unsecured loans: Unsecured loans: Unsecured loans: Unsecured loans: Unsecured
- cost of funds; and (d) To fulfil Working Capital (d) To fulfil Working Capital (d) To fulfil Working Capital Require- | (d) To fulfil Working Capital Require- | (d) To fulfil Working Capital Require-
- tenure Requirement and for business Requirement and for business ment and for business operations ment and for business operations ment and for business operations
operations operations
c) Applicable terms, including
covenants, tenure, interest rate
and repayment schedule, whether
secured or unsecured; if secured,
the nature of security
d) The purpose for which the
funds will be utilized by the ulti-
mate beneficiary of such
funds pursuant to the RPT
7 Justification as to why the RPT is in | For the purpose of fulfilling Work- | For the purpose of fulfilling Work- For the purpose of achieving the For the purpose of achieving the For the purpose of achieving the

the interest of the listed entity

ing Capital Requirement and for
business operations

ing Capital Requirement and for
business operations

business objectives and continuity in
operations and to smoothen busi-
ness operations for both the com-
panies. Purchase or sale of goods
and rendering and / or availing of
the Services for business for both
the companies in ordinary course of
business.

business objectives and continuity in
operations and to smoothen busi-
ness operations for both the com-
panies. Purchase or sale of goods
and rendering and / or availing of
the Services for business for both

the companies in ordinary course of
business.

business objectives and continuity in
operations and to smoothen busi-
ness operations for both the com-
panies. Purchase or sale of goods
and rendering and / or availing of
the Services for business for both
the companies in ordinary course of
business.




Sr No.

Particulars

Any valuation or other external report
relied upon by the listed entity in rela-
tion to the transactions

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

Any other information that may be
relevant

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

The indicative base price or current
contracted price and the formula for
variation in the price, if any

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

Instrument for Transaction

Agreement

Agreement

Agreement & invoice

Agreement & invoice

Agreement & invoice

Nature of Concern or Interest of Directors:
None of Directors except Mr. Gautam Udani, Mr. Raja Debnath and Ms. Payal Maisheri (Chief Financial
Officer) are interested in the above resolution and thus will not vote on this resolution. The Members
may note that in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, no Related Party shall vote to
approve the Ordinary Resolution set forth at Item No.7 of the Notice, whether the entity is a Related Party

to the particular transaction or not.




Item No.8

As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), transactions with related parties
which are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business, are exempted from the obliga-
tion of obtaining prior approval of members. However, as per the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the Se-
curities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”), such transactions, if material, requires the approval of members through a
resolution, notwithstanding the fact that the same are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course
of business. With effect from April 01, 2022, Regulation 23 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 mandates prior
approval of the members through ordinary resolution for all ‘Material Related Party Transactions. For this
purpose, a Related Party Transaction will be considered ‘material’ if the transaction(s) to be entered into
individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year exceeds g 50 Crore or 10%
of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements of the
Company, whichever is lower.

However, as the value of such transactions is estimated to exceed the revised threshold limit of materi-
al related party transactions within the meaning of amended Regulation 23(1) of the Listing Regulations
w.e.f. April 01,2022 i.e,, 10% of the annual consolidated turnover, approval of the Members of the Company
is therefore required for this item in terms of Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, by way of passing
an Ordinary Resolution, for approval of the aforesaid Material Related Party Transactions to be entered
into from the 5th AGM until the conclusion of the 6th AGM of the Company to be held in the Financial Year
2026-27.

The Company seeks approval from the Members to enter into contract(s) or arrangements(s) with the
related parties within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 2(1)(zb)
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) as mentioned in the below table.



In accordance with the prescribed SEBI circular, the requisite details to be placed before the Members are

set out in the table below:

Sr No. | Particulars
1 Name of the related party and its Raja Debnath - Promoter and Director | Veefin Solutions Limited-Holding Infini Systems Limited-Group Estorifi Solutions Limit- GlobeTF Solutions Limited-Group Company
relationship with the listed entity or Company Company ed-Group Company
its subsidiary, including nature of its
concern or interest (financial or oth-
erwise);
2 Type, material terms and particulars Availing of revolving loan facility (To Availing and rendering of services; Availing and rendering of Availing and rendering of Availing and rendering of services;
of the proposed transaction; take revolving loan facility from Raja Availing and rendering of revolving services; services; Availing and rendering of revolving loan facility
Debnath) loan facility Availing and rendering of Availing and rendering of
revolving loan facility revolving loan facility
3 Tenure of the proposed transaction From 5th AGM to 6th AGM From 5th AGM to 6th AGM From 5th AGM to 6th AGM From 5th AGM to 6th AGM From 5th AGM to 6th AGM
(particular tenure shall be specified);
4 Value of the proposed transaction; Value of Transaction for Availing of Value of Transaction for Availing & Value of Transaction for Avail- | Value of Transaction for Avail- | Value of Transaction for Availing & Rendering of Services -
(Rs.in Crores) Revolving Loan Facility - 20 CR Rendering of Services - 20CR ing & Rendering of Services ing & Rendering of Services 20CR
Value of Transaction for Availing & - 20CR - 20CR Value of Transaction for Availing & Rendering of Revolving Loan
Rendering of Revolving Loan facility- Value of Transaction for Avail- | Value of Transaction for Avail- | facility- 20CR
50CR ing & Rendering of Revolving ing & Rendering of Revolving
Loan facility- 20CR Loan facility- 20CR
5 The percentage of the listed entity’s NA NA NA NA NA
annual consolidated turnover, for the
immediately preceding financial year,
that is represented by the value of the
proposed transaction;




Sr No.

Particulars

If the transaction relates to any
loans, inter-corporate deposits, ad-
vances or investments made or given
by the listed entity or its subsidiary:

a) Details of the source of funds in
connection with the proposed trans-
action

b) where any financial indebtedness
is incurred to make or give loans,
inter corporate deposits, advances or
investments

« nature of indebtedness;

« cost of funds; and

« tenure

c) Applicable terms, including
covenants, tenure, interest rate and
repayment schedule, whether secured
or unsecured; if secured, the nature of
security

d) The purpose for which the funds will
be utilized by the ultimate beneficiary
of such

funds pursuant to the RPT

(a) Owned Funds

(b) Not applicable

(c) Term of Loan: As per agreement
Tenure: Less than 1 year

Interest Rate: Interest Free
Repayment schedule: On Demand
Whether secured or unsecured loans:
Unsecured

(d) To fulfil Working Capital Require-
ment and for business operations

(a) owned/ Borrowed Funds

(b) Not applicable

(c) Term of Loan: As per agreement
Tenure: Less than 1year

Interest Rate: Rate as on date of dis-
bursement Repayment schedule: On
Demand

Whether secured or unsecured loans:
Unsecured

(d) To fulfil Working Capital Require-
ment and for business operations

(a) owned/ Borrowed Funds

(b) Not applicable

(c) Term of Loan: As per agreement
Tenure: Less than 1 year

Interest Rate: Rate as on date of dis-
bursement Repayment schedule: On
Demand

Whether secured or unsecured loans:
Unsecured

(d) To fulfil Working Capital Requirement
and for business operations

(a) owned/ Borrowed Funds

(b) Not applicable

(c) Term of Loan: As per agreement
Tenure: Less than 1year

Interest Rate: Rate as on date of dis-
bursement Repayment schedule: On
Demand

Whether secured or unsecured loans:
Unsecured

(d) To fulfil Working Capital Requirement
and for business operations

(a) owned/ Borrowed Funds

(b) Not applicable

(c) Term of Loan: As per agreement
Tenure: Less than 1 year

Interest Rate: Rate as on date of dis-
bursement Repayment schedule:

On Demand Whether secured or unse-
cured loans: Unsecured

(d) To fulfil Working Capital Requirement
and for business operations

Justification as to why the RPT is in the
interest of the listed entity

For the purpose of fulfilling Working
Capital Requirement and for business
operations

For the purpose of achieving the
business objectives and continuity in
operations and to smoothen business
operations for both the companies.
Purchase or sale of goods and ren-
dering and [ or availing of the Services
for business for both the companies in
ordinary course of business.

For the purpose of achieving the business
objectives and continuity in operations
and to smoothen business operations for
both the companies. Purchase or sale of
goods and rendering and [ or availing

of the Services for business for both the
companies in ordinary course of busi-
ness.

For the purpose of achieving the business
objectives and continuity in operations
and to smoothen business operations for
both the companies. Purchase or sale of
goods and rendering and / or availing

of the Services for business for both the
companies in ordinary course of busi-
ness.

For the purpose of achieving the business
objectives and continuity in operations
and to smoothen business operations for
both the companies. Purchase or sale of
goods and rendering and / or availing

of the Services for business for both the
companies in ordinary course of busi-
ness.




Sr No.

Particulars

Any valuation or other external report
relied upon by the listed entity in rela-
tion to the transactions

NA

NA

NA NA NA

Any other information that may be
relevant

Nil

Nil

Nil Nil Nil

The indicative base price or current
contracted price and the formula for
variation in the price, if any

NA

NA

NA NA NA

Instrument for Transaction

Agreement

Agreement & Invoice

Agreement & Invoice Agreement & Invoice Agreement & Invoice

Nature of Concern or Interest of Directors:

None of Directors except Mr. Raja Debnath & Ms. Payal Maisheri (Chief Financial Officer) are interested in
the above resolution and thus will not vote on this resolution. The Members may note that in terms of the
provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, no Related Party shall vote to approve the Ordinary Resolution
set forth at Item No.8 of the Notice, whether the entity is a Related Party to the particular transaction or not.




Item No.9

As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), transactions with related parties
which are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business, are exempted from the obliga-
tion of obtaining prior approval of members. However, as per the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the Se-
curities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“SEBI Listing Regulotions”), such transactions, if material, requires the approval of members through a
resolution, notwithstanding the fact that the same are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course
of business. With effect from April 01, 2022, Regulation 23 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 mandates prior
approval of the members through ordinary resolution for all ‘Material Related Party Transactions. For this
purpose, a Related Party Transaction will be considered ‘material’ if the transaction(s) to be entered into
individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year exceeds g 50 Crore or 10%
of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements of the
Company, whichever is lower.

However, as the value of such transactions is estimated to exceed the revised threshold limit of materi-
al related party transactions within the meaning of amended Regulation 23(1) of the Listing Regulations
w.e.f. April 01, 2022 i.e., 10% of the annual consolidated turnover, approval of the Members of the Company
is therefore required for this item in terms of Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, by way of passing
an Ordinary Resolution, for approval of the aforesaid Material Related Party Transactions to be entered
into from the 5th AGM until the conclusion of the 6th AGM of the Company to be held in the Financial Year
2026-27.

The Company seeks approval from the Members to enter into contract(s) or arrangements(s) with the
related parties within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 2(1)(zb)
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) as mentioned in the below table.



In accordance with the prescribed SEBI circular, the requisite details to be placed before the Members are

set out in the table below

SrNo. | Particulars
1 Name of the related party and its Raja Debnath - Promoter & Director Gautam Udani - Promoter & Director Veefin Solutions Limited-Holding Com- Infini Systems Limited- Holding Company | Bhavyansh Infotech Private Limited-
relationship with the listed entity or pany Group Company
its subsidiary, including nature of its
concern or interest (financial or oth-
erwise);
2 Type, material terms and particulars Availing of revolving loan facility (To Availing of revolving loan facility (To Availing and rendering of services; Availing and rendering of services; Availing and rendering of services;
of the proposed transaction; take revolving loan facility from Raja take revolving loan facility from Gau- Availing and rendering of revolving loan | Availing and rendering of revolving loan | Availing and rendering of revolving loan
Debnath) tam udani) facility facility facility
Availing of Corporate guarantee
3 Tenure of the proposed transaction From 5th AGM to 6th AGM From 5th AGM to 6th AGM From 5th AGM to 6th AGM From 5th AGM to 6th AGM From 5th AGM to 6th AGM
(particular tenure shall be specified);
4 Value of the proposed transaction; Value of Transaction for Availing Value of Transaction for Availing Value of Transaction for Availing & Ren- Value of Transaction for Availing & Ren- Value of Transaction for Availing & Ren-
(Rs.in Crores) of Revolving Loan Facility - 20 CR of Revolving Loan Facility - 20 CR dering of Services - 50CR dering of Services - 20CR dering of Services - 20CR
Value of Transaction for Availing & Ren- Value of Transaction for Availing & Ren- Value of Transaction for Availing & Ren-
dering of Revolving Loan facility - 50CR dering of Revolving Loan facility- 20CR dering of Revolving Loan facility- 20CR
Value of Transaction for Availing of Cor-
porate Guarantee - 50CR
5 The percentage of the listed entity’s 62% 62% 154% 62% 62%
annual consolidated turnover, for the
immediately preceding financial year,
that is represented by the value of the
proposed transaction;




Sr No.

Particulars

6 If the transaction relates to any
loans, inter-corporate deposits,
advances or investments made
or given by the listed entity or its
subsidiary: a) Owned/ Borrowed Funds a) Owned/ Borrowed Funds a) Owned/ Borrowed Funds
a) Owned Funds (b) Not applicable (b) Not applicable (b) Not applicable

a) Details of the source of funds [ a) Owned Funds (b) Not applicable (c) Term of Loan: As per agreement | (c) Term of Loan: As per agreement | (c) Term of Loan: As per agreement
in connection with the proposed | (b) Not applicable (c) Term of Loan: As per agree- Tenure: Less than 1 year Tenure: Less than 1 year Tenure: Less than 1 year
transaction (c) Term of Loan: As per agree- ment Interest Rate: Rate as on date of Interest Rate: Rate as on date of Interest Rate: Rate as on date of

ment Tenure: Less than 1 year disbursement Repayment schedule: | disbursement Repayment schedule: | disbursement Repayment schedule:
b) where any financial indebted- | Tenure: Less than 1year Interest Rate: Interest Free On Demand On Demand On Demand
ness is incurred to make or give Interest Rate: Interest Free Repayment schedule: On Demand Whether secured or unsecured Whether secured or unsecured Whether secured or unsecured
loans, inter corporate deposits, Repayment schedule: On Demand | Whether secured or unsecured loans: Unsecured loans: Unsecured loans: Unsecured
advances or investments Whether secured or unsecured loans: Unsecured (d) To fulfil Working Capital Require- | (d) To fulfil Working Capital Require- | (d) To fulfil Working Capital Require-
* nature of indebtedness; loans: Unsecured (d) To fulfil Working Capital ment and for business operations ment and for business operations ment and for business operations
- cost of funds; and (d) To fulfil Working Capital Requirement and for business
« tenure Requirement and for business operations

operations
c) Applicable terms, including
covenants, tenure, interest rate
and repayment schedule, whether
secured or unsecured; if secured,
the nature of security
d) The purpose for which the
funds will be utilized by the ulti-
mate beneficiary of such
funds pursuant to the RPT

7 Justification as to why the RPT is in | For the purpose of fulfilling Work- | For the purpose of fulfilling Work- For the purpose of achieving the For the purpose of achieving the For the purpose of achieving the

the interest of the listed entity

ing Capital Requirement and for
business operations

ing Capital Requirement and for
business operations

business objectives and continuity in
operations and to smoothen busi-
ness operations for both the com-
panies. Purchase or sale of goods
and rendering and / or availing of
the Services for business for both
the companies in ordinary course of
business.

business objectives and continuity in
operations and to smoothen busi-
ness operations for both the com-
panies. Purchase or sale of goods
and rendering and / or availing of
the Services for business for both

the companies in ordinary course of
business.

business objectives and continuity in
operations and to smoothen busi-
ness operations for both the com-
panies. Purchase or sale of goods
and rendering and / or availing of
the Services for business for both
the companies in ordinary course of
business.




Sr No.

Particulars

Any valuation or other external
report relied upon by the listed
entity in relation to the transac-
tions

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

Any other information that may
be relevant

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

The indicative base price or
current contracted price and
the formula for variation in the
price, if any

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

Instrument for Transaction

Agreement

Agreement

Agreement & Invoice

Agreement & Invoice

Agreement & Invoice

Nature of Concern or Interest of Directors:

None of Directors except Mr. Gautam Udani, Mr. Raja Debnath & Ms. Payal Maisheri (Chief Financial Officer),
are interested in the above resolution and thus will not vote on this resolution. The Members may note that
in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, no Related Party shall vote to approve the Ordi-
nary Resolution set forth at Item No.9 of the Notice, whether the entity is a Related Party to the particular
transaction or not.



Item No.10

As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), transactions with related parties
which are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business, are exempted from the obliga-
tion of obtaining prior approval of members. However, as per the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the Se-
curities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”), such transactions, if material, requires the approval of members through a
resolution, notwithstanding the fact that the same are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course
of business. With effect from April 01, 2022, Regulation 23 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 mandates prior
approval of the members through ordinary resolution for all ‘Material Related Party Transactions. For this
purpose, a Related Party Transaction will be considered ‘material’ if the transaction(s) to be entered into
individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year exceeds g 50 Crore or 10%
of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements of the
Company, whichever is lower.

However, as the value of such transactions is estimated to exceed the revised threshold limit of materi-
al related party transactions within the meaning of amended Regulation 23(1) of the Listing Regulations
w.e.f. April 01, 2022 i.e., 10% of the annual consolidated turnover, approval of the Members of the Company
is therefore required for this item in terms of Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, by way of passing
an Ordinary Resolution, for approval of the aforesaid Material Related Party Transactions to be entered
into from the 5th AGM until the conclusion of the 6th AGM of the Company to be held in the Financial Year
2026-27.

The Company seeks approval from the Members to enter into contract(s) or arrangements(s) with the
related parties within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 2(1)(zb)
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) as mentioned in the below table.

In accordance with the prescribed SEBI circular, the requisite details to be placed before the Members are
set out in the table below:

annual consolidated turnover, for
the immediately preceding finan-
cial year, that is represented by the
value of the proposed transaction.

Sr Particulars

No.

1 Name of the related party and its Raja Debnath Gautam Udani Veefin Solutions Estorifi Solutions
relationship with the listed entity or | -Nominee Director | -Nominee Director | Limited-Holding Limited-Holding
its subsidiary, including nature of Company Company
its concern or interest (financial or
otherwise);

2 Type, material terms and particu- | Availing of revolv- | Availing of revolv- | Availing and ren- Availing and ren-
lars of the proposed transaction; ing loan facility (To | ing loan facility (To | dering of services; | dering of services;

take revolving loan | take revolving loan | Availing and ren- Availing and ren-
facility from Raja facility from Gau- dering of revolving | dering of revolving
Debnath) tam Udani) loan facility loan facility

3 Tenure of the proposed transaction | From 5th AGM to From 5th AGM to From 5th AGM to From 5th AGM to
(particular tenure shall be speci- 6th AGM 6th AGM 6th AGM 6th AGM
fied);

4 Value of the proposed transaction; | Value of Transac- | Value of Transac- | Value of Transac- | Value of Transac-
(Rs.in Crores) tion for Availing tion for Availing tion for Availing tion for Availing

of Revolving of Revolving & Rendering of & Rendering of

Loan Facility - 20 Loan Facility - 20 Services - 20CR Services - 20CR

CR CR Value of Transac- | Value of Transac-
tion for Availing tion for Availing
& Rendering of & Rendering of
Revolving Loan Revolving Loan
Facility - 20CR Facility - 20CR

5 The percentage of the listed entity’s | 1427% 1427% 1427% 1427%




Sr Particulars
No.
6 If the transaction relates to any | a) Owned Funds a) Owned Funds a) Owned/ Bor- a) owned/ Bor-

loans, inter-corporate deposits,
advances or investments made
or given by the listed entity or its
subsidiary:

a) Details of the source of funds
in connection with the proposed
transaction

b) where any financial indebted-
ness is incurred to make or give
loans, inter corporate deposits,
advances or investments

» nature of indebtedness;

» cost of funds; and

« tenure

c) Applicable terms, including
covenants, tenure, interest rate
and repayment schedule, whether
secured or unsecured; if secured,
the nature of security

d) The purpose for which the funds
will be utilized by the ultimate ben-
eficiary of such

funds pursuant to the RPT

(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan:
As per agreement

Tenure: Less
than1year

Interest Rate:
Interest Free
Repayment sched-
ule: On Demand
Whether secured

or unsecured loans:

Unsecured

(d) To fulfil Working
Capital Require-
ment and for busi-
ness operations

(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan:
As per agreement
Tenure: Less
than1year

Interest Rate:
Interest Free
Repayment sched-
ule: On Demand
Whether secured

or unsecured loans:

Unsecured

(d) To fulfil Working
Capital Require-
ment and for busi-
ness operations

rowed Funds

(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan:
As per agreement
Tenure: Less

than 1 year
Interest Rate:

Rate as on date

of disbursement
Repayment sched-
ule: On Demand
Whether secured

or unsecured loans:

Unsecured

(d) To fulfil Working
Capital Require-
ment and for busi-
ness operations

rowed Funds

(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan:
As per agreement
Tenure: Less
than1year
Interest Rate:

Rate as on date

of disbursement
Repayment sched-
ule: On Demand
Whether secured

or unsecured loans:

Unsecured

(d) To fulfil Working
Capital Require-
ment and for busi-
ness operations

Sr Particulars
No.
7 Justification as to why the RPT is in | For the purpose of | For the purpose of | For the purpose For the purpose
the interest of the listed entity fulfilling Working fulfilling Working of achieving the of achieving the
Capital Require- Capital Require- business objectives | business objectives
ment and for busi- | ment and for busi- | and continuity in and continuity in
ness operations ness operations operations and to | operations and to
smoothen busi- smoothen busi-
ness operations for | ness operations for
both the com- both the com-
panies. Purchase panies. Purchase
or sale of goods or sale of goods
and rendering and rendering
and / or availing and [ or availing
of the Services for of the Services for
business for both business for both
the companies in the companies in
ordinary course of | ordinary course of
business. business.
8 Any valuation or other externalre- | NA NA NA NA
port relied upon by the listed entity
in relation to the transactions
9 Any other information that may be | Nil Nil Nil Nil
relevant
10 The indicative base price or current | NA NA NA NA
contracted price and the formula
for variation in the price, if any
Il Instrument for Transaction Agreement Agreement Agreement & Agreement &
invoice invoice

Nature of Concern or Interest of Directors:

None of Directors except Mr. Gautam Udani, Mr. Raja Debnath, Mr. Afzal Modak & Ms. Payal Maisheri (Chief
Financial Officer are interested in the above resolution and thus will not vote on this resolution. The Mem-
bers may note that in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, no Related Party shall vote to
approve the Ordinary Resolution set forth at Item No.10 of the Notice, whether the entity is a Related Party
to the particular transaction or not.



Item No.11

As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), transactions with related parties
which are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business, are exempted from the obliga-
tion of obtaining prior approval of members. However, as per the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the Se-
curities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“sEBI Listing Regulations”), such transactions, if material, requires the approval of members through a
resolution, notwithstanding the fact that the same are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course
of business. With effect from April 01, 2022, Regulation 23 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 mandates prior
approval of the members through ordinary resolution for all ‘Material Related Party Transactions. For this
purpose, a Related Party Transaction will be considered ‘material’ if the transaction(s) to be entered into
individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year exceeds 2 50 Crore or 10%
of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements of the
Company, whichever is lower.

However, as the value of such transactions is estimated to exceed the revised threshold limit of materi-
al related party transactions within the meaning of amended Regulation 23(1) of the Listing Regulations
w.e.f. April 01, 2022 i.e, 10% of the annual consolidated turnover, approval of the Members of the Company
is therefore required for this item in terms of Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, by way of passing
an Ordinary Resolution, for approval of the aforesaid Material Related Party Transactions to be entered
into from the 5th AGM until the conclusion of the 6th AGM of the Company to be held in the Financial Year
2026-27.

The Company seeks approval from the Members to enter into contract(s) or arrangements(s) with the
related parties within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 2(1)(zb)
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) as mentioned in the below table.

In accordance with the prescribed SEBI circular, the requisite details to be placed before the Members are
set out in the table below:

Sr
No.

Particulars

1

Name of the related party and its
relationship with the listed entity or
its subsidiary, including nature of
its concern or interest (financial or
otherwise);

Rajendra Awas-
thi-Director

Sushmitshri Ba-
bu-Director

Veefin Solutions
Limited-Holding
Company

Estorifi Solutions
Limited-Holding
Company

Type, material terms and particu-
lars of the proposed transaction;

Availing of revolv-
ing loan facility (To
take revolving loan
facility from Rajen-
dra Awasthi)

Availing of revolv-
ing loan facility (To
take revolving loan
facility from Sush-
mitshri Babu)

Availing and ren-
dering of services;
Availing and ren-
dering of revolving
loan facility

Availing and ren-
dering of services;
Availing and ren-
dering of revolving
loan facility

Tenure of the proposed transaction
(particular tenure shall be speci-
fied);

From 5th AGM to
6th AGM

From 5th AGM to
6th AGM

From 5th AGM to
6th AGM

From 5th AGM to
6th AGM

Value of the proposed transaction;
(Rs. in Crores)

Value of Transac-
tion for Availing
of Revolving Loan
Facility - 20 CR

Value of Transac-
tion for Availing
of Revolving Loan
Facility - 20 CR

Value of Transac-
tion for Availing

& Rendering of
Services - 20CR
Value of Transac-
tion for Availing

& Rendering of
Revolving Loan
facility- 20CR

Value of Transac-
tion for Availing

& Rendering of
Services - 20CR
Value of Transac-
tion for Availing

& Rendering of
Revolving Loan
facility- 20CR

The percentage of the listed entity’s
annual consolidated turnover, for
the immediately preceding finan-
cial year, that is represented by the
value of the proposed transaction;

782%

782%

782%

782%




Sr Particulars
No.
6 If the transaction relates to any

loans, inter-corporate deposits,
advances or investments made
or given by the listed entity or its
subsidiary:

a) Details of the source of funds
in connection with the proposed
transaction

b) where any financial indebted-
ness is incurred to make or give
loans, inter corporate deposits,
advances or investments

« nature of indebtedness;

« cost of funds; and

- tenure

c) Applicable terms, including
covenants, tenure, interest rate
and repayment schedule, whether
secured or unsecured; if secured,
the nature of security

d) The purpose for which the funds
will be utilized by the ultimate ben-
eficiary of such

funds pursuant to the RPT

a) Owned Funds
(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan:
As per agreement
Tenure: Less

than 1 year
Interest Rate:
Interest Free
Repayment sched-
ule: On Demand
Whether secured

or unsecured loans:

Unsecured

(d) To fulfil Working
Capital Require-
ment and for busi-
ness operations

a) Owned Funds
(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan:
As per agreement
Tenure: Less
than1year
Interest Rate:
Interest Free
Repayment sched-
ule: On Demand
Whether secured

or unsecured loans:

Unsecured

(d) To fulfil Working
Capital Require-
ment and for busi-
ness operations

a) Owned/ Bor-
rowed Funds

(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan:
As per agreement
Tenure: Less
than1year
Interest Rate:

Rate as on date

of disbursement
Repayment sched-
ule: On Demand
Whether secured

or unsecured loans:

Unsecured

(d) To fulfil Working
Capital Require-
ment and for busi-
ness operations

a) Owned/ Bor-
rowed Funds

(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan:
As per agreement
Tenure: Less

than 1 year
Interest Rate:

Rate as on date

of disbursement
Repayment sched-
ule: On Demand
Whether secured

or unsecured loans:

Unsecured

(d) To fulfil Working
Capital Require-
ment and for busi-
ness operations

Sr Particulars
No.
7 Justification as to why the RPTisin | For the purpose of | For the purpose of | For the purpose For the purpose
the interest of the listed entity fulfilling Working fulfilling Working of achieving the of achieving the
Capital Require- Capital Require- business objectives | business objectives
ment and for busi- | ment and for busi- | and continuity in and continuity in
ness operations ness operations operations and to | operations and to
smoothen busi- smoothen busi-
ness operations for | ness operations for
both the com- both the com-
panies. Purchase panies. Purchase
or sale of goods or sale of goods
and rendering and rendering
and / or availing and / or availing
of the Services for | of the Services for
business for both business for both
the companies in the companies in
ordinary course of | ordinary course of
business. business.
8 Any valuation or other external re- | NA NA NA NA
port relied upon by the listed entity
in relation to the transactions
9 Any other information that may be | Nil Nil Nil Nil
relevant
10 The indicative base price or current | NA NA NA NA
contracted price and the formula
for variation in the price, if any
Il Instrument for Transaction Agreement Agreement Agreement & Agreement &

invoice

invoice

Nature of Concern or Interest of Directors:
None of Directors except Mr. Gautam Udani, Mr. Raja Debnath & Ms. Payal Maisheri (Chief Financial Officer)
are interested in the above resolution and thus will not vote on this resolution. The Members may note that
in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, no Related Party shall vote to approve the Ordi-
nary Resolution set forth at Item No.11 of the Notice, whether the entity is a Related Party to the particular
transaction or not.




Item No.12

As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), transactions with related parties
which are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business, are exempted from the obliga-
tion of obtaining prior approval of members. However, as per the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the Se-
curities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“sEBI Listing Regulations”), such transactions, if material, requires the approval of members through a
resolution, notwithstanding the fact that the same are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course
of business. With effect from April 01, 2022, Regulation 23 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 mandates prior
approval of the members through ordinary resolution for all ‘Material Related Party Transactions. For this
purpose, a Related Party Transaction will be considered ‘material’ if the transaction(s) to be entered into
individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year exceeds g 50 Crore or 10%
of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements of the
Company, whichever is lower.

However, as the value of such transactions is estimated to exceed the revised threshold limit of materi-
al related party transactions within the meaning of amended Regulation 23(1) of the Listing Regulations
w.ef. April 01,2022 i.e, 10% of the annual consolidated turnover, approval of the Members of the Company
is therefore required for this item in terms of Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, by way of passing
an Ordinary Resolution, for approval of the aforesaid Material Related Party Transactions to be entered
into from the 5th AGM until the conclusion of the 6th AGM of the Company to be held in the Financial Year
2026-27.

The Company seeks approval from the Members to enter into contract(s) or arrangements(s) with the
related parties within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 2(1)(zb)
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) as mentioned in the below table.

In accordance with the prescribed SEBI circular, the requisite details to be placed before the Members are
set out in the table below:

Sr [ Particulars

No.

1 | Name of the related party Shrenik Gand- | White Rivers Veefin Solutions | Infini Systems
and its relationship with the | hi-Promoter & [ Media Solutions | Limited-Hold- | Limited- Hold-
listed entity or its subsidiary, | Director Private Limited- | ing Company [ing Company
including nature of its con- Holding Com-
cern or interest (financial or pany
otherwise);

2 | Type, material terms and Availing of Availing and Availing and Availing and
particulars of the proposed | revolving loan | rendering of rendering of rendering of
transaction; facility (To take [services; Avail- |services; Avail- | services; Avail-

revolving loan [ing and render- |ingand render- |ingand render-
facility from ing of revolving [ ing of revolving |ing of revolving
Shrenik Gand- |loan facility loan facility loan facility

hi)

3 | Tenure of the proposed From5thAGMto | From5thAGMto | From 5th AGMto | From 5th AGM to
transaction (particular tenure | 6™ A®M 6th AGM 6th AGM 6th AGM
shall be specified);

4 | Value of the proposed trans- | Value of Trans- | Value of Trans- | Value of Trans- [ Value of Trans-
action; (Rs. in Crores) action for action for Avail- | action for Avail- | action for Avail-

Availing ing & Render- [ing & Render- |ing & Render-
of Revolving ing of Services [ing of Services |ing of Services
Loan Facility - |- 100CR Value |- 50CR  Value |- 50CR  Value
50 CR of Transaction [ of Transaction |of Transaction
for Availing & [ for Availing & | for Availing &
Rendering of Rendering of Rendering of
Revolving Loan | Revolving Loan [ Revolving Loan
Facility - 50CR | Facility - 50CR [ Facility - 50CR
5 | The percentage of the listed | 97% 97% 97% 97%

entity’s annual consolidated
turnover, for the immediately
preceding financial year, that
is represented by the value of
the proposed transaction;




Sr | Particulars
No.
6 If the transaction relates to

any loans, inter-corporate
deposits, advances or invest-
ments made or given by the
listed entity or its subsidiary:

a) Details of the source of
funds in connection with the
proposed transaction

b) where any financial in-
debtedness is incurred to
make or give loans, inter
corporate deposits, advances
or investments

« nature of indebtedness;

« cost of funds; and

e tenure

c) Applicable terms, in-
cluding covenants, tenure,
interest rate and repayment
schedule, whether secured
or unsecured; if secured, the
nature of security

d) The purpose for which the
funds will be utilized by the
ultimate beneficiary of such
funds pursuant to the RPT

a) Owned
Funds

(b) Not appli-
cable

(c) Term of
Loan: As per
agreement
Tenure: Less
than 1 year
Interest Rate:
Interest Free
Repayment
schedule:

On Demand
Whether se-
cured or un-
secured loans:
Unsecured

(d) To fulfil
Working Capi-
tal Requirement
and for business
operations

a) Owned/ Bor-
rowed Funds
(b) Not appli-
cable

(c) Term of
Loan: As per
agreement
Tenure: Less
than 1 year
Interest Rate:
Rate as on date
of disburse-
ment Repay-
ment schedule:
On Demand
Whether se-
cured or un-
secured loans:
Unsecured

(d) To fulfil
Working Capi-
tal Requirement
and for business
operations

a) Owned/ Bor-
rowed Funds
(b) Not appli-
cable

(c) Term of
Loan: As per
agreement
Tenure: Less
than 1 year
Interest Rate:
Rate as on date
of disburse-
ment Repay-
ment schedule:
On Demand
Whether se-
cured or un-
secured loans:
Unsecured

(d) To fulfil
Working Capi-
tal Requirement
and for business
operations

a) Owned/ Bor-
rowed Funds
(b) Not appli-
cable

(c) Term of
Loan: As per
agreement
Tenure: Less
than 1 year
Interest Rate:
Rate as on date
of disburse-
ment Repay-
ment schedule:
On Demand
Whether se-
cured or un-
secured loans:
Unsecured

(d) To fulfil
Working Capi-
tal Requirement
and for business
operations

Sr | Particulars

No.

7 |Justification as to why the For the purpose | For the purpose | For the purpose | For the purpose
RPT is in the interest of the | of fulfilling of achieving of achieving of achieving
listed entity Working the business the business the business

Capital Require- | objectives and | objectives and | objectives and
ment and for continuity in continuity in continuity in
business opera- |operations and |operations and |operations and
tions to smoothen to smoothen to smoothen
business oper- | business oper- | business oper-
ations for both [ ations for both | ations for both
the companies. |the companies. |the companies.
Purchase or sale [ Purchase or sale | Purchase or sale
of goods and of goods and of goods and
renderingand  [rendering and |rendering and
/ or availing / or availing / or availing
of the Services [ of the Services | of the Services
for business for business for business
for both the for both the for both the
companies in companies in companies in
ordinary course |[ordinary course |ordinary course
of business. of business. of business.

8 | Any valuation or other exter- | NA NA NA NA
nal report relied upon by the
listed entity in relation to the
transactions

9 | Any other information that [ Nil Nil Nil Nil
may be relevant

10 | The indicative base price or [ NA NA NA NA
current contracted price and
the formula for variation in
the price, if any

11 | Instrument for Transaction | Agreement Agreement & Agreement & Agreement &

Invoice Invoice Invoice

Nature of Concern or Interest of Directors:
None of Directors are interested in the above resolution and thus will not vote on this resolution. The Mem-
bers may note that in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, no Related Party shall vote to
approve the Ordinary Resolution set forth at Item No.12 of the Notice, whether the entity is a Related Party

to the particular transaction or not.




Item No.13

As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), transactions with related parties
which are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business, are exempted from the obliga-
tion of obtaining prior approval of members. However, as per the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the Se-
curities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”), such transactions, if material, requires the approval of members through a
resolution, notwithstanding the fact that the same are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course
of business. With effect from April 01, 2022, Regulation 23 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 mandates prior
approval of the members through ordinary resolution for all ‘Material Related Party Transactions. For this
purpose, a Related Party Transaction will be considered ‘material’ if the transaction(s) to be entered into
individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year exceeds g 50 Crore or 10%
of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements of the
Company, whichever is lower.

However, as the value of such transactions is estimated to exceed the revised threshold limit of materi-
al related party transactions within the meaning of amended Regulation 23(1) of the Listing Regulations
w.e.f. April 01,2022 i.e,, 10% of the annual consolidated turnover, approval of the Members of the Company
is therefore required for this item in terms of Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, by way of passing
an Ordinary Resolution, for approval of the aforesaid Material Related Party Transactions to be entered
into from the 5th AGM until the conclusion of the 6th AGM of the Company to be held in the Financial Year
2026-27.

The Company seeks approval from the Members to enter into contract(s) or arrangements(s) with the
related parties within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 2(1)(zb)
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) as mentioned in the below table.



In accordance with the prescribed SEBI circular, the requisite details to be placed before the Members are

set out in the table below:

listed entity’s annual
consolidated turnover,
for the immediately
preceding financial
year, that is represent-
ed by the value of the
proposed transaction;

Sr No. | Particulars
1 Name of the related Shrenik Gand- Meetesh Kothari- Raja Debnath- Di- | Gautam Udani- Di- FE Venture Private Limited- | Veefin Solutions Limited- Infini Systems Limited- Nityo Tech Private Limited-
party and its relation- hi-Promoter & Promoter & Direc- | rector rector Subsidiary Company Holding Company Holding Company Group Company
ship with the listed Director tor
entity or its subsidiary,
including nature of its
concern or interest (fi-
nancial or otherwise);
2 Type, material terms Availing of Availing of revolv- | Availing of revolv- | Availing of revolv- Availing and rendering of Availing and rendering of Availing and rendering of Availing and rendering of
and particulars of the revolving loan ing loan facility ing loan facility (To | ing loan facility (To services; services; services; services;
proposed transaction; | facility (To take | (To take revolving | take revolving loan | take revolving loan Availing and rendering of Availing and rendering of Availing and rendering of Availing and rendering of
revolving loan loan facility from facility from Raja facility from Gau- revolving loan facility revolving loan facility revolving loan facility revolving loan facility
facility from Meetesh Kothari) Debnath) tam Udani)
Shrenik Gandhi)
3 Tenure of the pro- From 5th AGM to From 5th AGM to 6th | From 5th AGM to 6th | From 5th AGM to 6th From 5th AGM to 6th AGM From 5th AGM to 6th AGM From 5th AGM to 6th AGM From 5th AGM to 6th AGM
; 6th AGM AGM AGM AGM
posed transaction
(particular tenure
shall be specified);
4 Value of the pro- Value of Value of Trans- Value of Trans- Value of Transac- Value of Transaction for | Value of Transaction for | Value of Transaction for | Value of Transaction for
posed transaction; Transaction action for Avail- | action for Avail- | tion for Availing Availing & Rendering of | Availing & Rendering of | Availing & Rendering of | Availing & Rendering of
(Rs. in Crores) for Availing ing of Revolving | ing of Revolving | of Revolving Loan Services - 100 CR; Services - 50 CR; Services - 50 CR; Services - 50 CR;
of Revolving Loan Facility - 50 [ Loan Facility - 50 [ Facility - 50 CR Value of Transaction Value of Transaction Value of Transaction Value of Transaction
Loan Facility - | CR CR for Availing of Revolving | for Availing of Revolving | for Availing of Revolving | for Availing of Revolving
50 CR Loan Facility - 50 CR Loan Facility - 50 CR Loan Facility - 50 CR Loan Facility - 50 CR
5 The percentage of the |34% 34% 34% 34% 34% 34% 34% 34%




Sr No.

Particulars

If the transaction re-
lates to any loans, in-
ter-corporate deposits,
advances or invest-
ments made or given
by the listed entity or its
subsidiary:

a) Details of the source
of funds in connec-
tion with the proposed
transaction

b) where any financial
indebtedness is in-
curred to make or give
loans, inter corporate
deposits, advances or
investments

» nature of indebted-
ness;

« cost of funds; and

» tenure

c) Applicable terms,
including covenants,
tenure, interest rate and
repayment schedule,
whether secured or un-
secured; if secured, the
nature of security

d) The purpose for
which the funds will be
utilized by the ultimate
beneficiary of such
funds pursuant to the
RPT

a) Owned Funds
(b) Not appli-
cable

(c) Term of
Loan: As per
agreement
Tenure: Less
than 1year
Interest Rate:
Interest Free
Repayment
schedule:

On Demand
Whether se-
cured or un-
secured loans:
Unsecured

(d) To fulfil
Working Capital
Requirement
and for business
operations

a) Owned Funds
(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan:
As per agreement
Tenure: Less

than 1year

Interest Rate:
Interest Free
Repayment sched-
ule: On bemand
Whether secured
or unsecured
loans: Unsecured
(d) To fulfil Working
Capital Require-
ment and for busi-
ness operations

a) Owned Funds
(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan:
As per agreement
Tenure: Less

than 1year

Interest Rate:
Interest Free
Repayment sched-
ule: On Demand
Whether secured
or unsecured
loans: Unsecured
(d) To fulfil Working
Capital Require-
ment and for busi-
ness operations

a) Owned Funds
(b) Not applicable
(c) Term of Loan:
As per agreement
Tenure: Less

than 1year
Interest Rate:
Interest Free
Repayment sched-
ule: On Demand
Whether secured

or unsecured loans:

Unsecured

(d) To fulfil Working
Capital Require-
ment and for busi-
ness operations

a) Owned/ Borrowed Funds
(b) Not applicable

(c) Term of Loan: As per
agreement

Tenure: Less than 1 year
Interest Rate: Rate as on
date of disbursement
Repayment schedule: On
Demand Wheth-
er secured or unsecured
loans: Unsecured

(d) To fulfil Working Capital
Requirement and for busi-
ness operations

a) Owned/ Borrowed Funds
(b) Not applicable

(c) Term of Loan: As per
agreement

Tenure: Less than 1 year
Interest Rate: Rate as on
date of disbursement
Repayment schedule: On
Demand Wheth-
er secured or unsecured
loans: Unsecured

(d) To fulfil Working Capital
Requirement and for busi-
ness operations

a) Owned/ Borrowed Funds
(b) Not applicable

(c) Term of Loan: As per
agreement

Tenure: Less than 1 year
Interest Rate: Rate as on
date of disbursement
Repayment schedule: On
Demand Wheth-
er secured or unsecured
loans: Unsecured

(d) To fulfil Working Capitall
Requirement and for busi-
ness operations

a) Owned/ Borrowed Funds
(b) Not applicable

(c) Term of Loan: As per
agreement

Tenure: Less than 1 year
Interest Rate: Rate as on
date of disbursement
Repayment schedule: On
Demand Wheth-
er secured or unsecured
loans: Unsecured

(d) To fulfil Working Capitall
Requirement and for busi-
ness operations




Sr No.

Particulars

7 Justification as to why | For the pur- For the purpose of | For the purpose of | For the purpose of For the purpose of achiev- [ For the purpose of achiev- | For the purpose of achiev- | For the purpose of achiev-
the RPT is in the interest | pose of fulfilling | fulfilling Working fulfilling Working fulfilling Working ing the business objectives | ing the business objectives | ing the business objectives [ ing the business objectives
of the listed entity Working Capital Require- For the purpose of | For the purpose of and continuity in oper- and continuity in oper- and continuity in oper- and continuity in oper-

Capital Require- | ment and for busi- | fulfilling Working fulfilling Working ations and to smoothen ations and to smoothen ations and to smoothen ations and to smoothen

ment and for ness operations Capital Require- Capital Require- business operations for business operations for business operations for business operations for

business oper ment and for busi- | ment and for busi- both the companies. Pur- [ both the companies. Pur- | both the companies. Pur- | both the companies. Pur-

ness operations ness operations chase or sale of goods and | chase or sale of goods and | chase or sale of goods and | chase or sale of goods and

rendering and [ or availing | rendering and / or availing | rendering and / or availing | rendering and / or availing
of the Services for business | of the Services for business | of the Services for business | of the Services for business
for both the companies in | for both the companiesin | for both the companiesin | for both the companies in
ordinary course of busi- ordinary course of busi- ordinary course of busi- ordinary course of busi-
ness. ness. ness. ness.

8 Any valuation or NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
other external report
relied upon by the
listed entity in relation
to the transactions

9 Any other infor- Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
mation that may be
relevant

10 The indicative base NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
price or current con-
tracted price and the
formula for variation
in the price, if any

n Instrument for Trans- | Agreement Agreement Agreement Agreement Agreement & invoice Agreement & invoice Agreement & invoice Agreement & invoice

action

Nature of Concern or Interest of Directors:
None of Directors except Mr. Gautam Udani, Mr. Raja Debnath & Ms Payal Maisheri (Chief Financial Officer)
are interested in the above resolution and thus will not vote on this resolution. The Members may note that
in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, no Related Party shall vote to approve the Ordi-
nary Resolution set forth at Item No.12 of the Notice, whether the entity is a Related Party to the particular

transaction or not




Item No.14

As per the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), transactions with related parties
which are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business, are exempted from the obliga-
tion of obtaining prior approval of members. However, as per the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the Se-
curities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“SEBI Listing Regulqtions”), such transactions, if material, requires the approval of members through a
resolution, notwithstanding the fact that the same are on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course
of business. With effect from April 01, 2022, Regulation 23 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 mandates prior
approval of the members through ordinary resolution for all ‘Material Related Party Transactions. For this
purpose, a Related Party Transaction will be considered ‘material’ if the transaction(s) to be entered into
individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year exceeds g 50 Crore or 10%
of the annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements of the
Company, whichever is lower.

However, as the value of such transactions is estimated to exceed the revised threshold limit of materi-
al related party transactions within the meaning of amended Regulation 23(1) of the Listing Regulations
w.e.f. April 01, 2022 i.e, 10% of the annual consolidated turnover, approval of the Members of the Company
is therefore required for this item in terms of Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, by way of passing
an Ordinary Resolution, for approval of the aforesaid Material Related Party Transactions to be entered
into from the 5th AGM until the conclusion of the 6th AGM of the Company to be held in the Financial Year
2026-27.

The Company seeks approval from the Members to enter into contract(s) or arrangements(s) with the
related parties within the meaning of Section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 2(1)(zb)
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) as mentioned in the below table not exceeding Rs. 20 crores.

Sr | Particulars

No.

1 | Name of the related party and its relation- | Infini Systems Limited- Nityo Tech Private Limit-
ship with the listed entity or its subsidiary, [ Subsidiary Company ed- Step-down Subsidiary
including nature of its concern or interest (Group Company)
(financial or otherwise);

2 | Type, material terms and particulars of the | Corporate Guarantee Corporate Guarantee
proposed transaction; against principal amount against principal amount of

of Rs 21 Crores and inter- | Rs 9 Crore interest there-
est thereon raised against | on raised against issue of
issue of unrated, unlist- unrated, unlisted, secured,
ed, secured, redeemable, redeemable, non-convert-
non-convertible debentures | ible debentures

3 | Tenure of the proposed transaction (partic- | Issuance of Corporate Issuance of Corporate
ular tenure shall be specified); Guarantee spans upto 5 Guarantee spans upto 5

years post disbursement years post disbursement

4 | Value of the proposed transaction; (Rs. in | 21 crores 9 crores
Crores)

5 | The percentage of the listed entity’s annual |26.11% 11.19%
consolidated turnover, for the immediately
preceding financial year, that is represented
by the value of the proposed transaction;

6 | If the transaction relates to any loans, NA NA

inter-corporate deposits, advances or
investments made or given by the listed
entity or its subsidiary:

a) Details of the source of funds in connec-
tion with the proposed transaction

b) where any financial indebtedness is in-
curred to make or give loans, inter corpo-
rate deposits, advances or investments

« nature of indebtedness;

» cost of funds; and

e tenure

c) Applicable terms, including covenants,
tenure, interest rate and repayment sched-
ule, whether secured or unsecured; if
secured, the nature of security

d) The purpose for which the funds will be
utilized by the ultimate beneficiary of such
funds pursuant to the RPT




Sr | Particulars
No.
7 |Justification as to why the RPT is in the Funding enabled by the Funding enabled by the
interest of the listed entity guarantee will be used for | guarantee will be used for
business expansion that business expansion that
contributes directly or contributes directly or
indirectly to the group’s indirectly to the group’s
consolidated growth. consolidated growth.
Further Related Parties are [ Further Related Parties are
integral to the group’s value | integral to the group’s value
chain. Supporting their chain. Supporting their
financial stability through [ financial stability through
a guarantee preserves the | a guarantee preserves the
investment of the holding | investment of the holding
company and enhances company and enhances
long-term shareholder long-term shareholder
value value
8 | Any valuation or other external report NA NA
relied upon by the listed entity in relation
to the transactions
9 | Any other information that may be relevant | Nil Nil
10 | The indicative base price or current con- NA NA
tracted price and the formula for variation
in the price, if any
11 | Instrument for Transaction Unrated, unlisted, secured, | Unrated, unlisted, secured,
redeemable, non-convert- | redeemable, non-convert-
ible debentures ible debentures

Nature of Concern or Interest of Directors:

None of Directors except Mr. Gautam Udani, Mr. Raja Debnath & Payal Maisheri (Chief Financial Officer) are
interested in the above resolution and thus will not vote on this resolution. The Members may note that in
terms of the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, no Related Party shall vote to approve the Ordinary
Resolution set forth at Item No.14 of the Notice, whether the entity is a Related Party to the particular trans-
action or not

Item No.15

Equity-based compensation is widely recognized as an integral component of employee remuneration
across industries, as it aligns employees’ personal goals with the long-term objectives of the organiza-
tion by enabling them to participate in the ownership of the Company through stock-based incentive
schemes.

Basis these objectives, the Company has already implemented an employee stock option plan name-
ly ‘Veefin - Employee Stock Option Plan 2023’ (amended vide Shareholders Resolution 27th September,
2024) (“ESOP 2023"/ "Scheme"g.

The Company has granted 24,82,822 (Twenty Four Lakh Eighty Two Thousand Eight Hundred Twenty Two)
employee stock options (“Options”) out of the total 28,00,000 (Twenty-Eight Lakhs) Options reserved un-
der the ESOP 2023 as on date. Therefore, only 3,17,178 (Three Lakhs Seventeen Thousand One Hundred and
Seventy Eight) Options are available for the future grants under the Scheme.

Considering the nature of the industry, the long-term incentive structure for employees of the Company
primarily comprises stock options. As the Company is on a strong growth path with ambitious business
plans over the coming years, it is anticipated that the current pool of available options for future grants
may be inadequate to meet the anticipated requirements. Accordingly, an enhancement of the option
pool is being considered to support the Company’s expansion and talent retention objectives.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, at their re-
spective meetings held Olst September, 2025, approved and recommended an increase in the ESOP pool
size, subject to the approval of the Members of the Company.

In light of the above, it is proposed to enhance the total Options reserve by an additional 10,00,000 (Ten
Lakhs) Options, which shall be exercisable into not more than 10,00,000 (Ten Lakhs) equity shares of the
Company having a face value of Z10/- (Rupees Ten only) each, fully paid-up, under the existing ESOP 2023
scheme, by amending Subclause 3.1 of the Scheme. The equity shares arising out of the exercise of these
additional options shall be issued through a primary issuance.

In terms of Regulation 6 of the SBEB Regulations, the salient features of the ESOP 2023 are given as under:

a)Brief Description of the Scheme:

Keeping the view of aforesaid objectives, the ESOP 2023 contemplates grant of Options to the eligible
employees. After vesting of Options, the eligible employees earn a right, but not obligation, to exercise the
vested Options within the exercise period, subject to payment of exercise price and satisfaction of any tax
obligation arising thereon.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall act as the compensation committee. The Scheme
shall be supervised by the Committee and administered by the Trust. All questions of interpretation of the
ESOP 2023 shall be determined by the Committee and such determination shall be final and binding upon
all persons having an interest in ESOP 2023



b) Total number of options to be offered and granted:

Under the ESOP 2023, the Company would grant upto 38,00,000 (Thirty-eight Lakhs) Options to the Eligible
Employees in one or more tranches, from time to time, which in aggregate exercisable into not more than
38,00,000 (Thirty-eight Lakhs) Shares, with each such Option conferring a right upon the Employees to apply
for one equity share in the Company in accordance with the terms and conditions as may be decided under
the Scheme.

Further, SBEB Regulations require that in case of any corporate action(s) such as rights issue, bonus issue,
merger, sale of division etc., a fair and reasonable adjustment needs to be made to the Options granted. In this
regard, the Committee shall adjust the number and price of the Options granted in such a manner that the total
value of the Options granted under ESOP 2023 remain the same after any such corporate action. Accordingly,
if any additional Options are granted by the Company, for making such fair and reasonable adjustment, the
ceiling of aforesaid shall be deemed to be increased to the extent of such additional Options granted.

c) Identification of classes of employees entitled to participate and be beneficiaries in
the scheme:

The identification of classes of employees entitled to participate in the ESOP 2023 shall remain the same, as last
approved by the shareholders, which is as under:

Following classes of employees are eligible being:

i. an employee as designated by the Company, who is exclusively working in India or outside India; or

ii. a Director of the Company, whether a whole-time director or not, including a non-executive director, who is
not a Promoter or member of the Promoter Group but excluding an Independent Director; and

iii. an employee as defined in sub-clauses (i) and (ii), of a group company including subsidiary or its associate
company in India or outside India, or of a holding company of the company but excludes-

(a) an employee who is a Promoter or belongs to the Promoter Group;

(b) a Director who either by himself or through his relatives or through any-body corporate, directly or indi-
rectly holds more than 10% of the outstanding shares of the Company.

d) Requirements of Vesting and period of Vesting:
Requirements of vesting and period of vesting shall remain the same, as last approved by the shareholders,
which is as under:

All the Options granted on any date shall vest not earlier than the minimum vesting period of 1 (one) year and
not later than maximum vesting period of 6 (Six) years from the date of grant.

In the event of death or permanent incapacity, the minimum vesting period of 1 (One) year shall not be appli-
cable and in such instances, all the unvested Options shall vest with effect from date of the death or Permanent
Incapacity.

In case of retirement, all the unvested Options as on the date of retirement would continue to vest in accor-
dance with the original vesting schedules even after the retirement unless otherwise determined by the Com-
mittee in accordance with the Company’s Policies and provisions of the then prevailing Applicable Laws.

As a prerequisite for a valid vesting, an option grantee is required to be in employment on the date of vesting. In

e) Maximum period within which the options shall be vested:

The maximum period within which the options shall be vested shall remain the same, as last approved by
the shareholders, which is as under:

All the Options granted on any date shall vest within maximum vesting period of 6 (Six) years from the
date of grant.

f) Exercise price or pricing formula:
The exercise price or pricing formula shall remain the same, as last approved by the shareholders, which
is as under:

The Exercise Price shall be as determined by the Committee at the time of Grant of Options provided that
the Exercise Price shall not be less than the face value of the ESOP Shares.

g) Exercise period and the process of exercise:

The exercise period shall remain the same, as last approved by the shareholders, which is as under:

The vested Options shall be exercisable anytime during the employment with the Company / Holding
Company / Subsidiary Company.

However, there is change in process of exercise which is as under:

The vested Options shall be exercisable by the eligible employees by a written application to the Compa-
ny/ Trust expressing his/ her desire to exercise such Options in such manner and in such format as may
be prescribed by the Committee from time to time. Exercise of Options shall be entertained only after pay-
ment of requisite exercise price and satisfaction of applicable taxes by the eligible employee. The Options
shall lapse if not exercised within the specified exercise period.

h)Appraisal process for determining the eligibility of employees under the scheme:

Appraisal process for determining the eligibility of employees under the scheme shall remain the same,
as last approved by the shareholders, which is as under:

The options shall be granted to the eligible employees as per performance appraisal system of the Com-
pany and the Committee at its discretion may adopt any eligibility criteria for determining eligibility of any
employee or a class thereof on the basis of designation, role, and future potential of employees.

i)Maximum number of Options to be offered and issued per employee and in aggregate:

The maximum number of Options to be offered and issued per employee and in aggregate shall remain
the same, as last approved by the shareholders, which is as under:

The maximum number of options that may be granted to an eligible employee shall be at the discretion
of the Company. However, if the options granted per employee exceeds 1% of the paid-up capital of the
Company, the Company shall seek approval from the shareholders.

j) Maximum quantum of benefits to be provided per employee under the Scheme:

The maximum quantum of benefits to be provided per employee under the scheme shall remain the
same, as last approved by the shareholders, which is as under:

There is no other benefit except grant of Options which shall be subject to such limitations as mentioned
in point above.

k) Whether the scheme is to be implemented and administered directly by the company or through a
trust:

ESOP 2023 shall be supervised by the Committee and administered through an irrevocable employee wel-
fare trust namely ‘Veefin Employee Welfare Trust’ (“Trust”) being set up by the Company.

|)Whether the Scheme involves new issue of shares by the company or secondary acquisition by the
trust or both
ESOP 2023 contemplates a primary/ new issue of equity shares by the Company.



m) The amount of loan to be provided for implementation of the scheme by the company to the trust,
its tenure, utilization, repayment terms, etc.:

The Company shall provide necessary financial assistance by grant of loan, provision of guarantee or
security in connection with a loan to the Trust, subject to 5% (Five Percentage) of the paid-up capital and
free reserves, being the statutory ceiling under SBEB Regulations. The loan amount may be disbursed in
one or more tranches.

The loan provided by the Company shall be interest free with tenure of such loan based on term of the
ESOP 2023 and shall be repayable to the Company from realization of proceeds of exercise/ permitted
sale/ transfer of shares and any other eventual income of the Trust.

The Trust shall utilise the loan amount disbursed from time to time strictly for the acquisition of the shares
to be utilized for the purposes of the ESOP 2023.

n) Maximum percentage of secondary acquisition (subject to limits specified under the regulations)
that can be made by the trust for the purposes of the scheme:
This is currently not contemplated under ESOP 2023.

o) A statement to the effect that the company shall conform to the accounting policies specified in
Regulation 15:

The Company shall follow the relevant accounting standards as may be prescribed by the Central Gov-
ernment in terms of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and/ or any relevant accounting standards/
guidance note as may be prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India or any other com-
petent authority, from time to time, including the disclosure requirements prescribed therein, in compli-
ance with Regulation 15 of SBEB Regulations.

p) The method which the company shall use to value its Options:
The Company shall adopt ‘fair value method’ for valuation of Options as prescribed under accounting
standard/ guidance note, as applicable, notified by competent authorities from time to time.

q) The statement, if applicable

The below Statement is not applicable to the Company since the Company is opting for the Fair Value
Method.

‘In case the company opts for expensing of share based employee benefits using the intrinsic value, the
difference between the employee compensation cost so computed and the employee compensation
cost that shall have been recognized if it had used the fair value, shall be disclosed in the Directors’ report
and the impact of this difference on profits and on earnings per share (“EPS”) of the company shall also
be disclosed in the Directors’ report’.

r) Period of lock-in:

The equity shares issued pursuant to exercise of vested Options shall not be subject to any lock-in period
restriction in general. However, usual restrictions as may be prescribed under applicable laws including
that under the code of conduct framed, if any, by the Company under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading), Regulations, 2015, as amended, shall apply.

s) Terms & conditions for buyback, if any, of specified securities/ options covered granted under the
scheme:

Subject to the provisions of the then prevailing applicable laws, the Board shall determine the procedure
for buy-back of the specified securities/ Options if to be undertaken at any time by the Company and the
applicable terms and conditions thereof.

A copy of both the existing and draft amended scheme of ESOP 2023 are available for inspection at the
Company'’s registered office during official hours on all working days till the last date of the e-voting.

None of the Directors and key managerial personnel of the Company, including their relatives, are inter-
ested or concerned in the resolutions, except to the extent they may be lawfully granted Options under
ESOP 2023.

In this background, the Company seeks your approval by way of a special resolution pursuant to Regu-
lation 7 of the SBEB Regulations, to increase the number of Options reserved under ESOP 2023 in agenda
item no.15.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT(S) AND RE-APPOINTMENT(S) AT THE
5TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36 OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND
DISCLOSURE REQUIRMENT) REGULATIONS, 2015 AND CLAUSE 1.2.5 OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON GEN-
ERAL MEETINGS:

Name Mr. Raja Debnath

DIN 07658567

Current Position Whole Time Director
Date of Birth/ Age 24/07/1975 - 50 years
Qualification Mechanical Engineering

Brief Profile/ Experience Raja Debnath is a global expert and growth hacker for MSME and Retail
Banking, having advised over 40 financial institutions and Fintechs interna-
tionally in the areas of Digital Transformation, Supply Chain Finance, Data
Analytics and Non-Financial services.

With over 20+ years of experience, Raja holds various leadership and advi-
sory roles across the financial ecosystem.

With his wealth of knowledge in SCF, Raja founded Veefin Solutions Lim-
ited (Veefin) in 2018 with a mission to build the #1 Global Supply Chain
Technology platform. The start-up builds white-labelled Supply Chain
Finance (SCF) technology for Banks, Financial Institutions, Fintechs, B2B
marketplaces, and corporates.

As a strategic advisor to the board of the National Urban Cooperative Fi-
nance and Development Corporation, an umbrella organization for Urban
Cooperative Banks (UCBs), he is currently spearheading the digital trans-
formation of 1500+ UCBS across India. NUCFDC’s vision is to transform
UCBs and deepen financial and banking services access at the grassroots in
the urban and semi-urban markets.

Raja is also the managing partner at Cogence Labs, a global management
consultant focused on advising Microfinance, Retail and SME Banking
clients.

Previously, Raja has served as Global Advisory and Business Development
Expert for Supply Chain Finance (SCF) & SME Banking in Asia for IFC, a
World Bank Group organization & advised over 25+ lenders globally. Raja
has also led IFC’s SCF advisory multi-bank programs in emerging geog-
raphies - Bangladesh, Vietnam, Oman, Jordan, Saudi Arabia & Sri Lanka.
Additionally, he has initiated & built Small Business Unsecured Lending
vertical at Kotak Mahindra Bank.

He is a Marshall Goldsmith certified Performance Coach, and an investor
and mentor to multiple Fintechs.

He is an MBA graduate from Said Business School, Oxford and JBIMS

Mumbeai. Raja has certifications in MENSA - a global High-IQ non-profit.




Expertise in specific func-
tional areas

Engineering and Delivery, Quality Assurance of the Product, Finance and
Accounts, Fund Raising, and Human Resources

Terms and Conditions of
appointment and Re — Ap-
pointment

In terms of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, Mr. Gautam Vijay Udani, who retires by rotation, be and is here-
by re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

Relationship with other Di-
rectors, Managers and other
KMP

Mr. Raja Debnath is not related to any Director.

No. of shares held

71,08,111

Directorships held in other
Companies (Listed/ Unlisted)

IDVee Digital Labs Private Limited

GlobeTf Solutions Limited

FinFuze Software Private Limited

Infini Systems Limited

Estorifi Solutions Limited

Regime tax Solutions Private Limited

Nityo Tech Private Limited

Veefin Capital Private Limited

White Rivers Media Solutions Private Limited
Epikindifi Software & Solutions Private Limited

Date of First appointment
(appointment as an addition-
al director on the Board)

14th October, 2020

Membership / Chairman-
ship of Committees of other
Boards

NIL

Listed entities from which
the person has resigned from
the directorship in the past
three years

NIL

No. of Board Meeting attend-
ed during the year

10 out of 10

Remuneration

As per the terms of appointment

In case of Independent
Directors, Justification for
continuation of Directorship
and skills and capabilities
required for the role and the
manner in which the person
meets such requirements

Not applicable

DATE: SEPTEMBER 01, 2025

PLACE: MUMBAI

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

For VEEFIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS VEEFIN SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMIED)

URJA HARSH THAKKAR

COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER

ADD: : Global One, 2nd Floor, Office 1, CTS NO 252 2521, OPP
SBI,LBS MARG, KURLA(W), Mumbai, Maharashtra, India,

400070



() VEEFIN

Board’s Report

To,

The Members,

Veefin Solutions Limited
(Formerly known as Veefin
Solutions Private Limited

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting their 5" Annual Report on the Business and Operations of the
Company and the Accounts for the Financial Year ended 31t March, 2025 (period under review).

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY/ The summary of standalone and consolidated financial highlights for
PERFORMANCE OF THE the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and the previous financial
COMPANY: year ended March 31, 2024 is given below:

(Amount in lakhs except EPS)

Particulars | standaiono Consolidated

2024-25 2023-24 2024-25 2023-24

Total revenue from operations (including other income) 3780.55 2078.21 8,044.37 2499.42
Total expenses 2375.38 1287.13 5,992.90 1532.58
Profit before interest, depreciation & Taxes 1742.85 902.51 2614.23 1081.70
Depreciation & Amortization 231.34 8755 509.99 94.10
Profit before tax 1,405.17 791.08 2,051.47 966.84
Income tax expenses 290.13 227.23 425.55 227.49
Profit after tax 1,115.04 563.85 1,625.92 739.35
s |

Basic 4.93 274 5.92 3.60
Diluted & 4.5] 2.51 5.42 3.29

Financial Performance The Company'’s performance during the year ended 31st March, 2025

as compared to the previous financial year, is summarized below:

Standalone Financial The Total Revenue of the Company stood at Rs. 3,780.55 Lakhs for the

Statements year ended March 31,2025 as against Rs. 2078.21 Lakhs in the previous
year. The Company has a Net Profit of Rs. 1,115.04 Lakhs for the year
ended March 31, 2025 as compared to the Net Profit of Rs. 563.85
Lakhs in the previous year.

Consolidated Financial The Total Revenue of the Company stood at Rs. 8,044.37 Lakhs for

Statements the year ended March 31, 2025 as against Rs. 2,499.42 Lakhs in the
previous year. The Company has a Net Profit of Rs. 1,625.92 Lakhs for
the year ended March 31, 2025 as compared to the Net Profit of Rs.
739.35 Lakhs in the previous year.

2. DIVIDEND:

3. CHANGES IN NATURE OF
BUSINESS:

4. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS
DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

() VEEFIN

The Company is in a growing stage and keeping in view of required
funds to support its future growth, your Directors do not recommend
any dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 with a
view to conserve the resources for future.

There was no change in nature of Business during the year.

* Acquisitions During The Financial Year 2024-2025:

During the year under review, Veefin Solutions Limited undertook
the following strategic acquisitions, either directly or through
its subsidiaries, with the objective of expanding its technology
capabilities, strengthening its product portfolio, enhancing
geographic presence, and unlocking new revenue opportunities:

Acquisition of 51.31% stake
in Estorifi Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Estorifi
Solutions Private Limited)

Veefin Solutions Limited acquired 51.31% stake consisting of 10,526
Equity shares of Rs. 58 each (including premium of Rs. 48) each
in Estorifi Solutions Limited, a group Company. The acquisition was
completed on 14" June, 2024. Estorifi Solutions Limited is a related
party of the Company engaged in the business of development of
Embedded finance solutions i.e. integrating our lending solutions
into non-financial platforms and applications. Pursuant to this
acquisition, Estorifi Solutions Limited became Subsidiary Company
of Veefin Solutions Limited.

Acquisition of 50.99% Stake
in Infini Systems Limited
(formerly known as Infini
Systems Private Limited)

Veefin Solutions Limited acquired 50.99% stake consisting of 50,763
Equity shares of Rs. 180.81 each in Infini Systems Limited, a group
company, on August 12th, 2024. Infini Systems Limited is a related
party of the Company engaged in the business of Fraud and Risk
Solutions provide Banks and Financial Institutions (F1) with a suite
of services, ranging from customer & vendor Digital Onboarding,
Regulatory Compliant Know Your Customer (KYC) Management,
Validating or Underwriting individuals or companies through
Alternate Data sources and other such services. Pursuant to this
acquisition, Infini Systems Limited became Subsidiary Company of
Veefin Solutions Limited.

Acquisition of 100% stake in
Nityo Tech Private Limited
through its subsidiary Infini
Systems Limited (formerly
known as Infini Systems
Private Limited)

Veefin Solutions Limited, through its subsidiary Infini Systems Limited
acquired 100% stake consisting of 1,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 15,000
each of Nityo Tech Private Limited. The acquisition was completed
on September 27th, 2024. The company is engaged in business of
offering IT and IT related services. The objects of acquisition were to
Increase in revenue by getting access to the large client database
across multiple geographies and generate additional revenue and
building synergies by combining the resources and expertise of
both entities to create new opportunities for growth and innovation.




() VEEFIN

Acquisition of 26% stake
in Regime Tax Solutions
Private Limited through its
subsidiary Estorifi Solutions
Limited (formerly known
as Estorifi Solutions Private
Limited)

Veefin Solutions Limited, through its subsidiary Estorifi Solutions
Limited, acquired 26% stake consisting of 91,116 Equity shares of INR
3,565.62 each of Regime Tax Solutions Private Limited. The acquisition
was completed on September 30,2024. Regime Tax Solutions Private
Limited is engaged in business of technology solutions for AR | AP
Automation and GST Input tax credit reconciliation. This strategic
investment was undertaken with the objective of enhancing
revenue streams and operational efficiency by integrating software
offerings and consolidating client relationships across both entities.

Acquisition of 26% stake
in Epikindifi Software &
Solutions Private Limited
through its subsidiary

Veefin Solutions Limited, through its subsidiary Estorifi Solutions
Limited, acquired 26% stake consisting of 3,88,926 DVR equity shares
of Epikindifi Software & Solutions Private Limited. The acquisition
was completed on February 14, 2025. Epikindifi provides software

e Issuance and allotment
of equity shares to the
trust under the Veefin -
Employee Stock Option

Plan, 2023

(} VEEFIN

During the financial year 2024-2025 a total of 14,00,347
equity shares were allotted to the Veefin Employee Welfare
Trust under the Veefin Employee Stock Option Plan, 2023.
These shares are held by the Trust and will be transferred to
eligible employees upon the exercise of their stock options,
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Scheme.

The details of the allotments are as follows

Number
Date of of Equity

Face Value | Issue Price | Paid-upEquity
Allotment | Shares per Share [perShare | Capital Post

Allotted (@ () Allotment

Decem- 2,36,13,407 equity
ber 24, 10,40,347 10 10 shares amounting to

Estorifi Solutions Limited and IT-enabled services, including development, customization, 2024 Z23,61,34,070

(formerly known as Estorifi and consulting for various sectors, and to deal in related hardware,

Solutions Private Limited) electronics, and emerging technologies in India and abroad. The January 2,37,73,407 equity
acquisition was aimed to add hew revenue streams through digital o1, 2025 60000 10 10 ;22?73304{8%”“”9 to
retail lending across personal loans, green loans, BNPL schemes, T
credit cards, mortgage loans and SMEs loans in addition to its 2,39,73,407 equity
existing heft in working capital. ggbggggy 2,00,000 10 10 shares amounting to

! €23,97,34,070

* Incorporation of a new
Subsidiary Company in
the name of Veefin Capital

During the Financial Year 2024-2025, the Company incorporated a
new Subsidiary Company “Veefin Capital Private Limited” on August
08, 2024 with an Authorised share Capital of Rs. 25,00,000/- (Twenty—

These issuances reflect the Company’s ongoing commitment to
employee ownership and long-term value creation through equity

Private Limited

 Shifting of registered office
from one place to another

within local limit

04

five Lakhs only) divided into 2,50,000 equity shares of Z10 each. The
subsidiary was established as a non-banking financial company
(NBFC) with the objective of structuring receivables of various
corporates for financing through the PTC (Pass-Through Certificate)
route. The Company applied to the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for
registration as an NBFC-Factors and received the in-principle
approval on April 04, 2025, followed by the issuance of the Certificate
of Registration (CoR) on June 09, 2025.

During the Financial Year 2024-2025, the Company shifted its
registered office within the local limits of the city. With effect from
November 18, 2024, the registered office was relocated from: 601, 602
& 603, Neelkanth Corporate IT Park, Kirol Road, Vidyavihar (West),
Mumbai — 400086 to Global One, 2nd Floor, 252, Lal Bahadur Shastri
Marg, Kurla (West), Mumbai — 400070. The shift was undertaken to
accommodate the Company’'s growing operational needs and
to enhance accessibility and infrastructure in line with business
expansion.

Annual Report 2024-2025

5. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED
DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR
EDUCATION AND PROTECTION
FUND:

6. CHANGE IN THE
MEMORANDUM OF
ASSOCIATION OF THE
COMPANY:

7. STATEMENT OF DEVIATION
AND VARIATION UNDER
REGULATION 32 OF SEBI
(LISTING OBLIGATION AND
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS)
REGULATIONS, 2015.
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participation.

The provisions of Section 125(2) of Companies Act, 2013 do not apply
as there was no dividend declared and paid last year.

In the Financial Year 2024-2025 under review, the Company has not
altered its Memorandum of Association

Pursuant to Regulation 32 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, it is hereby confirmed
that the Company has not raised any funds through public issue,
rights issue, preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement
(QIP) during the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

Accordingly, there are no deviations or variations in the use of
proceeds as there were no proceeds raised during the period under
review. Hence, the requirement to submit a Statement of Deviation or
Variation is not applicable.

Annual Report 2024-2025



8. SHARE CAPITAL
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Authorised Capital

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company as on 3ist March, 2025
is Rs. 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five crores only) divided into
2,50,00,000 (Two Crores Fifty Lakhs) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees
Ten only) each.

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital:

The Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital of the Company as at
31st March, 2025 is Rs. 23,97,34,070 (Rupees Twenty Three Crores
Ninety Seven Lakhs Thirty Four Thousand Seventy Only) divided into
2,39,73,407 (Two Crores Thirty Nine Lakhs Seventy Three Thousand
Four Hundred Seven) Equity Shares having face value of Rs. 10/-
(Rupees Ten Only) each.

The changes in the Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital are as
detailed below:

E Capital (2) Reason for change

22,57,30,600 (Rupees Twenty Two As on
Crores Fifty Seven Lakhs Thir- 31.03.2024
ty Thousand Six Hundred Only)

divided into 2,25,73,060 (Two

Crores Twenty Five Lakhs Seven-

ty Three Thousand Sixty) Equity

Shares having face value of Rs.

10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each.

23,61,34,070 (Rupees Twenty 24.12.2024
Three Crores Sixty One Lakhs

Thirty Four Thousand Seventy

Only) divided into 2,36,13,407

(Two Crores Thirty Six Lakhs

Thirteen Thousand Four Hundred

Seven) Equity shares having

face value of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten

Only) each.

Pursuant to Allot-
ment of 10,40,347
equity shares to the
Veefin Employee
Welfare Trust (‘ESOP
Trust’) as per Veefin
- Employee Stock
Option Plan, 2023
(‘ESOP Scheme’)

23,77,34,070 (Rupees Twen- 21.01.2025
ty Three Crores Seventy Sev-

en Lakhs Thirty Four Thousand

Seventy Only) divided into

2,37,73,407 (Two Crores Thirty

Seven Lakhs Seventy Three Thou-

sand Four Hundred Seven) Eq-

uity shares having face value of

Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each.

Pursuant to Allot-
ment of 1,60,000
equity shares to the
Veefin Employee
Welfare Trust (‘ESOP
Trust’) as per Veefin
- Employee Stock
Option Plan, 2023
(‘ESOP Scheme’)

23,97,34,070 (Rupees Twenty
Three Crores Ninety Seven Lakhs
Thirty Four Thousand Seventy
Only) divided into 2,39,73,407
(Two Crores Thirty Nine Lakhs
Seventy Three Thousand Four
Hundred Seven) Equity shares
having face value of Rs.10/- (Ru-
pees Ten Only) each

Pursuant to Allot-
ment of 2,00,000
equity shares to the
Veefin Employee
Welfare Trust (‘ESOP
Trust’) as per Veefin
- Employee Stock
Option Plan, 2023
(‘ESOP Scheme’)
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9. TRANSFER TO RESERVE:

10. STATEMENT OF AFFAIRS OF
THE COMPANY:

11. NON APPLICABILITY OF
THE INDIAN ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS:
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Dematerialization of shares:

The equity shares of the Company are held in dematerialized form
and are tradable only in the dematerialized segment of the stock
exchange, as per the guidelines of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (SEBI). The shares are available in the depository systems
of both National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

The International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to
the Company’s equity shares is INEOQOMOI1015.

As on March 3], 2025, the status of dematerialization of equity shares
is as follows:

Name of the Position as on % of total issued
Depository 31.03.2025 capital

NSDL 1,569,02,285 66.33
CDSL 8,07,11,22 33.67
Physical 0 0.00
Total No. of shares 2,39,73,407 100.00

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(j) of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors hereby state that no
amount has been transferred to the General Reserve during the
financial year ended March 31, 2025. The entire profit for the year has
been retained in the Profit & Loss Account

Information on the operations and financial performance, among
others for the period under review, is given in the Management
Discussion and Analysis Report which is annexed to this Report and
is in accordance with the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

As per Provision to regulation Rule 4(1) of the companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified vide Notification No. G.S.R
M (E) on 16th February, 2015, Companies whose shares are listed on
SME exchange as referred to in Chapter XB of SEBI (Issue of Capital
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2009, are exempted from
the compulsory requirements of adoption of IND-AS w.e.f. 1st April,
2017.

As your Company is listed on SME Platform of BSE Limited, is covered
under the exempted category and is not required to comply with
IND-AS for preparation of financial statements beginning with period
on or after 1st April 2017.

Annual Report 2024-2025



12. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION:

i. Implementation of ESOP
Schemes

ii. Shareholder Approvals

iii. Compliance with SEBI SBEB
Regulations

iv. Enhancement of Option
Pool under ESOP 2023

V. Trust Route for Scheme
Administration
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Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOP 2022 and ESOP 2023)

The Company has implemented two employee stock option
schemes:

- Veefin — Employee Stock Option Plan, 2022' (ESOP 2022)
- ‘Veefin — Employee Stock Option Plan, 2023’ (ESOP 2023)

These were introduced to attract, retain, incentivize, and motivate
eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiary or holding
companies.

« ESOP 2022 was approved by shareholders on 15th April, 2022
« Both ESOP 2022 and ESOP 2023 were ratified and approved on 15th
May 2023.

+ In accordance with the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (“SEBI SBEB Regulations”), pre-
IPO schemes must be aligned with the regulatory framework and
ratified to enable fresh grants.

« Accordingly, the ESOP 2022 and ESOP 2023 schemes were ratified
at the AGM held on 29th September 2023 to ensure compliance
and operational flexibility.

« Initially, the Company increased the ESOP 2023 pool from 15,00,000
to 25,00,000 options, approved at the AGM on 29th September
2023.

« Further, to support long-term growth and talent acquisition, the
Company increased the pool by another 3,00,000 options, taking
the total to 28,00,000 options, which was approved at the AGM
held on 27th September 2024.

+ These options are convertible into an equivalent number of equity
shares of face value 10 each upon exercise.

+ The Company has adopted the trust route for ESOP 2023 through
the creation of an irrevocable trust named ‘Veefin Employee
Welfare Trust'.

« This structure facilitates smoother execution, quicker share
transfers, and offers support to employees during option exercises.

« The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) oversees
the implementation and governance of the scheme.

vi. Details of Trustee

vii. Approval of Amended
ESOP 2023 Scheme

viii. Loan to Trust

ix. Equity Shares Allotted to
the Trust during FY 2024-25

x. Regulatory Disclosures

() VEEFIN

KP Corporate IndiQube The ESOP Man- Indian
Solutions Ltd  Kode, 7th agement

Floor, S.No. Consultant,

134, Hissa Corporate

No.1/38,CTS Trustee,

No. 2265 to Corporate
2273,Baner  Compliance
Pashan Link  Services
Road, Pune,

Maharashtra

- 411045

The Trustee has no relationship with the promoters, directors, or key
managerial personnel of the Company.

« The draft of the amended ESOP 2023 was approved by the NRC
and Board at their meetings held on 26th August 2024.

« It was subsequently approved by shareholders at the AGM held
on 27th September 2024.

+ The amended scheme allows for acquisition of equity shares via
primary issuance and benefits both existing and future eligible
employees.

« The amendments are employee-centric and aligned with the
Company’s long-term strategic goals.

« Tofacilitate subscription of shares under ESOP 2023, the Company
may provide an interest-free loan to the Trust, not exceeding 5% of
the aggregate paid-up capital and free reserves, in compliance
with:

» Section 67(3)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013

» Rule16(1)(d) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures)
Rules, 2014

»  Relevant provisions under SEBI regulations

« The loan is repayable from proceeds received through sale/
transfer of shares, exercise price, or any other income, and aligns
with the tenure of ESOP 2023.

SrNo :::2:&‘: D ::::ep(:;) Date of Allotment
1 10,40,347 10 24/12/2024

2 1,60,000 10 21/01/2025

3 2,00,000 10 25/02/2025

In compliance with Regulation 14 of SEBI SBEB Regulations, a detailed
statement on the Company’s ESOPs as of 31st March 2025 is available
at https://www.veefin.com




13. DIRECTORS, KEY
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
(KMP) & SENIOR MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL (SMP):

a. Composition & Constitution
of Board of Directors:
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The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of the following
Directors:

Chairman and

1 Mr. Raja Debnath 07658567 . -
Managing Director

Whole time Director &

2 Mr. Gautam Vijay Udani 03081749 Chief Operating Officer

3 Mr. Ajay Rajendran 03565312 Non-Executive Director
. Non-Executive

4 Ms. Deepti Sharma 10042713

Independent Director

5 Mr. Afzal Mohammed 02920914 Non-Executive Director
Modak

Non-Executive

*
6 Mr. Gourayv Saraf 08204851 Independent Director

Mr. Bhavesh Shamiji Non-Executive

/ Chheda* 08216993 Independent Director

8 M Mot’irlew Simon 10726531 Non-Executive Director
Gamser

9 Mr. Anand Malpani# 01720892  Non-Executive

Independent Director

* Mr. Gourav Saraf (DIN:08204851) and Mr. Bhavesh Shamiji Chheda
(DIN: 08216993) were appointed as an Additional (Non- Executive)
Independent Directors by the Board of the Directors at their meeting
held on 26th August, 2024 and his appointment was regularized as a
Non-Executive Independent Director in the Annual General Meeting
held on 27th September, 2024.

** Mr. Matthew Simon Gamser (DIN:10726531) was appointed as an
Additional (Non- Executive) Director by the Board of the Directors
at their meeting held on 26th August, 2024 and his appointment
was regularized as a Non-Executive Director in the Annual General
Meeting held on 27th September, 2024.

# Mr. Anand Malpani resigned as Non-Executive Independent
Director of the Company with effect from 26th August, 2024.

b.Composition & Constitution
of Key Managerial Personnel:

c. Composition & Constitution
of Senior Managerial:
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The Key Managerial Personnel of the Company comprises

of the following:

Sr.No. [ Name Designation
1 Ms. Payal Mehul Maisheri Chief Financial Officer
2 Ms. Urja Harsh Thakkar Company Secretary and Com-

pliance Officer

The Senior Management of the Company comprises of following:

m_

1 Mr. Sagar Ramesh Mahajan

Chief Delivery Officer

2 Mr. Minesh Chopra Engineering Head

3 Mr. Chintan Lad Product Head

4 Mr. Jigar Shah Chief Product Officer

5 Ms. Binny Shah Product Head

6 Mr. Ketan Zaveri Chief Technology Officer

7 Mr. Parag Ekbote CBO - Veefin Group

8 Mr. Shantanu Bairagi CEO-Veefin Capital

9 Mr. Yusuf Rangwala Head Cash and Trade Product
10 Mr. Jenish Shah Chief Quality Officer

1 Mr. Gitesh Karnik

Chief Human Resource Officer

12 Mr. Parin Thaker

Group Head- Admin, Travel & IT

13 Mr. Tejas Sampat

Vice President- Finance




d. Retirement by Rotation of
the Directors:

e. Disclosures By Directors:

f. Disqualifications Of
Directors:

14. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

a. Independent Director:
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Independent directors hold office for a fixed term not exceeding five
years from the date of their appointment and are not liable to retire
by rotation.

The Act mandates that at least two—third of the total number of
directors (excluding independent directors) shall be liable to retire
by rotation.

In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Raja Deb-
nath (DIN No. 07658567), Managing Director, who retires by rotation
in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment at the 5th Annual General
Meeting of the company scheduled to be held on Friday, 26" Sep-
tember, 2025 at 3:00 p.m.

The Board of Directors has submitted notice of interest in Form MBP
1 under Section 184(1) as well as information by directors in Form DIR
8 under Section 164(2) and declarations as to compliance with the
Companies Act, 2013.

During the financial year 2024-2025 under review the Company
has received Form DIR-8 from all Directors as required under the
provisions of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014 that none of the Directors of your Company is disqualified. The
Certificate for Non Disqualification of Directors certificate as received
from the Secretarial Auditor of the company forms part of this Annual
Report as “(Annexure-V)” to the Directors Report.

Mr. Anand Malpani resigned as Non-Executive Independent Director
of the Company with effect from 26th August, 2024. Mr. Bhavesh
Chheda & Mr. Gourav Saraf were appointed as Additional Non-
Executive Independent Director on the Board of the Company
effective August 26, 2024, for a term of five years. Their appointment
was regularized as a Non-Executive Independent Director in the
Annual General Meeting held on 27th September, 2024.

b. Declaration by Independent
Directors

c. Annual Evaluation by Board
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The Company has, inter-alia, received the following declarations
from all the Independent Directors confirming that:

« They meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under
the provisions of the Act, read with the Rules made thereunder,
and the Listing Regulations. There has been no change in the
circumstances affecting their status as Independent Directors
of the Company

« They have complied with the Code for Independent Directors
prescribed under Schedule IV to the Act; and

« They have registered themselves with the Independent
Director’s Database maintained by the Indian Institute of
Corporate Affairs.

The Board has taken on record the declarations and confirmations
submitted by the Independent Directors after undertaking due
assessment of the veracity of the same. In the opinion of the Board, all
Independent Directors possess requisite qualifications, experience,
expertise and hold high standards of integrity required to discharge
their duties with an objective independent judgment and without
any external influence.

Annual Evaluation by the Board in compliance with the Companies
Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 read with Schedule Il of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, the
Board has conducted its annual performance evaluation. This
evaluation examined the Board's performance, individual Directors
and Committees.

A structured questionnaire was formulated, taking into account
inputs from the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
members. The questionnaire covered various aspects of the Board’s
functioning, including composition, communication and governance
effectiveness.

Individual Directors, including the Chairman, underwent evaluation
based on parameters such as meeting attendance, understanding
of roles and contribution to discussions. The Independent Directors
were assessed by the entire Board, while the Chairman and Non-
Executive Directors were evaluated by the Independent Directors.
Overall, the Directors expressed satisfaction with the evaluation
process.

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors appointed
during the year possess requisite integrity, expertise, experience and
proficiency.



d. Familiarisation Programme
for Independent Directors:

e. Meetings

15. MEETINGS
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The Company through its Executive Directors |/ Senior Managerial
Personnel conduct programs [ presentations periodically to
familiarize the Independent Directors with the strategy, operations
and functions of the Company. Such programs | presentations will
provide an opportunity to the Independent Directors to interact
with the senior leadership team of the Company and help them to
understand the Company’s strategy, business model, operations,
service and product offerings, markets, organization structure,
finance, human resources, technology, quality, facilities and risk
management and such other areas as may arise from time to time.
The programs [ presentations shall also familiarize the Independent
Directors with their roles, rights and responsibilities.

The familiarisation programme for Independent Directors has been
put up on the website of the Company http://www.veefin.com.

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met for
01(one) time. The details of Board Meeting held and participation of
Directors thereat is enumerated as below:

Date of Total No. of No. of
meeting Independent Independent Direc-

Directors on the tors attended
Date of Meeting

1 24122024 01 03 100.00

During the year Ten (10) Board Meetings were convened and held,
the intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and the details of Board
Meeting held and participation of Directors thereat is enumerated
as below:

Date of Total No. of No. of % of
meeting Directors on the | Directors Attendance

Date of Meeting | attended

1 29.04.2024 06 04 66.66
2 25.05.2024 06 05 83.33
3 04.07.2024 06 04 66.66
4 26.08.2024 06 05 83.33
5 2810.2024 08 06 75.00
6 18.11.2024 08 05 62.50
7 24122024 08 05 62.50
8 21.01.2025 08 05 62.50
9 25.02.2025 08 08 100

10 12.03.2025 08 05 62.50
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The details of Board Meetings held from April 01, 2024 to March 3],
2025 and attendance of each Director thereat is as follows:

Name of the No. of Meet- [ No. of % of
Board Member ings entitled | Meetings Attendance
to attend attended

1 Raja Debnath 10 10 100

2 Gautam Vijay Udani 10 10 100

3 Ajay Rajendran 10 02 20

4 Deepti Sharma 10 10 100

5 Anand Malpani# 04 04 100

6 Gourav Saraf* 06 06 100

Bhavesh Shamiji

7 Chheda* 06 06 100

8 Afzal Modak 10 03 30

9 Matthew Simon 06 01 16.67

Gamser*

# Mr. Anand Malpani resigned with effect from 26th August, 2024.

* Mr. Gourav Saraf (DIN:08204851), Mr. Bhavesh Shamiji Chheda (DIN:
08216993) and Mr. Matthew Simon Gamser (DIN:10726531) were
appointed in the Board meeting held on 26th August, 2024.



16. COMMITTEES OF BOARD

The Board as on date has
four Committees of Board of
Directors consisting of the
following members:

i Audit Committee:

Pursuant to the provisions of
Section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Regulation 18
read with Part C of Schedule Il
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Company
has constituted an Audit
Committee to assist the Board
in its oversight responsibilities
related to financial reporting,
risk management, internal
controls, and audit functions.

Composition of the Committee

(as on date):

e Mr. Gourav Saraf —
Chairman,
Non-Executive
Independent Director

« Ms. Deepti Sharma -
Member,
Non — Executive
Independent Director

«  Mr.Raja Debnath -
Member,
Managing Director

The Committee was
reconstitutedinits meeting held
on October 28, 2024, following
the resignation of Mr. Anand
Malpani and appointment of
Mr. Gourav Saraf as Chairman.

The Committee is governed by
a terms of reference, which is
in line with the regulatory re-
quirements mandated by the
SEBI Listing Regulations and
Companies Act, 2013. Some of
the important functions per-
formed by the Committee are:

1. Oversight of the Compa-
ny's financial reporting
process and the disclosure
of its financial information
to ensure that the finan-
cial statements are correct,
sufficient and credible;

2. Recommendation for ap-
pointment, remuneration
and terms of appointment
of auditors of our Compa-

ny;

3. Approval of payment to
statutory auditors for any
other services rendered by
the statutory auditors;

4. Reviewing, with the man-
agement, the annual finan-
cial statements and audi-
tor's report thereon before
submission to our Board for
approval, with particular
reference to:

a. Matters required to be in-
cluded in the Director’s Re-
sponsibility Statement, to
be included in our Board's
report in terms of clause (c)
of sub-section 3 of section
134 of the Companies Act;

b. Changes,if any,in account-
ing policies and practices
and reasons for the same;

c. Major accounting entries
involving estimates based
on the exercise of judgment
by management;

=
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Significant adjustments
made in the financial state-
ments arising out of audit
findings;

Compliance with listing
and other legal require-
ments relating to financial
statements;

Disclosure of any related
party transactions; and

modified opinion(s) in the
draft audit report.

Reviewing, with the man-
agement, the quarterly fi-
nancial statements before
submission to our Board for
approval;

Reviewing, with the man-
agement, the statement of
uses | application of funds
raised through an issue
(public issue, rights issue,
preferential issue, etc.),
the statement of funds
utilized for purposes oth-
er than those stated in the
offer document | prospec-
tus / notice and the report
submitted by the monitor-
ing agency monitoring the
utilization of proceeds of
a public issue or rights is-
sue or preferential issue or
qualified institutions place-
ment, and making appro-
priate recommendations to
our Board to take up steps
in this matter,

Reviewing and monitoring
the auditor’'s independence
and performance, and ef-
fectiveness of audit pro-
cess;

8.

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Approval of any subse-
quent  modification  of
transactions of our Com-
pany with related parties;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate
loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings
or assets of our Company,
wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal finan-
cial controls and risk man-
agement systems;

Reviewing, with the man-
agement, performance of
statutory and internal au-
ditors, adequacy of the in-
ternal control systems

Reviewing the adequacy
of internal audit function, if
any, including the structure
of the internal audit depart-
ment, staffing and senior-
ity of the official heading
the department, reporting
structure coverage and
frequency of internal audit;

Discussion with internal
auditors of any signifi-
cant findings and follow up

thereon;

Reviewing the findings of
any internal investigations
by the internal auditors into
matters where there is sus-
pected fraud or irregularity
or a failure of internal con-
trol systems of a material
nature and reporting the

matter to our Board;

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Discussion with statutory
auditors before the audit
commences, about the na-
ture and scope of audit as
well as post- audit discus-
sion to ascertain any area
of concern;

Looking into the reasons
for substantial defaults in
the payment to deposi-
tors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of
non-payment of declared
dividends) and creditors;

Reviewing the functioning
of the whistle blower mech-
anism;

Approval of appointment of
CFO (i.e, the whole-time fi-
nance Director or any other
person heading the finance
function or discharging
that function) after assess-
ing the qualifications, ex-
perience and background,
etc. of the candidate;

Carrying out any other
function as is mentioned
in the terms of reference of
the Audit Committee.

Reviewing the utilization
of loans and/ or advanc-
es from/investment by the
holding company in the
subsidiary exceeding ru-
pees 100 crore or 10% of the
asset size of the subsidiary,
whichever is lower includ-
ing existing loans [ advanc-
es [ investments existing as
on the date of coming into
force of this provision.

=
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22. Consider and comment
on rationale, cost-benefits
and impact of schemes in-
volving merger, demerger,
amalgamation etc., on the
listed entity and its share-
holders.

23. Carrying out any other
function as may be men-
tioned in the terms of refer-
ence of the Audit Commit-
tee.

All the Members on the Audit
Committee have the requisite
qualification for appointment
on the Committee and possess
sound knowledge of finance,
accounting practices and in-
ternal controls.

The Company Secretary acts
as the Secretary to the Com-
mittee.



ii. Nomination & Remunation
Committee

In accordance with the pro-
visions of Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013, and Reg-
ulation 19 read with Part D of
Schedule Il of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Re-
quirements) Regulations, 2015,
the Company has constituted
a Nomination and Remuner-
ation Committee (NRC) Com-
position of the Committee (as
on date):

+ Ms. Deepti Sharma -
Chairperson, Non-Execu-
tive Independent Director

*  Mr. Gourav Saraf - Mem-
ber, Non-Executive Inde-
pendent Director

+ Mr. Ajay Rajendran — Mem-
ber, Non - Executive Direc-
tor

The Committee was reconsti-
tuted at the meeting held on
October 22, 2024, following the
resignation of Mr. Anand Mal-
pani and appointment of Mr.
Gourav Saraf as a Member

The Board has in accordance
with the aforementioned pro-
visions, formulated the policy
setting out the criteria for de-
termining qualifications, pos-
itive attributes, independence
of a Director and policy relating
to remuneration for Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and
other employees.

The terms of reference of the
Committee inter alio, include
the following

1. Formulation of the criteria
for determining qualifica-
tions, positive attributes
and independence of a Di-
rector and recommend to
our Board a policy relating
to the remuneration of the
Directors, key managerial
personnel and other em-
ployees;

2. For every appointment of
an independent director,
the Nomination and Remu-
neration Committee shall
evaluate of skills, knowl-
edge and experience on
the Board and on the basis
of such evaluation, prepare
a description of the role
and capabilities required
of an independent director.
The person recommended
to the Board for appoint-
ment as an independent
director shall have the ca-
pabilities identified in such
description. For the pur-
pose of identifying suitable
candidates, the Committee
may:

d. use the services of an ex-
ternal agencies, if required;

b. consider candidates from
a wide range of back-
grounds, having due re-
gard to diversity; and

c. consider the time commit-
ments of the candidates

3.
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Formulation of criteria for
evaluation of independent
Directors and our Board;

Devising a policy on Board
diversity;

Identifying persons who are
qualified to become Direc-
tors and who may be ap-
pointed in senior manage-
ment in accordance with
the criteria laid down, and
recommend to our Board
their appointment and re-
moval;

Whether to extend or con-
tinue the term of appoint-
ment of the independent
director, on the basis of
the report of performance
evaluation of independent
directors.

Recommend to the board,
all remuneration, in what-
ever form, payable to se-
nior management.

iii. Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee

Pursuant to the provisions of
Section 178(5) of the Compa-
nies Act, 2013 and Regulation
20 read with Part D of Schedule
Il of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Com-
pany has constituted a Stake-
holders’ Relationship Commit-
tee to specifically look into and
resolve the grievances of secu-
rity holders of the Company.

Composition of the Committee
(as on date):

e Mr. Gourav Saraf — Chair-
man (Non-Executive Inde-
pendent Director)

« Mr.Raja Debnath — Member
(Managing Director)

« Mr. Gautam Vijay Udani -
Member (Whole-time Di-
rector)

The Committee was reconsti-
tuted in the meeting held on
March 13, 2024, following the
resignation of Mr. Anand Mal-
pani. Mr. Gourav Saraf was ap-
pointed as the Chairman of the
Committee.

The terms of reference of the
Committee are:

1. Resolving the grievanc-
es of the security holders
of the listed entity includ-
ing complaints related to
transfer/transmission of
shares, non-receipt of an-
nual report, non-receipt of
declared dividends, issue of
new/duplicate certificates,
general meetings etc.

2. Review of measures taken
for effective exercise of vot-
ing rights by shareholders.

3. Review of adherence to
the service standards ad-
opted by the listed entity
in respect of various ser-
vices being rendered by the
Registrar & Share Transfer
Agent.

4. Review of the various mea-
sures and initiatives tak-
en by the listed entity for
reducing the quantum of
unclaimed dividends and
ensuring timely receipt of
dividend warrants/annual
reports/statutory  notices
by the shareholders of the
company.

5. Resolving grievances of
debenture holders related
to creation of charge, pay-
ment of interest/principal,
maintenance of security
cover and any other cove-
nants.
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Status of Investor Complaints
(as on date):

«  Number of complaints re-
ceived during the year: Nil

+  Number of complaints re-
solved: Not applicable

« Number of complaints
pending as on date: Nil

All investor grievances dare be-
ing monitored and resolved via
the SEBI SCORES platform and

the Company’s RTA.



iv. Internal Complaint
Committee
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In compliance with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013 (“POSH Act"g)and the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
constituted an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) to consider
and redress complaints of sexual harassment at the workplace.,,

Composition of the Committee:

The ICC has been duly constituted as per the requirements of the
POSH Act and comprises the following members:

« Ms. Payal Maisheri — Chairperson

*  Mr. Gautam Udani — Member

* Ms. Urja Thakkar — Member

+ Ms. Pritha Dubey — External Member

In accordance with Section 134(3)(q) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 8(5)(xi) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company
confirms that it has complied with the provisions relating to the
constitution of ICC under the POSH Act. The objectives of the Internal
Complaint Committee to Prevent Sexual Harassment of Women at
the Workplace are as follows:

1. Toimplement azero-tolerance policy against sexual harassment
of women at the workplace in accordance with the POSH Act.

2. To ensure a safe and secure working environment for women
employees, free from gender-based discrimination and
harassment.

3. To receive and address complaints of sexual harassment in a
timely and confidential manner.

4. To create awareness and conduct regular sensitisation programs
for employees on prevention of sexual harassment.

5. Toensure proceduralfairness, due process,and provide adequate
support to complainants during inquiry proceedings.

6. To recommend appropriate disciplinary actions based on
findings of inquiries and support the implementation of remedial
measures.

7. To maintain records of complaints, inquiries conducted, and
action taken, and submit annual reports to the District Officer as

required under the POSH Act.

17. BOARD EVALUATION:

18. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
ANALYSIS REPORT (MDA):

19. ANNUAL RETURN:
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(p) of the Companies
Act, 2013, Rule 8(4) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and
Regulations17(10),19(4), and Schedule Il of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has
formulated and implemented aformal Evaluation Policy for assessing
the performance of the Board as a whole, its Committees, and
individual Directors including Executive and Independent Directors.

The evaluation process is conducted annually and is aimed at
improving the overall effectiveness of the Board's functioning. As part
of the process, feedback was obtained from all Directors through a
structured questionnaire, covering various aspects.

In accordance with the framework, the performance of Non-
Independent Directors, the Chairperson, and the Board as a whole
was evaluated by the Independent Directors in their separate
meeting, as prescribed under Schedule IV of the Companies Act,
2013. Further, the performance evaluation of the respective Board
Committees, as well as that of Independent and Non-Independent
Directors, was carried out by the Board, excluding the Director being
evaluated, thereby ensuring objectivity and transparency in the
process. The outcome of the evaluation reflected a high level of
satisfaction among the Directors and highlighted the Board’s strong
commitment to governance and strategic oversight.

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under
review as stipulated under Regulation 34(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, is presented in a
separate section which forms part of the Annual Report.

In terms of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the
Annual Return of the Company shall be available on the website of
the Company https://www.veefin.com/




20. VARIOUS POLICIES OF THE
COMPANY:

POSH Policy

Nomination and
Remuneration Policy

Criteria or Policy for making
payments to NED

Policy on Materiality of related
party transaction

Preservation of Documents
and Archival Policy

Policy for determination of
Materiality of Events

Code of Conduct for BOD &
SMP

Terms and Condition for
Appointment of Independent
Director
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The Company has formulated and implemented various policies
pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015 which is available on the Company’'s website https://www.
veefin.com/corporate-policies.php

The policies are reviewed periodically by the Board and updated
based on need and requirements:

This policy has been framed in accordance with the provisions of “The
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013” and rules framed thereunder (hereinafter
“the Act”) and provides protection against sexual harassment of
women at workplace and the prevention and redressal of complaints
of sexual harassment and matters related to it.

This Policy has been framed for the Appointment and Remuneration
of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
Personnel and provides a framework based on which human
resources management aligns their recruitment plans for strategic
growth of the Company.

This policy outlines the framework for making payments to
Non-Executive Directors, including criteria for determining their
remuneration based on their roles and responsibilities. It ensures
transparency and alignment with applicable regulatory provisions.

The policy provides a framework for identifying and determining the
materiality of related party transactions and ensures proper review,
approval, and disclosure in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

This policy has a strategic objective of ensuring that significant
documents as specified in this policy are safeguarded and preserved
to ensure longevity of such documents.

This policy applies for determining and disclosing material events
taking place in the Company.

The Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and Senior
Management Personnel lays down the principles for ethical
governance and responsible leadership.

The policy provides framework that regulates the appointment,
re-appointment of Independent directors and defines their roles,
responsibilities and powers.

Policy On Identification of
Group Companies, Material
Creditors

Vigil Mechanism and Whistle
Blower Policy

Code of Practices and
Procedures for UPSI

Code of Conduct for
Prohibition of Insider Trading

Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy

Risk management Policy
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The policy lays down the criteria for identifying group companies
and material creditors based on defined thresholds. It ensures
transparency and consistency in disclosures as required under
applicable regulatory frameworks.

This policy establishes a Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower
Mechanism) that provides a channel to the employees and Directors
of the Company to report to the Management instances of unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s
code of conduct. The vigil mechanism is required to provide
adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use such
mechanisms.

The code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information without advantage to any
particular person(s).

The code outlines the principles and procedures to prevent insider
trading by regulating the communication and trading of unpublished
price sensitive information, in accordance with SEBI (PIT) Regulations.

The policy outlines the Company’s approach towards undertaking
Corporate Social Responsibility activities, focusing on sustainable
development and social welfare in line with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The policy provides a framework for identifying, assessing, and
managing risks that may impact the Company’s business objectives,
ensuring a structured and consistent approach to risk mitigation.



21. AUDITORS

i. Statutory Auditors:

ii. Secretarial Auditor:

iii. Cost Audit & Maintenance
of Cost Records:

iv. Internal Auditor:
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At the Third Annual General Meeting held on September 29, 2023,
the members approved the appointment of M/s. A D V & Associates,
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 128045W) as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company. Their appointment is for a term
of five consecutive years, commencing from the conclusion of the
Third AGM and continuing until the conclusion of the Eighth AGM,
scheduled to be held in the year 2028. Pursuant to the provisions
of Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, the
Company is not required to seek shareholders’ approval every year
for the continuation of the statutory auditors during their approved
term. The Auditor’s Report for the financial year ended March 31,2025,
contains no qualifications, reservations, or adverse remarks. The
report is clean and unmodified.

The Notes to the Financial Statements are self-explanatory and do
not require any additional comments or clarifications from the Board.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration  of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, and Regulation 24A of the Listing
Regulations, the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting
held on September 01, 2025, based on recommendation of the
Audit Committee, has approved the appointment of M/s Maharshi
Ganatra and Associates, a firm of the Company Secretaries in
Practice (C.P. No 14520) as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for
a term of five consecutive years commencing from FY 2025-26 till FY
2029- 30, subject to approval of the Members at the ensuing AGM.
The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31st March,
2024 is appended to this Report in Form MR-3. The Secretarial Audit
Report does not contain any qualifications, reservations or adverse
remark.

The Secretarial Audit Report (MR-3) forms part of this Annual Report
as “(Annexure-1)" to the Directors Report.

The Company does have material subsidiaries, however, the
provisions of Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations pertaining to
secretarial audit is not applicable with respect to the subsidiaries of
the Company.

The Cost Audit as specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not required
and accordingly no such cost accounts and records are made and
maintained by the Company.

During the year under review, M/s. Mittal & Associates, Chartered
Accountants, were appointed as the Internal Auditors of the Company
in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act.

22. MAINTENANCE OF COST
RECORDS:

23. VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE
BLOWER:

24. RISK MANAGEMENT:

25. INTERNAL FINANCIAL
CONTROLS:

() VEEFIN

The maintenance of cost accounts and records as prescribed under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company promotes ethical behaviour in all its business
activities and has established a vigil mechanism for its Directors,
Employees and Stakeholders associated with the Company to report
their genuine concerns. The Vigil Mechanism as envisaged in the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules prescribed thereunder and the
SEBI Listing Regulations is implemented through the Whistle Blower
Policy, to provide for adequate safeguards against victimisation of
persons who use such mechanism and make provision for direct
access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee.

The Vigil Mechanism policy is displayed on the website of the
company, viz https://www.veefin.com/corporate-policies.php

The company has incorporated elements of Risk into its operations,
with mitigation and reduction efforts guided by the implementation
of ISO Certification. The Risk Management Policy plays a crucial role
in overseeing the entire risk management process, encompassing
operational, financial, strategic, and regulatory risks. Managing risk
is integral to the company’s strategy. The company has already
implemented a Risk Management Policy, and the Board of Directors
has developed a comprehensive risk management framework. This
framework is designed to assess risks and determine appropriate
responses to minimize their adverse impact on the organization.

The Company has put in place an adequate system of internal
financial control commensurate with its size and nature of its
business and continuously focuses on strengthening its internal
control processes. These systems provide a reasonable assurance in
respect of providing financial and operationalinformation, complying
with applicable statutes, safeguarding of assets of the Company
and ensuring compliance with corporate policies. The internal
financial control of the company is adequate to ensure the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, timely preparation
of reliable financial information, prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, safeguarding of the assets, and that the business is
conducted in an orderly and efficient manner.

Audit Committee periodically reviews the adequacy of Internal
Financial controls. During the year, such controls were tested and
no reportable material weaknesses were observed. The system also
ensures that all transactions are appropriately authorized, recorded
and reported.



26. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/
JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES:

e Associates: During the
year under review, the
Company does not have
any associate Companies.

* Subsidiaries: During the
year under review, the
Company has 8 Subsidiary
Companies

i. Veefin Solutions Limited —
Dhaka, Bangladesh

ii. Veefin Solutions FZCO -
Dubai, United Arab Emirates

iii. FinFuze Software Private
Limited

iv. GlobeTF Solutions Private
Limited

v. IDVee Digital Labs Private
Limited

vi. Estorifi Solutions Limited!

vii. Veefin  Capital  Private
Limited?

viii. Infini Systems Limited?

Estorifi Solutions Limited
became subsidiary Company
of Veefin Solutions Limited w.e.f.
June 14,2024 and was classified
as a Material Subsidiary w.e.f
April 1,2025

2Veefin Capital Private Limited
has been Incorporated as a
Subsidiary Company of Veefin
Solutions Limited w.e.f. August
8,2024

3 Infini Systems Limited became
subsidiary Company of Veefin
Solutions Limited w.e.f. August
12, 2024 and was classified as a
Material Subsidiary w.e.f April ],
2025.

* Step — down Subsidiaries

During the year under review,
the Company has 5 Step -
down Subsidiary Companies.

i. Chain Fintech Solutions
Limited

ii. Nityo Tech Private Limited'

iii. Regime  Tax  Solutions
Private Limited?

iv. Epikindifi Software &
Solutions Private Limited?

v. WhiteRivers Media Solutions
Private Limited*
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INityo Tech Private Limited
became step-down subsidiary
of Veefin Solutions Limited
w.ef. September 27, 2024 and
was classified as a Material
Subsidiary w.e.f April 1, 2025.

’Regime Tax Solutions Private
Limited became step-down
subsidiary of Veefin Solutions
Limited w.ef. September 30,
2024

SEpikindifi Software & Solutions
Private Limited became step-
down subsidiary of Veefin
Solutions Limited w.e.f. February
14, 2025 and was classified as a
Material Subsidiary w.e.f April ],
2025.

4 White Rivers Media Solutions
Private Limited became step-
down subsidiary of Veefin
Solutions Limited w.e.f. July 02,
2025.

During the year under review,
no company ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Company.

The details of Subsidiary
Company are attached as
Annexure Il in AOC-1.

* Joint Ventures:

During the year under review,
the Company does not have
any associate Companies.

27. COMPLIANCE WITH
SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

28. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
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The Company is compliant with the applicable Secretarial Standards
(SS) viz. SS-1& SS-2 on Meetings of the Board of Directors and General
Meetings, respectively.

i. Conservation of Energy

a. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy — The
Operations of the Company are not energy intensive. However,
adequate measures have been initiated for conservation of
energy.

b. The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate source
of energy — Company shall consider on adoption of alternate
source of energy as and when necessities.

c. The Capital Investment on energy conversation equipment — No
Capital Investment yet.

iil. Technology Absorption

a. The efforts made towards technology absorption — Minimum
technology required for Business is absorbed.

b. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction,
product development or import substitution — Not Applicable.

c. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three
years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year) — Not
Applicable.

1. the details of technology imported;

2. the year of import;

3. whether the technology been fully absorbed;
4

if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken
place, and the reasons thereof

iii. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development -
Not Applicable.

iv. Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo:

Foreign Exchange Outgo 2400.66 Lakhs 2494.87 Lakhs
21,437.45 Lakhs £878.08 Lakhs

Foreign Exchange Earning




29. PARTICULARS OF
LOANS, INVESTMENTS AND
GUARANTEES:

30. PARTICULARS

OF CONTRACTS OR
ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES:

31. DEPOSITS:

32. SIGNIFICANT AND
MATERIAL ORDERS:

33. DETAILS OF MATERIAL
CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
AFFECTING FINANCIAL
POSITION BETWEEN THE END OF
THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE
DATE OF REPORT.
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Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the
notes to the Financial Statements

All contracts [ arrangements / transactions entered by the Company
during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary
course of business and on an arm’s length basis. The details of
contract / arrangement | transaction with related parties which are
material in nature in accordance with the policy of the Company on
materiality of related party transactions and Section 134(3) of the
Companies Act is appended in Form AOC-2 which forms a part of
this Annual Report as Annexure lll.

The Company has not invited [accepted any deposits from the
public falling within the ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators
or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status and
Company'’s operations in future.

There have been material changes and commitments affecting the
financial position of the Company that have occurred between the
end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and
the date of this report. These are as follows:

known as Infini Systems Private Limited)

Between the end of the financial year 2024-2025 and the date of
report Veefin Solutions Limited, through its subsidiary Infini Systems
Limited, acquired 26.55% stake consisting of 3,932 Equity shares
along with majority Board control of White Rivers Media Solutions
Private Limited. The acquisition was completed on July 02, 2025. This
strategic investment was undertaken with the objective of enhancing
revenue streams and operational efficiency by integrating software
offerings and consolidating client relationships across both entities.

ii. Inaccordance withthe Company’s Policy on determining material
subsidiaries, the following entities were identified as material
subsidiaries subsequent to the close of the financial year ended
March 31, 2025, based on their turnover or net worth as on March
31, 2025, exceeding 10% of the consolidated turnover or net worth
of the Company for the immediately preceding financial year:

+ Infini Systems Limited
« Estorifi Solutions Limited

+ Epikindifi Software & Solutions Private Limited

« Nityo Tech Private Limited

34.DISCLOSURE AS PER SEXUAL
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL)
ACT, 2013:

35. THE INFORMATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION
197(12) OF THE ACT READ
WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE
COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT
AND REMUNERATION OF
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL)
RULES, 2014, RELATING

TO MEDIAN EMPLOYEE’S
REMUNERATION FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR UNDER
REVIEW IS AS BELOW:

36. CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY
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The Company maintains a zero-tolerance stance towards sexual
harassment in the workplace. In line with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the associated rules, we have implemented
a comprehensive policy to prevent, prohibit, and address incidents of
sexual harassment. This policy is publicly available on the Company’s
website at https://www.veefin.com/corporate-policies.php

The Company has duly constituted an Internal Complaints
Committee (ICC) in accordance with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder. The ICC is
responsible for addressing complaints of sexual harassment in a
timely, fair, and confidential manner, ensuring a safe and respectful
work environment for all employees.

Details of Complaints Handled During the Financial Year:

Number of complaints of sexual harassment

L received during the year 0

5 Number of complaints disposed of during the 0
’ year

3 Number of cases pending for more than 0

ninety days

The Company was not in receipt of any complaint of sexual
harassment during the year.

The information required under section 197(12) of the Act read
with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is attached as Annexure IV which
forms a part of this report. The remuneration is also disclosed in the
annual return of the Company which is available on www.veefin.com

The Company’'s CSR initiatives and activities are aligned to the
requirements of Section 135 of the Act. A brief outline of the CSR
policy and the initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR
activities during the year under review are set out in Annexure VI of
this report in the format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. This Policy is available on the
Company’s website at www.veefin.com.




37. DETAILS OF APPLICATIONS
MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING
PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE 2016:

38. HUMAN RESOURCES:

Maternity benefit compliance
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No application is made during the Financial Year 2024-2025 by or
against the Company and there are no proceedings pending under
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016.

At our company, we place paramount importance on our people,
recognizing them as our most valuable strategic assets. We are
deeply committed to comprehensive talent management, fostering
a culture of continuous growth, and implementing effective
performance management practices to empower our teams and
drive long-term organizational success. Our company has built
a dynamic and responsive organizational framework designed
to drive clear and measurable business outcomes. We prioritize
consistent communication and ongoing engagement to keep all
team members aligned with shared goals and informed about shifts
in our strategic direction. At the heart of our approach is a strong,
values-driven culture rooted in trust, accountability, and mutual
respect, ensuring every employee understands and embraces
the principles that shape our decisions and actions. Our workforce
represents a well-balanced blend of talent across all organizational
levels, fostering a diverse and inclusive environment where different
perspectives are valued and encouraged.

The Board affirms that our remuneration practices are fully aligned
with the Company’s established policy, promoting fairness, ensuring
equitable and transparent treatment throughout the organization.

The Company had a total of 255 employees as of March 31, 2025. The
gender-wise bifurcation of employees along with their respective
percentages is provided in the table below:

Male 191 74.90%
Female 64 25.10%
Total 255 100.00%

The Company is committed to ensuring the welfare and rights of its
employees in accordance with the applicable laws. The Company
has always complied with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act,
1961, as amended by the Maternity Benefit (Amendment) Act, 2017.

The Company ensures that all eligible women employees are
provided with the mandated maternity leave, benefits, and facilities
as prescribed under the Act. The internal policies have been suitably
aligned to support employees through flexible work arrangements,
paid leave, and workplace reintegration programs after maternity
leave.

39. DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013, the
board of Directors, to the best
of their knowledge and ability,
confirm that:

i. In the preparation of the
annual accounts, the
applicable accounting
standards have been
followed and there are no
material departures.

ii. They have selected such
accounting policies and
applied them consistently
and made judgments
and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent
so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs
of the Company at the
end of the financial year
and of the profit/loss of the
Company for that period.

iii. They have taken proper
and sufficient care for
the maintenance of
adequate accounting
records in accordance
with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company
and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other
irregularities.

iv. They have prepared the
annual accounts on a
going concern basis.

v. Theyhavelaiddowninternal
financial controls to be
followed by the Company
and such internal financial
controls are adequate and
operating effectively.

vi. They have devised
proper systems to ensure
compliance with the
provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems
were adequate and
operating effectively.

Based on the framework of
internal  financial  controls
and compliance  systems
established and maintained by
the Company, work performed
by the internal, statutory
and secretarial auditors and
external consultants and
the reviews performed by
management and the relevant
board committees, including
the audit committee, the
board is of the opinion that the
Company's internal financial
controls were adequate and
effective during the financial
year 2024-2025

40. OTHER
DISCLOSURES:

i. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION
43(a)(ii) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013:

The Company has not issued
any shares with differential
rights as to dividend, voting
or otherwise and hence no
information as per provisions of
Section 43(a)(ii) of the Act read
with Rule 4(4) of the Companies
(Share Capital and Debenture)
Rules, 2014.

ii. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION
54(1)(d) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013:

The Company has not issued
any sweat equity shares during
the year under review and
hence no information as per
provisions of Section 54(1)(d§)of
the Act read with Rule 8(13) of
the Companies (Share Capital
and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is
furnished.
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iii. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION
62(1)(b) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT,2013:

During the year under review,
the Company has issued grants
under Veefin Solutions Limited
— Employee Stock Option Plan,
2023 as per the provisions of
Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations 2021.

iv. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION
67(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013:

During the year under review,
there were no instances of
non-exercising of voting rights
in respect of shares purchased
directly by employees under
a scheme pursuant to Section
67(3) of the Act read with Rule
16(4) of Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules,
2014 is furnished.

Vv. DISCLOSURE OF REASON
FOR DIFFERENCE BETWEEN
VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME
OF TAKING LOAN FROM BANK
AND AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME
SETTLEMENT:

There were no instances
where your Company required
the valuation for one time
settlement or while taking the
loan from the Banks or Financial
institutions.

vi. COMPLIANCE WITH
CORPORATE ACTIONS DURING
THE YEAR:

There was no failure to
implement any Corporate
Action during the year.



41. REPORTING OF
FRAUD:

42. SEBI COMPLAINTS REDRESS
SYSTEM (SCORES):
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The Auditors of the Company have not reported any instances of
fraud committed against the Company by its officers or employees
as specified under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The investor complaints are processed in a centralized web-based
complaints redress system. The salient features of this system are
centralized database of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken
Reports (ATRs) by the concerned companies and online viewing by
investors of actions taken on the complaint and its current status.
Your Company has been registered on SCORES as well as SMART ODR
platform and makes every effort to resolve all investor complaints
received through SCORES or otherwise within the statutory time limit
from the receipt of the complaint. An investor, who is not familiar with
SCORES or does not have access to SCORES, can lodge complaints in
physical form at any of the offices of SEBI. Such complaints would be
scanned and also uploaded in SCORES for processing.

SEBI vide its circular SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/131 & SEBI/
HO/OIAE/OIAE _IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/135 dated 3lst July, 2023 & 4th
August, 2023 respectively, read with Master Circular dated July 3],
2023 (updated as on August 11, 2023), has established a common
Online Dispute Resolution Portal (“ODR Portal”) for resolution of
disputes arising in the Indian Securities Market.

An investor/client shall first take up his/her/their grievance with the
Market Participant by lodging a complaint directly with the concerned
Market Participant. If the grievance is not redressed satisfactorily,
the investor/client may, in accordance with the SCORES guidelines,
escalate the same through the SCORES Portal in accordance with the
process laid out therein. After exhausting these options for resolution
of the grievance, if the investor/client is still not satisfied with the
outcome, he/she/they can initiate dispute resolution through the
ODR Portal- https://smartodr.in/login

The Company has not received any complaint on the SCORES and
SMART ODR during financial year 2024-2025.

43. SHAREHOLDING OF
DIRECTORS AS ON MARCH 31,
2025:

44. OTHER
INFORMATION:

a. 5th Annual General
Meeting

b. Financial Calendar for the
year 2024-2025

c. Listing of Equity Shares on
Stock Exchange and Stock
Codes
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No other Director (except as mentioned below) holds any shares in
the Company.

Shareholding at | Shareholding at the
the beginning
Name of the of the year

end of the year.

Directors
Shares % of Shares % of
Held holding Held holding

Raja Debnath

1 (Managing Director) 70,99,91 33.51 71,081 29.65
Gautam Vijay Udani
2 (Whole-time 13,41,414 6.33 13,41,414 5.60
Director)
Ajay Rajendran
3 (Non—Executive 42,22,483 19.93 37,64,483 15.70

Director)

“

AGM will be held through electronic
3:00PM mode [video conference or other audio-
visual means(“0AVM”)]

26th September,
2025

Financial year

Ist April, 2024 to 31st March, 2025 (both days inclusive)

Listing on Stock Exchange: BSE SME,

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai — 400 001, Scrip
Code: 543931



d. Location and time, where
Annual General Meeting
(AGM) for the last 3 years were

held is given below:

e. Extra Ordinary General

Meeting:
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Financial Time
Year

AGM was held through
electronic mode
[video conference or
other audiovisual

Friday, 27th . .
2023-24  4th  September, 0230 p.m. g‘e"”s( OAVM’)]
2024 eemed Venue: 60],
Neelkanth Corporate IT
Park, Kirol Road,
Vidyavihar (W),
Mumbai, 400086
AGM was held through
electronic mode
[video conference
Friday, 29th or other”audloY)squ
2022-23  3rd  September, 0230 p.m. g‘eqns( OAVM')]
2023 eemed Venue: 601,
Neelkanth Corporate IT
Park, Kirol Road,
Vidyavihar (W),
Mumbai, 400086
- 601, Neelkanth
Friday, 30th ! .
2021-22 2nd Septgmber, 03.00 p.m. gorporgte T !Dork, Kirol
2022 oad, Vidyavihar (W),

Mumlbai, 400086

During 2024-2025, no Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) of
shareholders was held.

f. Postal ballots

g. Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent (RTA)

h. Share transfer system:
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During 2024-2025, the Company sought the approval of the
shareholders by way of postal ballot, the details of which are given
below.

Postal Ballot vide notice dated March 27, 2024, on the following
Resolution(s):

« Approval of Material Related Party Transactions of Veefin
Solutions Limited (Company) with its Related parties. — Ordinary
Resolution

« Approval of Material Related Party Transactions between FinFuze
Software Private Limited, a subsidiary of the Company with
its Related parties and the Related parties of the Company. -
Ordinary Resolution

« Approval of Material Related Party Transactions between
GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited, a subsidiary of the Company
with its Related parties and the Related parties of the Company.
— Ordinary Resolution

« Approval of Material Related Party Transactions between IDVee
Digital Labs Private Limited, a subsidiary of the Company with its
Related parties and the Related parties of the Company. Ordinary

Resolution

The Voting period was from Saturday, April 06, 2024 (9.00 AM Indian
Standard Time) and ends on Sunday, May 05, 2024 (5.00 PM Indian
Standard Time) and the e-voting module was disabled / blocked
after 5.00 PM on Sunday, May 05, 2024. The consolidated report on
the result of the postal ballot through remote e-voting for approving
the aforementioned resolutions was provided by the Scrutiniser on
Monday, May 06, 2024.

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT:
Bigshare Services Private Limited

Office No. S6-2, 6th Floor Pinnacle Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre
Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East). Tel: 022-6263 8200.

Website: https://www.bigshareonline.com/

The Board has the authority for approving transfer, transmission of
the Company’s securities.

As per SEBI Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated June
8, 2018 and further amendment vide Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/
GN/2018/49 dated November 30, 2018, requests for effecting transfer
of securities (except in case of transmission or transposition of
securities) cannot be processed from April 1, 2019 unless the securities
are held in the dematerialized form with the depositories.

The Board appreciates that all the members are holding shares in
dematerialized form.



. Distribution of shareholding
as on 31st March, 2025:

. Compliance with mandatory
and non-mandatory
requirements of the Listing
Regulations

A5. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

-
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Nominal Value of Shares: Rs. 10

Number
Shareholding Of of
Nominal Share-

holders

Shares ()

] ] 5000 2550 50.8982 7556650 31521

2 5001 10000 1058 21178 8082000  3.3712

3 10001 20000 698 13.9321 10742000  4.4808
4 20001 30000 174 34731 4399970 18354

5 30001 40000 134 26747 4723650 19704

6 40001 50000 86 17166 3993360 16657

7 50001 100000 18I 36128 13067970  5.4510

8 100001 ooooeagg 129 25749 187168470  78.0734
Total 5010 100.0000 239734070 100.0000

The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements
of Listing Regulations and has not adopted any non-mandatory
requirements which are not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not fall under purview of Regulations of Corporate
Governance.

Pursuant to Regulation 15 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosures
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the provisions of reporting of
Corporate Governance as specified in Regulation 27 (2) is not
applicable to the Company, as it is SME Listed Company.

Though the Corporate Governance is not applicable to the Company,
the Company has given certain disclosures as a practice of good
corporate governance.

46. CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS:

47. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Date: September 01, 2025
Place: Mumbai
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Statements in this Annual Report, particularly those which relate to
Management Discussion and Analysis as explained in the Corporate
GovernanceReport,describingthe Company’s objectives, projections,
estimates and expectations may constitute ‘forward looking
statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations.
Actual results might differ materially from those either expressed or
implied in the statement depending on the circumstances.

Your Directors would like to express deep sense of appreciation
for the assistance and co-operation received from the Financial
Institutions, Banks, Government Authorities and Shareholders and
for the devoted service by the Executives, staff and workers of the
Company. The Directors express their gratitude towards each one of
them.

By Order of the Board of Directors

FOR VEEFIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
FORMERLY KNOWN AS VEEFIN
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Gautam Udani
Whole Time Director
DIN: 03081749

Raja Debnath
Managing Director
DIN: 07658567

ADD: Global One, 2nd Floor, Office 1, CTS No 252 2521,
OPP SBI, LBS Marg, Kurla(W), Mumbai, Maharashtra,
India, 400070
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Form No. MR-3 ‘

Secretarial Audit Report for the
Financial Year Ended March 31, 2025

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.
9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel)
Rules, 2014]

To,

Veefin Solutions Limited

(Formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited),

CIN: L72900MH2020PLC347893,

Global One, 2nd Floor, Office 1, Cts No 252 252 1, Opp Sbi, Lbs Marg,
Kurla(W), Maharashtra, India, 400070, India

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Veefin Solutions Limited (Formerly known as Veefin Solutions
Private Limited), (hereinafter referred as “the company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our Opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes book, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and
clarifications given to us and the representations made by the Management and subject to letter annexed
herewith, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on March 31, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minutes book, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by Veefin Solutions Limited (Formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited) (“The Company”) for the
financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made there under;

iii. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 and Bye-laws
Framed there under;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial borrowings
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v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act'): -

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 202];

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable during the review period)

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with Client;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not
applicable during the review period)

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not
applicable during the review period)

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

vi. Asinformed and certified by the management, there are no laws that are specifically applicable to the
business activities carried on by the Company based on its section/industry.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
a. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

b. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchange read with the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above to the extent applicable:

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
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Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

All the Board/Committee decisions are taken unanimously.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period none of the following events has taken place:

i. Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares [ debentures/sweat equity, etc.

ii. Redemption [ buy-back of securities

iii. Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013

iv. Merger [ amalgamation / reconstruction, etc.

v. Foreign technical collaborations

For Maharshi Ganatra and Associates
(Company Secretaries)

Signature:

Maharshi Ganatra (Proprietor)
Membership No. F11332

COP No: 14520

PR No: 889/2020

UDIN: FO11332G000948510

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 06, 2025

*We have checked the compliances done by the Company during the review period. Further the
compliances done by the Statutory Auditor are assumed to be complied from their end.

Note: This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an
integral part of this report.
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To,

,

Veefin Solutions Limited
(Formerly known as Veefin
Solutions Private Limited),
CIN: L72900MH2020PLC347893
Global One, 2nd Floor, Office 1,
Cts No 252 252 1, Opp Sbi, Lbs
Marg, Kurla(W), Maharashtra,
India, 400070, India

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express as opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test
basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts
of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, Rules, Regulations, standards
are the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures
on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Maharshi Ganatra and Associates
(Company Secretaries)

Signature:

Maharshi Ganatra (Proprietor)
Membership No. F11332

COP No: 14520

PR No: 889/2020

UDIN: FO11332G4000948510

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 06, 2025

Annexure |

Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with
rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient
features of the financial statement
of subsidiaries or associate
companies or joint ventures

Part A Subsidiaries

1.

2.

10.

1.

12.

Veefin Solutions Limited — Dhaka, Bangladesh

Veefin Solutions FZCO — Dubai, United Arab Emirates

FinFuze Software Private Limited

GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited

IDVee Digital Labs Private Limited

Infini Systems Limited (Formerly known as Infini Systems Private Limited)
Estorifi Solutions Limited (Formerly known as Estorifi Solutions Private Limited)
Veefin Capital Private Limited

Nityo Tech Private Limited

Chain Fintech Solutions Limited

EPIKINDiFi Software & Solutions Private Limited

Regime Tax Solutions Private Limited

(} VEEFIN
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Name of the subsidiary Veefin Solu- Veefin Solu- FinFuze Soft-  GlobeTF Solu- IDVee Digital
tions Limit- tions Fz- ware Private  tions Private Labs Private
ed - Dhaka, CO-Dubdi, Limited Limited Limited
Bangladesh United Arab

Emirates

The date since when subsidiary 16/11/2021 02/02/2021 03/12/2023 08/12/2023 1/12/2023

was acquired

Reporting period for the subsid- 01.7.2024- 01.01.2024- 01.04.2024- 01.04.2024- 01.04.2024-

iary concerned, if different from 30.06.2025 31.12.2025 31.03.2025 31.03.2025 31.03.2025

the holding company’s report-

ing period

Reporting currency and Ex- Bangladesh United Arab - - -

change rate as on the last date  Taka (BDT) 1 Emirates

of the relevant financial yearin  BDT = 0.73INR  Dirham (AED)

the case of foreign subsidiaries 1 AED = 22.99

INR

Fixed capital 7.01 2.33 10.00 1.30 20110

Current capital (Reserve & 44393 295.63 (4.19) 644.95 (3.34)

Surplus)

Total assets 471.88 330.37 7.61 1,058.29 281.14

Total Liabilities 20.93 3242 1.80 412.03 83.38

Total Liabilities (With Net worth)  471.88 330.37 7.61 1,058.29 28114

Investments - - - 0. -

Turnover 273.85 326.18 - 4811 77.16

Profit before taxation 228.90 262.47 (3.77) (92.05) (5.42)

Provision for taxation - - (0.53) (10.44) (1.32)

Profit after taxation 228.90 262.47 (3.24) (81.61) (4.10)

Proposed Dividend - - - - -

Extent of Contribution (in per- 99.99% 100% 73.50% 56.741 % 73.98%

centage)

Infini Systems Estorifi Solu- Veefin Cap- ChainFintech EPIKInDiFi Regime Tax NityoTech Pri-
Limited tions Limited ital PvtLtd Solutions Ltd Software & Solutions Pvt  vate Limited
Solutions Pri- Ltd
vate Limited
12/08/2024 14/06/2024 08/08/2024 09/08/2020 14/02/2025 30/09/2024 27/09/2024
01.04.2024- 01.04.2024- 01.04.2024- 01.7.2024- 01.04.2024- 01.04.2024- 01.04.2024-
31.03.2025 31.03.2025 31.03.2025 30.06.2025 31.03.2025 31.03.2025 31.03.2025
- - - Bangladesh - - -
Taka (BDT) 1
BDT = 0.73 INR
15.77 310.13 1n.16 0.70 149.59 35.03 10.00
17,983.26 8,625.70 1,738.56 92.01 307.26 913.32 911.35
18,683.05 9,412.68 1,891.71 96.30 1164.97 2,002.33 2,246.45
577.48 379.36 141.99 3.58 708.12 1,053.98 1,325.10
18,683.05 9,412.68 1,891.71 96.30 1164.97 2,002.33 2,246.45
15,004.28 3,346.41 - - - - -
85.81 272.88 50.41 1.28 276.67 142.17 3250.54
(49.23) (167.92) 3.28 (14.95) 276.14 (106.16) 550.75
9.16 (24.87) (0.10) - 85.45 (14.93) 93.00
(58.39) (143.05) 3.38 (14.95) 190.69 (91.23) 457.75
32.18% 46.10% 45.71% Infini Systems  Estorifi Solu- Estorifi Solu- Infini Systems
Limited holds tions Limited tions Limited Limited holds
100% stake holds 26% holds 26% 100% stake and
and Veefinvia  stake and stake and Veefin via Infini
Infini Systems  VeefinviaEs-  VeefinviaEs-  Systems Limit-
Limited holds torifi Solutions  torifi Solutions ed holds 32.18%
32.18% stake Limited holds Limited 11.99%  stake
1.99% stake stake
VEEFIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS VEEFIN
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)
Raja Debnath Gautam Udani

Date: September 1, 2025

Place: Mumbai

Managing Director
DIN: 07658567

Whole Time Director
DIN: 03081749

ADD: Global One, 2nd Floor, Office 1, CTS No 252 2521, OPP SBI, LBS
Marg, Kurla(W), Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400070
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Form AOC-2 )

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act
and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm'’s

Name of the
related party

and nature of
relationship

Nature of contracts
[ arrangements [
transactions

Duration of

the contracts [
arrangements [
transactions

Salient terms of the

"

Date of ap-

contracts [ arrange- | proval by the
ments [ transactions | Board, if any
including the value,

if any

() VEEFIN

Amount
paid as
advanc-
es, if any

length transactions under third proviso thereto 7. GlobeTF Solu- 1) Loan Given FY 2024-25 1) 144.69 27.03.2024 NIL
tions Limited 2) Loan Repaid 2) 137.04
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm'’s length basis: The Company does 3) Interest Received 3)123
not have any contracts or arrangements or transactions which are not at arm'’s length basis 4) Outstanding Loan 4) 9.81
5) Purchase of ser- 5) 20.00
) . . , ) vices 6) 22.72
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis 6) Sale of services 7)170
7) Sale of Fixed
Assets
(Amounts in INR Lakhs) 8. FinFuze Software 1) Loan Given FY 2024-25 1) 0.03 27032024 NI
Name of the Nature of contracts | Duration of Salient terms of the | Date of ap- Amount Pvt. Ltd. gg Igterest R_ecelved 2) 010
. utstanding Loan 3) 1.06
related party [ arrangements [ the contracts /| | contracts [ arrange- | proval by the | paid as
and nature of transactions arrangements [ | ments [ transactions | Board, if any | advanc- 9. Payal Maisheri  Salary FY 2024-25 30.00 27.03.2024 NIL
relationship transactions including the value, es, if any Chief Financial
if any Officer
1. Templeton Solu- Sale of services FY 2024-25 558.00 27.03.2024 NIL 10.  Urja Thakkar Salary FY 2024-25 12.78 27.03.2024 NIL
tions FZE Company Sec-
Entity controlled retary & Com-
by Mr. Raja Deb- pliance Officer
nath, Managing - -
Director of the . Gautam Udani 1) Loan Received FY 2024-25 1) 382.64 27.03.2024 NIL
Company Whole Time 2) Loan Repaid 2) 381.67
Director 3) Outstanding Loan 3)1.04
2. Veefin Employee 1) Loan Given FY 2024-25 1) 513.17 26.08.2024 NIL 4) salary 4) 30.00
Welfare Trust 2) Loan Repaid 2) 389.97 - -
ESOP Trust 3) Outstanding Loan 3)123.20 12 Raja Debnath 1) Loan Received FY 2024-25 1) 572.38 27.03.2024 NIL
Managing Di- 2) Loan Repaid 2) 605.16
rector 3) Outstanding Loan 3) 0.08
3. Veefin Capital 1) Loan Given FY 2024-25 1) 18.84 27.03.2024 NIL 4) salary 4)19.73
Private Limited ~ 2) Loan Repaid 2) 0.28
3) Outstanding Loan 3)19.12
4) Interest Received 4) 0.55
5) Sale of Services 5) 4.30
4 Estorifi Solutions 1) Loan Received FY 2024-25 1) 2,970.19 27.03.2024 NIL
Limited 2) Loan Repaid 2)1,236.57 VEEFIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
3) Outstanding Loan 3) 1,826.86 (FORMERLY KNOWN AS VEEFIN
4) Interest Paid 4) 55.21 SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)
5) Sale of Fixed 5) 8.42
Assets 6) 93.27
6) Sale of Services Raja Debnath Gautam Udani
5  InfiniSystems 1) Loan Given FY 2024-25 1) 451.35 27.03.2024 NIL Managing Director Whole Time Director
Limited 2) Loan Repaid 2) 417.93 DIN: 07658567 DIN: 03081749
3) Outstanding Loan 3) 40.56
4) Interest Received 4) 474
5) Sale of Fixed 5)10.15 ADD: Global One, 2nd Floor, Office 1, CTS No 252 2521, OPP SBI, LBS
Assets 6) 40.91 Marg, Kurla(W), Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400070
6) Sale of Services
Date: September 1, 2025
6.  IDVee Digital 1) Loan Repaid FY 2024-25 1) 6.21 27.03.2024 NIL Place: Mumbai
Labs Pvt. Ltd. 2) Outstanding Loan 2) 147.90
3) Interest Paid 3)12.68
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g
Disclosure of
Managerial
Remuneration

[Pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1)
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014]

Disclosure of Managerial Remuneration

A. Ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company
for FY 2024-2025 as well as the percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary is as under:

Name of Director / Ratio to median % increase in remuneration
Key Managerial Personnel remuneration over previous year

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ajay Rajendran NA NA
Ms. Deepti Sharma NA NA
Mr. Anand Malpani NA NA
Mr. Bhavesh Shamji Chheda NA NA
Mr. Gourav Saraf NA NA
Mr. Afzal Mohammed Modak NA NA
Mr. -Matthew Simon Gamser NA NA

Executive Director

Mr. Gautam Udani 473% -25%

Mr. Raja Debnath 3% -50%

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Ms. Urja Thakkar 201% 65%

Ms. Payal Maisheri 469% 5%

) VEEFIN

=

Note:

A. Remuneration includes sitting fees and commission for Non-Executive Directors.
Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in FY 2024-2025: 6%

C. Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2025: 252

Comparison of average percentile increase in salary of employees other than the managerial
personnel and the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration:

Average increase in salary of employees (other than managerial personnel) 7%

Average increase [ decrease in remuneration of managerial personnel -20%

E. Affirmation: It is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
other employees is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company. The Company’s remuneration
policyisdriven by the success and performance of the individualemployees and the Company. Through
the compensation package, the Company endeavor to attract, retain, develop and motivate a high
performance staff. The Company follows a compensation mix of fixed pay, benefits and performance
based variable pay. Individual performance pay is determined by business performance and the
performance of the individuals measured through the annual appraisal process. The Company affirms
remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

F. Details Pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 5(2) and (3) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 and forming part of the directors report for the year ended 3l1st March, 2025.

The statement containing names of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the particulars
of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is available for inspection with the
Company. In terms of the proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act, the Report and Accounts are being sent to
the Members excluding the aforesaid annexure. Any Member interested in obtaining a copy of the same
may write to the Company Secretary at investors@veefin.com.

VEEFIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS VEEFIN
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Raja Debnath Gautam Udani
Managing Director Whole Time Director

DIN: 07658567 DIN: 03081749
Date: September, 01,2025

Place: Mumbai
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Certificate Of
Non-Disqualification
Of Directors

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
20]5) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2025)

To,
The Members of

Veefin Solutions Limited
(Formerly known as Veefin
Solutions Private Limited),
CIN: L72900MH2020PLC347893
Global One, 2nd Floor, Office
1,CTS No 252 252 1,0pp SBI,

LBS Marg Kurla (W), Mumbai,
Maharashtra, India, 400070

We have examined the relevant Registers, records, forms returns and disclosures provided by the Directors
(as enlisted in Table A) of Veefin Solutions Limited (Formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)
having CIN: L72900MH2020PLC347893 and having registered office at Off No - Global One, 2nd Floor, Office
1, CTS No 252 252 1,0pp SBI, LBS Marg Kurla (W), Mumbai Maharashtra, India,400070 (hereinafter referred
to as “the Company”), for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read
with Schedule V Para C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors
identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and based on
the disclosures of the Directors, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company
(as enlisted in Table A) have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any
such other Statutory Authority for the period ended as on March 31,2025

G} VEEFIN

TABLE A
e R v

Raja Debnath 07658567 14/10/2020
2. Gautam Vijay Udani 03081749 14/10/2020
3. Ajay Babu Rajendran 03565312 17/12/2020
4. Anand Nandkishore Malpani* 01729892 16/03/2023
5. Deepti Sharma 10042713 16/03/2023
6. Afzal Mohammed Modak 02920914 06/11/2023
7. Gourav Saraf 08204851 26/08/2024
8. Bhavesh Shamji Chheda 08216993 26/08/2024
Q. Matthew Simon Gamser 10726531 26/08/2024

*Mr. Anand Nandkishore Malpani has resigned from the Company with effect from 26th August, 2024.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility
of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our
verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Maharshi Ganatra and
Associates (Company
Secretaries

Maharshi Ganatra (Proprietor)
Membership No. F11332

CP No: 14520, PR No: 889/2020
UDIN: FO11332G000728477

Place: Mumbai
Date: 07-07-2025

Declaration regarding Compliance by Board Members and Senior Management Personnel with the
Company’s Code of Conduct

|, Raja Debnath, Managing Director of Veefin Solutions Limited (Formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private
Limited) hereby declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel
have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct, as applicable to them, for the year ended 31st March,
2025.

Raja Debnath

Date: 01.09.2025 Managing Director
Place: Mumbai (DIN: 07658567)
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Annual Report on
Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR)

(Pursuant to the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014)

=

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company - Veefin Solutions Limited’s CSR policy shows a clear
commitment to going beyond profits by focusing on social, economic, and environmental development
in its communities. It aligns with the legal requirements under the Companies Act, 2013, ensuring that
CSR efforts are structured and accountable. The policy emphasizes integrating ethical and sustainable
practices into the company’s core operations rather than treating CSR as a separate activity. The
focus on helping underprivileged communities and contributing to nation-building highlights the
company'’s goal of making a meaningful and lasting social impact. Overall, the policy reflects Veefin
Solutions’ dedication to balancing business success with social responsibility. This Policy is available
on the Company’s website — www.veefin.com

2. Composition of CSR Committee: As the amount required to be spent by the Company on CSR
activities during the financial year does not exceed 250 lakh, the constitution of a CSR Committee
is not applicable in accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014. The functions of the CSR Committee are
accordingly being discharged by the Board of Directors.

3. Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: www.veefin.com

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment
of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable:

The provision relating to Impact Assessment of CSR projects under sub-rule (3) of Rule 8 of the
Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company, as the criteria prescribed therein
are not met.

5. a. Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135 — Rs 44,334,097

b. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135. — Rs
8,86,682

c. Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years.
— Not Applicable

d. Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any. — Not Applicable

e. Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]. - Rs 8,86,682

() VEEFIN

6. a. Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project. — Rs 9,50,000
b. Amount spent in Administrative Overheads. — Nil
c. Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable. — Not Applicable
d. Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]. - Rs 9,50,000

e. CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: - Rs 9,50,000

Total Amount Spent for the  Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR Amount transferred to any fund specified

. . - under Schedule VIl as per second provi-
Financial Year Account as per Section 135(6) sion to Section 135(5)
Amount Date of transfer Amount Date of transfer
Rs 9,50,000 Rs—-0 Not Applicable Rs-0 Not Applicable

f. Excess amount for set off, if any

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) Rs 8,86,682

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs 9,50,000

(i) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Rs 63,318

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous Rs 0
financial years, if any

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years| (iii)-(iv)] Rs 63,318
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7. Details of CSR amountspent/ unspent for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable

Preceding
Financial
Year

FY-2023 -24

Amount
transferred
to Unspent
CSR Ac-
count under
section 135

(8)

Balance
Amount
inun-

spent CSR
Balance
Amountin
unspent
CSR Ac-
count under
Sub-section
(6) of sec-
tion 135 (in
Rs.)

Amount
Spentin the
Financial
Year(in Rs)

Amount
transferred
to any Fund
speci-

fied under
Schedule VII
as per Sec-
tion 135(6) if
any Amount
(inRs.)

Amount re-
maining to
be spentin
succeeding
financial
years Date
of Transfer

Deficiency,
if any

FY-2022 -23

FY-2021-22

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility
amount spent in the Financial Year: No

9. Specify the reason(s) if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as
per section 135(5): Not Applicable

VEEFIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS VEEFIN
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Raja Debnath Gautam Udani
Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN: 07658567 DIN: 03081749

ADD: Global One, 2nd Floor, Office 1, CTS No 252 2521, OPP SBI, LBS
Marg, Kurla(W), Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400070

Date:September 01, 2025
Place: Mumbai

(3} VEEFIN



Management
Discussion &
Analysis

Global Economy

The global economy continues its recovery phase
post-pandemic, with mixed growth rates across
regions. Developed markets are seeing moderate
growth, while emerging markets are witnessing
faster recovery fuelled by technology adoption and
infrastructure investments. However, geopolitical
uncertainties, such as trade wars and supply chain
disruptions, remain key challenges for global eco-
nomic stability.

In terms of global trade, robust demand from
emerging economies and the surge in digitaliza-
tion have driven growth. Technological innovation
is expected to continue being a primary catalyst for
economic expansion, especially through advance-
ments in Al, automation, and digital finance.

Key challenges persist with inflationary pressures
and the tightening of monetary policies by central
banks across major economies. The effects of cli-
mate change are also starting to influence policy
decisions, with governments focusing more on sus-
tainability and green finance initiatives.

Future Outlook

The global economic landscape will likely be
shaped by Al-driven automation, climate change
policies, and international trade dynamics. Recov-
ery in global trade is expected to stabilize by the
mid-2020s, but geopolitical tensions could create
volatility. Growth in emerging markets will outpace
developed nations, making them key drivers of
global growth.

Indian Economy Overview

India’'s economy has shown resilience despite
global uncertainties. The nation remains one of the
fastest-growing economies, supported by a thriv-
ing service sector and an expanding manufactur-
ing base. The government’s push for digitalization,
alongside the Make in India initiative, has resulted
in strong foreign direct investment (FDI) inflows and
an uptick in the country’s manufacturing output.
The agriculture sector continues to play a signifi-
cant role, contributing to both domestic consump-
tion and export revenues. Additionally, the finan-
cial services sector, led by innovations in fintech, is
evolving rapidly, providing a diverse range of credit
solutions for small and medium enterprises (SMEs).
Key challenges include managing inflation, creat-
ing job opportunities for a large working-age pop-
ulation, and ensuring equitable growth across all
sectors of society. The government'’s focus on infra-
structure development, digital transformation, and
rural sector growth is expected to drive sustained
economic momentum.

Future Outlook

India’s future economic trajectory is positive, under-
pinned by strong consumer demand, an expanding
middle class, and continued reforms in labour and
taxation. The push for sustainable infrastructure,
along with increased investments in technology
and education, is expected to provide a long-term
economic boost. India’s GDP is expected to grow at
6-7% annually, making it one of the top contributors
to global growth in the coming years.

India will continue to enhance its digital and finan-
cial ecosystems, driving further adoption of finan-
cial inclusion initiatives, especially in rural and un-
derserved urban areas. The manufacturing sector,
alongside green energy investments, will become
key focus areas for sustainable growth.

Industry Overview

Technology

The Indian Information Technology (IT) industry has
become a global leader, significantly contributing
to the country’s economy. It accounts for approxi-
mately 7% of India’s GDP and around 53% of service
exports. This sector is recognized for its large-scale
employment opportunities, with an estimated 5.4
million people working in the industry. India has
maintained a dominant position, adding 23 uni-
corns in 2022 and being the second-highest coun-
try in terms of the number of new unicorns.
Strategic initiatives by the Ministry of Electronics
and Information Technology have bolstered India’s
IT leadership. These initiatives focus on skill devel-
opment, infrastructure enhancement, and support
for R&D in emerging technologies like Al, cyber-
security, and blockchain. Furthermore, the Indian
telecom market offers the world's second-highest
number of internet subscribers, contributing to the
IT sector’s robust growth.

With the government'’s policies favouring up to 100%
FDI in several tech-related services and India’s rep-
utation as a top destination for outsourcing, the IT
industry continues to thrive. The introduction of af-
fordable data services and the focus on technolo-
gy-driven solutions across sectors further enhanc-
es India’s position in the global IT space.

In summary, the Indian IT industry is a cornerstone
of the country’'s economic growth, offering sub-
stantial contributions in exports, employment, and
technological innovations. The sector's develop-
ment has been supported by government policies
and initiatives aimed at expanding India’s global
footprint in IT and digital services.

Working Capital

Global Market Overview

* Market Segments:

oWorking Capital Loans: Valued at USD 1.2 trillion in
2023, with projections to reach USD 2.5 trillion by
2033, growing at a CAGR of 7.6%.

*Working Capital Loan Market: Valued at USD 1.38
trillion in 2023, projected to reach USD 3.32 trillion
by 2032, with a CAGR of 10.25% .(DataHorizzon Re-
search, Introspective Market Research)

*Trapped Liquidity: S&P 1500 companies reported
approximately $707 billion of trapped liquidity in
working capital, up 40% from pre-pandemic levels
.(JPMorgan Chase)

*Technological Adoption: A significant shift to-
wards cloud-based solutions and the integration
of advanced technologies such as artificial intel-
ligence and machine learning for predictive ana-
lytics and automation of financial processes is ob-
served .(LinkedIn)



India Market Insights

« Private Credit Market: The Indian private credit
market witnessed 15-16% growth in value and vol-
ume in 2024, with a forecasted growth rate of about
25-30% .(PwC)

* Venture Debt Market: India’s venture debt mar-
ket grew at a 58% CAGR, reaching USD 1.23 billion in
2024, up from USD 80 million in 2018 .(The Economic
Times)

« Economic Outlook: India’'s GDP growth was 6.5%
in fiscal 2024-2025, driven by strong private con-
sumption expenditure and investments .(Deloitte)

Market Size & Demand

«Annual Working Capital Requirement: Indian cor-
porates are projected to require between $70 billion
to $100 billion annually over the next two years to
fund growth, refinancing, and shareholder payouts
.(Credable)

*MSME Contribution: MSMEs contribute approxi-
mately 29% to India’s GDP, accounting for 45.73% of
exports as of FY2024 .(HDB Financial Services)

X Working Capital Loan Market

*Market Size: In 2024, the working capital loan mar-

ket was valued at $1.5 trillion, with projections to

reach $2.8 trillion by 2033, growing at a CAGR of

7.5% .(Verified Market Reports)

« Loan Segments:

+ Term Loans: Estimated at $1.84 trillion in 2024,
with CAGR of 4.82% .

+ Lines of Credit: Estimated at $1.24 trillion, grow-
ing CAGR of 5.1%.

« Invoice Financing: Estimated at $567.8 billion,
with CAGR of 5.6%.

« Factoring: Estimated at $456.7 billion, growing
at CAGR of 5.3%.(Market Research Future)

« Lender Segmentation:

o NBFCs: Fastest-growing segment with a CAGR of
15.8% from FY2019 to FY2025.

o Private Sector Banks: Held the highest share in
credit outstanding, approximately 51% .(HDB Finan-
cial Services)

MSME Financing Landscape

« Digital Adoption: Approximately 12% of India’s 64

million MSMEs have achieved digital maturity, le-

veraging technologies for transparency and effi-

ciency .

« Government Schemes:

« PM SVANidhi: Provides micro-credit loans up to
210,000 to street vendors, promoting financial
inclusion.

« CGTMSE: Offers credit guarantees up to 5 crore
for micro and small enterprises, facilitating eas-
ier access to working capital .

Growth Drivers

- Digital Transformation: The adoption of digital
tools, including Unified Payments Interface (UPI),
has led to increased operational efficiency and
business growth among MSMEs .(The Economic
Times)

« Fintech Innovation: The rise of fintech startups is
revolutionizing working capital management by of-
fering Al-driven solutions for credit assessment and
financial planning .(The Times of India)

« Government Initiatives: Policies aimed at enhanc-
ing digital infrastructure and financial literacy are
fostering a conducive environment for MSME growth
and working capital access

Future Outlook

India’s working capital market is poised for robust
growth, driven by the increasing demand for fi-
nancing solutions, particularly among MSMEs. The
integration of digital technologies and supportive
government policies are expected to further en-
hance the accessibility and efficiency of working
capital management, positioning India as a dy-
namic hub for business growth and innovation.

Company Overview

Veefin Solutions Ltd, the parent company of the
Veefin Group, is a prominent player in the banking
and financial technology (fintech) sector. Since its
inception, the company has been at the forefront of
revolutionizing working capital solutions, offering a
comprehensive suite of digital products that span
the entire working capital lifecycle. These include
Supply Chain Finance (SCF), Digital Lending, auto-
mated financial statement analysis, debt securi-
tization, and more. Veefin is bridging the financial
technology gap with its innovative solutions that
cover digital lending, trade finance, cash manage-
ment, and other critical aspects of the financial
ecosystem.

Founded in 2020 and headquartered in Mumbai,
Veefin has rapidly expanded its operations with
regional offices in Ahmedabad, Dhaka, and Sin-
gapore. The company’s success lies in its unique
approach—combining cutting-edge technology
with deep financial expertise. This strategy has en-
abled Veefin to address complex financial chal-
lenges while fostering inclusive growth opportuni-
ties across diverse sectors. The company’s ability
to provide white-labelled solutions for SCF and dig-
ital lending, including an end-to-end lending stack,
smart credit decisioning, business intelligence,
analytics, and omnichannel onboarding, has po-
sitioned it as a go-to partner for banks, financial
institutions, fintechs, B2B marketplaces, and corpo-
rates globally.

A standout aspect of Veefin's offerings is its innova-
tive Software-as-a-Service (SaaS) pricing model.
This flexible and cost-efficient model removes the
traditional barrier of high upfront costs, enabling fi-
nancial institutions of all sizes - from small fintechs
to large FIs - to engage in SCF. By democratizing
access to SCF, Veefin has contributed significant-
ly to the expansion of the global market. This Saas
approach allows clients to scale operations quick-
ly and realize immediate returns on investment,
creating a competitive advantage over traditional
high-cost enterprise solutions. As Veefin continues
its global expansion, its SaaS model positions the
company for widespread adoption and future suc-
cess.

Today, Veefin is not only a recognized leader in In-
dia but is rapidly gaining traction across Southeast
Asiq, the Middle East, and Africa. The company con-
tinues to broaden its product offerings and extend
its global reach, ensuring its role as a key player in
the working capital solutions market. With a relent-
less focus on delivering customizable and scalable
solutions that meet the evolving needs of business-
es, Veefin is poised to maintain its leadership in the
fintech industry and make a lasting impact on the
global working capital landscape.

Opportunities

Global Expansion and Market Penetration

Veefin Solutions Ltd. is already a recognized lead-
er in India, and its rapid expansion into Southeast
Asiqg, the Middle East and Africa presents significant
growth opportunities. The fintech space is booming
globally, especially in emerging markets where ac-
cess to working capital solutions is limited. By lever-
aging its technology-driven approach and under-
standing of local markets, Veefin can continue to
penetrate new geographies. The global demand for
digital and automated financial services, including
SCF and digital lending, offers an expanding mar-
ket that Veefin is well-positioned to capture. Fur-
thermore, Veefin's ability to customize solutions for
different markets makes it an attractive partner for
financial institutions worldwide.

Saas Model for Widespread Adoption:

The introduction of the Saa$S pricing model allows
Veefin to eliminate traditional barriers to entry, such
as high upfront costs, for financial institutions of all
sizes. This model is particularly valuable for fintech
companies and small to medium-sized financial
institutions that typically cannot afford large-scale,
on-premise solutions. By removing these financial
barriers, Veefin is tapping into a much larger pool
of potential clients, particularly in emerging mar-
kets where there is a significant gap in access to
working capital financing. This opens the door for
rapid market adoption, accelerating global reve-
nue growth.



Increased Adoption of Supply Chain Finance (SCF):
SCF is a powerful solution for addressing the work-
ing capital gap, especially in emerging economies
where SMEs often struggle to access financing. As
global businesses continue to move towards digi-
tization and automation, the demand for SCF solu-
tions will only increase. Veefin's technology is po-
sitioned well to meet this need. Additionally, the
convergence between SCF providers and fintech
ecosystems is creating opportunities for innova-
tive collaborations and partnerships, helping Veefin
extend its reach and enhance its product offerings.
The company’s growing footprint and strategic po-
sitioning make it a key player in the rapidly expand-
ing SCF market.

Deep-Tier Supply Chain Finance (DTSCF):

The evolution of deep-tier SCF, which extends fi-
nancing to Tier 2 and Tier 3 suppliers, creates an ex-
cellent opportunity for Veefin. By integrating DTSCF
into its platform, Veefin can enhance the liquidity
and cash flow for SMEs that are crucial to the supply
chain. As traditional financial institutions are often
hesitant to extend credit to lower-tier suppliers due
to data and risk challenges, Veefin's tech-driven
approach can bridge this gap, offering both large
corporations and small suppliers a win-win situa-
tion. This can become a key differentiator for Veefin
in the competitive SCF market.

Threats

Cybersecurity Risks

As a provider of financial solutions, Veefin must im-
plement and maintain robust cybersecurity mea-
sures to safeguard sensitive data and prevent
breaches or cyberattacks, which could severely
damage its reputation and incur substantial costs.
Threats such as phishing, Trojans, and hacking at-
tempts are particularly concerning. To mitigate
these risks, Veefin must focus on continuously edu-
cating customers on data security while strength-
ening its cybersecurity infrastructure to detect and
prevent such attacks.

Technological Disruptions

The rapid pace of technological advancements
and the emergence of new fintech solutions pres-
ent a constant threat to market stability. To stay
competitive, Veefin must embrace continuous in-
novation and adapt its technology to meet evolv-
ing customer demands. Failing to keep pace with
technological developments could risk the compa-
ny being outpaced by more agile competitors of-
fering superior solutions.

Economic Downturns and Market Volatility

Global economic factors such as uncertainties,
recessions, and market volatility could negatively
affect Veefin's growth prospects. These conditions
may lead businesses to limit investments, thereby
impacting Veefin’s revenue generation. To safe-
guard against such risks, the company must devel-
op strategies to remain resilient during periods of
economic turbulence.

Regulatory Changes and Compliance Challenges
As financial regulations evolve across different re-
gions, compliance with new rules and regulations
remains a significant challenge. Veefin must stay
ahead of these changes and invest in the neces-
sary systems to ensure it meets regulatory require-
ments. A proactive approach to compliance will
help mitigate potential risks associated with regu-
latory violations and help Veefin maintain its mar-
ket credibility.

Cloud Migration Risks

While cloud migration offers numerous advantag-
es, it also brings several challenges, including data
security concerns, integration issues, and potential
operational disruptions. A well-planned transition
strategy, supported by thorough risk assessments
and contingency plans, is essential for ensuring a
smooth migration process and minimizing disrup-
tions that may impact business operations.

Protecting Intellectual Property (IP) Rights
Safeguarding intellectual property (IP) is critical for
Veefin's revenue generation. However, challenges
such as IP infringements, piracy, or unauthorized
usage pose significant risks. To effectively protect
its IP, Veefin must register its assets in countries with
robust IP protection laws and implement continu-
ous monitoring systems to detect and address po-
tential violations promptly. This proactive approach
will help mitigate the risk of unauthorized use and
preserve the company’s competitive advantage.

Risk Management

Staying Ahead of Technological Advancements
Veefin understands the critical importance of stay-
ing at the forefront of technological advancements
to maintain its competitive advantage. The com-
pany ensures this by investing in continuous re-
search, market analysis, and fostering a strong in-
novation and development team. This approach
allows Veefin to anticipate and adapt to emerging
technologies, enabling it to stay agile in a rapidly
evolving fintech landscape.

Efficient Management of Operating Costs

To optimize its operational costs, Veefin focuses
on process improvement and adopts lean growth
models. By maintaining a strong commitment to
high-quality standards, the company strives for
maximum efficiency in its operations. Cost-effec-
tiveness remains a core priority, ensuring the busi-
ness continues to scale sustainably while minimiz-
ing unnecessary expenditure.

Adapting to Changing Consumer Preferences
Recognizing the need to respond to evolving con-
sumer preferences, both locally and globally, Veef-
in regularly conducts market research, engages
with customers, and collaborates with industry ex-
perts. This enables the company to stay informed
about emerging technologies and trends, ensuring
its products and services remain aligned with the
changing demands of its diverse clientele.

Attracting and Retaining Skilled Talent

Veefin is committed to fostering a positive and
growth-oriented work environment. By offering
professional development opportunities, recogniz-
ing employee contributions, and promoting a cul-
ture of continuous learning, the company ensures
that its workforce remains motivated and engaged.
This strategy helps retain top talent, which is essen-
tial for driving innovation and achieving long-term
success



Segment-wise or product-wise performance

During the year, Veefin continued to deliver strong segment-wise and product-wise performance, driven by its vision of
building a comprehensive, technology-driven financial ecosystem. Anchored by its flagship Supply Chain Finance (SCF) and
Digital Lending platforms, the company has established a robust foundation for solutions that streamline supply chain
finance, lending, and risk management for corporates, banks, and fintechs. Over the past nine months, Veefin has further
strengthened this portfolio through the strategic acquisition and integration of complementary businesses, creating a
powerful, interconnected suite of offerings. This synergy has not only enhanced the company’s product depth across
segments but also accelerated its ability to provide seamless, end-to-end financial solutions to a diverse and expanding global

client base.

According to the Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013, there are no reportable operating or geographical segments applicable to the Company at Standalone level. Whereas

segment reporting at Consolidated level is presented under two categories — Services and Product

The consolidated gross revenue from operations as considered in the profit and loss account for FY 2025 is Rs. 7,859.76

Lakhs out of which Rs. 4609.85 is from Product and Rs. 3,249.91 is from Services.



Discussions on Standalone Financial Performance concerning Operational Performance:

Veefin Solutions Limited Standalone

Particulars 2024-25 202324 'Y G';:‘”th n
Total revenue from operations (including other income) (in Rs. Lakhs) 3,780.55 2,078.21 82%
Total expenses (in Rs. Lakhs) 2,144.04 1,199.58 79%
Profit before depreciation and Taxes (in Rs. Lakhs) 1,636.51 878.63 86%
Depreciation and Amortisation (in Rs. Lakhs) 231.34 87.55 164%
Profit before tax (in Rs. Lakhs) 1,405.17 791.08 78%
Income tax expenses (in Rs. Lakhs) 290.13 227.23 28%
Profit after tax (in Rs. Lakhs) 1,115.04 563.85 98%
EPS

Basic (in Rs) 493 2.74 80%
Diluted (in Rs.) 451 251 80%

Discussions on Consolidated Financial Performance concerning Operational Performance:

Veefin Solutions Limited Consolidated

Particulars 2024-25 202324 'O G;Z‘”th n
Total revenue from operations (including other income) (in Rs. Lakhs) 8,044.37 2,499.42 222%
Total expenses (in Rs. Lakhs) 5,482.91 1,438.48 281%
Profit before depreciation and Taxes (in Rs. Lakhs) 2,561.46 1,060.94 141%
Depreciation and Amortisation (in Rs. Lakhs) 509.99 94.10 442%
Profit before tax (in Rs. Lakhs) 2,051.47 966.84 112%
Income tax expenses (in Rs. Lakhs) 425.55 227.49 87%
Profit after tax (in Rs. Lakhs) 1,625.92 739.35 120%
EPS

Basic (in Rs) 5.92 3.60 64%
Diluted (in Rs.) 5.41 3.29 64%

Financial Review

During the year under review, the Company reported exceptional financial performance driven by strategic expansion and
increased product adoption in the digital lending and supply chain finance space. Below is the breakdown of the key metrics:

The Company on a standalone basis has recorded a year-on-year revenue growth of 80%, with a Profit After Tax (PAT) of INR
11.15 crores (30% margin) and an EBITDA of INR 17.43 crores (46% margin).

¢ Revenue Growth Drivers
0 Client Expansion: Our client base has grown from 58 to 83, reflecting strong market adoption.

0 Faster Go-Lives: With shorter implementation cycles, a higher number of clients have gone live, enabling earlier
revenue realization.

O Recurring Revenue: Currently on a standalone basis, 75% of revenue is recurring,

O SAAS-led Growth: In FY 25, we signed 25 new clients, all on SAAS contracts. Overall, 87% of our client base
comprises SAAS clients.

0 These factors collectively have driven our strong revenue growth and overall performance

e Qur Earnings Per Share (EPS) has increased from INR 2.74 to INR 4.93 on a standalone basis, and to INR 5.92 on a
consolidated basis.



Key Performance Indicators of our Company

As per Standalone Financials

Particulars Standalone
2024-25 2023-24 YOY Growth in %

Revenue split between domestic and exports
Domestic market (in Rs. Lakhs) 2,294.48 1,197.90 92%
Export market (in Rs. Lakhs) 1,437.45 878.08 64%
Domestic market (%) 0.61 0.58 7%
Export market (%) 0.39 0.42 -9%
Key Ratios
Debtors Turnover (times) 2.71 2.46 10%
Current Ratio (times) 2.90 4.68 -38%
Debt Equity Ratio (times) 0.18 0.05 260%
Return on equity (ROE) (%) 7.19% 4.63% 55%
Return on capital employed (ROCE) (%) 8.26% 6.36% 30%

As per Consolidated Financials
Particulars Consolidated

2024-25 2023-24 YOY Growth in %

Revenue split between domestic and exports
Domestic market (in Rs. Lakhs) 3,562.88 1,370.85 160%
Export market (in Rs. Lakhs) 4,296.87 1,126.35 281%
Domestic market (%) 0.45 0.55 -17%
Export market (%) 0.55 0.45 21%
Key Ratios
Debtors Turnover (in times) 2.65 2.90 -9%
Current Ratio (in times) 2.92 4.66 -37%
Debt Equity Ratio (in times) 0.03 0.04 -25%
Return on equity (ROE) (%) 3.47% 5.95% -42%
Return on capital employed (ROCE) (%) 4.37% 7.63% -43%




Notes to Ratios

Debtors Turnover Ratio:

The Debtors turnover Ratio is the average number of days that recoveries are made from the time of raising the Invoice. A

shorter ratio results in a higher Working Capital available to the company.

Current Ratio:

The current ratio, which indicates a company’s ability to meet short-term obligations, has declined during the year primarily due
to an increase in short-term borrowings and trade payables. Despite this shift, the Company continues to maintain liquidity at

levels comfortably above industry benchmarks.
Debt-Equity Ratio:

The Debt-Equity Ratio reflects the proportion of borrowings to shareholders’ funds. The variance during the year is attributable to
the Company leveraging its resources by opting for debt funding, which remains within prudent financial practices. Importantly,
the borrowings primarily comprise inter-corporate debt within the group companies; as a result, at the consolidated level, the

overall ratio stands reduced.

Return of Equity Ratio:

The Return on Equity (ROE) ratio signifies the earnings generated for shareholders on their invested funds. On a standalone basis,
the ROE has improved, reflecting higher operating margins, cost efficiencies, and the benefit of scale from increased revenues. On
a consolidated basis, however, the ratio does not present a true picture for the year under review, as this was a transition year
with acquisitions completed during the period. Consequently, the consolidation of revenues and profitability was only for part of

the year, impacting the overall ratio.
Return on Capital Employed:

The Return on Capital Employed reflects the income generated by the Company in relation to the assets deployed to generate
that income. Improved asset utilization and better economies of scale have contributed to stronger profitability. The increase in
the standalone ratio highlights more efficient use of both debt and equity in delivering higher returns. As mentioned above, the
consolidated ratio does not present a true picture for the year under review, as this was a transition year with acquisitions

completed during the period.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of VEEFIN SOLUTIONS LIMITED (formerly known as Veefin Solutions Pvt Ltd)
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Veefin Solutions Limited (formerly known
as Veefin Solutions Pvt Ltd) (“the Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025,
the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2024, the profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA”)
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the
standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to
communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information forming part of annual report comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.



Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management and Board of Director’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting
Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for



expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books as required under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rule, 2014 under the Companies Act, 2013.

c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss and the Standalone Statement
of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with respect to standalone financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure A” to this report. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with respect to standalone financial statements.



g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us :

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts; as such the
question of commenting on any material foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

iii. There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under report to transfer any
sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to out notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of account, which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective software.
Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature
being tampered with.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.



For A D V & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 128045W

CA Vijay Jaju

Partner

M. No.: 613332

UDIN: 25613332BMLEPK1899

Date: 28/04/2025
Place: Mumbai



Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
to the Members of Veefin Solutions Limited (formerly known as Veefin solutions Pvt Ltd) of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Veefin Solutions Limited (formerly
known as Veefin solutions Pvt Ltd) (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management and Board of Director’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Management and Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note (2015) on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and
the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records



that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the ICAL

For A D V & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 128045W

CA Vijay Jaju

Partner

M. No.: 613332 Date: 28/04/2025
UDIN: 25613332BMLEPK1899 Place: Mumbai



Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to
the Members of Veefin Solutions Limited (formerly known as Veefin Solutions Pvt Ltd) of even date)

1. In case of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment’s and Intangible Assets:
(a) 1. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and
equipment;

2. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management in a phased manner
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the program, a portion of the property, plant and equipment has been physically verified
by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(©) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based
on the examination of the registered sale deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising
of all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, disclosed in standalone
financial statements under property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the Company as at
the balance sheet date.

(d)  The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets during
the year.

(e)  No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March
31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

il. The Company does not have any inventory and no working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees (at
any point of time during the year), in aggregate, at any point of time during the year, from banks or financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii)(a) and (b)
of the Order are not applicable.

iii. During the year the Company has not provided any guarantee or security, but made investment, provided
loans or advances in natures of loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties:



(b) 1. During the year the company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or
stood guarantee, or provided security toother entity as per table below:

Particulars (INR in Lakhs) Guarantees | Loans Security

Aggregate amount granted during the year

- Parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and - 103.82 -
associates

- Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates - 70.55 -

Balance outstanding as at Balance sheet date

- Parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and - 103.82 -
associates

- Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates - 70.55 -

2. In our opinion and according to the information provided to us the company has made investments
and provided guarantees and granted unsecured loans or advances in the nature of loans as specified

below:
Investment
To Whom Company Name illr\lnl(l)unt (112
Lakhs):-
Parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
Estorifi Solutions Ltd 6.11
Finfuze Software Pvt Ltd. 7.35
Globetf Solutions Pvt Ltd 0.74
L ) Idvee Digital Labs Pvt Ltd 0.74
Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates Tnfini Systems Ltd 9178
Veefin Capital Pvt Ltd 5.10
Veefin Solutions FZCO 2.33
Veefin Solutions Ltd- BG 7.01
Estorifi Solutions Ltd 190.43
Globetf Solutions Pvt Ltd 87.93
Investment in ESOP of Subsidiaries Infini Systems Ltd 17.55
Veefin Capital Pvt Ltd 1.74
Veefin Solutions Ltd -BG 19.93
Total 438.74

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, the investments made, guarantees provided,
security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans
and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company’s interest;

(d) schedule of repayment of the principal amount and the payment of the interest have not been stipulated
and hence we are unable to comment as to whether receipt of the principal amount and the interest is
regular;

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no amounts of loans and advances
in the nature of loans granted to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties
which are overdue for more than 90 days;



1v.
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(f) According to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of any loan or advance in the nature
of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, none has been renewed or extended or fresh loans
granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties;

(g) The company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment, required details in respect thereof are as below:

Particulars (INR in Lakhs) All Parties | Promoters Rela't ed
parties
Aggregate amount of loans/advances in nature of loans 123.2 - 70.55
- Repayable on demand (A) - - -
-Agreement does not specify any terms or period of 70.55
repayment (B) 1232
Finfuze Software Limited - Loan 1.06
Globetf Solutions Private Limited - Loan 9.81
Infini Systems Limited - Loan 40.56
Veefin Capital Private Limited - Loan 19.12
Total (A+B) - - 70.55

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted,
investments made, guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at
March 31, 2025 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost
records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/ services.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books
of account, and records, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Income-Tax, Goods and Services Tax and any other material statutory dues applicable to it with
the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the
above were in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they become
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Goods and
Services Tax, and any other material statutory dues applicable to the Company, outstanding on account of
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any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of
account.

(a) In our opinion, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year;

(b) Company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority;

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, term loans were applied for the purpose for
which the loans were obtained;

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, funds raised on short term basis have not
been utilized for long term purposes;

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures;

() According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not raised loans during the
year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies;

() In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by way of
initial public offer were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has utilized
funds raised by way of preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures
(fully, partially or optionally convertible) for the purposes for which they were raised.

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has
been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,
during the year and upto the date of this report.

(¢) The company has not received any whistle blower complaints during the year (and upto the date of this
report).

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.
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In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. (b)
We have considered, the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the period
under audit, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the year.
Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order
is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and we have taken into
consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 towards corporate social responsibility are not applicable on the Company.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.



XX1. The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone financial
statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For A D V & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 128045W

CA Vijay Jaju

Partner

M. No.: 613332 Date: 28/04/2025
UDIN: 25613332BMLEPK1899 Place: Mumbai



Veefin Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)

Add: Global One, 2nd Floor, Office 1, CTS NO 252 252 1, OPP SBI, LBS MARG, KURLA(W), Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400070

CIN :L72900MH2020PLC347893
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

Particulars Note No. | As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
| |Equity & Liabilities
1 |Shareholders funds:
a [Share Capital 3 2,274.90 2,257.27
b |Reserves and Surplus 5 12,942.48 9,639.04
¢ |Money received against Share Warrants 4 280.88 280.88
2 [Non-Current liabilities:
a |Long-Term Borrowings 6 2,360.57 564.54
b [Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 7 619.08 328.95
¢ |Long Term Provisions 8 180.29 119.05
3 |Current Liabilities:
a [Short Term Borrowings 9 44791 95.31
b [Trade Payables 10
(i)Total Outstanding Dues of Micro & Small Enterprises 5.56 4.32
(||)TotaI.Outstand|ng Dues of Creditors Other Than Micro & Small 206.02 428.66
Enterprises
¢ |Other Current Liabilities 11 445.87 408.75
d |Short Term Provisions 12 16.30 13.48
Total Equity & Liabilities 19,779.86 14,140.28
Il |Assets
1 [Non-Current Assets:
a |Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets
(i) Property, Plant & Equipment 13 (i) 245.46 154.88
(i) Intangible Assets 13 (ii) 15,497.39 9,077.70
b [Non-Current Investments 14 438.74 18.68
¢ |Long Term Loans & Advances 15 117.33 49.67
d |Other Non-Current Assets 16 224.33 160.09
2 [Current Assets:
a |Trade Receivables 17 1,798.46 958.61
b [Cash and Cash Equivalents 18 666.74 3,105.08
¢ |Short Term Loans and Advances 19 59.87 71.68
d |Other Current Assets 20 731.54 543.89
Total Assets 19,779.86 14,140.28
See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements, as undet
Statement of Significant Accounting Policies 1&2
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 3to35

As per our report of even date
For ADV & Associates
Chartered Accountant

FRN: 128045W

CA Vijay Jaju
Partner
M.No.: 613332

Date : 28th April, 2025
Place : Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Veefin Solutions Limited

Raja Debnath
Managing Director
DIN: 07658567

Urja Thakkar

Company Secretary & Compliance

Officer

Date :
Place :

28th April, 2025

Mumbai

Gautam Vijay Udani
Whole Time Director
DIN: 03081749

Payal Maisheri
Chief Financial Officer




Veefin Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)

Add: Global One, 2nd Floor, Office 1, CTS NO 252 252 1, OPP SBI, LBS MARG, KURLA(W), Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400070

CIN :L72900MH2020PLC347893

Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

particulars Note | For the year ended March For the year ended
No. 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
| Revenue from Operations 21 3,731.92 2,075.99
Il |Other Incomes 22 48.63 2.21
Il [Total Revenue 3,780.55 2,078.20
IV [Expenses
Employee Benefits Expenses 23 769.13 601.19
Software Resource Outsource Charges 24 11.35 16.84
Software and Server Charges 25 98.29 60.24
Finance Costs 26 121.57 30.66
Depreciation & Amortization 27 231.34 87.55
Other Expenses 28 1,143.70 490.64
Total Expenses 2,375.38 1,287.12
V  [Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (I11-1V) 1,405.17 791.08
VI |Exceptional and Extraordinary Items - -
VIl [Profit before tax (V-VI) 1,405.17 791.08
VIII |Tax Expense
Current Tax - -
Earlier Year Tax - -
Deferred Tax Expenses 290.13 227.23
Total Tax Expenses 290.13 227.23
IX |Profit for the period (VII-VIII) 1,115.04 563.85
X |Earning per share (equated) 29
Basic EPS (in X) 4.93 2.74
Diluted EPS (in X) 4.51 2.73

As per our report of even date
For ADV & Associates
Chartered Accountant

FRN: 128045W

CA Vijay Jaju
Partner
M.No.: 613332

Date: 28th April, 2025
Place : Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Veefin Solutions Limited

Raja Debnath Gautam Vijay Udani
Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN: 07658567 DIN: 03081749
Urja Thakkar Payal Maisheri

Company Secretary & Compliance Chief Financial Officer
Officer

Date: 28th April, 2025
Place : Mumbai




Veefin Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)

ADD: Add: Global One, 2nd Floor, Office 1, CTS NO 252 252 1, OPP SBI, LBS MARG, KURLA(W), Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400070

CIN :L72900MH2020PLC347893
Standalone Cashflow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash Flow From Operating Activities:
Net Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit And Loss A/c 1,405.17 791.08
Adjustments for:
Depreciation & Amortisation Expense 231.34 87.55
Interest Income (27.21) (1.31)
Finance Cost 121.57 23.89
Preliminary Expenses - (100.05)
Capital Gain on Mutual Fund (0.20) -
Employees Stock Option Reserve 258.36 91.89
Interest on income tax refund (4.26) -
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Ct 1,984.77 893.05
Adjusted for:
Increase/(Decrease) in Long term provision 61.24 52.16
Increase/(Decrease) in Short term Borrowings 352.60 92.35
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables (221.43) 297.82
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 37.12 100.01
Increase/(Decrease) in Short term provision 2.82 (36.27)
(Increase)/Decrease in Long term Loans & Advances (67.66) (31.14)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (839.85) (232.24)
(Increase)/Decrease in Short Term Loans and Advances 11.81 (50.82)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets (282.00) (197.39)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other non-current assets (64.24) (130.09)
Cash Flow Generated From Operations 975.19 757.44
Net Income Tax (paid)/ refunded 98.61 (186.30)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) 1,073.80 571.14
Cash Flow From Investing Activities:
Net (Purchases)/Sales of Property, Plant, Equipments & Intangibles assets (4,811.06) (4,336.98),
Net Sale of Investment 0.20 -
Interest Income 27.21 131
Net (Increase)/Decrease in Investments (420.58) (8.77)
Net Cash Flow (used in) Investing Activities (B) (5,204.23) (4,344.44)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Borrowings 1,796.03 494.93
Proceeds from issue of share 17.63 6,324.00
Interest on borrowings (121.57) (23.89)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C) 1,692.09 6,795.04
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (2,438.34) 3,021.75
Cash & Cash Equivalents ass at Beginning of the Year 3,105.09 83.34
Cash & Cash Equivalents as at End of the Year 666.74 3,105.09
Cash and Cash Equivalents included In Cash Flow Statement comprise of following (Refer Note No. 18):
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Balance with Banks
a. In current accounts 644.74 3,073.46
b. Fixed Deposits with bank with maturity less than 3 months - 21.12
Cash on hand 16.48 10.48
Other bank balances 5.52 0.02
Total 666.74 3,105.08

As per our report of even date
For ADV & Associates
Chartered Accountant

FRN: 128045W

CA Vijay Jaju
Partner
M.No.: 613332

Date : 28th April, 2025
Place : Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Veefin Solutions Limited

Raja Debnath
Managing Director
DIN: 07658567

Urja Thakkar
Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer

Date : 28th April, 2025
Place : Mumbai

Gautam Vijay Udani
Whole Time Director
DIN: 03081749

Payal Maisheri
Chief Financial Officer




Veefin Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified
3 Share Capital

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
1.Authorised Share Capital

1. 2,50,00,000 Equity Shares of X 10 each (Previous Year: 2,50,00,000 Equity Shares of X 10 each) 2,500.00 2,500.00
2.Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up Equity Share Capital

2. 2,39,73,407 Equity Shares of X 10 each (Previous Year: 2,25,73,060 Equity Shares of X 10 each) 2,397.30 2,257.27
Less: Shares held by Veefin Employee Welfare Trust® (122.40) -
Total 2,274.90 2,257.27

The Company has reduced the Share capital by X 122.40 lakhs (Previous Year: NIL) for the 12,24,014 shares (Previous Year: NIL) of 10 each currently held by
Veefin Employee Welfare Trust and are pending for transfer to the eligible employees

(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding as at beginning and end of the reporting period

Number of Shares Amount (X in lakhs)
Particulars Asat x’;:h 31, | Asat x);:h 3L | Asat March 31,2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Equity Share Capital
Balance as the beginning of the reporting period 2,25,73,060 1,83,37,860 2,257.31 1,833.79
Add: Shares issued during the year 14,00,347 42,35,200 140.03 423.52
Less: Shares issued to ESOP Trust’ (12,24,014) - (122.40) -
Balance as the end of the reporting period 2,27,49,393 2,25,73,060 2,274.94 2,257.31
(b) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares of the Company
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
. Number of shares| % of Holding Number of shares % of Holding
Particulars
Raja Debnath 71,08,111 29.65% 70,99,911 31.45%
Ajay Rajendran 37,64,483 15.70% 42,22,483 18.71%
Gautam Udani 13,41,414 5.60% 13,41,414 5.94%
(c) Shares held by promoters at the end of the reporting period
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
. Number of % of % Change during Number of % of Holding % Change during the
Particulars .
shares Holding the year shares year
Raja Debnath 71,08,111 29.65% -1.80% 70,99,911 31.45% -15.87%
Gautam Udani 13,41,414 5.60% -0.35% 13,41,414 5.94% -3.00%

(d) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
- The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of X 10/- each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share .
- In the event of liquidation of the company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of
all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(e) For the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared
During F.Y. 2022-23, the company issued 1,83,22,200 Equity Shares having a face value X 10 per share as bonus shares to the shareholders of existing
fully paid Equity Shares of the Company in the proportion of 1,170 new shares for every 1 Equity Share, out of Securities Premium Account aggregating
to X 1,832.22 (in lakhs)

4 Money received against Share Warrants

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024

Balance as the beginning of the reporting period 280.88 -
Add: Issued during the year2 280.88

Balance as the end of the reporting period 280.88 280.88
2During the financial year 2023-24, the Company issued a total of 4,20,000 (Four Lakh Twenty Thousand) convertible warrants (“Warrants”), each convertible
into or exchangeable for one equity share of the Company within a period of 18 (eighteen) months from the date of allotment, in accordance with applicable
laws.

The Warrants were issued at a price of 267.50 (Rupees Two Hundred Sixty-Seven and Fifty Paise only) per Warrant (comprising the warrant subscription
price and the warrant exercise price), aggregating to a total issue size of X11,23,50,000 (Rupees Eleven Crore Twenty-Three Lakh Fifty Thousand only).

The Warrants were allotted on a preferential basis to the following allottees:

Mr. Gautam Udani — 44,800 Warrants

Mr. Raja Debnath - 3,75,200 Warrants

The issue was undertaken in compliance with the provisions of Sections 42 and 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Prospectus
and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, as amended, and in accordance with Chapter V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, and other applicable laws, rules, and
regulations.

The Warrant Issue was subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company and other necessary regulatory approvals, including that of BSE Limited
and any other relevant authorities.

As per the terms of issue, the allottees have paid 25% of the total Warrant Issue Price, amounting to %2,80,87,500 (Rupees Two Crore Eighty Lakh Eighty-
Seven Thousand Five Hundred only) towards the subscription of the Warrants.




Veefin Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

5 Reserves and Surplus

Particulars As at March 31,2025 | As at March 31, 2024
A. Securities Premium
Opening Balance 7,340.37 1,820.79
Add: Received on Issue of Shares - 5,619.63
Add: Transfer from ESOP Reserve 510.83 -
Less: Preliminary Expenses - (100.05)
Total Securities Premium 7,851.20 7,340.37
B. Employee Stock Option Reserve
Opening Balances 1,303.01 240.94
Add: Addition during the year 2,188.91 1,062.07
Less: ESOPs exercised during the year (510.83) -
Total Employee Stock Option Reserve 2,981.09 1,303.01
C. Surplus
Opening Balance 995.66 431.87
Add Foreign Currency Gain/(loss) On Investment (0.51) (0.06)
Add Net Surplus during the year 1,115.04 563.85
Total Surplus 2,110.19 995.66
Total of Reserves and Surplus (A+B+C) 12,942.48 9,639.04
6 Long-Term Borrowings
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Secured
Term Loan from Banks 3.73 7.04
Vehicle Loan from Banks 42.04 44.73
Less: Current Maturities (3.03) (6.06)
Total (A) 42.74 45.71
Unsecured
Term Loan from Banks 566.91 29.56
Less: Current Maturities (225.46) -
Loans from Directors 1.11 32.93
Loans from Others 0.51 272.89
Loans from related parties 1,974.76 183.45
Total (B) 2,317.83 518.83
Total of Long Term Borrowings (A+B) 2,360.57 564.54

Notes :

(i) The Company has availed secured loan from Financial Institution hypothecated against Motor Car at interest rate of 9.99% p.a. repayable in 48 months
having Equated Monthly Instalments of X 0.59 Lakhs

(ii) Loan granted by Directors is Interest free loan.

(iii) The Company has availed unsecured loans from related parties at interest rate of 10.00% p.a..
(iv) The Company has availed secured loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank at interest rate of 12.18% p.a. repayable in 36 months having Equated Monthly

Instalments of X 0.33 Lakhs

(v) The company has total unsecured loans from Banks and Financial Institution amounting X 566.91 Lakhs having total EMI per month of X 21.77 Lakhs with
an average remaining tenure of 34 months having interest rate of 15% to 16%

(vi) There is no default in repayment of loans and interest (long term borrowings) as at March 31, 2025.

(vii All the unsecured loans are guaranteed by Directors of the Company.

7 Net Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

(A) Deferred Tax Liability (DTL)

Difference between WDV of Property, Plant, Equipment's & Intangible Assets 1,966.64 979.68
Gross Deferred Tax Liability (A) 1,966.64 979.68
(B) Deferred Tax Assets (DTA):
Amount to be claimed on Payment Basis :
- Gratuity (4.87) (2.80)
- Share Based Payments (91.96) (26.94)
Gross Deferred Tax Assets (B) (96.83) (29.74)
(C) Unabsorbed Depreciation (1,250.73) (620.99)
Net Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset) (A+B+C) 619.08 328.95




Veefin Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

Deferred tax Expense charged to Statement of Profit & Loss:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Deferred tax expense/(credit) charged to Profit & Loss 290.13 227.23
Total Deferred Tax Expense 290.13 328.95
8 Long Term Provisions
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for Gratuity 180.29 119.05
Total 180.29 119.05
9 Short Term Borrowings
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Current Maturities of long term loans 228.49 6.06
Credit Card Loan 18.77 22.52
Short term loans and advances from NBFCs 200.65 66.73
Total 447.91 95.31
Details of Short term Borrowings
(i) There is no default in repayment of loans and interest (short term borrowings) as at March 31, 2025.
(i) The Company has availed unsecured loans from NBFCs at interest rate of 15%-16% p.a.
(iii) Short term loans and advances disclosed above are guaranteed by Directors of the Company.
10 Trade Payables
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
a. Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 5.56 4.32
b. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises. 206.02 428.69
Total 211.58 433.01
Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 (as amended) As at March 31,2025 | As at March 31, 2024
(i) The Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year 5.56 4.32

(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year

(iii) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond
the appointed day during each accounting year

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act 2006.

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

(vi) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

Trade Payable Ageing Schedule

As at March 31, 2025

(Outstanding from due date of payment / from date of transaction)
Particulars Total
feu Unbilled Not Due Lesi::fn o 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) Undisputed dues
a) MSME - - 5.56 - - - 5.56
b) Others - - 206.02 - - - 206.02
(ii) Disputed
a) MSME - - - - - - -
b) Others - - - - - - -
Total - - 211.58 - - - 211.58
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule As at March 31, 2024
(Outstanding from due date of payment / from date of transaction)
Particulars Total
Unbilled Not Due Lesi:::n 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) Undisputed dues
a) MSME - - 432 - - - 4.32
b) Others - - 407.20 20.58 0.90 - 428.69
(ii) Disputed
a)Np - - - - - - -
b) Others - - - - - - -
Total - - 411.53 20.58 0.90 - 433.01

(i) Micro, small and medium enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 have been determined based on the

information available with the Company.

(i) There are no "unbilled" and "not due" trade payables, hence the same are not disclosed in the ageing schedule.




11 Other Current Liabilities

Veefin Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Statutory Liabilities 124.18 57.79
Payable for Expenses 14.31 9.73
Payable for Capital Goods 8.88 8.58
Employee Related payable 246.51 288.70
Provision for Expenses 3.00 41.67
Interest Payable - 2.28
Other Payables 38.19 -
Advance from customers 10.80 -
Total 445.87 408.75
# Short Term Provisions
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Provision for employee benefits
Provision For Gratuity 16.30 13.48
Total 16.30 13.48
14 Non-Current Investments
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Face Value Amount .
per share | Number of Shares ) Number of Shares Amount (X in lakhs)
(X in lakhs)
Investment in Equity Shares (Unquoted) - At Cost
(i) Investment In Subsidiaries
- Estorifi Solutions Limited (formerly known as Estorifi
. . oo 10 10,526 196.53 - -
Solutions Private Limited)
- Finfuze Software Private Limited 10 73,500* 7.35 73,500* 7.35
- GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited 10 7,400* 88.67 7,400* 0.74
- Idvee Digital Labs Private Limited 10 7,400* 0.74 7,400* 0.74
- Infini Systems Limited (formerly known as Infini
. . 10 50,763 109.34 - -
Systems Private Limited)
- Veefin Capital Private Limited 10 51,000* 6.84 - -
- Veefin Solutions FZCO (Dubai) AED 100 100 2.33 100 2.27
- Veefin Solutions Limited (Bangladesh) Bangladeshi 9,970* 26.94 9,970 7.58
Taka 10
Total 438.74 18.68
*Includes shares held by nominee shareholders on behalf of the company
Particulars As at March 31,2025 | As at March 31, 2024
A Aggregate amount of Quoted investments - -
B  Aggregate amount of Unquoted investments 438.74 18.68
C  Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments - -
D Market value of quoted Investments - -
Total 438.74 18.68
15 Long Term Loans & Advances
Particulars As at March 31,2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated)
Loans to related parties 70.55 -
Loans to Others 46.78 49.67
Total 117.33 49.67
(i) As at March 31,2025, long-term loans & advances due to directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly with any
other person or debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member is X 30.00 Lakhs (As at
March 31,2024 : Nil).
(ii) The Company has advanced loans to related parties at interest rate of 10.00% p.a..
(iii) Loans to related parties will be utilised by the respective related parties for their principal business purpose.
16 Other Non-Current Assets
Particulars As at March 31,2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Security Deposits 194.71 160.09
Fixed deposits with banks with maturity of more than 12 months 29.62 -
Total 224.33 160.09




Veefin Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

17 Trade Receivables

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Undisputed Trade Receivables
Secured - Considered good

1,798.46

958.61

Unsecured - Considered good

Doubtful - -
Gross Trade Receivables 1,798.46 958.61
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts - -
Total 1,798.46 958.61

Trade Receievable Ageing Schedule

As at March 31, 2025

(Outstanding from due date of payment / from date of transaction)

Particulars 6 months -

1year

Less than 6

Unbilled
months

1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade
Receivables

a) Considered good - 1,587.92 183.54 14.00 7.52
b) Considered doubtful - - - - -
(ii) Disputed Trade
Receivables

a) Considered good - - - - R
b) Considered doubtful - - - - -
Less: Provision for Doubtful
Debts

5.47

1,798.46

Total o 1,587.92 183.54 14.00 7.52

5.47

1,798.46

Trade Receievable Ageing Schedule

As at March 31, 2024

(Outstanding from due date of payment / from date of transaction)

Particulars 6 months -

1 vear

Less than 6

Unbilled
months

1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade
Receivables
a) Considered good - 736.72 208.89 7.52 5.48

b) Considered doubtful - - - - -
(ii) Disputed Trade

Receivables
a) Considered good - - - - R

b) Considered doubtful - - - - -
Less: Provision for Doubtful
Debts -

958.61

Total - 736.72 208.89 7.52 5.48

958.61

(i) Asat March 31,2025, the amount of unbilled receivables is Nil, hence the same is not disclosed in the ageing schedule (As at March 31,2024 : Nil).
As at March 31,2025, trade or other receivables due from directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly with any
(ii) other person or debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member is X 5.07 Lakhs (As at

March 31,2024 : Nil).

18 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Balance with Banks

a. In current accounts 644.74 3,073.46
b. Fixed Deposits with bank with maturity less than 3 months - 21.12
Cash on hand 16.48 10.48
Other bank balances 5.52 0.02
Total 666.74 3,105.08
19 Short Term Loans and Advances (X in lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise specified

Advances to employee 2.83 1.22
Advances to others 57.04 68.58
Advance to Related Parties - 1.88
Total 59.87 71.68
20 Other Current Assets (X in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise specified

TDS Receivable 160.81 108.62
Balance with GST Authorities - 52.52
Prepaid Expenses* 568.25 382.75
Others 2.48 -
Total 731.54 543.89

*Note -The majority of prepaid expenses pertains to the events that will take place in the FY 2025-26
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(i) Property, Plant & Equipment

Veefin Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

Particulars Computers & Laptops Office Equipment Motor Vehicle Total
Gross Block
As at April 1, 2023 52.28 42.60 - 94.88
Additions during the year 46.45 31.10 60.51 138.06
Deductions during the year - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 98.73 73.70 60.51 232.94
Additions during the year 131.43 96.03 - 227.46
Deductions during the year (20.27) (2.22) - (22.49)
As at March 31, 2025 209.89 167.51 60.51 437.91
Accumulated Depreciation
As at April 1, 2023 18.17 1.99 - 20.16
Depreciation Charge for the year 37.04 17.81 3.05 57.90
Deductions during the year - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 55.21 19.80 3.05 78.06
Depreciation Charge for the year 67.32 29.52 17.55 114.39
Deductions during the year - - - -
As at March 31, 2025 122.53 49.32 20.60 192.45
Net Block
As at March 31, 2024 43.52 53.90 57.46 154.88
As at March 31, 2025 87.36 118.19 39.91 245.46
(i) Intangible Assets

Particulars Goodwill Software Total
Gross Block
As at April 1, 2023 1.18 3,955.46 3,956.64
Additions during the year - 5,169.10 5,169.10

Deductions during the year - - -
As at March 31, 2024 1.18 9,124.56 9,125.74
Additions during the year - 6,536.64 6,536.64

Deductions during the year - - -
As at March 31, 2025 1.18 15,661.20 15,662.38
Accumulated Amortization
As at April 1, 2023 0.26 18.13 18.39
Amortization Charge for the year 0.13 29.52 29.65

Deductions during the year - - -
As at March 31, 2024 0.39 47.65 48.04
Amortization Charge for the year 0.13 116.82 116.95

Deductions during the year - - -
As at March 31, 2025 0.52 164.47 164.99
Net Block
As at March 31, 2024 0.79 9,076.91 9,077.70
As at March 31, 2025 0.66 15,496.73 15,497.39




Veefin Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

21 Revenue from Operations

(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024
Sales 3,731.92 2,075.99
Total 3,731.92 2,075.99

22 Other Incomes

Particulars For the year ended March 31,2025 | For the year ended March 31, 2024
Account Written Back 16.94 -
Interest Income

- On fixed deposits 5.78 1.06
- On investments 9.35 -

- On loans/advances 12.08 0.25
Net Gain on Sale of Invetsments 0.20 -
Interest on Income Tax Refund 4.26 0.89
Others 0.02 0.01
Total 48.63 2.21

23 Employee Benefits Expenses

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024
Salaries and wages 409.90 450.70
Share Based payment to Employees (ESOP) 258.36 91.89
Gratuity expense 7.64 5.10
Insurance expense 46.03 11.56
Contribution to PF and Other Funds 35.89 38.90
Staff welfare Expense 11.31 3.04
Total 769.13 601.19

24 Software Resource Outsource Charges

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024
Software Resource Outsource Charges 11.35 16.84
Total 11.35 16.84

25 Software and Server Charges

Particulars For the year ended March 31,2025 | For the year ended March 31, 2024
Software packages 59.28 40.78
Server Charges 39.01 19.46
Total 98.29 60.24

26 Finance Costs

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024
Interest on loans/borrowings 106.34 23.89
Processing Charges 15.23 6.77
Total 121.57 30.66

27 Depreciation & Amortization

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 114.39 57.90
Amortization of Intangible assets 116.95 29.65
Total 231.34 87.55




Veefin Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

28 Other Expenses

(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024
Audit Fees 6.25 4.50
Account Written Off - 11.20
Foreign Currency Loss (Net) 22.50 3.16
Legal & Professional 121.47 66.75
Office & Admin Charges 70.24 50.29
Rates & Taxes 12.21 31.34
Rent 34.37 21.71
Sales & Marketing Expenses 819.21 272.22
Travelling and Conveyance 46.02 27.48
CSR Expenses 11.43 1.99
Total 1,143.70 490.64

28.1 Payment to Auditors

Particulars

For the year ended March 31, 2025

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Payment to the auditors comprises (net of service tax input credit, where
applicable):

As auditors- Statutory & Tax audit 6.25 4.50
In any other capacity - -
Total 6.25 4.50

28.2 Details of CSR expenditure

Particulars

For the year ended March 31, 2025

For the year ended March 31, 2024

(a) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year (In
accordance with Companies Act, 2023)

(b) Amount actually spent and approved by the Board during the year

(c) Shortfall / (excess) spent during the year

8.87

11.43

-2.56

NA

-1.99

Nature of CSR activities

Nature of CSR Activities undertaken - The company has directed its CSR funds towards providing food and other necessity to poor people. Additionally, it has
supported senior citizens by supplying hearing aid devices and has distributed food packages to underprivileged communities.

29 Earning Per Share

The following reflects the income and share data used in the Basic EPS and Diluted EPS Computations:

Particulars

For the year ended March 31, 2025

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Net Profit after tax (in Lakhs) as per statement of Profit and Loss attributable

1,115.04 563.85

to Equity Shareholders ’
Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for

. . 2,25,98,966 2,05,48,495
calculating for Basic EPS
Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for

- : 2,47,35,442 2,06,53,495
calculating for Diluted EPS
Basic Earning per share (in X) 4.93 2.74
Diluted Earning per share (in X) 4.51 2.73

30 Contingent Liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Related to Bank Guarantee 17.00 5.00




Veefin Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

Total

17.00

5.00
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(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

31 Related Party Disclosures

(a) List of related parties where control exists and also other Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships:

Name of the related party Nature of Relationship
Infini Systems Limited (formerly known as Infini Systems Private Limited) Subsidiary Company*
Estorifi Solutions Limited (formerly known as Estorifi Solutions Private Lir| Subsidiary Company*
GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited Subsidiary Company
Idvee Digital Labs Private Limited Subsidiary Company
Veefin Capital Private Limited Subsidiary Company
Finfuze Software Private Limited Subsidiary Company
Veefin Solutions Limited - Bangladesh Subsidiary Company
Veefin Solutions FZCO - Dubai Subsidiary Company
Regime Tax Solutions Private Limited Step down Subsidiary Company
Nityo Tech Private Limited Step down Subsidiary Company
Epikindifi Software & Solutions Private Limited Step down Subsidiary Company

Entity controlled or jointly controlled by Directors of

Templeton Solutions FZE . .
the reporting enterprise

Raja Debnath Managing Director (KMP)
Gautam Udani Whole Time Director & COO (KMP)
Ajay Rajendran Director

Deepti Sharma Director

Gourav Saraf Director (From 26th August, 2024)
Bhavesh Chheda Director (From 26th August, 2024)
Matthew Simon Gamser Director (From 26th August, 2024)
Afzal Mohammed Modak Director

Anand Malpani Director (Till 26th August, 2024)
Payal Mehul Maisheri Chief Financial Officer (KMP)
Urja Thakkar Company Secretary (KMP)
Gowri Rajendran Relative of Director
Ruchita Udani Relative of KMP

*The nature of relationship with these related parties has changed from 'Entity controlled or jointly controlled by Directors or Major
Shareholders of the reporting enterprise' to 'Subsidiary Company' pursuant to acquisition of control by the Company during the year.
Accordingly previous year figures have been reclassified in the diclosures below wherever necessary.

(b) Related Party Transactions during the year:
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties:
1) For the year ended March 31, 2025

Entity
controlled or Key Relatives of Key
jointly Management
. e Management
Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries controlled by Personnel Total
directors of the Personnel (KMP)//Director
) (KMP)/Directors
reporting s
enterprise

(a) Transactions during the year
(i) Purchase of Software Development Services

GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited 20.00 - - - 20.00
(ii) Interest expense

Estorifi Solutions Limited 61.35 - - - 61.35

Idvee Digital Labs Private Limited 14.09 - - - 14.09
(iii) Interest Income

Estorifi Solutions Limited 4.44 - - - 4.44

Infini Systems Limited 5.27 - - - 5.27

Veefin Capital Private Limited 0.62 - - - 0.62

GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited 1.36 - - - 1.36

Finfuze Software Private Limited 0.10 - - - 0.10
(iv) Sale of Services

Estorifi Solutions Limited 93.27 - - - 93.27

Infini Systems Limited 40.91 - - - 40.91

Veefin Capital Private Limited 4.30 - - - 4.30




Veefin Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

Entity
controlled or Key Relatives of Key
jointly Management Management
Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries controlled by Personnel Total
. Personnel N
directors .of the (KMP)/Directors (KMP)//Director
reporting s
enterprise

(iv) Sale of Services

GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited 22.72 - - - 22.72

Templeton Solutions FZE - 107.00 - - 107.00
(v) Sale of Property Plant & Equipment

Estorifi Solutions Limited 8.42 - - - 8.42

Infini Systems Limited 10.15 - - - 10.15

GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited 1.70 - - - 1.70
(vi) Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings

Estorifi Solutions Limited 2,970.19 - - - 2,970.19
(vii) Repayment of Long Term Borrowings -

Estorifi Solutions Limited 1,236.58 - - - 1,236.58

Idvee Digital Labs Private Limited 6.21 - - - 6.21
(viii) Loans & Advances provided

Infini Systems Limited 451.35 - - - 451.35

GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited 144.69 - - - 144.69

Finfuze Software Private Limited 0.03 - - - 0.03

Veefin Capital Private Limited 18.84 - - - 18.84
(ix) Loans & Advances repaid -

Infini Systems Limited 417.93 - - - 417.93

GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited 137.05 - - - 137.05

Veefin Capital Private Limited 0.28 - - - 0.28
(x) Investments made

Estorifi Solutions Limited 196.53 - - - 196.53

Infini Systems Limited 109.34 - - - 109.34

Veefin Capital Private Limited 6.84 - - - 6.84

GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited 87.93 - - - 87.93

Veefin Solutions Limited - Bangladesh 19.93 - - - 19.93
(xi) Remuneration paid

Raja Debnath - - 19.73 - 19.73

Gautam Udani - - 30.00 - 30.00

Payal Mehul Maisheri - - 29.78 - 29.78

Urja Thakkar - - 12.78 - 12.78

Ruchita Udani - - - 0.66 0.66
(xii) Share Based payment to Employees (ESOP)

Payal Mehul Maisheri - - 30.06 - 30.06

Urja Thakkar - - 21.66 - 21.66
(xiii) Sitting fees paid

Deepti Sharma - - 0.52 - 0.52

Gourav Saraf 0.52 0.52

Bhavesh Chheda 0.40 0.40

Anand Malpani 0.84 0.84




Veefin Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

Entity
controlled or Key Relatives of Key
jointly Management Management
Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries controlled by Personnel Total
. Personnel N
directors .of the (KMP)/Directors (KMP)//Director
reporting s
enterprise
(b) Balances outstanding at the end of the year
(i) Non-Current Investments
Estorifi Solutions Limited 196.53 - - - 196.53
Infini Systems Limited 109.34 - - - 109.34
Veefin Capital Private Limited 6.84 - - - 6.84
GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited 88.67 - - - 88.67
Veefin Solutions Limited - Bangladesh 26.94 - - - 26.94
Idvee Digital Labs Private Limited 0.74 - - - 0.74
Finfuze Software Private Limited 7.35 - - - 7.35
Veefin Solutions FZCO - Dubai 2.33 - - - 2.33
(i) Long Term Borrowings
Estorifi Solutions Limited 1,826.86 - - - 1,826.86
Idvee Digital Labs Private Limited 147.90 - - - 147.90
(iii) Long-term loans and advances
Infini Systems Limited 40.56 - - - 40.56
Veefin Capital Private Limited 19.12 - - - 19.12
GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited 9.81 - - - 9.81
Finfuze Software Private Limited 1.06 - - - 1.06
(iv) Trade Receivables
Veefin Capital Private Limited 5.07 - - - 5.07
Templeton Solutions FZE - 551.00 - - 551.00
(v) Trade Payables
Yash Debnath 6.75
(vi) Salary Payable
Gautam Udani - - 12.43 - 12.43
Payal Mehul Maisheri - - 1.08 - 1.08
Urja Thakkar - - 1.72 - 1.72
1) For the year ended March 31, 2024
Entity
controlled or Key Relatives of Key
jointly Management
) e Management
Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries controlled by Personnel Total
directors of the Personnel (KMP)//Director
. (KMP)/Directors
reporting H
enterprise
(a) Transactions during the year
(i) Services availed for Software Development
Estorifi Solutions Limited 240.00 - - - 240.00
Infini Systems Limited 63.75 - - - 63.75
Yash Debnath - - - 9.00 9.00
(i) Interest expense
Estorifi Solutions Limited 0.09 - - - 0.09
Idvee Digital Labs Private Limited 3.12 - - - 3.12
(iii) Interest Income
Estorifi Solutions Limited 0.25 - - - 0.25
(iv) Sale of Services
Templeton Solutions FZE - 409.38 - - 409.38
(v) Proceeds from Borrowings
Estorifi Solutions Limited 139.54 - - - 139.54




Veefin Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)
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(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified
Infini Systems Limited | 125.26 | - | - - 125.26 |
Idvee Digital Labs Private Limited 140.00 - - 140.00




Veefin Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

Entity Relatives of Key
controlled or Key
.. Management
Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries fointly Management Personnel Total
controlled by Personnel (KMP)//Director
directors of the |(KMP)/Directors s
reporting
(vi) Repayment of Borrowings
Estorifi Solutions Limited 93.64 - - - 93.64
Infini Systems Limited 177.76 - - - 177.76
Idvee Digital Labs Private Limited 1.70 - - - 1.70
(vii) Loans & Advances provided
GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited 0.94 - - - 0.94
Finfuze Software Private Limited 0.94 - - - 0.94
Hansa Udani - - - 8.56 8.56
Ruchita Udani - - - 90.00 90.00
Gowri Rajendran - - - 60.00 60.00
(viii) Loans & Advances repaid
Hansa Udani - - - 8.56 8.56
Ruchita Udani - - - 90.00 90.00
Gowri Rajendran - - - 60.00 60.00
(ix) Remuneration paid
Raja Debnath - - 39.47 - 39.47
Gautam Udani - - 40.00 - 40.00
Payal Mehul Maisheri - - 28.27 - 28.27
Urja Thakkar - - 7.73 - 7.73
Ruchita Udani - - - 13.44 13.44
(x) Money received against issue of share warrants
Raja Debnath - - 250.92 - 250.92
Gautam Udani - - 29.96 - 29.96
(xi) Amount Paid for Offer for Sale in IPO
Raja Debnath - - 1,293.30 - 1,293.30
Gautam Udani - - 244.35 - 244.35
Ajay Rajendran - - 799.02 - 799.02
(b) Balances outstanding at the end of the year
(i) Non-Current Investments
GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited 0.74 - - - 0.74
Veefin Solutions Limited - Bangladesh 7.58 - - - 7.58
Idvee Digital Labs Private Limited 0.74 - - - 0.74
Finfuze Software Private Limited 7.35 - - - 7.35
Veefin Solutions FZCO - Dubai 2.27 - - - 2.27
(ii) Long Term Borrowings
Estorifi Solutions Limited 42.03 - - - 42.03
Idvee Digital Labs Private Limited 141.42 - - - 141.42
(iii) Long-term loans and advances
Infini Systems Limited 2.39 - - - 2.39
(iv) Short-term loans and advances
GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited 0.94 - - - 0.94
Finfuze Software Private Limited 0.94 - - - 0.94
Payal Mehul Maisheri - - 14.60 - 14.60
(v) Trade receivables
Templeton Solutions FZE - 551.00 - - 551.00
(vi) Trade Payable
Estorifi Solutions Limited 278.40 - - - 278.40
Infini Systems Limited 67.43 - - - 67.43
Yash Debnath - - - 6.75 6.75
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(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified
32 Employee Benefits Plan

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company’s contribution to provident fund In accordance with the Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, Employee State
Insurance Scheme (ESI) under Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948 and Labour welfare fund (LWF) are considered as defined contribution plans and are
charged as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss as they fall due based on the amount of contribution required to be made. The Company has no

further obligations under these plans beyond its
periodic contributions.

Defined Benefit Plan

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. Under the gratuity plan, every employee
who has completed atleast five years of service is eligible. The plan provides for a lump-sum payment to eligible employees at retirement, death while in
employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each completed year of service. The Company does
not make any contributions to gratuity funds and the plan is unfunded. The Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future

based on an actuarial valuation.

A Defined Contribution Plan

particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contribution to Provident fund 34.86 38.90
Contribution to Employee's State insurance Corporation 0.91 -
Contribution to Labour Welfare Fund 0.12 -
Total 35.89 38.90
B Defined Benefit Plan
Gratuity
a) Net liability/(assets) recognised in balance sheet
Particulars As at March 31,2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Present Value of Obligation 196.59 132.53
Less: Fair Value of plan assets - -
Total 196.59 132.53
Bifurcation of net liability in balance sheet
Particulars As at March 31,2025 As at March 31, 2024
Long term Provisions 180.29 132.53
Short term Provisions 16.30 -
Total 196.59 132.53

b) Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 132.53 75.64
Current Service Cost 58.75 24.43
Interest Cost 9.50 5.52
Benefits Paid - -
Transfer in/(out) obligation (29.13) -
Actuarial Loss/(Gain) on obligations 24.94 26.94
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 196.59 132.53

o

) Reconciliation of plan assets

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Opening Plan assets at the beginning of the year
Expected return on plan assets

Benefits Paid

Actuarial Loss/Gain

Closing Plan assets at the end of the year
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d) The Component of amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss

(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current Service Cost 58.75 24.43
Interest Cost 9.50 5.52
Expected return on plan assets - -
Net Actuarial loss 24.94 26.94
Net Costs 93.19 56.89

Note: In Current FY 2024-25, out of above amount X 8,554,799/ is transferred to Software Development Cost as pertains to employees from Product
Development Team Gratuity whose salary is transferred to Software Development Cost. Remaining amount ofX 763,955/- is net recognised in the

statement of Profit and Loss.

In Previous FY 2023-24, amount X 5,178,299/- is transferred to Software Development Cost as pertains to employees from Product Development Team
Gratuity whose salary is transferred to Software Development Team. Remaining amount 0f510,161/- is net recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss

e) Assumptions used to determine the benefit obligations

Particulars

Mortality Rate

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount Rate 6.65% p.a. 7.17%p.a.
Expected rate of Increase in compensation levels 7.00% p.a. 7.00%p.a.
Expected rate of return on Plan assets N.A. N.A.
Attrition Rate 15.00% p.a. 15.00% p.a.
Retirement Age 58 Years 58 Years

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)
Ultimate

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)
Ultimate
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33 Employee stock option plans
The company provides share-based payment schemes to its employees. During the year ended 31 March 2025, an employee stock option plan (ESOP) was in
existence. The relevant details of the scheme and the grant are as below.
The board of directors approved the 'Veefin Solutions Private Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan, 2022' and 'Employee Stock Option Plan, 2023', for issue of stock
options to the key employees and directors of the company. According to the Scheme , option has been granted to eligible employees which are to be vested from
time to time. The Company has established share options plans that entitle employees of the company and its subsidiary companies to purchase the shares of the
company. Under these plans, holders of the vested options are entitled to purchase shares at the exercise price of the shares determined at the respective date of
grant of options.
The key terms and conditions related to vesting of grants under these plans are continued employment with the company and in some cases non market
performance condition to be satisfied from date of grant of options till the date of vesting; all options are to be settled by delivery of shares.

Measurement of fair values

Accounting is done as per Fair Value Method. Fair value disclosures are given as required under Guidance Note on Accounting for Share Based Payments. The fair
value of the employee share options has been measured using Black-Scholes Option pricing model. The details of the nature and characterestics of ESOPs granted
during the year are as follows:

Particulars FY 2024-25
27 May 2024; 23 July 2024;
22 Oct 2024; 06 Jan 2025

Grant Date

1Yearto 4 Years

100% on Vesting date for some ESOPs and 25%
each year for some ESOPs

Vesting requirement

Vesting ratio

Method of settlement Equity Settled

Accounting Method Fair Value Method (Black Scholes)

The details of activity under the Scheme are summarized below:

particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2024
No. of options WAEP* (X) No. of options WAEP* (X)

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 18,45,125 10 589 10
Granted during the year 4,84,581 10 18,44,536 10
Forfeited during the year 24,799 10 - 10
Expired during the year - N.A. - N.A.
Exercised during the year 2,56,709 10 - N.A.
Outstanding at the end of the year 20,48,198 10 18,45,125 10
Exercisable at the end of the year 8,50,076 10 323 10

*Weighted Average Exercise Price

- The weighted average share price for options exercised during the period was X 455.01
- The exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year was X 10 (F.Y.2023-24: X 10).
- The Weighted Average Fair Value of ESOP at Grant Date for ESOPs granted during F.Y.2024-25 was X 478.30

The inputs used in the measurement of the grant date fair value values of the equity settled share based payment options granted during the year are as follows:

Particulars F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y. 2023-24
Expected volatility” 50% 50%
Risk-free interest rate 6.66% - 7.14% 7.16% - 7.49%
Exercise price (X) 10.00 10.00
. . Immediately after Immediately after
Expected time to exercise shares . .
Vesting Vesting

#Expected Volatility - Annualised volatility is derived from historical data of share price. As the company is a newly listed company, share price of comparable listed
companies should be used to calculate volatility. The measure of volatility used in ESOP pricing model is the annualized standard deviation of the continuously

compounded rates of return (calculated by LN function) on the share over a one year period of time on annual basis.

Table showing movement of ESOP outstanding reserve as per Fair Value of ESOP (X in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Opening Balance 1,303.01 240.94
Add: ESOP expense added to Software Development Cost during the year 1,612.98 970.18
Share Based payment to Employees (ESOP) recognised during the year in Statement of Profit & Loss (Refer Note

No. 23 - Employee Benefits Expenses) 258.36 91.89
Add: ESOP expense for ESOPs issued to employees of subsidiary (Investment in Subsidiary) 317.58 -
Less: ESOPs exercised during the year (510.83) -
Closing Balance (Refer Note No. 5(B) - Employee Stock Option Reserve) 2,981.09 1,303.01
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Ratio Analysis and its Elements

Veefin Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

As at As at
Numerator (Denominator
Ratio Numerator Denominator Value Value March 31, |March 31, |% Change [Reason for variance
2025 2024
Decrease is due to a portion of
Current ratio (in liquid assets were deployed towards
times) Total current assets Total current liabilities 3,256.61 1,121.66 2.90 4.92 -41%|capital expenditure, resulting in
reduction in cash and cash
equivalents.
The increase is primarily due to
Debt-Equity ratio , i significant rise in borrowings, mainly
. Total Debt Sharholder's equity 2,808.48 15,498.26 0.18 0.05 234% . K
in ti u i X i
(in times) to fund capital expansion and meet
higher working capital requirements
Earning for Debt Service =
. Profit after taxes + Debt service = Finance . . . .
Debt service Depreciation & Cost + Principal While earnings improved, increase
coverage P o . P 1,726.31 162.74 10.61 25.62 -59%|in finance cost and scheduled
. Amortisation+ Finance Cost|Repayments of
ratio (in times) + Other non-cash borrowings repayments reduced coverage.
adjustments
Return on equity Change is due to rise in net profit in
A Sharholder' FY 24-25, whil it
ratio Profit for the year verage Sharnolders 1,115.04 | 13,837.73 8.06%|  6.83%  18% , While average equity grew
(in %) equity at a slower pace as compared to
: profit for the year
Trade receivables Average trade
turnover ratio (in [Revenue from operations . 8 3,731.92 1,378.54 2.71 2.46 10%(NA
. receivables
times)
Software Resource L .
Trade payables Outsource Charges + Rise in trade payables turnover ratio
is due to th binati f high
turnover Software and Server Average trade payables 1,253.34 322.30 3.89 2.00 95% s uet‘o © combina I;: ot gher
ratio (in times) Charges + Other operating expenses and faster
expenses settlement of trade payables
Increase in Net Capital Turnover
Net capital Average working capital ratio is due to higher operational
i.e. Total t t d fficient ki
turnover ratio Revenue from operations (i-e. Total current assets 3,731.92 2,931.83 1.27 0.98 29% revt?nue andmore € |(?|en Awor ng
(in times) less Total current capital management, signaling
liabilities) improved financial and operation
efficiency
Net profit ratio (in Revenue from
P ( Profit for the year . 1,115.04 3,731.92 0.30 0.27 10%|NA
%) operations
i § Capital employed = Net Due to rise in operating profits while
Ret tal [Profit before t. d
eturn on capital | Frofit belore tax an worth+ Total Debt+ 1,526.74| 18,925.82 8.07%  6.57% 23%)|keeping the growth in capital
employed (in %) |finance costs
Deferred tax liabilities employed under control
Return on Interest Income on Average Investments The Company started investing in
investment investments + Net profit on durin gthe car 9.55 321.32 2.97% NA 100%|mutual funds and securities from
(in %) sale of Investments & v current financial year
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(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v

-

(vi)

(vii)

Additional Regulatory Information

Details of Benami Property held

Veefin Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami

property.

Details of Loans and advances

During the year FY 2024-25, the company had granted loans and advances to its related parties which are repayable on demand or without specifying
any terms or period of repayment, no such loans were granted to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMPs). The details of which are as

follows:

Name of the Related Party

Nature of Relationship

Nature of Transaction

Closing Balance as on
March 31, 2025
(Rs in Lakhs)

Percentage to the total
Loans and Advances in
the nature of loans

Finfuze Software Private Limited Subsidiary Company Loans & Advances Given 1.06 0.90%
GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited Subsidiary Company Loans & Advances Given 9.81 8.36%
Infini Systems Limited Subsidiary Company Loans & Advances Given 40.56 34.57%
Veefin Capital Private Limited Subsidiary Company Loans & Advances Given 19.12 16.30%

Total 70.55 60.13%

During the year FY 2023-24, the company had granted loans and advances to its related parties which are repayable on demand or without specifying
any terms or period of repayment, no such loans were granted to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMPs). The details of which are as

follows:

Name of the Related Party

Nature of Relationship

Nature of Transaction

Closing Balance as on
March 31, 2024
(Rs in Lakhs)

Percentage to the total
Loans and Advances in
the nature of loans

Finfuze Software Private Limited Subsidiary Company Loans & Advances Given 0.94 2.25%
GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited Subsidiary Company Loans & Advances Given 0.94 2.25%
Total 1.88 4.49%

Wilful Defaulter

The company has not been declared as a wilful Defaulter by any Financial Institution or bank as at the date of Balance Sheet.

Whistleblower Policy

The company has a whistleblower policy in place and no complaints were received during the year when performing our audit.

Relationship with Struck off Companies

The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
The company has no pending charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the ROC beyond the Statutory period.

Compliance with number of layers of companies
The company has complied with the provision of the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies
(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017. Details of the Subsidiaries as follows:

Name of the Subsidiary Company

No. of Shares

Closing Balance as on March 31, 2025

Amount in Bangladeshi Taka Amount in AED Amount in X
(in Lakhs) (in Lakhs) (in Lakhs)
Veefin Solutions Limited (Bangladesh) 9,970 9.97
Veefin Solutions FZCO (Dubai) 100 0.10
Finfuze Software Private Limited 73,500* 7.35
GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited 7,400* 88.67
Estorifi Solutions Limited (f ly k
storifi A<.)u |on‘s imi fe (or‘mt‘ery nown 10,526 196.53
as Estorifi Solutions Private Limited)
Infini Limi f ly k
n |n| Systems |n'mted ('or'mery nown as 50,763 109.34
Infini Systems Private Limited)
Veefin Capital Private Limited 51,000* 6.84
Idvee Digital Labs Private Limited 7,400* 0.74
Total 9.97 0.10 409.47
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* Includes shares held by nominee shareholders on behalf of the company
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(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

(viii) Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements

There are no Schemes of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(ix) Discrepancy in utilization of borrowings

(x

=

(xi)

The company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the Balance Sheet date.
There are no discrepancy in utilisation of borrowings.

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

(A) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries).

(B) the company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party).

The company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (intermediaries) with the
understanding that the intermediary shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries); or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or;

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Undisclosed income
The Company has no transaction that is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

(xii) Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

The company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency.

(xiii) Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in the name of the Company

The Company does not have any immovable property whose title deed is not held in name of the Company

(xiv) Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company has not revalued any Property, Plant and Equipment during the year
The figures for the corresponding previous years have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary, to make them comparable.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For ADV & Associates Veefin Solutions Limited

Chartered Accountant

FRN: 128045W

CA Vijay Jaju Raja Debnath Gautam Vijay Udani
Partner Managing Director Whole Time Director
M.No.: 613332 DIN: 07658567 DIN: 03081749

Date : 28th April, 2025
Place : Mumbai

Urja Thakkar Payal Maisheri
Compafny SecreFary & Chief Financial Officer
Compliance Officer

Date : 28th April, 2025

Place : Mumbai



Veefin Solutions Limited
(Formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)
Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

1. Corporate Information

Veefin Solutions Limited (CIN: L72900MH2020PLC347893)(formerly known as Veefin Solutions
Private Limited) (the “Company”) was incorporated on October 14, 2020 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. The Company’s registered office is
situated at Global One, 2nd Floor, 252 Lal Bahadur Shahtri Marg, Kurla West, Mumbai - 400070. The
Company is headquartered in Mumbai and provides innovative Digital Lending and Supply Chain
Finance (SCF) technology product solutions to a wide range of clients globally, including Banks, Non-
Banking Financial Institutions, Fintechs, Marketplaces, and Corporates.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
A) Basis of Preparation of Standalone Financial Statement

These standalone financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (Indian GAAP) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis. Indian
GAAP comprises mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read together with rules made thereunder. In accordance with
proviso to the Rule 4(A) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the term used in these standalone
financial statements are in accordance with the definition and other requirements specified in
applicable accounting standards. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of standalone
financial statements have been consistently applied.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on
the nature of operations and time difference between the provision of services and realization of
cash and cash equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The Company follows the mercantile system of accounting, recognizing income and expenditure on
accrual basis. The accounts are prepared on historical cost basis and as a going concern. Accounting
policies not referred to specifically otherwise, are consistent with the generally accepted accounting
principles.

Amounts in the financial statements are rounded off to nearest lakhs.




B) Use of Estimates

The preparation of standalone financial statements is in conformity with Indian GAAP requires
judgements, estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported
amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based
on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

C) Accounting Convention

The following significant accounting policies are adopted in the preparation and presentation of
these standalone financial statements:

i) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Revenue from sale of services is recognized when invoices are raised after the contract
conditions are satisfied and as per the terms of agreement with the customers and the
milestones achieved under the agreement. The company collects Goods and Service Tax (GST)
and other taxes on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits
flowing to the company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.

Revenues from maintenance contracts are recognized pro-rata over the period of the contract
as and when services are rendered. The company collects GST on behalf of the government and,
therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing to the company. Hence, it is excluded from
revenue.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head “other
income” in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends from investments in subsidiaries will be recognized as income in the income statement
when the right to receive payment is established.

Interest on income tax refund is recognised as other income in the year in which such interest is
received.

Accounts Written Back: Liabilities or provisions no longer required are written back and
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under ‘Other Income’. Such reversals are
recognised only when there is certainty that the obligation no longer exists or that the risk
requiring provision has ceased to exist.




)

Profit or loss arising from the sale of mutual fund units is recognised as capital gain or capital

loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss under ‘Other Income’ or ‘Other Expenses’, as applicable.

The capital gain is determined as the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying

amount of the investment at the time of sale.

b)

d)

f)

Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets

Property, Plant & Equipments

Property, Plant and Equipments are stated as per Cost Model i.e., at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any;

The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met, directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use and initial
estimate of decommissioning, restoring and similar liabilities. Any trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditures relating to Property, Plant and Equipments are capitalized only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs & maintenance costs
are recognized in the Statement of profit & Loss as and when incurred;

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the standalone financial
statements upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are
recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the
lower of the carrying value or the fair value less cost to sell;

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipments is provided to the extent of depreciable
amount on Written Down Value (WDV) Method in such a manner so that the cost of asset
(Net of realizable value) will be amortized over their estimated remaining useful life on SLM
basis as per the useful life prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013.

All Property, Plant and Equipments assets individually costing Rs. 5,000/- or less are fully
depreciated in the year of installation/purchase.

Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed periodically at each
financial year end.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance,
controlled by the company, and from which future economic benefits are expected to flow.
This policy is prepared in accordance with the AS-26 ‘Intangible Assets’ as notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and will be consistently applied throughout the
organization.

a) Recognition: Intangible Assets are recognized based on the below mentioned policies:

A. Internally Generated Intangible assets will be recognized on the balance sheet when all
of the following criteria are met:




i) Identifiability: The intangible asset is capable of being separated or divided from the
company and sold, transferred, licensed, rented, or exchanged, either individually or
together with a related contract, asset, or liability.

ii) Control: The company has the power to obtain future economic benefits from the
intangible asset, either through its use or by granting others the right to use it.

iii) Probable Future Economic Benefits: It is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the intangible asset will flow to the company.

iv) Reliable Measurement: The cost or fair value of the intangible asset can be measured
reliably.

B. Intangible assets acquired separately from other assets will be initially measured at cost,
which includes the purchase price, directly attributable acquisition costs, and any other costs
necessary to bring the asset to its intended use.

Intangible assets acquired through a business combination will be measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and impairment value, if any on the acquisition date. Fair value
reflects the price that would be received to sell the asset in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the acquisition date.

b) Subsequent Measurement: After initial recognition, intangible assets will be carried at cost
less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses i.e cost Model.
Subsequent expenditures relating to Intangible assets are capitalized only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably.

c) Amortization: Amortization is the systematic allocation of the cost of an intangible asset
with a finite useful life over its expected useful life. The amortization method used will reflect
the pattern in which the asset's economic benefits are consumed or utilized.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life, such as certain brands or trademarks, will not
be amortized but will be subject to an annual impairment review. If there has been a
significant change in the expected pattern of economic benefits from the asset, the
amortization method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such changes are accounted
for in accordance with AS 5 Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Prior Period Items and Changes
in Accounting Policies.

d) Derecognition: Intangible assets will be derecognized from the balance sheet when they
are disposed of, or when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or




iii)

disposal. Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset will be
recognized in the income statement.

Impairment of Assets

The Management periodically assesses, using external and internal sources, whether there
is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized wherever
the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is charged
to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired.
The recoverable amount is higher of the asset's net selling price and value in use, which
means the present value of future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of
the asset and its eventual disposal. An impairment loss for an asset is reversed if, and only if,
the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized. The carrying amount of an asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount,
provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

Investments

Classification of Investments:

Current Investments: Investments that are held with the intention of being disposed of
within twelve months from the date of acquisition. These investments will be measured at
the lower of cost and fair value. Changes in fair value will be recognized in the income
statement

Non-Current Investments: Investments that are not classified as current investments. Non-
current investments will be measured at cost and will be subject to impairment testing. Any
impairment loss will be recognized in the income statement.

Measurement of Investments:

a) Initial Measurement: Investments in shares will be initially recognized at cost, which

includes the acquisition cost, transaction fees, and directly attributable acquisition costs.

b) Subsequent Measurement:

i) Current Investments: Current investments will be measured at the lower of cost and
fair value at each reporting date. Any changes in fair value will be recognized in the
income statement as gains or losses.

ii) Non-Current Investments: Non-current investments will be measured at cost less any
impairment loss recognized in the income statement.

¢) Investments will be derecognized from the balance sheet when they are sold or when

their ownership interest is relinquished.

Retirement & Other employee benefits




Employee benefits include various forms of compensation and benefits provided to
employees, and proper accounting is essential to accurately report the financial position and
performance of the company. This policy will be consistently applied throughout the
organization.

(a) Short-term Employees Benefits:

Short-term employee benefits, such as salaries, wages, bonuses, and short-term compensated
absences, will be recognized as an expense in the income statement in the period in which the
related service is provided by the employees. The amounts recognized will be based on the
undiscounted amount expected to be paid or provided.

(b) Post-Employment Benefits:

i. Defined Contribution Plans: Contributions to defined contribution plans, such as Provident
Fund as per Employee Provident Fund Law and Employee State Insurance (ESI), will be
recognized as an expense in the income statement when employees render the related service.
The company's obligations are limited to the amount of contributions made, and there are no
further obligations once the contributions are paid.

ii. Defined Benefit Plans: For defined benefit plans, such as gratuity and pensions, the cost of
providing benefits will be determined using the projected unit credit method. The present value
of the defined benefit obligation will be measured, taking into account actuarial assumptions
regarding employee turnover, mortality, and future salary increases. Any actuarial gains or losses
and past service costs will be recognized immediately in the income statement.

(c) Other Long-Term Employee Benefits:

Other long-term employee benefits, such as compensated absences will be recognized as an
expense in the income statement when employees render the related service and become
entitled to receive the benefits.

(d) Termination Benefits:

Termination benefits will be recognized as an expense when the company is demonstrably
committed to either terminating the employment of an employee before the normal retirement
date or providing benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.

(e) Share-Based Payment:

For share-based payment transactions, such as stock options or equity-settled stock appreciation
rights (SARs) granted to employees, the fair value of the equity instruments granted will be
recognized as an expense in the income statement over the vesting period. The fair value of the
equity instruments will be measured at the grant date.

(f) Other Employee Benefits:




Other employee benefits, not covered by the above categories, will be recognized as an expense
in the income statement when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation to
make the payments as a result of past events, and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

vi) Foreign exchange transactions

Transactions arising in foreign currencies during the year are converted at the rates closely
approximating the rates ruling on the transaction dates. Foreign-currency denominated monetary
assets and liabilities outstanding as on year end, if any are translated at exchange rates in effect at
the Balance Sheet date. Foreign currency denominated non-monetary assets and liabilities
measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.
The gains or losses resulting from conversion in terms of the above are included in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. Revenue, expense and cash-flow items denominated in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rate in effect on the date of the transaction.

vii) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non- cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating
cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing
cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities are segregated.

viii)  Borrowings and finance cost

Borrowings are recognised at the amount received from lenders. These include term loans, cash
credit, overdraft facilities, and other credit arrangements obtained from banks and financial
institutions and related parties.

Borrowings are classified as:
Current liabilities, if repayable within 12 months from the reporting date; and
Non-current liabilities, if the repayment is due after 12 months.

Repayments due within 12 months under long-term borrowing arrangements are presented as the
current portion of long-term borrowings.

Borrowings are measured at their outstanding principal amount as on the balance sheet date.
Accrued but unpaid interest is shown separately under other liabilities.

Finance costs comprise interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.

These includes generally Interest on term loans and overdrafts, bank charges, processing fees or
other financing-related charges.Finance costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred, using the accrual basis of accounting.




ix) Trade Receivables & Payable

Trade receivables are stated at their carrying value after deducting provision for doubtful debts, if
any. The carrying value represents amounts receivable in the ordinary course of business, which are
expected to be realised within a normal operating cycle and are classified as current assets.

Provision for doubtful receivables is made based on a review of outstanding amounts at the year-
end and is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

Trade payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end
of the financial year and which remain unpaid as on the reporting date. These are recognised at the
contractual amounts and are settled as per agreed credit terms with vendors.

Trade payables are classified as current liabilities. The Company classifies its trade payables into:
- Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs), and

- Dues to other than MSMEs, based on information available with the management and disclosures
required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act”).

Identification of MSME status is based on confirmation from vendors and information available with
the Company. Interest payable, if any, under the provisions of the MSMED Act for delayed payments
beyond the stipulated date, is recognised in the books only when such liability is ascertained and
accepted by the Company.

X) Taxation

The accounting treatment for the Income Tax is based on the Accounting Standard on ‘Accounting
for Taxes on Income’ (AS-22). The provision made for Income Tax in Accounts comprises both, the
current tax and deferred tax. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Provision for Current Tax is made on the assessable Income Tax rate applicable to the relevant
assessment year after considering various deductions available under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and
accounting income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the
earlier years. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be
realized. In situations where the company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses,
all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing




evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profits. The carrying amount of deferred
tax asset/liability is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and consequential adjustments are carried
out.

xi) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period, in accordance with AS-20. Diluted earnings
per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of
equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The diluted potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been
actually issued at fair value which is the average market value of the outstanding shares. Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a
later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

xii) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal obligation
that is reasonably estimable, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined
based on the best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises
in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the standalone financial statements.

xiii)  Other expenses

Other expenses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the related goods or
services are received or the liability is incurred. These include administrative expenses, legal &
professional fees, rent, repair maintenance and other operating expenses that are not directly
attributable to financing or investment activities. Expenses are recorded on an accrual basis unless
otherwise stated.

xiv)  Cash & cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cash at banks and short term
deposits with an original maturity of twelve months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of




changes in value. The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at
the date of purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash to be cash equivalents.

Fixed Deposits with original maturity exceeding Twelve months are classified as non-current
investments.

For the purpose of Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and
bank balances reported under Current Assets

XV) Other assets & Other Liabilities

Other assets include non-financial and financial assets such as prepaid expense, security deposits,
advances, input tax credit, TDS receivable etc. These are recorded at cost or carrying value based on
the nature of transaction.

Other liabilities include non-financial and financial liabilities such as employee payable, other
payables, statutory liabilities, advances received etc. These are recorded at there settlement value
and are accrued when the obligation arises.

xvi)  Segment reporting

The Company is primarily engaged in providing innovative Digital Lending and Supply Chain Finance
(SCF) technology product solutions to a wide range of clients. Accordingly, the Company operates in
only one business segment and therefore, Accounting Standard 17 — “Segment Reporting” issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is not applicable to the company.




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Veefin Solutions Limited (Formerly known as Veefin Solutions
Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements:

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Veefin
Solutions Limited (Formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited) (“the
Company”), and its subsidiaries (the Company and its subsidiaries together referred to
as the “Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025,
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated
financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated
state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025, and the consolidated profit and its
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”) together with the
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICATI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.



Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2025. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are
no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s
Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s
Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
1s materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and



completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management of the entities included
in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of respective entities to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
their respective entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors of the respective entities included in the Group are responsible
for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in
India, has adequate internal financial controls system in place with reference to
consolidated financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material



uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i1) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company and such other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are independent
auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.



Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of Veefin
Solutions Ltd. which is a wholly owned subsidiary. This financial
statements/financial information have been audited by other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities
and associates, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entities and associates, is based solely on the reports of the other
auditors.

(b) We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of Veefin
Solutions FZCO which is a wholly owned subsidiary. This financial
statements/financial information have been audited by other auditors whose
reports have-been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities
and associates, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entities and associates, is based solely on the reports of the other
auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law maintained by
the Group, including relevant records relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with
the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Company as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors



g)

h)

of the Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary

companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group

companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial

reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the

Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in

accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its

directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197

of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,

2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts; as such the question of commenting on any material
foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

iii. There has not been an occasion in case of the Company and its
subsidiaries during the year under report to transfer any sums to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund.

iv. (a) The respective managements of the Company and its subsidiaries
which are incorporated in India, has represented that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the
accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), outside the Group, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiaries
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;



(b) The respective management of the Company and its subsidiaries
which are companies incorporated in India, has represented, that, to the
best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to
the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company or any of such
subsidiaries from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company or any of such subsidiaries shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
mis-statement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

Vi. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of
the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial
information of the subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks. Therefore, there is nothing to report in clause

3(xxi1) of the Order.
For A D V & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 128045W
CA Vijay Jaju
Partner
M. No.: 613332 Date: 28/04/2025

UDIN: 25613332BMLEPL4704 Place: Mumbai



Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Veefin Solutions Limited
(Formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited) of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to consolidated financial statements of Veefin Solutions Limited (Formerly known as
Veefin Solutions Private Limited) (“the Company”) and its subsidiary companies,
which are companies incorporated in India, as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the respective Companies considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial



controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiary companies, which are incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.



Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the Company and its subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in India,
have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31,
2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the

respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For A D V & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 128045W

CA Vijay Jaju

Partner

M. No.: 613332 Date: 28/04/2025
UDIN: 25613332BMLEPL4704 Place: Mumbai



Veefin Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)
Add: Global One, 2nd Floor, Office 1, CTS No. 252 1, Opp. SBI, LBS Marg, Kurla(W), Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400070
CIN :L72900MH2020PLC347893
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

Particulars Note No. | As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
| |Equity & Liabilities
1 [Shareholders funds:
a |Share Capital 3 2,274.90 2,257.27
b |Reserves and Surplus 6 42,290.16 9,890.53
¢ [Money received against Share Warrants 4 280.88 280.88
d [Minority Interest 5 1,822.78 202.52
2 |Share Application Money Pending Allotment 204.03 -
3 |Non-Current liabilities:
a |Long-Term Borrowings 7 678.07 441.86
b [Deferred Tax Liabilities 8 473.72 329.21
c |Long Term Provisions 9 263.69 119.05
4 |Current Liabilities:
a |Short Term Borrowings 10 594.00 95.31
b |Trade Payables
(i)Total Outstanding Dues of Micro & Small Enterprises 11(i) 95.30 4.32
(ii)TotaI'Outstanding Dues of Creditors Other Than Micro & Small 11(ii) 1,143.14 438.12
Enterprises
¢ |Other Current Liabilities 12 1,764.01 430.74
d |Short Term Provisions 13 291.73 13.48
Total Equity & Liabilities 52,176.41 14,503.29
Il |Assets
Non-Current Assets:
a |Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets
(i) Property, Plant & Equipment 14(i) 630.40 172.60
(i) Intangible Assets 14(ii) 18,065.41 9,266.84
(iii) Intangible assets under development 14(iii) 3,482.76 -
(iv) Goodwill on Consolidation 15 17,580.01 -
b [Deferred Tax Asset 8 5.15 -
¢ |Long Term Loans & Advances 16 569.60 79.67
d |Other Non-Current Assets 17 473.32 163.17
2 |Current Assets:
a |Current Investments 18 3.31 -
b |Trade Receivables 19 4,965.06 975.42
¢ |Cash and Bank balances 20 4,299.88 3,149.97
d |Short Term Loans and Advances 21 251.12 91.88
e |Other Current Assets 22 1,850.39 603.74
Total Assets 52,176.41 14,503.29
See accompanying notes to the financial statements, as under
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Notes to the Financial Statements 2to 40

As per our report of even date
For ADV & Associates
Chartered Accountant

FRN: 128045W

CA Vijay Jaju
Partner
M.No.: 613332

Date : 28th April, 2025
Place : Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Veefin Solutions Limited

Raja Debnath Gautam Vijay Udani
Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN: 07658567 DIN: 03081749
Urja Thakkar Payal Maisheri

Company Secretary & Compliance Chief Financial Officer
Officer

Date : 28th April, 2025

Place : Mumbai




Veefin Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)
ADD: Add: Global One, 2nd Floor, Office 1, CTS No. 252 1, Opp. SBI, LBS Marg, Kurla(W), Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400070
CIN :L72900MH2020PLC347893
Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2025

(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

. Note For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
| Revenue from Operations 23 7,859.76 2,497.21
1l Other Incomes 24 184.61 2.21
1] Total Revenue 8,044.37 2,499.42
v Expenses
Employee Benefits Expenses 25 2,738.54 615.30
Software Resource Outsource Charges 26 745.89 16.87
Software and Server Charges 27 108.86 68.52
Finance Costs 28 68.84 27.54
Depreciation & Amortization Expense 29 509.99 94.09
Other Expenses 30 1,820.78 710.27
Total Expenses 5,992.90 1,532.59
\Y Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (l11-1V) 2,051.47 966.83
VI Exceptional and Extraordinary Iltems - -
Vil Profit before tax (V-VI) 2,051.47 966.83
VIl Tax Expense
Current Tax 163.43 -
Earlier Year Tax 21.35 -
Deferred Tax Expenses 240.77 227.49
Total Tax Expenses 425.55 227.49
IX Profit for the period (VII-VIII) 1,625.92 739.34
Profit for the period attributable to:
(i) Minority Interest 287.59 (0.75)
(ii) Shareholders of the company 1,338.33 740.09
X Earning per share 31
Basic EPS (in X) 5.92 3.27
Diluted EPS (in X) 5.41 2.99
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For ADV & Associates Veefin Solutions Limited
Chartered Accountant
FRN: 128045W
Raja Debnath Gautam Vijay Udani

CA Vijay Jaju
Partner
M.No.: 613332

Date :
Place :

28th April, 2025
Mumbai

Managing Director
DIN: 07658567

Urja Thakkar
Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer

Date: 28th April, 2025
Place: Mumbai

Whole Time Director
DIN: 03081749

Payal Maisheri
Chief Financial Officer




Veefin Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)

CIN :L72900MH2020PLC347893
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

Add: Global One, 2nd Floor, Office 1, CTS No. 252 1, Opp. SBI, LBS Marg, Kurla(W), Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400070

(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

. For the year ended March| For the year ended March
Particulars
31, 2025 31, 2024
Cash Flow From Operating Activities:
Net Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss 2,051.47 966.83
Adjustments for:
Depreciation & Amortisation Expense 509.99 94.09
Interest Income (73.71) (0.81)
Finance Cost 53.59 20.77
Preliminary Expenses 1.28 0.24
Capital Gain on Mutual Fund (33.22) -
Employees Stock Option Reserve 337.57 91.89
Bad Debt Written Off 0.08 11.20
Account Written Back (71.47) -
Net Foreign Currency (Gain)/Loss 37.34 3.12
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 2,812.92 1,187.33
Adjusted for:
Increase/(Decrease) in Long term provision 117.47 52.16
Increase/(Decrease) in Short term Borrowings 372.77 92.35
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 137.02 307.25
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 511.26 105.19
Increase/(Decrease) in Short term provision 5.52 (36.28)
(Increase)/Decrease in Long term Loans & Advances (405.11) (31.14)
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables (2,505.28) (244.70)
(Increase)/Decrease in Short Term Loans and Advances (46.35) (70.10)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets (158.66) (358.65)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other non-current assets (273.76) (163.17)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Bank Balances (5.51) (0.02)
Cash Generated From Operations 562.29 840.22
Net Income Tax (paid)/ refunded (473.02) (83.42)
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Operating Activities (A) 89.27 756.80
Cash Flow From Investing Activities:
Net (Purchases)/Sales of Property, Plant, Equipment & Intangibles assets (9,073.63) (4,471.80)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Investments 30.28 (0.06)
Interest Income 73.72 0.81
Acquisition of Subsidiaries (18,326.69) -
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Investing Activities (B) (27,296.32) (4,471.05)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Borrowings (755.05) 357.65
Proceeds from issue of shares and share warrants 28,915.44 6,324.00
Share application Money Received pending allotment 204.03 -
Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital to Minority Interest 41.92 203.27
Preliminary Expenses (1.28) (100.29)
Interest on borrowings (53.61) (20.77)
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing Activities (C) 28,351.45 6,763.86
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 1,144.40 3,049.61
Cash & Cash Equivalents As At Beginning of the Year 3,149.95 100.34
Cash & Cash Equivalents As At End of the Year 4,294.35 3,149.95
Cash and Cash Equivalents included In Consolidated Cash Flow Statement comprise of following (Refer Note No. 20):
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Balance with Banks
a. In current accounts 2,494.26 3,118.16
b. Fixed Deposits with bank with maturity less than 3 months 1,754.60 21.12
Cash on hand 45.49 10.67
Total 4,294.35 3,149.95

As per our report of even date
For ADV & Associates
Chartered Accountant

CA Vijay Jaju
Partner
M.No.: 613332

Date : 28th April, 2025
Place : Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Veefin Solutions Limited

Raja Debnath
Managing Director
DIN: 07658567

Urja Thakkar
Company Secretary &

Compliance Officer

Date : 28th April, 2025
Place : Mumbai

Gautam Vijay Udani
Whole Time Director
DIN: 03081749

Payal Maisheri
Chief Financial Officer




Veefin Solutions Limited
(Formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)
Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

1. Corporate Information

Veefin Solutions Limited (formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited) (the “Holding Company”, “the
Company”) was incorporated on October 14, 2020 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with the
Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. The Company’s registered office is situated at Global One, 2nd Floor, 252 Lal
Bahadur Shastri Marg, Kurla West, Mumbai - 400070. The Company is headquartered in Mumbai and provides
innovative Digital Lending and Supply Chain Finance (SCF) technology product solutions to a wide range of clients
globally, including Banks, Non-Banking Financial Institutions, Fintechs, Marketplaces, and Corporates.

The subsidiaries of the Company are primarily engaged in the similar business of developing and providing
solutions and services around technology advancement across wide range of clients.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
A) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statement

These consolidated financial statements relate to Veefin Solutions Limited (formerly known as Veefin Solutions
Private Limited), and its subsidiary (together hereinafter referred to as "the Group"). The consolidated financial
statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis. GAAP comprises mandatory accounting standards as
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read together with rules made thereunder. In
accordance with proviso to the Rule 4(A) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the term used in these
consolidated financial statements are in accordance with the definition and other requirements specified in
applicable accounting standards. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements have
been consistently applied.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in the Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of operations and
time difference between the provision of services and realization of cash and cash equivalents, the Group has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and
liabilities.

The Group follows the mercantile system of accounting, recognizing income and expenditure on accrual basis. The
accounts are prepared on historical cost basis and as a going concern. Accounting policies not referred to
specifically otherwise, are consistent with the generally accepted accounting principles.

Amounts in the financial statements are rounded off to nearest lakhs.
B) Basis of Consolidation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the principles and procedures required for the
preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements as laid down under the Accounting Standard
(AS) 21, ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’. The financial statements of Veefin Solutions Limited (formerly known
as Veefin Solutions Private Limited) and its subsidiaries have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding
together book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after eliminating intra-group balances
and transactions and resulting unrealized gain / loss. The consolidated financial statements are prepared by
applying uniform accounting policies in use at the Group. Minority interests have been excluded. Minority interests
represent that part of the net profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries that are not, directly or indirectly, owned
or controlled by the Holding Company.




)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements is in conformity with Indian GAAP requirements of

judgements, estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities,

disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues

and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best

knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the

outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

D)

Accounting Convention

The following significant accounting policies are adopted in the preparation and presentation of these financial

statements:

i)

i)

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue can be reliably measured.

Revenue from sale of services is recognized when invoices are raised after the contract conditions are satisfied
and as per the terms of agreement with the customers and the milestones achieved under the agreement. The
Group collects Goods and Service Tax (GST) and other taxes on behalf of the government and, therefore, these
are not economic benefits flowing to the Group. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.

Revenues from maintenance contracts are recognized pro-rata over the period of the contract as and when
services are rendered. The Group collects GST on behalf of the government and, therefore, it is not an
economic benefit flowing to the Group. Hence, it is excluded from revenue.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the
applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head “other income” in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Interest on income tax refund is recognised as other income in the year in which such interest is received.

Accounts Written Back: Liabilities or provisions no longer required are written back and recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss under ‘Other Income’. Such reversals are recognised only when there
is certainty that the obligation no longer exists or that the risk requiring provision has ceased to exist.

Profit or loss arising from the sale of mutual fund units is recognised as capital gain or capital loss in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss under ‘Other Income’ or ‘Other Expenses’, as applicable. The capital
gain is determined as the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment
at the time of sale.

Property, Plant, Equipments and Intangible Assets
1) Property, Plant & Equipment

a) Property, Plant and Equipments are stated as per Cost Model i.e., at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment, if any;

b) The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met, directly attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use and initial estimate of
decommissioning, restoring and similar liabilities. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in
arriving at the purchase price.




c) Subsequent expenditures relating to Property, Plant and Equipments are capitalized only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. Repairs & maintenance costs are recognized in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss when incurred;

d) The cost and related accumulated depreciated are eliminated from the consolidated financial statements

upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the Consolidated

Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying value or

the fair value less cost to sell;

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipments is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on

Written Down Value (WDV) Method in such a manner so that the cost of asset (Net of realizable value)

e
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will be amortized over their estimated remaining useful life on SLM basis as per the useful life prescribed
under Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013.
All Property, Plant and Equipments assets individually costing Rs. 5,000/- or less are fully depreciated in
the year of installation/purchase.

f) Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed periodically at each financial year
end.

I1) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance, controlled by the Group,
and from which future economic benefits are expected to flow. These include software platforms,
proprietary technology, and licenses developed or acquired to deliver the digital supply chain finance and
lending solutions. This policy is prepared in accordance with the AS-26 ‘Intangible Assets’ as notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014 and will
be consistently applied throughout the organization.

a) Recognition: Intangible Assets are recognized based on the below mentioned policies:
A. Internally Generated Intangible assets will be recognized on the consolidated balance sheet when
all of the following criteria are met:

i) Identifiability: The intangible asset is capable of being separated or divided from the Group and
sold, transferred, licensed, rented, or exchanged, either individually or together with a related
contract, asset, or liability.

ii) Control: The Group has the power to obtain future economic benefits from the intangible asset,
either through its use or by granting others the right to use it.

iii) Probable Future Economic Benefits: It is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the intangible asset will flow to the Group.

iv) Reliable Measurement: The cost or fair value of the intangible asset can be measured reliably.

B. Intangible assets acquired separately from other assets will be initially measured at cost, which
includes the purchase price, directly attributable acquisition costs, and any other costs necessary
to bring the asset to its intended use.

Intangible assets acquired through a business combination will be measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and impairment value, if any on the acquisition date. Fair value reflects
the price that would be received to sell the asset in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the acquisition date.

b) Subsequent Measurement: After initial recognition, intangible assets will be carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses i.e. cost Model. Subsequent




expenditures relating to Intangible assets are capitalized only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with these will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Repairs & maintenance costs are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when
incurred;

¢) Amortization: Amortization is the systematic allocation of the cost of an intangible asset with a finite
useful life over its expected useful life. Where the consumption pattern of the intangible asset is linked
to the revenue generated from the use of the asset, amortization is determined based on the
proportion of actual revenue for the year to the total estimated revenue expected to be generated
over the useful life of the asset.. If there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of
economic benefits from the asset, the amortization method is changed to reflect the changed pattern.
Such changes are accounted for in accordance with AS 5 Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Prior Period
Items and Changes in Accounting Policies.

d) Derecognition: Intangible assets will be derecognized from the balance sheet when they are disposed
of, or when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset will be recognized in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss.

1ll) Intangible Assets under Development
Intangible assets under development represent costs incurred on intangible items that are not yet ready for
their intended use. These may include expenditures on internally developed software, digital platforms,
technology solutions, or any other asset that will be classified as an intangible asset upon completion and
commercial deployment.

Such expenditures are accumulated and presented as ‘Intangible Assets under Development’ under non-
current assets until the development is complete. Upon completion, the cumulative cost is capitalised under
‘Intangible Assets’ and amortised over its estimated useful life, in accordance with the Group's policy on
amortisation of intangible assets."

iii) Impairment of Assets

The Management periodically assesses, using external and internal sources, whether there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying value of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The recoverable amount is higher of the asset's
net selling price and value in use, which means the present value of future cash flows expected to arise from
the continuing use of the asset and its eventual disposal. An impairment loss for an asset is reversed if, and
only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized. The carrying amount of an asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that
this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset in prior years.

iv) Investments
Classification of Investments:

Current Investments: Investments that are held with the intention of being disposed of within twelve months
from the date of acquisition. These investments will be measured at the lower of cost and fair value. Changes
in fair value will be recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Non-Current Investments: Investments that are not classified as current investments. Non-current
investments will be measured at cost and will be subject to impairment testing. Any impairment loss will be
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Measurement of Investments:

a) Initial Measurement: Investments in shares will be initially recognized at cost, which includes the
acquisition cost, transaction fees, and directly attributable acquisition costs.

b) Subsequent Measurement:
i. Current Investments: Current investments will be measured at the lower of cost and fair value at each
reporting date. Any changes in fair value will be recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss as gains or losses.
ii. Non-Current Investments: Non-current investments will be measured at cost less any impairment
loss recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
iii. Derecognition: Investments will be derecognized from the balance sheet when they are sold or when
their ownership interest is relinquished.

Retirement benefits & other employee benefits

Employee benefits include various forms of compensation and benefits provided to employees, and proper
accounting is essential to accurately report the consolidated financial position and performance of the Group.
This policy will be consistently applied throughout the Group.

(a) Short-term Employees Benefits:

Short-term employee benefits, such as salaries, wages, bonuses, and short-term compensated absences, will
be recognized as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the related
service is provided by the employees. The amounts recognized will be based on the undiscounted amount
expected to be paid or provided.

(b) Post-Employment Benefits:

i. Defined Contribution Plans: Contributions to defined contribution plans, such as Provident Fund as per
Employee Provident Fund Law and Employee State Insurance (ESI), will be recognized as an expense in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when employees render the related service. The Group's obligations
are limited to the amount of contributions made, and there are no further obligations once the contributions
are paid.

ii. Defined Benefit Plans: For defined benefit plans, such as gratuity and pensions, the cost of providing benefits
will be determined using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation
will be measured, taking into account actuarial assumptions regarding employee turnover, mortality, and
future salary increases. Any actuarial gains or losses and past service costs will be recognized immediately in
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) Other Long-Term Employee Benefits:

Other long-term employee benefits, such as compensated absences, will be recognized as an expense in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when employees render the related service and become entitled
to receive the benefits.

(d) Termination Benefits:

Termination benefits will be recognized as an expense when the Group is demonstrably committed to either
terminating the employment of an employee before the normal retirement date or providing benefits as a
result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.




(e) Share-Based Payment:

For share-based payment transactions, such as stock options or equity-settled stock appreciation rights
(SARs) granted to employees, the fair value of the equity instruments granted will be recognized as an
expense or added to software development cost in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss over the
vesting period. The fair value of the equity instruments will be measured at the grant date.

(f) Other Employee Benefits:

Other employee benefits, not covered by the above categories, will be recognized as an expense in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to
make the payments as a result of past events, and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

vi) Foreign exchange transactions

Transactions arising in foreign currencies during the year are converted at the rates closely approximating the
rates ruling on the transaction dates. Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities
outstanding as on year end, if any are translated at exchange rates in effect at the Consolidated Balance Sheet
date. Foreign currency denominated non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost are
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction. The gains or losses resulting from
conversion in terms of the above are included in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Revenue,
expense and cash-flow items denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate in effect
on the date of the transaction.

vii) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non- cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities are segregated.

viii) Borrowings and finance cost

Borrowings are recognised at the amount received from lenders. These include term loans, cash credit,
overdraft facilities, and other credit arrangements obtained from banks and financial institutions.

Borrowings are classified as:
Current liabilities, if repayable within 12 months from the reporting date; and
Non-current liabilities, if the repayment is due after 12 months.

Repayments due within 12 months under long-term borrowing arrangements are presented as the current
portion of long-term borrowings.

Borrowings are measured at their outstanding principal amount as on the consolidated balance sheet date.
Accrued but unpaid interest is shown separately under other liabilities.

Finance costs comprise interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.

These includes generally Interest on term loans and overdrafts, bank charges, processing fees or other
financing-related charges. Finance costs are recognised as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they are incurred, using the accrual basis of accounting.




ix) Trade Receivables & Payable

x)

Trade receivables are stated at their carrying value after deducting provision for doubtful debts, if any. The
carrying value represents amounts receivable in the ordinary course of business, which are expected to be
realised within a normal operating cycle and are classified as current assets.

Provision for doubtful receivables is made based on a review of outstanding amounts at the year-end and is
charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

Trade payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the
financial year and which remain unpaid as on the reporting date. These are recognised at the contractual
amounts and are settled as per agreed credit terms with vendors.

Trade payables are classified as current liabilities. The Group classifies its trade payables into:
- Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs), and

- Dues to other than MSMEs, based on information available with the management and disclosures required
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act”).

Identification of MSME status is based on confirmation from vendors and information available with the
Group. Interest payable, if any, under the provisions of the MSMED Act for delayed payments beyond the
stipulated date, is recognised in the books only when such liability is ascertained and accepted by the Group.

Taxation

The accounting treatment for the Income Tax in respect of the Group’s income is based on the Accounting
Standard on ‘Accounting for Taxes on Income’ (AS-22). The provision made for Income Tax in Accounts
comprises both, the current tax and deferred tax. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Provision for Current Tax is made on the assessable Income Tax rate applicable to the relevant assessment
year after considering various deductions available under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting
income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred
tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for
deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where
the Group has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized
only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized against future
taxable profits. The carrying amount of deferred tax asset/liability is reviewed at each Consolidated Balance
Sheet date and consequential adjustments are carried out.

xi) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period, in accordance with AS-20. Diluted earnings per share is
computed by dividing the consolidated profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.




The diluted potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually
issued at fair value which is the average market value of the outstanding shares. Dilutive potential equity
shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive
potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

xii) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal obligation that is
reasonably estimable, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best
estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Group or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there
is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognise
a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

xiii) Other expenses

Other expenses are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the related goods or
services are received or the liability is incurred. These include administrative expenses, legal & professional
fees, rent, repair maintenance and other operating expenses that are not directly attributable to financing or
investment activities. Expenses are recorded on an accrual basis unless otherwise stated.

xiv) Cash and Bank balances
Cash and Bank balances include Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances.

Cash and cash equivalents in balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
The Group considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three
months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

Fixed Deposits with original maturity exceeding three months but less than twelve months are classified as
other bank balances.

Fixed Deposits with original maturity exceeding Twelve months are classified as non-current investments.

For the purpose of Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and cash equivalents
reported under Cash and Bank balances.

xv) Other assets & Other Liabilities

Other assets include prepaid expense, security deposits, advances, input tax credit, TDS receivable etc. These
are recorded at cost or carrying value based on the nature of transaction.

Other liabilities include employee payable, other expense payables, statutory liabilities, advances received
etc. These are recorded at their settlement value and are accrued when the obligation arises.




xvi) Segment reporting

The Group operates in two business segment and therefore, Accounting Standard 17 — “Segment Reporting”
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is applicable to the Group. The Group upon till
previous year provided end to end digital lending solutions, software development services and technology
automations to banks and other financial institutions. During the year, Nityo Tech Private Limited was
acquired with effect from September 27, 2024 which provides IT related services. Accordingly, the Group
operates in product development and providing services.

xvii) Acquisition of Subsidiaries

Acquisition of subsidiaries by way of purchase of majority shares of the subsidiary/controlling the
composition of board of directors of the subsidiary by way an arrangement or agreement are accounted for
using the purchase method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration
transferred to the owners of subsidiary company. Other aspects of accounting are as below:

e The assets and liabilities of the transferor Group are recognized at their carrying values at the date of
acquisition. The reserves, whether capital or revenue, of the transferor Group, except statutory
reserves, are not recognized.

e Any excess consideration over the value of the net assets of the transferor Group acquired is recognized
as goodwill on consolidation. If the amount of the consideration is lower than the value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is treated as capital reserve on consolidation.

xviii) Goodwill on consolidation

Goodwill on consolidation is not subject to amortisation and is tested annually for impairment. Goodwill on
consolidation is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.




Veefin Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended March 31, 2025
(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified
3 Share Capital

Particulars As at March 31,2025 | As at March 31, 2024
1.Authorised Share Capital

1. 2,50,00,000 Equity Shares of X 10 each (Previous Year: 2,50,00,000 Equity Shares of X 10 each) 2,500.00 2,500.00
2.Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up Equity Share Capital

1. 2,39,73,407 Equity Shares of X 10 each (Previous Year: 2,25,73,060 Equity Shares of X 10 each) 2,397.30 2,257.27
Less: Shares held by Veefin Employee Welfare Trust (122.40) -
Total 2,274.90 2,257.27

The Company has reduced the Share capital by X 122.40 lakhs (Previous Year: NIL) for the 12,24,014 shares (Previous Year: NIL) of 10 each held by Veefin
Employee Welfare Trust pending transfer to the eligible employees

(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding as at beginning and end of the reporting period

Number of Shares Amount (X in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024 | As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Equity Share Capital
Balance as the beginning of the reporting period 22,573,060 18,337,860 2,257.31 1,833.79
Add: Shares issued during the year 1,400,347 4,235,200.00 140.03 423.52
Less: Shares issued to ESOP Trust" (1,224,014) - (122.40) -
Balance as the end of the reporting period* 22,749,393 22,573,060 2,274.94 2,257.31

* Difference of X 0.04 lakhs in reconcilaition of share capital in Current Year due to round off (Previous Year: X 0.04 lakhs)

(b) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of the shares of the Company

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Number of shares % of Holding Number of shares % of Holding
Raja Debnath 7,108,111 29.65% 7,099,911 31.45%
Ajay Rajendran 3,764,483 15.70% 4,222,483 18.71%
Gautam Udani 1,341,414 5.60% 1,341,414 5.94%
(c) Shares held by promoters at the end of the reporting period
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Number of % of Holding % Change during the Number of shares % of Holding % Change during the
shares year year
Raja Debnath 7,108,111 29.65% -1.80% 7,099,911 31.45% -15.87%
Gautam Udani 1,341,414 5.60% -0.35% 1,341,414 5.94% -3.00%

(d) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
- The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of X 10/- each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share .
- In the event of liquidation of the company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(e) For the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared
During F.Y. 2022-23, the company issued 1,83,22,200 Equity Shares having a face value X 10 per share as bonus shares to the shareholders of existing fully paid
Equity Shares of the Company in the proportion of 1,170 new shares for every 1 Equity Share, out of Securities Premium Account aggregating to

% 1,832.22 (in lakhs)
4 Money received against Share Warrants

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 280.88 -

Add: Issued during the year2 - 280.88
Balance at the end of the reporting period 280.88 280.88

2During the financial year 2023-24, the Company issued a total of 4,20,000 (Four Lakh Twenty Thousand) convertible warrants (“Warrants”), each convertible into
or exchangeable for one equity share of the Company within a period of 18 (eighteen) months from the date of allotment, in accordance with applicable laws.

The Warrants were issued at a price of 2267.50 (Rupees Two Hundred Sixty-Seven and Fifty Paise only) per Warrant (comprising the warrant subscription price and
the warrant exercise price), aggregating to a total issue size of 11,23,50,000 (Rupees Eleven Crore Twenty-Three Lakh Fifty Thousand only).

The Warrants were allotted on a preferential basis to the following allottees:

Mr. Gautam Udani — 44,800 Warrants

Mr. Raja Debnath — 3,75,200 Warrants

The issue was undertaken in compliance with the provisions of Sections 42 and 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Prospectus and
Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014, as amended, and in accordance with Chapter V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, and other applicable laws, rules, and regulations.

The Warrant Issue was subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company and other necessary regulatory approvals, including that of BSE Limited and any
other relevant authorities.

As per the terms of issue, the allottees have paid 25% of the total Warrant Issue Price, amounting to 2,80,87,500 (Rupees Two Crore Eighty Lakh Eighty-Seven
Thousand Five Hundred only) towards the subscription of the Warrants.
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5 Minority Interest

(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Opening Balance 202.52 -
Add: Addtions due to Business Acquisitions during the year 1,290.76 -
Add: Share of Profit/(Loss) during the year 287.59 (0.75)
Add: Changes during the year 41.91 203.27
Total 1,822.78 202.52
6 Reserves and Surplus
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
A. Securities Premium
Opening Balance 7,340.38 1,820.79
Add: Received on Issue of Share 28,898.09 5,619.64
Add: Transfer from ESOP Reserve 510.83 -
Less: Preliminary Expenses - (100.05)
Total Securities Premium 36,749.30 7,340.38
B. Employee Stock Option Reserve
Opening Balances 1,303.01 240.94
Add: Addition during the year 2,188.92 1,062.07
Less: ESOPs exercised during the year (510.83) -
Total Employee Stock Option Reserve 2,981.10 1,303.01
C. Surplus
Opening Balance 1,257.00 516.95
Less: Deferred Tax for Previous years - -
Add: Foreign Currency Gain/(loss) On Investment (0.51) (0.06)
Add: Net Surplus during the year 1,338.33 740.11
Total Surplus 2,594.82 1,257.00
D. Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Opening Balance (9.86) (8.59)
Add: During the year (25.20) (1.27)
Total Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (35.06) (9.86)
Total of Reserves and Surplus (A+B+C) 42,290.16 9,890.53
7 Long-Term Borrowings
Particulars As at March 31,2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Secured
Term Loan from Banks 3.73 7.04
Vehicle Loan from Banks 233.83 44.73
Debentures 0.05 -
Less: Current Maturities (29.86) (6.06)
Total (A) 207.75 45.71
Unsecured
Term loan from Banks 566.91 29.56
Less: Current Maturities (225.46) -
Loans from Directors 86.28 33.93
Loans from Others 42.59 290.63
Loans from related parties - 42.03
Total (B) 470.32 396.15
Total of Long Term Borrowings (A+B) 678.07 441.86

Notes :

(i) The Group has availed unsecured loan from related parties at interest rate of Rs 10.00 % per annum.

(ii) Loan granted by Directors are Interest free loan.

The Company has availed secured term loan from Kotak Mahindra Bank at interest rate of 12.18% p.a. having Equated Monthly Instalments of X 0.33 Lakhs
and remaining tenure of 12 months from the Balance sheet date

(iii)

(iv) The Group has availed Vehicle loans from Banks and Financial Institution amounting to X 233.83 Lakhs which have total EMI per month of approx X 4.78 Lakhs
with an average remaining tenure of 45 months and interest rate of 9% to 11%. Addtionally a bullet repayment of 32.86 Lakhs will we done at the end of 35

months from the Balance Sheet date

(v) The Group has total unsecured loans from Banks and Financial Institution amounting X 566.91 Lakhs which have total EMI per month of X 21.77 Lakhs with an
average remaining tenure of 34 months having interest rate of 15% to 16%

(vi) There is no default in repayment of loans and interest (long term borrowings) as at March 31, 2025.

(vii) All the unsecured loans are guaranteed by Directors of the Company.
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(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

8 Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) - Net
Particulars As at March 31,2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Deferred Tax Liability 473.72 329.21
Less: Deferred Tax Assets (5.15) -
Closing Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets) Net 468.57 329.21

Details of Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) - Net

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

(A) Deferred Tax Liability (DTL):

(i) Difference between WDV of Property, Plant, Equipment's & Intangible Assets 1,974.81 979.99
Gross Deferred Tax Liability 1,974.81 979.99
(B) Deferred Tax Assets (DTA):
(i) Amount to be claimed on Payment Basis :
- Gratuity (13.04) (2.80)
- Share Based Payments (111.35) (26.94)
(i) Difference between WDV of Property, Plant, Equipment's & Intangible Assets (113.63) -
Gross Deferred Tax Assets (238.03) (29.74)
(C) Unabsorbed Depreciation (1,268.20) (621.04)
Closing Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets) Net (A+B+C) 468.58 329.21
Deferred tax Expense charged to Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss:
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Deferred tax expense/(credit) charged to Profit & loss 240.77 227.49
Total Deferred Tax Expense 240.77 227.49
9 Long Term Provisions
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for Gratuity 263.69 119.05
Total 263.69 119.05
10 Short Term Borrowings
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Current Maturities of long term loans 255.32 6.06
Credit Card Loan 42.99 22.52
Short Term Loan from Bank and NBFC 295.69 66.73
Loans from related parties - -
Total 594.00 95.31
Details of Short term Borrowings
(i)  There is no default in repayment of loans and interest (short term borrowings) as at March 31, 2025.
(ii) The Group has availed unsecured loans from NBFCs at interest rate of 15%-16% p.a.
(iii) Short term loans and advances disclosed above are guaranteed by Directors of the Company.
11 Trade Payables
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 95.30 4.32
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises. 1,143.14 438.12
Total 1,238.44 442.44
Trade Payable Ageing Schedule As at March 31, 2025
(Outstanding from due date of payment / from date of transaction)
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Lesi:::n ! 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed dues
a) MSME - - 95.30 - - - 95.30
b) Others - - 866.98 179.25 25.32 71.59 1,143.14
(i) Disputed
a) MSME - - - - - - -
b) Others - - - - - - -
Total - - 962.28 179.25 25.32 71.59 1,238.44
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Trade Payable Ageing Schedule

(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

As at March 31, 2024

(Outstanding from due date of payment / from date of transaction)
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Lesi::e:n 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed dues
a) MSME - - 4.32 - - 4.32
b) Others - - 406.92 31.20 - 438.12
(i) Disputed
a) MSME - - - - - -
b) Others - - - - - -
Total - - 411.24 31.20 - 442.44

12 Other Current Liabilities

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Share Application Money Refund 0.10 -
Statutory Liabilities 374.67 59.24
Payable for Expenses 196.51 10.16
Payable for Capital Goods 18.57 8.58
Employee Related payable 886.61 299.02
Provision for Expenses 219.66 42.37
Interest Payable 1.81 2.28
Unearned Revenue 4.04 -
Other Payables 39.72 -
Advances from customers 22.32 9.09
Total 1,764.01 430.74

13 Short Term Provisions

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Provision for employee benefits

Provision For Gratuity 19.00 13.48
Other Provisions

Provision for Income Tax 272.73 -
Total 291.73 13.48

15 Goodwill on Consolidation

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Opening Balance

Add: Acquisitions during the year 17,580.01 -
Less: Disposals during the year - -
Total 17,580.01 -
16 Long Term Loans & Advances

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Unsecured, considered good (unless otherwise stated)

Loans and Advances - -
Loans to related parties - 32.39
Loans to Others 569.60 47.28
Total 569.60 79.67

(i) As at March 31,2025, long-term loans & advances due from directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other
person or debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member is NIL (As at March 31,2024 : X 32.39
(ii) The Group has advanced loans to related parties at interest rate of 10.00% p.a.

(iii) Loans to related parties will be utilised by the respective related parties for their principal business purpose.

17 Other Non-Current Assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Security Deposits 443.70 162.21
Fixed deposits with banks with maturity of more than 12 months 29.62 0.32
Preliminary expenses - 0.64
Total 473.32 163.17
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18 Current Investments

(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Investment In Mutual Fund

- HDFC Low Duration Fund 3.31 -

Total 3.31 -
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024

A Aggregate amount of Quoted investments - -

B Aggregate amount of Unquoted investments 3.31 -

C Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments - -

D Market value of quoted Investments - -
Total 3.31 -
19 Trade Receivables

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Undisputed Trade Receivables

Secured - Considered good - -
Unsecured - Considered good 4,945.48 975.42
Doubtful 19.58 -
Gross Trade Receivables 4,965.06 975.42
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts - -
Total 4,965.06 975.42

Trade Receievable Ageing Schedule

As at March 31, 2025

(Outstanding from due date of payment / from date of transaction)

6 months - 1
year

Less than 6
months

Particulars

Unbilled 1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade
Receivables

a) Considered good -

b) Considered doubtful -
(ii) Disputed Trade
Receivables

a) Considered good - - -

b) Considered doubtful - - -
Less: Provision for
Doubtful Debts

63.05

3,812.27
- 8.10

1,048.12

12.16

9.88
11.48

4945.48
19.58

Total 3812.27 1048.12 71.15

12.16

21.36

4965.06

Trade Receievable Ageing Schedule

As at March 31, 2024

(Outstanding from due date of payment / from date of transaction)

6 months - 1
year

Less than 6
months

Particulars

Unbilled 1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade
Receivables

a) Considered good -

b) Considered doubtful -
(ii) Disputed Trade
Receivables

a) Considered good - - - -

b) Considered doubtful - - - -
Less: Provision for
Doubtful Debts - - - -

753.54 208.89

5.47

975.42

Total 753.54 208.89 7.52

5.47

0.00

975.42

(i) Asat March 31,2025, the amount of unbilled receivables is NIL, hence the same is not disclosed in the ageing schedule (As at March 31,2024 : NIL).
As at March 31,2025, trade or other receivables due from directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other

(i)

person or debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member is NIL (As at March 31,2024 : NIL).
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20 Cash and Bank balances

(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

Particulars As at March 31,2025 | As at March 31, 2024
1. Cash & Cash Equivalents
(i) Balance with Banks

a. In current accounts 2,494.26 3,118.16

b. Fixed Deposits with bank (with original maturity less than 3 months) 1,754.60 21.12
(i) Cash on hand 45.49 10.67
2. Other bank balances” 5.53 0.02
Total 4,299.88 3,149.97
* Other bank balances represent fixed deposits with banks with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months

21 Short Term Loans and Advances
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise specified
Advances to employee 61.59 23.30
Advances to others 162.36 68.58
Advance to Vendors 27.17 -
Total 251.12 91.88

(i) As at March 31,2025, short-term loans & advances due from directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other
person or debts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member is NIL (As at March 31,2024 : NIL).

(i) Loans to related parties will be utilised by the respective related parties for their principal business purpose.

22 Other Current Assets

Particulars As at March 31,2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise specified

TDS Receivable 568.64 112.06
Balance with GST Authorities 315.11 54.59
Prepaid Expenses@ 932.67 437.09
Interest receivable on Fixed deposit 28.63 -
Others 5.34 -
Total 1,850.39 603.74

®Note- The majority of prepaid expenses pertains to the events that will take place in the FY 2025-26

23 Revenue from Operations

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sale of Products 4,609.85 2,497.21
Sale of Services 3,249.91 -
Other Operating Revenue - -
Total 7,859.76 2,497.21

24 Other Incomes

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Account Written Back 71.47 -
Interest Income

- On fixed deposits 56.45 1.06

- On investments 9.35 -

- On loans/advances 7.90 0.25
Capital Gain on Mutual Funds 33.22 -
Interest on Income Tax Refund 5.57 0.89
Others 0.65 0.01
Total 184.61 2.21

25 Employee Benefits Expenses

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries and Wages 2229.76 462.76
Share Based payment to Employees 337.57 91.89
Gratuity Expense 36.11 5.10
Insurance Expense 49.95 11.56
Contribution to PF and Other Funds 68.57 38.90
Staff welfare Expense 16.58 5.09
Total 2,738.54 615.30
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(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

(i) Property, Plant & Equipment

Particulars Computers & Laptops | Office Equipment |Furniture & Fixtures Servers Motor Vehicle Total
Gross Block
As at April 1, 2023 58.43 42.78 - - - 101.21
Addition 60.77 31.34 - 1.27 60.51 153.89
Deductions - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 119.20 74.12 - 1.27 60.51 255.10
Additions due to Business Acquisition 122.61 31.27 71.34 10.56 237.82 473.61
Addition 223.85 122.04 2.88 - 60.54 409.30
Deductions - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2025 465.66 227.43 74.22 11.83 358.87 1,138.01
Accumulated Depreciation
As at April 1, 2023 19.42 2.04 - - - 21.46
Depreciation Charge for the year 40.04 17.87 - 0.08 3.05 61.04
Deductions - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 59.46 19.91 - 0.08 3.05 82.50
Additions due to Business Acquisition 104.67 24.78 31.94 7.39 26.47 195.25
Depreciation Charge for the year 109.97 33.12 2.95 2.22 77.16 225.42
Deductions - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2025 274.10 77.81 34.89 9.69 106.68 503.17
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
As at March 31, 2025 (1.23) (0.31) (2.33) (0.57) - (4.44)
Net Block
As at March 31, 2024 59.74 54.21 - 1.19 57.46 172.60
As at March 31, 2025 190.33 149.31 37.00 1.57 252.19 630.40
(i) Intangible Assets

Particulars Goodwill Software Web Portal Total
Gross Block
As at April 1, 2023 1.18 4,028.99 - 4,030.17
Addition - 5,288.11 - 5,288.11

Deductions - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 1.18 9,317.10 - 9,318.28
Additions due to Business Acquisition - 1,354.99 16.13 1,371.12
Addition - 8,366.97 - 8,366.97

Deductions - - - -
As at March 31, 2025 1.18 19,039.06 16.13 19,056.37
Accumulated Amortization
As at April 1, 2023 0.26 18.13 - 18.39
Amortization Charge for the year 0.13 32.92 - 33.05

Deductions - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 0.39 51.05 - 51.44
Additions due to Business Acquisition - 609.66 9.68 619.34
Amortization Charge for the year 0.13 279.07 5.37 284.57

Deductions - - - -
As at March 31, 2025 0.52 939.78 15.05 955.35

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
As at March 31, 2025 - (34.53) (1.08) (35.61)

Net Block
As at March 31, 2024 0.79 9,266.05 - 9,266.84
As at March 31, 2025 0.66 18,064.75 - 18,065.41

(iii) Intangible assets under development

Particulars IAs at March 31, 20250s at March 31, 2024

Opening Balance - -
Add: Additions due to Business Acquisition 1,319.66 -
Add: Expense for Software Development during the year 2,937.30 -

Less: Transferred to Intangible Assets (774.20) -
Closing Balance at the end of the year 3,482.76 -

Ageing of Intangible assets under development:

. Amount in intangible assets under development for a period of
Particulars Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects in progress 3,482.76 - - - 3,482.76
Total 3,482.76 - - - 3,482.76
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26 Software Resource Outsource Charges

For the year ended March 31,

For the year ended March

Particulars

2025 31, 2024
Software Resource Outsource Charges 745.89 16.87
Total 745.89 16.87

27 Software and Server Charges

For the year ended March 31,

For the year ended March

Particulars

2025 31,2024
Software packages 58.63 49.06
Server Charges 49.91 19.46
Platform Usages Charges 0.32 -
Total 108.86 68.52

28 Finance Costs

For the year ended March 31,

For the year ended March

Particulars

2025 31, 2024
Interest on loans/borrowings 53.57 20.77
Processing Charges 15.27 6.77
Total 68.84 27.54

29 Depreciation & Amortization Expense

For the year ended March 31,

For the year ended March

Particulars

2025 31,2024
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 225.42 61.04
Amortization of Intangible assets 284.57 33.05
Total 509.99 94.09

30 Other Expenses

Particulars

For the year ended March 31,

For the year ended March

2025 31, 2024

Audit Fees 30.82 6.01
Account Written Off 0.08 11.20
Foreign Currency Loss (Net) 37.34 3.12
Legal & Professional 384.62 273.44
Office & Admin Charges 110.02 57.28
Rates & Taxes 37.92 32.60
Rent 144.59 23.89
Sales & Marketing Expenses 886.51 272.22
Travelling and Conveyance 105.76 28.28
Donation 70.40 -
CSR Expenses 11.43 1.99
Preliminary Expenses 1.29 0.24
Total 1,820.78 710.27
30.1 Payment to Auditors (X in lakhs)

. For the year ended March 31,| For the year ended March
Particulars

2025 31, 2024

Payment to the auditors comprises (net of service tax input credit, where applicable):
As auditors- Statutory & Tax audit 30.82 6.01
In any other capacity - -
Total 30.82 6.01

30.2 Details of CSR expenditure

Particulars

For the year ended March 31,

For the year ended March

2025 31, 2024
(a) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year (In accordance with
. 8.87 NA
Companies Act, 2023)
(b) Amount actually spent and approved by the Board during the year 11.43 1.99
(c) Shortfall / (excess) spent during the year (2.56) (1.99)

Nature of CSR activities

Nature of CSR Activities undertaken - The company has directed its CSR funds towards providing food and other necessity to poor people. Additionally, it
has supported senior citizens by supplying hearing aid devices and has distributed food packages to underprivileged communities.

31 Earning Per Share

For the year ended March 31,

For the year ended March

Particulars
2025 31, 2024

Net Profit after tax (in Lakhs) as per statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity

1,338.33 740.09
Shareholders
Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculating for Basic EPS 22,598,966 22,598,966
Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculating for Diluted
EPS 24,735,442 24,735,442
Basic Earning per share (in X) 5.92 3.27
Diluted Earning per share (in X) 5.41 2.99
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(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

32 Contingent Liabilities
. For the year ended March 31,| For the year ended March
Particulars
2025 31, 2024
Related to Bank Guarantee 17.00 5.00
Total 17.00 5.00
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Employee Benefits Plan
Defined Contribution Plan

The Group's contribution to provident fund In accordance with the Employee’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952,
Employee State Insurance Scheme (ESI) under Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948 and Labour welfare fund (LWF) are considered as
defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss as they fall due based on the amount of
contribution required to be made. The Group has no further obligations under these plans beyond its periodic contributions.

Defined Benefit Plan

The Group has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. Under the gratuity plan, every
employee who has completed atleast five years of service is eligible. The plan provides for a lump-sum payment to eligible employees at
retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each
completed year of service. The Group does not make any contributions to gratuity funds and the plan is unfunded. The Group accounts for

the liability for gratuity benefits pavable in the future based on an actuarial valuation.

Defined Contribution Plan

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars

March 31. 2025 March 31. 2024
Contribution to Provident fund 66.22 38.90
Contribution to Employee's State insurance Corporation 141 -
Contribution to Labour Welfare Fund 0.94 -
Total 68.57 38.90

Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity
Net liability/(assets) recognised in balance sheet

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Present Value of Obligation 282.69 132.53
Less: Fair Value of plan assets - -
Total 282.69 132.53

Bifurcation of net liability in balance sheet

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Long term Provision 263.69 119.05
Short term Provision 19.00 13.48
Total 282.69 132.53

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 132.53 75.64
Current Service Cost 98.54 24.43
Interest Cost 12.23 5.52
Benefits Paid (18.93) -
Transfer in/(out) obligation due to business acquisitions 22.93 -
Actuarial Loss/(Gain) on obligations 35.39 26.94
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 282.69 132.53
Since the Defined Benefit Plan is unfunded, the disclosures relating to Plan Assets are NIL
The Component of amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current Service Cost 98.54 24.43
Interest Cost 12.23 5.52
Net Actuarial loss 35.39 26.94
Net Costs 146.15 56.89
Note: - Tnh Current FY 2Z0Z4-25,0Ut OT above amount X 1,10,03,030/-15 transterred to SOTtware Developiment Cost as_

from Product Development Team whose salary is transferred to Software Development Cost. Remaining amount of X 36,11,428/- is net

recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

- In Previous FY 2023-24, amount X 5,178,299/-is transferred to Software Development Cost as pertains to employees from Product
Development Team whose salary is transferred to Software Development Cost. Remaining amount of X 510,161/- is net recognised in the

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Assumptions used to determine the benefit obligations

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Discount Rate

Expected rate of Increase in compensation levels
Expected rate of return on Plan assets

Attrition Rate

Retirement Age

Mortality Rate

6.65% p.a.

7.00% p.a.

N.A.

15.00% p.a.

58 Years

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)
Ultimate

7.17%p.a.
7.00%p.a.

N.A.

15.00% p.a.

58 Years

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)
Ultimate
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(a) List of related parties where control exists and also other Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships:

(b)

Related Party Disclosures

Veefin Solutions Limited

(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended March 31, 2025
(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

Name of the related party

Nature of Relationship

Infini Systems Limited (formerly known as Infini Systems Private Limited)

Subsidiary Company*

Estorifi Solutions Limited (formerly known as Estorifi Solutions Private

Limited)

Subsidiary Company*

GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited

Subsidiary Company

Idvee Digital Labs Private Limited

Subsidiary Company

Veefin Capital Private Limited

Subsidiary Company

Finfuze Software Private Limited

Subsidiary Company

Veefin Solutions Limited - Bangladesh

Subsidiary Company

Veefin Solutions FZCO - Dubai

Subsidiary Company

Regime Tax Solutions Private Limited

Step down Subsidiary Company

Nityo Tech Private Limited

Step down Subsidiary Company

Epikindifi Software & Solutions Private Limited

Step down Subsidiary Company

Templeton Solutions FZE

Entity controlled or jointly controlled by Directors of the
reporting enterprise

Raja Debnath

Managing Director (KMP)

Gautam Udani

Whole Time Director & COO (KMP)

Ajay Rajendran

Director

Deepti Sharma

Director

Gourav Saraf

Director (From 26th August, 2024)

Bhavesh Chheda

Director (From 26th August, 2024)

Matthew Simon Gamser

Director (From 26th August, 2024)

Afzal Mohammed Modak

Director

Anand Malpani

Director (Till 26th August, 2024)

Payal Mehul Maisheri

Chief Financial Officer (KMP)

Urja Thakkar

Company Secretary (KMP)

Gowri Rajendran

Relative of Director

Ruchita Udani

Relative of KMP

*The nature of relationship with these related parties has changed from ™

ntity controlled or jointly controlled by Directors or Major Shareholders of the

reporting enterprise' to 'Subsidiary Company' pursuant to acquisition of control by the Company during the year. Accordingly previous year figures have
been reclassified in the diclosures below wherever necessary.

Related Party Transactions during the year:

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties:

1) For the year ended March 31, 2025

Nature of Transactions

Subsidiaries

Entity controlled or

jointly controlled by

directors of the

reporting enterprise

(a) Transactions during the year
(i) Sales
Templeton Solutions FZE

(i) Remuneration paid
Raja Debnath
Gautam Udani
Payal Mehul Maisheri
Urja Thakkar
Ruchita Udani

(iii) Share Based payment to Employees (ESOP)
Payal Mehul Maisheri
Urja Thakkar

(iv) Sitting fees paid
Deepti Sharma
Gourav Saraf
Bhavesh Chheda
Anand Malpani

(b) Balances outstanding at the end of the year
(i) Trade Receivables
Templeton Solutions FZE

(v) Trade Payables
Yash Debnath
(vi) Salary Payable
Gautam Udani
Payal Mehul Maisheri
Urja Thakkar

107.00

551.00

Key Management Relatives of Key
Management
Personnel personnel Total
KMP)/Direct

( )/Directors (KMP)//Directors

- - 107.00

19.73 - 19.73

30.00 - 30.00

29.78 - 29.78

12.78 - 12.78

- 0.66 0.66

30.06 - 30.06

21.66 - 21.66

0.52 - 0.52

0.52 0.52

0.40 0.40

0.84 0.84

- - 551.00
6.75

12.43 - 12.43

1.08 - 1.08

1.72 - 1.72




1) For the year ended March 31, 2024

Veefin Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended March 31, 2025

(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

Entity controlled or Relatives of Key
jointly controlled b Key Management Management
Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries ) N v v Personnel 8 Total
directors of the (KMP)/Directors Personnel
reporting enterprise (KMP)//Directors
(a) Transactions during the year
(i) Services availed for Software Development
Estorifi Solutions Limited 240.00 - - - 240.00
Infini Systems Limited 63.75 - - - 63.75
Yash Debnath - - - 9.00 9.00
(i) Interest expense
Estorifi Solutions Limited 0.09 - - - 0.09
(iii) Interest Income
Estorifi Solutions Limited 0.25 - - - 0.25
(iv) Sale of Services
Estorifi Solutions Limited 3.50
Templeton Solutions FZE - 409.38 - - 409.38
(v) Proceeds from Borrowings
Estorifi Solutions Limited 139.54 - - - 139.54
Infini Systems Limited 125.26 - - - 125.26
(vi) Repayment of Borrowings
Estorifi Solutions Limited 93.64 - - - 93.64
Infini Systems Limited 210.15 - - - 210.15
(vii) Loans & Advances provided
Gowri Rajendran - - - 60.00 60.00
Hansa Udani - - - 8.56 8.56
Ruchita Udani - - - 90.00 90.00
(viii) Loans & Advances repaid
Gowri Rajendran - - - 60.00 60.00
Hansa Udani - - - 8.56 8.56
Ruchita Udani - - - 90.00 90.00
(ix) Remuneration paid
Raja Debnath - - 39.47 - 39.47
Gautam Udani - - 40.00 - 40.00
Payal Mehul Maisheri - - 28.27 - 28.27
Urja Thakkar - - 7.73 - 7.73
Ruchita Udani - - - 13.44 13.44
(x) Money received against issue of share warrants
Raja Debnath - - 250.92 - 250.92
Gautam Udani - - 29.96 - 29.96
(xi) Amount Paid for Offer for Sale in IPO
Raja Debnath - - 1,293.30 - 1,293.30
Gautam Udani - - 244.35 - 244.35
Ajay Rajendran - - 799.02 - 799.02
(b) Balances outstanding at the end of the year
(i) Long Term Borrowings
Estorifi Solutions Limited 42.03 - - - 42.03
(i) Long-term loans and advances
Infini Systems Limited 32.39 - - - 32.39
(i) Trade receivables
Templeton Solutions FZE - 551.00 - - 551.00
(iv) Trade Payable
Estorifi Solutions Limited 278.40 - - - 278.40
Infini Systems Limited 67.43 - - - 67.43
Yash Debnath - - - 6.75 6.75




Veefin Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended March 31, 2025
(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

35 Employee stock option plans

The Group provides share-based payment schemes to its employees. During the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has an Employee Stock Option
Plan (ESOP) in existence, under which option has been granted to eligible employees which are to be vested from time to time. The relevant details of the
scheme and the grant are as below.

The board of directors approved the Veefin Solutions Private Limited - Employee Stock Option Plan, 2022 and Employee Stock Option Plan, 2023 ("the ESOP
Plans"), for issue of stock options to the key employees and directors of the company. According to the Scheme , option has been granted to eligible
employees which are to be vested from time to time. The Company has established share options plans that entitle employees of the group to purchase the
shares of the company. Under these plans, holders of the vested options are entitled to purchase shares at the exercise price of the shares determined at the

respective date of grant of options.

The key terms and conditions related to vesting of grants under these plans are continued employment with the company and in some cases non market

performance condition to be satisfied from date of grant of options till the date of vesting; all options are to be settled by delivery of shares.
The cost of stock options granted under "the ESOP Plans" have been recognised as share based payments transaction (equity settled) in accordance with

'Guidance Note on Accounting for Share-based Payments (Revised 2020)'. In terms of the aforesaid arrangement, the Company accounts for the cost of the
fair value of options granted to the eligible employees as 'Share based payment to Employees' under the heading 'Employee benefits expense' with a

corresponding increase in 'Employee Stock Option Reserve' under the heading 'Reserves and Surplus'.

Measurement of fair values

Accounting is done as per Fair Value Method. Fair value disclosures are given as required under Guidance Note on Accounting for Share Based Payments. The
fair value of the employee share options has been measured using Black-Scholes Option pricing model. The details of the nature and characterestics of ESOPs

granted during the year are as follows:

Particulars FY 2024-25

Grant Date 27 May 2024; 23 July 2024; 22 Oct 2024; 06 Jan 2025

Vesting requirement 1 Year to 4 Years

100% on Vesting date for some ESOPs and 25% each

Vesting ratio year for some ESOPs

Method of settlement Equity Settled

Accounting Method Fair Value Method (Black Scholes)

The details of activity under the Scheme are summarized below:

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31,2024 | As at March 31, 2024
No. of options WAEP* (%) No. of options WAEP* (%)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,845,125 10.00 589 10.00
Granted during the year 484,581 10.00 1,844,536 10.00
Forfeited during the year 24,799 10.00 - 10.00
Expired during the year - N.A. - N.A.
Exercised during the year 256,709 N.A. - N.A.
Outstanding at the end of the year 2,048,198 10.00 1,845,125 10.00
Exercisable at the end of the year 850,076 10.00 323 10.00

*WAEP stands for Weighted average exercise price
- The weighted average share price for options exercised during the period was X 455.01
- The exercise price for options outstanding at the end of the year was X 10 (F.Y.2023-24: X 10).

The inputs used in the measurement of the grant date fair value values of the equity settled share based payment options granted during the year are as

follows
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Expected volatility” 50% 50%
Risk-free interest rate 6.66% - 7.14% 7.16% - 7.49%
Weighted Average Fair Value of ESOP at Grant Date (X) 478.30 198.97
Exercise price (X) 10.00 10.00
Dividend Yield 0.00% 0.00%
. . Immediately after Immediately after

Expected time to exercise shares X X

Vesting Vesting

"Expected Volatility - Annualised volatility is derived from historical data of share price. As the company is a newly listed company, share price of comparable
listed companies should be used to calculate volatility. The measure of volatility used in ESOP pricing model is the annualized standard deviation of the
continuously compounded rates of return (calculated by LN function) on the share over a one year period of time on annual basis.

Table showing movement of ESOP outstanding reserve as per Fair Value of ESOP

(X in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Opening Balance 1,303.01 240.94
Add: ESOP expense added to Software Development cost during the year 1,851.35 970.18
Share Based payment to Employees (ESOP) recognised during the year in Statement of Profit & Loss (Refer

. 337.57 91.89

Note No. 25 - Employee Benefits Expenses)
Less: ESOPs exercised during the year (510.83) -
Closing Balance (Refer Note No. 6(B) - Employee Stock Option Reserve) 2,981.10 1,303.01




Veefin Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended March 31, 2025

36 Information related to subsidiaries
36.1 List of Entities consolidated as on March 31, 2025

Whether the
sr Country of entity is included
" |[Name of subsidiary . v . under the scope | Explain the method of consolidation
No. incorporation .
of consolidation
(Yes/ No)
Estorifi Solutions Limited
1 |(formerly known as Estorifi India Yes Consolidated as per AS 21
Solutions Private Limited)*
Regime Tax Solutions Private India Yes Consolidated as per AS 21
Limited*
3 EPIKINDIFI Software & India Yes Consolidated as per AS 21
Solutions Private Limited*
Infini Systems Limited
4 |(formerly known as Infini India Yes Consolidated as per AS 21
Svstems Private Limited)*
5 |Nityo Tech Private Limited* India Yes Consolidated as per AS 21
6 |Chain Fintech Solutions” Bangladesh Yes Consolidated as per AS 21
United .
7 |Veefin Solutions FZCO n Pf Yes Consolidated as per AS 21
Arab Emirates
8 |Veefin Solutions Limited Bangladesh Yes Consolidated as per AS 21
9 |Veefin Capital Private Limited” India Yes Consolidated as per AS 21
10 Finfuze Software Private India Yes Consolidated as per AS 21
Limited
11 GlobeTF Solutions Private India Yes Consolidated as per AS 21
Limited
12 Idvee Digital Labs Private India Yes Consolidated as per AS 21
Limited

*Companies acquired by the group during F.Y. 2024-25

# Existing wholly owned subsidiary of Infini Systems Limited on the Date of Acquisition
AOn August 8, 2024, the Holding Company has invested X 5.09 lakhs to form a new company Veefin Capital Private Limited acquiring 51% stake of

36.2 Details of Acquisitions made by the group during the year

Sr Number of Shares Face Value of Extent of
" [Name of subsidiary Date of Acquisition . Shares Acquired Shareholding
No. Acquired . R
(in X) Acauired (In %)

Estorifi Solutions Limited

1 |(formerly known as Estorifi 14" June 2024 10,526 10.00 51.31%
Solutions Private Limited)
Regime Tax Solutions Private

th
2 Limited® 30" September 2024 9,11,160 10.00 26.00%
3 EPIKINDIFI Software & N 388926 10.00
Solutions Private Limited® 147 February 2024 T ) 26.00%
Infini Systems Limited
4 |(formerly known as Infini 12t August 2024 50,763 10.00 50.99%
Systems Private Limited)
5 [Nityo Tech Private Limited 27" September 2024 1,00,000 10.00 100.00%

“ The group does not hold more than half of the shareholding in these companies however since the composition of the Board of Directors is controlled by
the group companies, they are consolidated in accordance with AS 21.
36.3 Computation of resulting Goodwill/(Capital Reserve) on above acquisitions

(X in lakhs)
Purchase Minority Interest Net Assets Goodwill/(Capit
Sr. - . . . . al Reserve) on
Name of subsidiary Consideration on Acquisition Acquired .
No. (A) ) © Consolidation
(D) =(A) + (R) -
Estorifi Solutions Limited (formerly known as
1 o . . Lo 6.11 299.08 (290.08) 15.10
Estorifi Solutions Private Limited)
2 [Regime Tax Solutions Private Limited 3,248.85 776.66 (1,049.53) 2,975.98
3 |EPIKINDIFI Software & Solutions Private Limited 97.46 124.83 (168.69) 53.60
Infini Systems Limited (formerly known as Infini
4 X - 91.78 37.72 (76.97) 52.53
Systems Private Limited)
5 |Nityo Tech Private Limited 15,000.29 - (463.59) 14,536.70
6 [Chain Fintech Solutions 0.70 52.46 (107.07) (53.90)
Total 18,445.20 1,290.75 (2,155.94) 17,580.01
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(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended March 31, 2025

Breakup of Net Assets Acquired is as follows: (X in lakhs)
E.st<->r|f| Solutions . EPIKINDIFI .In-flnl Systems
) Limited (former'h‘{ Re.glme T?x Software & Limited (form?r!y Nityo Tech Chain Fintech
Particulars known as Estorifi | Solutions Private . . known as Infini . . 1
A ) . Solutions Private . Private Limited Solutions
Solutions Private Limited L. Systems Private
. Limited .
Limited) Limited)

Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment and

. 184.19 661.28 40.51 0.03 16.49 102.00
Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets under Developmen 355.15 774.20 - 190.31 - -
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) - 93.09 5.90 2.60 - -
Non-Current Investments - - - 0.88 - -
Long Term Loans & Advances - - 56.52 26.25 - 2.05
Other Non-Current Assets - 4.93 31.46 - - -
Trade Receivables 0.20 199.80 304.81 15.25 938.55 1.64
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1.13 1.76 8.52 8.02 94.87 4.03
Short Term Loans and Advances - 9.37 6.17 70.53 26.82 B
Other Current Assets 79.47 29.52 175.57 152.79 112.79 0.05
Total Assets (A) 620.14 1,773.95 629.46 466.67 1,189.51 109.76
Liabilities
Long term Borrowings 313.14 181.29 49.63 271.94 151.93 0.92
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) - - - - 0.20 -
Long Term Provision 10.66 - 15.32 1.20 - -
Short Term Borrowings - - 106.78 18.35 - -
Trade Payables 5.95 163.39 254.95 87.59 209.34 1.58
Other Current Liabilities 0.31 379.74 31.72 10.62 262.43 0.20
Short Term Provisions - - 2.37 - 102.02 -
Total Liabilities (B) 330.05 724.42 460.76 389.70 725.92 2.70
Net Assets Acquired (A) - (B) 290.08 1,049.53 168.69 76.97 463.59 107.07

! Asset and Liabilities acquired of Chain Fintech Solutions are translated at exchange rate at balance sheet date since it’s a foreign subsidiary

Additional Information as Required by Para 2 of the General Institutions for Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements to Schedule Il to the

Companies Act, 2013

Net Assets i.e Total Assets minus Total

Share of Profit or loss

sr. Liabilities
No Name of The Entity As % of As % of
Consolidated |Amount (Xin lakhs)| Consolidated |Amount (X in lakhs)
Net Assets Profit or loss
1 |Parent
Veefin Solutions Limited (formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private 37.05% 17,292.87 62.58% 1,017.52
2 |Indian Subsidiaries
(i) |Estorifi Solutions Limited (formerly known as Estorifi Solutions Private 12.11% 5,650.97 -15.65% (254.52)
(i) [Regime Tax Solutions Private Limited 0.99% 462.49 0.26% 4.30
(iii) |EPIKINDIFI Software & Solutions Private Limited 0.26% 119.16 1.33% 21.69
(iv) |Infini Systems Limited (formerly known as Infini Systems Private 38.03% 17,746.45 -2.55% (41.41)
(v) |Nityo Tech Private Limited 1.17% 547.82 9.88% 160.59
(vi) [Veefin Capital Private Limited 3.99% 1,863.60 0.32% 5.24
(vii) |Finfuze Software Private Limited 0.02% 10.48 -0.14% (2.30)
(viii)| GlobeTF Solutions Private Limited 1.31% 611.18 -4.25% (69.16)
(ix) |1dvee Digital Labs Private Limited -0.29% (135.59) 0.60% 9.80
2 |Foreign Subsidiaries
(i) [Veefin Solutions FZCO (Dubai) 0.63% 295.62 16.14% 262.46
(ii) |Veefin Solutions Limited (Bangladesh) 0.91% 424.00 14.08% 228.93
(iii) |Chain Fintech Solutions (Bangladesh) -0.09% (43.11) -0.30% (4.81)
3 |Minority Interests 3.91% 1,822.78 17.69% 287.59
Total 100.00% 46,668.72 100.00% 1,625.92




Veefin Solutions Limited
(formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended March 31, 2025

(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified

Segment Reporting

The Group operates in two business segment and therefore, Accounting Standard 17 — “Segment Reporting” issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is applicable to the Group. The required details are disclosed below

Ihe Group upon till previous year provided end to end digital lending solutions, sottware development services and
technology automations to banks and other financials institutions. During the year, Nityo Tech Private Limited was
acquired with effect from September 27, 2024 which provides IT related services. Accordingly the Group operates in
product development and providing services. Since the entiry was acquired in mid year, there are no comparitives for
previous periods.

Year ended

Sr. No. |Particulars
March 31, 2025

| Segment revenue

a) Product 4,609.85

b) Services 3,249.91
Sub-total 7,859.76

Less: Inter segment revenue -
Total 7,859.76

1} Segment result

a) Product 1,366.76

b) Services 568.94
Total 1,935.70
Add/(Less):

i) Finance Cost (68.84)

i) Other unallocable income 184.61
Profit before tax 2,051.47

n Segment Assets

a) Product 26,731.28
b) Service 2,032.35
c) Unallocated 23,412.78
Total Assets 52,176.41

v Segment Liabilities

a) Product 2,416.28
b) Service 772.09
c) Unallocated 2,115.29
Total Liabilities 5,303.66
v Total cost incurred during the period to acquire segment assets (tangible and
intangible fixed assets);
a) Product 8,769.85
b) Service 11.44
Total cost incurred 8,781.29
\] Depreciation and amortisation
a) Product 502.69
b) Service 7.30

Total Depreciation and amortisation 509.99
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As at 31st March 2025, the Group has received share application money amounting to X 204.03 Lakhs from investors towards proposed
allotment of equity shares by its subsidiary, as per te terms tabulated given below.

The terms and conditions of the proposed issue are as follows:
Type of Shares: Equity Shares (fully paid-up)

Allotment Period: The shares are expected to be allotted within 60 days from the date of receipt of the application money, in compliance
with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules thereunder.
Nature of Amount: The amount is non-refundable and will be adjusted against share capital and securities premium on allotment.

Availability of Authorised Share Capital : The subsidiary has sufficient authorised share capital to cover the proposed allotment.

Sr. Name of the Subsidiary Amount of No. of shares to be Face Value Premium
Application money allotted
received
1| Infini Systems Limited 10,653,604 263 10 40,498
2| Estorifi Solutions Limited 9,749,196 36 10 270,801
TOTAL 20,402,800
40 Additional Regulatory Information
(i) Details of Benami Property held
The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
Benami property.
(ii) Details of Loans and advances
The Group has not granted loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMPs) and the related parties which are
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. Details of which are as follows:
(iii) Wilful Defaulter
The company has not been declared as a wilful Defaulter by any Financial Institution or bank as at the date of Balance Sheet.
(iv) Whistleblower Policy
The company has a whistleblower policy in place and no complaints were received during the year when performing our audit.
(v) Relationship with Struck off Companies
The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.
(vi) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
The company has no pending charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the ROC beyond the Statutory period.
(vii) Compliance with number of layers of companies

The company has complied with the provision of the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the

Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017. Details of the Subsidiaries as follows:
Name of the Subsidiary Company No of Shares Value in Taka (in Value in AED (in Closing Balance as on
Lakhs) Lakhs) 31.03.25 (Rs in Lakhs)
Veefin Solutions LTD (Bangladesh) 9970 9.97 7.01
Veefin Solutions FZCO (Dubai) 100 0.10 2.33
Finfuze Software Pvt Ltd. 73500 7.35
Globetf Solution Pvt Ltd. 7400 0.74
Estorifi Solutions Private Limited 10526 6.10
Infini Systems Private Limited 50763 91.78
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(X in lakhs) Unless otherwise specified
Veefin Capital Pvt Ltd 51000 5.10

Idvee Digital Labs Pvt Ltd. 7400 0.74

Total 9.97 0.10 121.15
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(viii) Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

As per our report of even date
For ADV & Associates

There are no Schemes of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act,
2013.

Discrepancy in utilization of borrowings
The company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance
sheet date. There are no discrepancy in utilisation of borrowings.

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

(A) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries).

(B) the company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party).

The company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (intermediaries)
with the understanding that the intermediary shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or;

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Undisclosed income

The Company has no transaction that is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961).

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency.

The figures for the corresponding previous years have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary, to make them comparable.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Veefin Solutions Limited

Chartered Accountant
FRN: 128045W

Raja Debnath Gautam Vijay Udani
CA Vijay Jaju Managing Director Whole Time Director
Partner DIN: 07658567 DIN: 03081749
M.No.: 613332

Date : 28th April, 2025
Place : Mumbai

Urja Thakkar
Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer

Date : 28th April, 2025
Place : Mumbai

Payal Maisheri
Chief Financial Officer



Veefin Solutions Limited
(Formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited)
Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

1. Corporate Information

Veefin Solutions Limited (formerly known as Veefin Solutions Private Limited) (the “Holding Company”, “the
Company”) was incorporated on October 14, 2020 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with the
Registrar of Companies, Mumbai. The Company’s registered office is situated at Global One, 2nd Floor, 252 Lal
Bahadur Shastri Marg, Kurla West, Mumbai - 400070. The Company is headquartered in Mumbai and provides
innovative Digital Lending and Supply Chain Finance (SCF) technology product solutions to a wide range of clients
globally, including Banks, Non-Banking Financial Institutions, Fintechs, Marketplaces, and Corporates.

The subsidiaries of the Company are primarily engaged in the similar business of developing and providing
solutions and services around technology advancement across wide range of clients.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
A) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statement

These consolidated financial statements relate to Veefin Solutions Limited (formerly known as Veefin Solutions
Private Limited), and its subsidiary (together hereinafter referred to as "the Group"). The consolidated financial
statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis. GAAP comprises mandatory accounting standards as
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read together with rules made thereunder. In
accordance with proviso to the Rule 4(A) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the term used in these
consolidated financial statements are in accordance with the definition and other requirements specified in
applicable accounting standards. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements have
been consistently applied.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in the Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of operations and
time difference between the provision of services and realization of cash and cash equivalents, the Group has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and
liabilities.

The Group follows the mercantile system of accounting, recognizing income and expenditure on accrual basis. The
accounts are prepared on historical cost basis and as a going concern. Accounting policies not referred to
specifically otherwise, are consistent with the generally accepted accounting principles.

Amounts in the financial statements are rounded off to nearest lakhs.
B) Basis of Consolidation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the principles and procedures required for the
preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements as laid down under the Accounting Standard
(AS) 21, ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’. The financial statements of Veefin Solutions Limited (formerly known
as Veefin Solutions Private Limited) and its subsidiaries have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding
together book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after eliminating intra-group balances
and transactions and resulting unrealized gain / loss. The consolidated financial statements are prepared by
applying uniform accounting policies in use at the Group. Minority interests have been excluded. Minority interests
represent that part of the net profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries that are not, directly or indirectly, owned
or controlled by the Holding Company.




C)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements is in conformity with Indian GAAP requirements of

judgements, estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities,

disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues

and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best

knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the

outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

D)

Accounting Convention

The following significant accounting policies are adopted in the preparation and presentation of these financial

statements:

i)

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue can be reliably measured.

Revenue from sale of services is recognized when invoices are raised after the contract conditions are satisfied
and as per the terms of agreement with the customers and the milestones achieved under the agreement. The
Group collects Goods and Service Tax (GST) and other taxes on behalf of the government and, therefore, these
are not economic benefits flowing to the Group. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.

Revenues from maintenance contracts are recognized pro-rata over the period of the contract as and when
services are rendered. The Group collects GST on behalf of the government and, therefore, it is not an
economic benefit flowing to the Group. Hence, it is excluded from revenue.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the
applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head “other income” in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Interest on income tax refund is recognised as other income in the year in which such interest is received.

Accounts Written Back: Liabilities or provisions no longer required are written back and recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss under ‘Other Income’. Such reversals are recognised only when there
is certainty that the obligation no longer exists or that the risk requiring provision has ceased to exist.

Profit or loss arising from the sale of mutual fund units is recognised as capital gain or capital loss in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss under ‘Other Income’ or ‘Other Expenses’, as applicable. The capital
gain is determined as the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment
at the time of sale.

Property, Plant, Equipments and Intangible Assets
1) Property, Plant & Equipment

a) Property, Plant and Equipments are stated as per Cost Model i.e., at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment, if any;

b) The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met, directly attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use and initial estimate of
decommissioning, restoring and similar liabilities. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in
arriving at the purchase price.




c) Subsequent expenditures relating to Property, Plant and Equipments are capitalized only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. Repairs & maintenance costs are recognized in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss when incurred;

d) The cost and related accumulated depreciated are eliminated from the consolidated financial statements
upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying value or
the fair value less cost to sell;

e) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipments is provided to the extent of depreciable amount on
Written Down Value (WDV) Method in such a manner so that the cost of asset (Net of realizable value)
will be amortized over their estimated remaining useful life on SLM basis as per the useful life prescribed
under Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013.

All Property, Plant and Equipments assets individually costing Rs. 5,000/- or less are fully depreciated in
the year of installation/purchase.

f) Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed periodically at each financial year
end.

Il) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance, controlled by the Group,
and from which future economic benefits are expected to flow. These include software platforms,
proprietary technology, and licenses developed or acquired to deliver the digital supply chain finance and
lending solutions. This policy is prepared in accordance with the AS-26 ‘Intangible Assets’ as notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014 and will
be consistently applied throughout the organization.

a) Recognition: Intangible Assets are recognized based on the below mentioned policies:
A. Internally Generated Intangible assets will be recognized on the consolidated balance sheet when
all of the following criteria are met:

i) Identifiability: The intangible asset is capable of being separated or divided from the Group and
sold, transferred, licensed, rented, or exchanged, either individually or together with a related
contract, asset, or liability.

ii)  Control: The Group has the power to obtain future economic benefits from the intangible
asset, either through its use or by granting others the right to use it.

iii)  Probable Future Economic Benefits: It is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the intangible asset will flow to the Group.

iv) Reliable Measurement: The cost or fair value of the intangible asset can be measured
reliably.

B. Intangible assets acquired separately from other assets will be initially measured at cost, which
includes the purchase price, directly attributable acquisition costs, and any other costs necessary
to bring the asset to its intended use.

Intangible assets acquired through a business combination will be measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and impairment value, if any on the acquisition date. Fair value reflects
the price that would be received to sell the asset in an orderly transaction between market

participants at the acquisition date.

b) Subsequent Measurement: After initial recognition, intangible assets will be carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses i.e. cost Model. Subsequent




expenditures relating to Intangible assets are capitalized only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with these will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Repairs & maintenance costs are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when
incurred;

c) Amortization: Amortization is the systematic allocation of the cost of an intangible asset with a finite
useful life over its expected useful life. Where the consumption pattern of the intangible asset is linked
to the revenue generated from the use of the asset, amortization is determined based on the
proportion of actual revenue for the year to the total estimated revenue expected to be generated
over the useful life of the asset.. If there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of
economic benefits from the asset, the amortization method is changed to reflect the changed pattern.
Such changes are accounted for in accordance with AS 5 Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Prior Period
Iltems and Changes in Accounting Policies.

d) Derecognition: Intangible assets will be derecognized from the balance sheet when they are disposed
of, or when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset will be recognized in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss.

lll) Intangible Assets under Development
Intangible assets under development represent costs incurred on intangible items that are not yet ready for
their intended use. These may include expenditures on internally developed software, digital platforms,
technology solutions, or any other asset that will be classified as an intangible asset upon completion and
commercial deployment.

Such expenditures are accumulated and presented as ‘Intangible Assets under Development’ under non-
current assets until the development is complete. Upon completion, the cumulative cost is capitalised under
‘Intangible Assets’ and amortised over its estimated useful life, in accordance with the Group's policy on
amortisation of intangible assets."

iii) Impairment of Assets

The Management periodically assesses, using external and internal sources, whether there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying value of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The recoverable amount is higher of the asset's
net selling price and value in use, which means the present value of future cash flows expected to arise from
the continuing use of the asset and its eventual disposal. An impairment loss for an asset is reversed if, and
only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized. The carrying amount of an asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that
this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset in prior years.

iv) Investments
Classification of Investments:

Current Investments: Investments that are held with the intention of being disposed of within twelve months
from the date of acquisition. These investments will be measured at the lower of cost and fair value. Changes
in fair value will be recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.




Non-Current Investments: Investments that are not classified as current investments. Non-current
investments will be measured at cost and will be subject to impairment testing. Any impairment loss will be
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Measurement of Investments:

a) Initial Measurement: Investments in shares will be initially recognized at cost, which includes the
acquisition cost, transaction fees, and directly attributable acquisition costs.

b) Subsequent Measurement:
i. Current Investments: Current investments will be measured at the lower of cost and fair value at each
reporting date. Any changes in fair value will be recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss as gains or losses.
ii. Non-Current Investments: Non-current investments will be measured at cost less any impairment
loss recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
iii. Derecognition: Investments will be derecognized from the balance sheet when they are sold or when
their ownership interest is relinquished.

Retirement benefits & other employee benefits

Employee benefits include various forms of compensation and benefits provided to employees, and proper
accounting is essential to accurately report the consolidated financial position and performance of the Group.
This policy will be consistently applied throughout the Group.

(a) Short-term Employees Benefits:

Short-term employee benefits, such as salaries, wages, bonuses, and short-term compensated absences, will
be recognized as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the related
service is provided by the employees. The amounts recognized will be based on the undiscounted amount
expected to be paid or provided.

(b) Post-Employment Benefits:

i. Defined Contribution Plans: Contributions to defined contribution plans, such as Provident Fund as per
Employee Provident Fund Law and Employee State Insurance (ESI), will be recognized as an expense in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when employees render the related service. The Group's obligations
are limited to the amount of contributions made, and there are no further obligations once the contributions
are paid.

ii. Defined Benefit Plans: For defined benefit plans, such as gratuity and pensions, the cost of providing benefits
will be determined using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation
will be measured, taking into account actuarial assumptions regarding employee turnover, mortality, and
future salary increases. Any actuarial gains or losses and past service costs will be recognized immediately in
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) Other Long-Term Employee Benefits:

Other long-term employee benefits, such as compensated absences, will be recognized as an expense in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when employees render the related service and become entitled
to receive the benefits.

(d) Termination Benefits:




Termination benefits will be recognized as an expense when the Group is demonstrably committed to either
terminating the employment of an employee before the normal retirement date or providing benefits as a
result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.

(e) Share-Based Payment:

For share-based payment transactions, such as stock options or equity-settled stock appreciation rights
(SARs) granted to employees, the fair value of the equity instruments granted will be recognized as an
expense or added to software development cost in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss over the
vesting period. The fair value of the equity instruments will be measured at the grant date.

(f) Other Employee Benefits:

Other employee benefits, not covered by the above categories, will be recognized as an expense in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to
make the payments as a result of past events, and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

vi) Foreign exchange transactions

Transactions arising in foreign currencies during the year are converted at the rates closely approximating the
rates ruling on the transaction dates. Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities
outstanding as on year end, if any are translated at exchange rates in effect at the Consolidated Balance Sheet
date. Foreign currency denominated non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost are
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction. The gains or losses resulting from
conversion in terms of the above are included in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Revenue,
expense and cash-flow items denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate in effect
on the date of the transaction.

vii) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non- cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities are segregated.

viii) Borrowings and finance cost

Borrowings are recognised at the amount received from lenders. These include term loans, cash credit,
overdraft facilities, and other credit arrangements obtained from banks and financial institutions.

Borrowings are classified as:
Current liabilities, if repayable within 12 months from the reporting date; and
Non-current liabilities, if the repayment is due after 12 months.

Repayments due within 12 months under long-term borrowing arrangements are presented as the current
portion of long-term borrowings.

Borrowings are measured at their outstanding principal amount as on the consolidated balance sheet date.
Accrued but unpaid interest is shown separately under other liabilities.

Finance costs comprise interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.




These includes generally Interest on term loans and overdrafts, bank charges, processing fees or other
financing-related charges. Finance costs are recognised as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they are incurred, using the accrual basis of accounting.

ix) Trade Receivables & Payable

Trade receivables are stated at their carrying value after deducting provision for doubtful debts, if any. The
carrying value represents amounts receivable in the ordinary course of business, which are expected to be
realised within a normal operating cycle and are classified as current assets.

Provision for doubtful receivables is made based on a review of outstanding amounts at the year-end and is
charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

Trade payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the
financial year and which remain unpaid as on the reporting date. These are recognised at the contractual
amounts and are settled as per agreed credit terms with vendors.

Trade payables are classified as current liabilities. The Group classifies its trade payables into:
- Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs), and

- Dues to other than MSMEs, based on information available with the management and disclosures required
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act”).

Identification of MSME status is based on confirmation from vendors and information available with the
Group. Interest payable, if any, under the provisions of the MSMED Act for delayed payments beyond the
stipulated date, is recognised in the books only when such liability is ascertained and accepted by the Group.

X) Taxation

The accounting treatment for the Income Tax in respect of the Group’s income is based on the Accounting
Standard on ‘Accounting for Taxes on Income’ (AS-22). The provision made for Income Tax in Accounts
comprises both, the current tax and deferred tax. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Provision for Current Tax is made on the assessable Income Tax rate applicable to the relevant assessment
year after considering various deductions available under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and accounting
income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differences for the earlier years. Deferred
tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for
deductible timing differences only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. In situations where
the Group has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized
only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that they can be realized against future
taxable profits. The carrying amount of deferred tax asset/liability is reviewed at each Consolidated Balance
Sheet date and consequential adjustments are carried out.

xi) Earnings per share




Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period, in accordance with AS-20. Diluted earnings per share is
computed by dividing the consolidated profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that
could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The diluted potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually
issued at fair value which is the average market value of the outstanding shares. Dilutive potential equity
shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive
potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

xii) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal obligation that is
reasonably estimable, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best
estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Group or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there
is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognise
a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

xiii) Other expenses

Other expenses are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the related goods or
services are received or the liability is incurred. These include administrative expenses, legal & professional
fees, rent, repair maintenance and other operating expenses that are not directly attributable to financing or
investment activities. Expenses are recorded on an accrual basis unless otherwise stated.

xiv) Cash and Bank balances
Cash and Bank balances include Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances.

Cash and cash equivalents in balance sheet comprise of cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
The Group considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three
months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

Fixed Deposits with original maturity exceeding three months but less than twelve months are classified as
other bank balances.

Fixed Deposits with original maturity exceeding Twelve months are classified as non-current investments.

For the purpose of Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and cash equivalents
reported under Cash and Bank balances.

xv) Other assets & Other Liabilities




Other assets include prepaid expense, security deposits, advances, input tax credit, TDS receivable etc. These
are recorded at cost or carrying value based on the nature of transaction.

Other liabilities include employee payable, other expense payables, statutory liabilities, advances received
etc. These are recorded at their settlement value and are accrued when the obligation arises.

xvi) Segment reporting

The Group operates in two business segment and therefore, Accounting Standard 17 — “Segment Reporting”
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is applicable to the Group. The Group upon till
previous year provided end to end digital lending solutions, software development services and technology
automations to banks and other financial institutions. During the year, Nityo Tech Private Limited was
acquired with effect from September 27, 2024 which provides IT related services. Accordingly, the Group
operates in product development and providing services.

xvii) Acquisition of Subsidiaries

Acquisition of subsidiaries by way of purchase of majority shares of the subsidiary/controlling the
composition of board of directors of the subsidiary by way an arrangement or agreement are accounted for
using the purchase method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration
transferred to the owners of subsidiary company. Other aspects of accounting are as below:

e The assets and liabilities of the transferor Group are recognized at their carrying values at the date of
acquisition. The reserves, whether capital or revenue, of the transferor Group, except statutory
reserves, are not recognized.

e Any excess consideration over the value of the net assets of the transferor Group acquired is recognized
as goodwill on consolidation. If the amount of the consideration is lower than the value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is treated as capital reserve on consolidation.

xviii) Goodwill on consolidation

Goodwill on consolidation is not subject to amortisation and is tested annually for impairment. Goodwill on
consolidation is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
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